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I~ Letter to Shareholders

Arbor Technology has entered its 31st year since its establishment in 1993. During
these years, Arbor has undergone various challenges including global economy
recession due to Covid 19, financial crisis, poor demand caused by inflation and
interest rate hikes in 2023 and inventory adjustments by customers, nevertheless,
Arbor has managed to defeat all challenges and stand strong upfront.

The development of the Industrial Internet of Things (IIoT) is accelerating, and IPC
manufacturers are actively seizing future business opportunities. However, due to the
characteristics of industrial fragmentation, under the trend of the Internet of
Everything, it is difficult for all businesses to fully eat by relying on single fighting.
Arbour has proposed the concept of “fast growth in the future”. Through cross-field
alliances and cooperation, the most competitive strategic partners can lead in different
application fields. Not only can they complement each other and create more
opportunities than ever.

Driven by the increase in product value and the decrease in production costs, the
Company has delivered a three-digit growth in the first half of 2023, and the synergies
have shown. Although the shipment momentum has slowed down in the second half of
the year, benefiting from the expansion of operating scale and the fermentation of
alliance benefits, it is conducive to Gross Profit Margin to maintain a high level. The
new year's profit is expected to be higher, and the innovative value of "Industrial
communication, Telecommunication Industrialization" will be realized. We will surely
create better products and brighter operating results, so as to meet the expectations of
shareholders.

The results of operations for FY 2023 and business outlook for 2024 are reported as
follows -

I ~ Operating results for FY 2023 :

(1) Implementation results of business plan for 2023 :

Arbor's revenue and gross profit for FY 2023 was NT$1,671,427 and
NT$547,107 thousand respectively; Operating income was NT$151,770 thousand,
net income before tax was NT$160,430 thousand, and net income after tax was
NT$124,338 thousand with EPS NT$1.30.

(2) Research and Development status :

Arbor invested NT$86,972 thousand in R&D in FY 2023, representing a
decrease of 3.20% over FY 2022 and accounting for 5.20% of operating revenue.
The major R&D results in FY2023 are as follows -

1. Developed Intel Q670/H610 motherboard, supported Intel's 12th generation
Gadget processor, which is used exclusively for Al machine vision equipment.

2. Developed Intel Whiskey Lake COM Express Compact Type 6 Module, for Al
recognition system.

3. Designed with Intel Tiger Lake-UP3 platform, used in human-shaped robots.



4. Intel Elkhart Lake platform-designed Rugged Tablet, supports Wi-Fi 6’ USB 3.0
and function Keys, for retail or warehousing vertical markets

5. Intel 13th Raptor Lake S processor, the machine's wide temperature operation is
fanless and streamlined 1O design to support the standard PCle* 16/PCI/PCle
graphics card/IO shortcut card

6. Intel 12th Alder Lake S Al fanless vehicle and railway controller, the highest
support for Nvidia RTX-A2000 MXM GPU, and a variety of camera interfaces-
POE/USB/10G/5G, E-Mark certification

7. Implementation of the ASLAN next-generation centricity upgrade programme,
full-size upgrade to the Intel Tiger Lake platform Status of marketing and
promotion.

(3) Marketing and promotion status:

With the easing of the epidemic in 2023, countries are lifting the lockdown.
Arbor Technology participates in international indicator exhibitions to promote
the company's products, including the latest industrial computers such as Al
computing and edge computing, to enhance brand awareness, and the website
traffic has increased significantly.

(4) Budget implementation:

The Company did not publish financial forecasts for 2023.

(5) Financial income and expenditure and profitability analysis:

Currency:NTD thousands
Item 2022 2023
Financial [Revenue 1,801,055 1,671,427
performance [Net profit before tax 177,351 160,430
return on assets (%) 4.16 3.92
..., |Shareholder return on equity
Profitability (%) 7.06 5.87
Pre-tax income to paid-in
capital (%) P 18.58 16.81
Net Profit Margin (%) 7.14 7.44
Earnings per share (NTD$ ) 1.51 1.30

II ~ 2024 Business Outlook :

1. Continue to create the value of industrial communication, communication industry
innovation, and build the IoT ecosystem as the mission, so that industrial computers
have the ability to connect (IPC with connectivity), and through the integration of
network, communication, software, optoelectronics, and cloud data applications, so
that the original industrial computer applications biased towards factory automation
can be extended to various aspects of intelligent life, forming a true intelligent
industry.



2. Provide customers with better and more stable quality and one-stop service
solutions through intelligent optimization of the production environment, training
of personnel, upgrading of testing equipment and adjustment of organizational
structure.

3. Implement inventory and expense control programs continuously in order to reduce
unproductive costs and achieve profitability goals.

4. In 2024, Arbor will create more business opportunities by participating in ISE and
SPS exhibitions in Europe, Modex, Nvidia GTC, Automate, Embedded in the
United States, Japan IT Week in Asia, and Computex in Taipei.

5. It is expected that about 120,000 board card products and about 75,000 system
products will be shipped in 2024.

III ~ Future Development Strategies

Continue to actively develop distributors to increase market share, and jointly
develop products with strategic partners, centralize resources, and accelerate
product development to grasp market business opportunities.

IV ~ Impact of the Regulatory Environment and the Overall Business
Environment

In recent years, Arbor has invested in the ESG field, providing products such as
smart switchboards, smart water meters, and war room platforms, and cutting into
carbon management and carbon inspection business opportunities to meet the
global net-zero goal. In addition, due to global inflation and the continuous interest
rate hikes by central banks in the past two years, the cost of raw materials and
capital costs have also been affected, the Company is still conservative and prudent,
in addition to adjusting the price strategy and taking into account the liquidity and
safety of the operation as the premise, the most appropriate allocation of capital
group cooperation to seek the maximum interests of shareholders.

In order to meet the market trend of small amount and diversification of
products, Arbor has put more effort to develop new technologies and launch
new products with an open mind to face different technology integration to
ensure the continuous development and growth of the company.

We are grateful to all shareholders for sparing your time to attend the
shareholders' meeting today and highly appreciate your support and
encouragement for Arbor’s continuing growth in future. $gg 51
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II ~ Company Profile

1 ~ Date of Incorporation: October 19, 1993
2 ~ Company History:

Year Important Events

1993 ® ARBOR Technology was founded by Eric Lee, located in Taipei, Taiwan as its

headquarters.
1996 ® Military portable workstation was launched
® Established first ARBOR China branch office in Shenzhen
2001 ® Established ARBOR Solution Inc. in Silicon Valley, CA, USA
® Established network appliance product line & panel PC product line
2002 ® Awarded by the Taiwan Symbol of Excellence
® ETX product line was established
2003 ® [aunched world first Intel Pentium M ETX module
® ARBOR France office was established
® Established Embedded Computing Dept.
2004 |®@ Established Hwa-Pei office in China
® [ aunched its First Box PC and Mobile DVR
2005 |@ Built-up mobile computing R&D center
2006 |® Launched ARBOR first military rugged tablet PC
2007 |®@ Founded manufacturing center in Shenzhen

2008 ® ARBOR Australia office and ARBOR Shenzhen office were
established

ARBOR Showcases Digital Signage Innovations at ISE 2017

2009 ® Tablet POS was awarded by Taiwan Excellence
® Established Medical production line
® M1923 wins Taiwan Excellence Award 2019
2020 (® ARBOR partners up with National Cheng Kung University for smart med wristband
o
o

Factory Relocated to Zhonghe, JiangKang Rd smart factory with new MES, APS
system implemented.
2021 (® ARBOR build next-generation anti-pandemic technology -

® Unibody temperature and face mask screening solution

Taiwan Railway Project




Year

Important Events

® Taiwan Water Corporation Smart Water Meter Reader Project Completed and
Finalized

® ARBOR Technology Factory (Shenzhen) upgrade SMT Equipment, Production
Improve 40%

2022

The second private placement of NT$160,000,000 in cash was conducted by Ennoconn
International Investment Co., Ltd., and the total amount of private placement was
NT$296,000,000, and the paid-in capital was increased to NT$904,218,000.

2023

Joined Taiwan Internet Of Things Association(TIOTA) and President Eric Lee was elected

as the Chairman.

2024

Arbor has successfully applied to enter the "KO-IN Smart High Point" base of the
Economic Development Bureau of the Kaohsiung City Government, hoping to cooperate
with more technology innovation companies in Kaohsiung to create unlimited business

opportunities for IOT, ESG and Al Solution of industrial control.




III ~ Corporate Governance Report

Organization

1.

(1) Organization structure

Shareholder’ s meeting

Occupational Safety and Health Dept.

Financial Dept.

Operations & Management Div.

Resource Management Div.

CSCOo
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Industry Tablet Solution Div.

General Manager

MIS Div.

Information Security Center

MIS Dept.

VIP Service & Customer Satisfaction Dept.

Tech management

center

Branch office business Div.

Technology & Service Div.

Industry Application Div.(1A)

Embedded Computing Div.(EC)




Business operation of a variety of departments:

Departments

Contents of duties

Remuneration
Committee

Establishing and periodically reviewing the performance assessment
standards, and the policies, systems, standards, and structure for the
compensation of the directors, supervisors, and managerial officers.
Periodically evaluate and prescribe the remuneration of directors,
supervisors and management officers.

Audit Office

Responsible for the establishment of the Company's internal control
system and auditing system, evaluating the soundness, reasonableness
and effectiveness of the Company's various management systems.

Inspect the implementation of the Company's internal control system
and provide analysis, recommendations and tracking of improvement
issues.

Chairman

Drafting of long-term management and development strategies of the
Company.

Preparation of external investment, merger and acquisition plans and
review of contracts.

Board of Directors' and shareholders' meetings.

To be in charge of the Company's approval authority and continuous
supervision and improvement of internal control operations.
Application, maintenance, management and risk control of legal affairs.

CEO

To ensure the profitability of the business and to maintain the
operation and sustainability of the business.

To draft the Company's business plan and business objectives, quality
policy and target setting.

To coordinate all departments and projects, to coordinate the
management of the Company and overseas subsidiaries.

To approve major business decisions of the Company.

General Manager

To promote the Company's business plan and business objectives.

To supervise the review of departmental plans and implementation
results.

Coordinate the allocation of resources among different departments of
the Company.

Technical
Operations

To manage the Company's research and development products and
quality certification and other related matters.

Embedded and
Applied Computing
Division

To manage the R&D, planning, market development and technical
support of the Company's embedded and application computer products.

Industrial
Automation &
Transportation
Applications
Division

Responsible for research, development and sales support (including
ODM and OEM) of products related to industrial automation and
transportation applications, including digital signage, transportation,
industrial control and automation, and smart grid related industries.




Departments Contents of duties
Technical Service  |@ To manage the technical support and technical document management
Department of the Company's product development.
® Customer credit collection, order processing, receivables collection,
® market development and sales, production and sales coordination.
® (Global market intelligence collection, analysis and planning.
® Responsible for the preparation of product marketing and promotion
Branch business plans and business marketing support.
division . . .
® Product project evaluation, confirmation and management.
® Responsible for receiving and handling customer complaints and
responding to and assisting with product application problems.
® (Customer satisfaction survey and feedback.
Manage the business planning and maintenance of corporate website.
® Responsible for quality abnormality tracking and improvement
countermeasures confirmation.
® Handle customer complaints, customer appeal case information
integration and ensure the proposed solutions.
VIP and Customer ® Execute customer satisfaction survey and statistics.
Satisfaction Center |® Provide after-sales service for VIP customers.
® Handle customer visits and reception.
® Overseas service station related contact matters.
® Provide customer-related technical support and other services.
® 8. Perform PCB Layout design operations.
Information ® Build a high-efficiency enterprise information system, integrate
Technology various internal information security and application platforms. The
Division main task is to promote the business efficiency of each department and
improve the quality of work.

. ® Strengthen enterprise information security protection, cultivate
Information information security talents and develop key information security
Security Center technologies. Establish a safe, stable and secure digital environment

for enterprises.

. ® Manage the operation and planning of the information system of each
Information System department and assist in the development of software applications
Center required by each department in order to improve the use of company

resources.
' ° ) . . .
Industrial Tablet Dre(:)\l;i(;r;l)smdustnal tablet products and assist in solving customer
Solution Business p '
Division ® Research and develop application solutions for handheld products and

integrate software.




Departments

Contents of duties

Assist in the evaluation and development of ODM projects.

IoT and Power
Solutions Business
Group

Strengthen the development of the southern Taiwan market, promote
Arbor and Amobile products, and enhance the popularity of Arbor
Group.

Provide product consultation and after-sales service for customers in
the IoT and power industry in southern Taiwan.

Develop energy industry-specific products in cooperation with power
system customers.

Participation in Taipower's energy storage substation and regional
microgrid construction tenders.

Assisted Taipower in establishing the IEC 61850-8-2 XMPP cloud
platform and the online certification service for the client gateway.

Channel business
development division

Plan and implement new business operation strategies for new
overseas markets.

Plan new product strategy blueprint for new business, research and
execute operation plan.

Analysis and evaluation of brand management, alliance with other
industries, and project cooperation (including other industries).

4. Develop new technologies, new products or new business
opportunities.

Production &
Operation Division

Responsible for the production and continuous quality improvement of
the Company, we have a manufacturing department and a quality
control department.

Manufacturing
Division

Processing and manufacturing of various products in accordance with
the production plan.

Production equipment, plant facilities maintenance, maintenance and
management.

Improvement of manufacturing technology and process capability.

Simplification, automation and productivity improvement of
production process.

Maintenance and management of safety, health and environmental
protection facilities.

Confirmation and coordination of process quality and execution of
internal quality audits.

Quality Control
Division

Responsible for the overall quality continuous improvement
management of the Company, such as new products, outsourcing
plants, supplier management, early detection of potential abnormalities
and effective improvement in a timely manner.

Procurement
Division

Production and sales coordination and liaison matters.

Receiving and distribution management, storage and delivery of raw




Departments

Contents of duties

materials and finished products.

Quality management and counseling of suppliers/associated factories.

Operation
Management
Division

Responsible for the operation and planning of the information system
of each department and assist in the development of software
applications required by each department in order to improve the use
of company resources.

To take charge of human resources affairs, office administration,
general affairs, procurement management and legal affairs.

To manage the management planning and execution of various
projects.

Financial
Department

To manage the establishment and operation of the financial accounting
system, financial statements and budget preparation and review
planning.

Cash planning.

The preparation and deployment of funds and the management of
foreign exchange operations.

Management of shareholders' equity business.

Occupational Safety
and Health Division

To draft, plan, supervise and promote labor safety and health
management issues.

To consider, coordinate, and recommend matters related to safety and
health policies.

To guide the relevant departments and personnel to implement the
safety and health policy.

To plan and promote safety and health education and training.

10
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2. Major shareholders of corporate shareholders (shareholding of the top 10 and their

shareholding ratio)

As 0f 2024/4/1
Name of Shareholders Major Shareholders %

Labor Pension Fund 3.16

Cathay MSCI Taiwan ESG Sustainability High 313

Dividend Yield ETF '

Fubon Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 1.84

Taipei Fubon Bank Trust Account (employee

. 1.62

share ownership trust)

Yuanta Taiwan Dividend Plus ETF 1.50
Wistron Corporation  |Lin Hsien-Ming 1.47

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., Taipei Branch in

custody for Vanguard Total International Stock 1.35

Index Fund, a series of Vanguard Star Funds

Wistron NeWeb Corporation 0.99

CAPITAL TIP Taiwan Select High Dividend ETF 0.89

Norges Bank-fund mgr Blackrock Investment 0.8

Management(Taiwan) Limited '

Major shareholder of the Company’s major corporate shareholders

As of 2024/4/2
Name of Shareholders Major Shareholders %
Wistron Corporation 19.80
Yuanta Taiwan Dividend Plus ETF 4.35
Fuh Hwa Taiwan Technology Dividend 385
Highlight ETF '
Labor Pension Fund (New Scheme) 2.61
Wang YONG-SHUN 2.13
: Bank SinoPac in custody for Wistron NeWeb
\CVlstron NeWeb Corp.’s Restricted StochTmst Fund (issued in 2.06
orporation
2023)
Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd. 2.00
UPAMC Taiwan High Dividend 183
Momentum ETF )
Haydn Hsieh 1.50
Yuanta Taiwan High-yield Leading Company
Fund 1.39
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Major shareholders of corporate shareholders (shareholding of the top 10 and their

shareholding ratio)

Name of Shareholders Major Shareholders %

ENNOCONN

INTERNATIONAL

INVESTMENT CO., ENNOCONN CORPORATION 100

LTD

Major shareholder of the Company’s major corporate shareholders
As of 2024/4/2

Name of Shareholders Major Shareholders %
Baoxin International Investments Ltd 24.21%
Fuh Hwa Taiwan Technology High Income ETF
Securities Investment Trust Fund Special Account 3.93%
managed by Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co.
Dedicated investment account of Google Inc. 3.56%
managed by Citibank Taiwan Commercial Bank '
Yuanta Taiwan Value High Dividend ETF
Securities Investment Trust Fund managed by 3.50%

ENNOCONN Hua Nan
CORPORATION Hyield Venture Capital Co., Ltd. 1.51%

Dedicated investment account of Norges Bank 1.48%
managed by Citibank Taiwan Commercial Bank )
New Labor Retirement Pension Fund 1.45%
Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd 0.97%
Investment account of Morgan Stanley
International Limited managed by HSBC 0.93%
(Taiwan) Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
Capital Fund Marathon Special Account 0.92%
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3. Disclosure of professional qualifications of directors and independence of
independent directors:

As of 2024/4/29
Have more than five years of work experience (Please refer to
Criteria page 23~26 for the academic history of the board members) and

the following professional qualifications

Lecturer or higher in |Judges, prosecutors, Business, Number of

business, law, lawyers, accountants or legal, independent

finance, accounting, |other professional and financial, Independence situation (Note di}rlector s of

other

or related technical personnel who accounting or 3) companies

departments required |have passed the national corporate concurrently.
Name for corporate examinations and have experience

business at a public |obtained certificates required for

or private university |required for the Company's |business

business

(Chairman)Eric Lee \Y4 0
(Director) (1) Not a spouse, relative
ENNOCONN within the second
INTERNATIONAL degree of kil’lShip, of
INVESTMENT CO., LTD. v any other directors. 0
Legal Representative: Neng-
Chi Tsai (2) Not exhibiting any of
(D_ir ector) ) the circumstances
Wistron Corporation Legal \Y . . 0
Representative: Robert Lin) specified under Article
(Director) 30 of the Company Act.
Clark Lien v Py 0
(Independent director)
Ming De Wang M !
(Independent director)
Chuang-Chien Chiu M 0
(Independent director) Ref. to Note 1
Ya-Chun, Lin M 0
(Independent director)
Chein, Tai. v v 0

Note 1: The independent directors of the Company meet the independence conditions during the term before being
directors and during the office terms:

(1) Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.

(2) Not a director or supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates. Not apply to
independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and
regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, a public
company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.

(3) Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by
the person's spouse, minor children, or held by the person under others' names,
in an aggregate of one percent or more of the total number of issued shares of
the Company or ranking in the top 10 in holdings.

(4) Not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative
within the third degree of kinship, of a managerial officer under subparagraph 1
or any of the persons in the preceding two subparagraphs.

(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder that directly
holds five percent or more of the total number of issued shares of the Company,
or that ranks among the top five in shareholdings, or that designates its
representative to serve as a director or supervisor of the Company under Article
27, paragraph 1 or 2 of the Company Act. Not apply to independent directors

19



appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local
country by, and concurrently serving as such at, a public company and its parent
or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.

(6) If a majority of the Company's director seats or voting shares and those of any
other company are controlled by the same person: net a director, supervisor, or
employee of that other company. Not apply to independent directors appointed
in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by,
and concurrently serving as such at, a public company and its parent or
subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.

(7) If the chairperson, general manager, or person holding an equivalent position of
the Company and a person in any of those positions at another company or
institution are the same person or are spouses: not a director (or governor),
supervisor, or employee of that other company or institution. Not apply to
independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and
regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, a public
company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.

(8) Not a director, supervisor, officer, or shareholder holding five percent or more
of the shares, of a specified company or institution that has a financial or
business relationship with the Company. Not apply to independent directors
appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local
country by, and concurrently serving as such at, a public company and its parent
or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent, if the specified company or
institution holds 20 percent or more and no more than 50 percent of the total
number of issued shares of the public company.

(9) Not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or
officer of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, or institution that,
provides auditing services to the Company or any affiliate of the Company, or
that provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting or related services to the
Company or any affiliate of the Company for which the provider in the past 2
years has received cumulative compensation exceeding NT$500,000, or a
spouse thereof; provided, this restriction does not apply to a member of the
remuneration committee, public tender offer review committee, or special
committee for merger/consolidation and acquisition, who exercises powers
pursuant to the Act or to the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act or related
laws or regulations.

(10)Not having a marital relationship, or a relative within the second degree of
kinship to any other director of the Company.

(11)Not been a person of any conditions defined in Article 30 of the Company Law.

(12) Not a governmental, juridical person or its representative as defined in Article
27 of the Company Law.

4. Board Diversity and Independence :
(1) Diversity of the Board:

1. The Company has specified the following excerpts from Article 20 of the Corporate
Governance Code regarding the diversity policy of directors. The membership of the
Board of Directors shall consider diversity and formulate an appropriate diversity
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policy with respect to its operation, business model and development needs, which shall
include but not be limited to the following two major standards -

(1) Basic qualifications and values: gender, age, nationality and culture, etc.

(2) Professional knowledge and skills: Professional background (e.g. law, accounting,
industry, finance, marketing or technology), professional skills and industry
experience, etc. °

2. Specific management goals

The Board of Directors of the Company shall direct corporate strategy, supervise
management, and be accountable to the Company and its shareholders in order to
implement corporate governance and enhance the functions of the Board of
Directors, the management goals are defined as follows. :

Achievement Status

R e Term : 2021.07.05~2024.07.04

(1) The Board of Directors has more than one (inclusive) female Achieved (a total of 1 female
director. director is elected).

(2) The actual attendance rate of the annual board meeting of all Achieved in fiscal year 2023
directors was more than 85% on average. (94.59%).

(3) The professional background of the board members should cover at
least one professional field such as business management, industry
|[knowledge, accounting, etc. At least one of the independent directors
should have accounting or financial expertise.

One independent Director with
financial expertise and operation
management skills to be elected.

(4) Completion of the performance evaluation of the Board of Directors P2, i) R

. . . . Evaluation Report
Evg}]c(l):\iglg f::rctlonal committees) by the end of the first quarter of the 023.03.28 Board of Directors
gy Meeting.

3.Implementation status

(1) The term of office of the current Board of Directors is from 2021.07.05 to
2024.07.04, with 8 directors (including 4 independent directors), of which
25% are employees, 50% are independent directors, and 12.5% are female
directors; 3 independent directors have a term of less than 3 years (first
elected respectively on 2021.07.05 and 2023.06.27), 1 independent director
has a term of 13-14 years (first elected on 2008.02.22). One director is aged
over 70, two directors are aged 61 to 70, four are aged 51 to 60 and one is
aged under 51.

(2) According to the list of directors of the Company, Eric Lee, Robert Lin
(Wistron Corporation), Neng-Chi Tsai (Ennoconn) and Clark Lien have long
experiences in leadership, operational judgment, management, decision
making, crisis management, industry knowledge and international market
perspective. The independent directors have professional backgrounds in
industry, finance, technology, management and law, among which Chein Tai
is professional in administrative management and information technology,
Ming-De Wang specializes in management, finance and corporate
governance, Chuang-Chien Chiu have proficient industry knowledge and
international market perspective and Ya-Chun Lin, is a legal expert. The
members of the Board of Directors have diverse and complementary
expertise and possess not only the knowledge, skills and qualities required to
perform their duties in a diversified manner, but also have extensive
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experience in management and operational judgment to lead the Company
and its shareholders to maximize shareholders' equity.
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(2) Independence of the Board of Directors

1. The Company elects the members of the Board of Directors in accordance with the
provisions of the Company Act and the Regulations Governing the Establishment
and Compliance of Independent Directors of Public Companies. The nomination and
selection of the Board members is based on the provisions of the Company's Articles
of Incorporation, and a candidate nomination system is used. In addition to
evaluating the academic qualifications of each candidate, the views of interested
parties are taken into consideration to ensure the diversity and independence of the
Board members.

2. None of the current directors or independent directors are related to each other by
consanguinity or affinity within the second degree.

(3) Directors and Key Management Personnel Successor Plan

1. Successor planning and operation of the Board members

Regarding the successor planning of the Board of Directors, there are currently a
number of senior managers in the Group who have the necessary management and
professional abilities to serve as directors. At the same time, the Company will also
seek external professional talents to prepare for the successor planning of directors.
The plan is as follows:

(1

2)

The structure of the Board of Directors of the Company shall be determined
by the scale of the Company's business development and the shareholdings
of its major shareholders, considering the operational needs of the Company;
the candidates shall be nominated in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Incorporation, and the candidates shall consider the diversity of the
composition of the Board of Directors in accordance with the diversity policy
of directors as stipulated in Article 20 of the Corporate Governance Practices.

The following standard is used to establish a database of director candidates
for the ongoing director successor plan :

(A) Integrity, responsibility, innovation and decision-making ability, in line
with the Company's core values, with professional background (e.g. legal,
accounting, industrial, financial, marketing or technology) and
professional skills (e.g. operational judgment, accounting and financial
analysis, operational management, crisis management, industry
knowledge, international market perspective, leadership, decision-
making) that contribute to the Company's operations and management.

(B) Industry experience related to the business of the Company.

(C) It is expected that the addition of this member will provide the Company
with an effective, diverse Board of Directors that meets the needs of the
Company.

(D) The Company shall determine the selection process of candidates for
directorship in accordance with the qualifications and relevant regulations
to ensure the effective identification and selection of suitable candidates
for new directorship when vacancies arise or when additional
directorships are planned.
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(4)

To arrange for the further professional enhancement training of the directors,
we will consider the scope of each director's professional ability, and select
courses covering finance, risk management, business, commerce, legal affairs,
accounting, corporate social responsibility, or courses related to internal
control system and financial reporting responsibilities, etc., in addition to
corporate governance topics, and arrange at least six to twelve hours of
further education courses per person per year to ensure that the members of
the Board of Directors have a considerable degree of industrial knowledge
and acquire new knowledge and ensure that the board members have a good
level of industry knowledge and acquire new knowledge.

In accordance with the "Rules for Performance Evaluation of Board of
Directors", the Board of Directors is evaluated on an annual basis to confirm
the effectiveness of the Board of Directors' operations and to assess the
performance of the Directors for future selection and compensation of the
Directors through relevant measurement items, including control of corporate
goals and tasks, awareness of responsibilities, operational participation,
internal relationship management and communication, professional functions
and training, internal control and specific opinions. The Board of Directors'
performance will be used as a reference for the future selection of directors
and the determination of their individual remuneration.

2. Successor planning and operation of key management personnel.

The Company's senior executives are the key management level and has
gradually implemented successor planning for key management level, including
cross-disciplinary training for senior executives and implementation of the duty
agent system, where each management level has a duty agent. In addition to
professional training, we also develop judgment, management skills, and
problem-solving abilities to improve the quality of management decisions and to
prepare high quality manpower for the long-term development of the Company.
The planning is as follows:

(1

)

Employees of the Company at the Associate level (and above) are
responsible for the management of the organization, and each management
level has an agent. In addition to having the necessary professional skills and
experience, the values and management philosophy of key management
personnel must be consistent with the Company's corporate theory of
business.

In order to cultivate key management and their agents, the training
mechanism includes not only professional competency and corporate
governance-related courses, but also practical training through attendance at
board meetings, participation in regular internal management meetings, and
on-the-job training on project management. In addition, we arrange for
practical sharing and exchange of management issues among executives
every year and provide an online course learning platform that includes
leadership, management, technology, innovation, and industry trends for
independent learning by management colleagues. We also require
employees at the supervisory level and above to take at least four online
training courses per month.
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4

)

In order to continuously enhance the leadership and management functions
of high potential talents, in addition to enhancing the six management
functions through management on-the-job training, we also design
leadership development checklists and use institutionalized tools such as
internal and external training, rotations, attending important meetings, and
leading major cross-departmental projects to accumulate experience and
refine the mind. In addition, we promote personal development plans for key
talent pools, and through functional tasks and challenges, we integrate
company and departmental mission objectives to strengthen the strengths of
current positions and improve readiness for positions.

Except for the aforementioned selection criteria for directors, the Company
has also trained several senior managers to join the Board of Directors to
familiarize them with the operation of the Board of Directors, and to enhance
their management skills by expanding their participation in various
operating units of the Group or through job rotation and expatriate
assignments. In addition, in response to the Group's organizational
development and growth momentum, the Company has recruited
outstanding senior managers and currently has more than 10 senior
managers who are responsible for related businesses within the organization.
Besides one-on-one experience sharing, we also hold strategic consensus
meetings every year to set the future direction of the Company's goals and
strategic planning, and senior executives share the latest management
thinking and leadership experience, so that the legacy candidates can better
understand the Company's organizational culture and management and
leadership practices, and strengthen the future management team with a plan
and goal.

The Company is actively cultivating key management personnel and their
agents, among which 10 colleagues were promoted to associate level or
above in FY 2023.
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Table of remuneration range

Names of General Manager and Deputy general manager

Range of remuneration All
companies
The Company incluIZied in
the financial statements
Under NT$1,000,000 Luo-Long, Wu Luo-Long, Wu

NT$1,000,000 ~ NT$2,000,000

NT$2,000,000 ~ NT$3,500,000

Clark Lien ,Annie Lin

Clark Lien ,Annie Lin

NT$3,500,000 ~ NT$5,000,000

Eric Lee

Eric Lee

NT$5,000,000 ~ NT$10,000,000

Eric Lee

Eric Lee

NT$10,000,000 ~ NT$15,000,000

NT$15,000,000 ~ NT$30,000,000

NT$30,000,000 ~ NT$50,000,000

NT$50,000,000 ~ NT$100,000,000

Over NT$100,000,000

Total

(4) Employee compensation paid to key management team:

Unit: NTD thousands

Title Name

Share value Cash value

total

Proportion to net
income after tax

(%)

Management

President

Eric Lee

General Manager

Clark Lien

Deputy General
Manager

Karl Chen

Deputy General
Manager

Annie Lin

Senior Manager
g Kuo

Feng Ling 0

3,054

Senior Manager

Hsiang
You Hsieh

Senior Manager

Ted Du

Senior Manager

Jesse Lai

3,054

2.48%

2. Compare and describe the total amount of remuneration paid to the Company's
directors, supervisors, general manager and vice president as a percentage of
net profit after tax for the last two years for the Company and all consolidated
companies, respectively, and describe the policy, criteria and composition of
remuneration payments, the process of setting remuneration and the correlation
with operating performance.

(1) Analysis of total remuneration paid to directors, supervisors, president and
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vice president of the Company as a percentage of net profit after tax for the
last two years

Unit : NTD Thousands ; 9%

Ratio of total remuneration paid to directors,

Year . . . .
supervisors, president and vice presidents to

Item net income (%) Variance
FY 2023 FY2022
Director also acting as General
Manager and Deputy General 10.46 12.98 -19.41%
Manager

Note: Remuneration to directors, supervisors, general manager and vice president as a
percentage of net income decreased in 2023 compared to 2022. This is mainly due to
the decrease in net profit after tax in 2023 and reduction in compensation compared to

2022.

(2) The Company's policy, criteria and composition of remuneration payments, the

procedure for setting remuneration, and the relationship with operating
performance and future risks :

In accordance with Article 19 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation, the
remuneration of the Company's directors and managers shall be set at no more
than 5% of the Company's profit for the year. The remuneration of the
Company's directors and managers shall be determined in accordance with the
"Regulations Governing the Organization of the Remuneration Committee" and
shall be submitted to the shareholders' meeting after the Board of Directors has
considered the amount of remuneration, the method of payment and the
Company's future risks in accordance with the results of the evaluation of the
performance of the Company's directors and managers, which are regularly
evaluated by the Remuneration Committee, based on the performance evaluation
standards for the current year, with reference to the usual standards in the
industry, and taking into account the relevance and rationality of the Company's
operating performance and future risks.

3. Corporate Governance Operation

(1) Operation of the Board of Directors

The attendance of directors at the 2023 annual meeting of the Board of Directors (5)

(A) is as follows
Frequency of | Frequency of .
Title Name Title Name actual attendance proxy Actuzzl(;t‘;mgc}l;r:; ratio Remarks
(B) attendance ’
] . Position from
0,
Chairman Eric Lee 5 0 100% 2021.7.5
. Wistron Corporation o Position from
Director legal Rep.: Robert Lin > 0 100% 2021.7.5
Ennoconn International
. Investment Co., Ltd. o Position from
Director Legal 5 0 100% 2022.6.27
Rep. Neng-Chi Tsai
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Director Clark Lien 5 0 100% Po;l(;lz()lt'.l7f.r5() m
l“g?r’:;i:m Chuang-Chien Chiu 4 1 80% P Ogglzolnfrsom
Rt | NmgDoe | s o o o
e | vy chun i ; o o
b | e | | e

Other matters to be recorded :

1. The Board of Directors shall specify the date and time of the Board meeting, the content of the
proposal, the opinions of all independent directors and the Company's handling of the opinions
of the independent directors if any of the following situations apply to the operation of the Board
meeting :

(1) Matters listed in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act. : The Company has
established an audit committee in accordance with Article 14-5 of the Securities and
Exchange Act, so it is not applicable. For the matters listed in Article 14-5 of the Securities
and Exchange Act, please refer to the Important Resolutions of the Board of Directors on
pages 82-87.

(2) Except for the preceding matters, other matters resolved by the Board of Directors with
the objection or reservation of the independent directors and recorded or stated in writing:
No such situations in fiscal year 2023.

2. In the implementation of the recusal of a director from an interest proposal, the name of the
director, the content of the proposal, the reasons for the recusal and the participation in the
voting shall be stated :

by the Remuneration
Committee and the
Audit Committee

Term Date Proposal Name of Reason for | Participation
p Director Recusal in Voting
(1) Approved the 2022
year-end bonus
distribution for Concurrently | Recusal was
Management Team serve as the adopted in
proposed by the Company's accordance
Remuneration President and | with the law
2023.01.16 Committee Eric Lc?e General apd both
Clark Lien | Manager, directors
(2) Approved the 9th hich i did not
buyback and transfer WRICR 15 1ano .
of the Company's related to participate in
Y their own discussion
shares to employees . .
interests. and voting.
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3. The Company's (approved by the Board of Directors on March 15, 2024) self-evaluation by the
Board of Directors and Functional Committee in fiscal year 2024 :

Evaluati
on Evaluation | Evaluation | Evaluation .
. Evaluation and Results
frequenc Period scope method
y
Self-evaluation result: Excellent.
Item Average
Content( Full score 5) (No.) score
Level of partlclpat'lon In company 12 458
Internal self - operations
Once a Board of |evaluation of| | The decision q1.1ality of the Board of 12 467
year Directors | the Board of Directors ‘
Directors Composition and Structure of the 7 5
Board of Directors
Election and Continuing Education
. 7 4.71
of Directors
Internal Control Evaluation Items 7 5
Evaluation of Total Evaluation Items 45 4.80
the Self-evaluation result: Excellent; total average score 4.91 (full score
performance 5)
Once a from January | Individual Self - The toFal number of evaluation items is 23. o ‘
year 1,2023 to Board |Evaluation of|Including: mastery of corporate goals and missions, directors'
December 31, Members Directors |awareness of responsibilities, participation in company operations,
2023 internal relations and communication, directors' professionalism and
continuing education, internal control, etc.
Self-evaluation result: Excellent; total average score 4.9 (full score 5)
Functional |Internal self -|The total number of evaluation items is 23.
Once a Committees | evaluation of [Including: mastery of corporate goals and missions, directors'
year - Audit | the Board of [awareness of responsibilities, participation in company operations,
Committee | Directors [internal relations and communication, directors' professionalism and
continuing education, internal control, etc.
Functional Self-evaluation result: Excellent; total average score 4.9 (full score 5)
Committees |Internal self - |The total number of evaluation items is 19.
Once a - evaluation of |Including: mastery of corporate goals and missions, directors'
year Remunerati | the Board of |awareness of responsibilities, participation in company operations,
on Directors |internal relations and communication, directors' professionalism and
Committee continuing education etc.
4. Evaluation of the objectives and performance of the current and most recent year in

strengthening the functions of the Board of Directors -

(1) The Company established an audit committee on July 04, 2021, replacing Supervisors.

(2) The Company has taken out directors' and supervisors' liability insurance, which are
described as follows :

. Insurance Insurance Report Date
Insurance Period Insurance Coverage of the Board
amount Rates(%) .
of Directors
1. Directors' and Managers'
Liability
2022.06.18~2023.06.18 USD 3 million | 2. Liability for corporate 0.06 2022.08.12
indemnification
3. Liability for corporate
indemnification
4. Securities Claims
5. Liability for Employment
2023.06.18~2024.06.18 USD 3 million Practices 0.075 2023.08.12
6. Defense expenses for
pollution

40




(3) The number of hours of study for each director in FY2023 is in accordance with the
"Implementation Points for Directors and Supervisors of Listed Companies" and their
study status is published in the "Market Observation Post System - Summary of Directors'

and Supervisors' Attendance at Board Meetings and Study Status".

The Board of Directors revised the "Board of Directors' Performance Evaluation

Regulations" on February 01, 2021 to implement corporate governance and enhance the
efficiency of the Board of Directors' operations; the results of the 2023 evaluation were
disclosed to the Board of Directors on March 15, 2024, and the performance evaluation

was disclosed on the Company's website (https://www.arbor-technology.com/tw/
Investor/Corporate Governance#grade).

(2) Status of operation of the Audit Committee: The Company established an Audit
Committee on July 04, 2021.

Audit Committee for fiscal year 2023 (5 meetings) (A) The attendance of directors
was as follows

No. of times Rate of actual
Titl N Qualification No. 01:1actual not attended or attendance R "
itle ame JExperience attenBance proxy (%) emar
(B) attendance [B/A]
Independent Chuang- 2021.7.5
. . . 4 1 80
director Chien Chiu Pl for 2 new
— ease refer to pages 23-
Inc(iie':pendent Ming-De 26(Disclosure of 5 0 100 2021.7.5
irector Wang ualification and oW
Independent Ya-Chun, 4 2021.7.5
. . independence of 5 0 100
director Lin Independent Directors) new
Indf:pendent Chein Tai | | 50 2023.6.27
director new

Other matters to be recorded :

1. If the Audit Committee operates under any of the following circumstances, it shall state the
date and period of the Audit Committee meeting, the content of the proposal, the objections,
reservations or significant proposals of the independent directors, the results of the Audit
Committee resolution and the Company's handling of the Audit Committee's opinion :

(1) Please refer to pages 82-87 for the matters listed in Article 14-5 of the Securities and
Exchange Act.

(2) Except for the preceding matters, other matters not approved by the Audit Committee

and approved by two-thirds or more of all directors: No such situation in FY2023.

2. In the case of recusal of a director from the implementation of an interest motion, the name
of the director, the content of the motion, the reason for the recusal and the participation in
voting should be stated: No such situation existed in FY2023.

3.  Communication status between the independent directors and the head of internal audit and
the accountant :

(1) The independent directors and the accountant shall meet at least once a year to report to
the independent directors on the Company's financial condition, the financial and overall
operations of the Company's domestic and overseas subsidiaries, and the status of
internal control audits, and to communicate with the independent directors on whether
the financial reports and the accountant's audit reports or amendments to laws and
regulations have any impact on the accounts; a meeting may be convened at any time in
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the event of significant events.

(2)

any significant irregularities.

The internal audit submits the completed "Audit Report" to the independent directors
and supervisors by e-mail every month, and if there is any question or instruction, it will
be asked or informed to the audit supervisor by e-mail or telephone; In addition, the head
of internal audit and the independent directors shall hold a communication meeting at
least once a year to explain the status of the Company's internal audit and the operation
of internal control, and shall keep the independent directors and supervisors informed of

Communication Date Communication with Communication with Irgiiigz?(i?t Implementation
Communication Method CPA internal audit manager . Results
Recommendation
Description of the key
audit issues for fiscal (1) Self-evaluation of the
2023/3/28 year 2022, the way the |effectiveness of the
accountant performs internal control system No comment  |Not applicable

Pre-Meeting

audits under the impact
of the COVID-19
outbreak

for the fiscal year 2022.
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(9) Execution status of internal control system:
1. Statement of Internal Control
Arbor Technology Corporation
Statement of Internal Control
Date: March 15, 2024

Based on the findings of a self-assessment, Arbor Technology Corporation (Arbor) states
the following with regard to its internal control system during the year 2023:

1. Arbor’s Board of Directors and management are responsible for establishing,
implementing, and maintaining an adequate internal control system. Our internal control is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance over the effectiveness and efficiency of
our operations (including profitability, performance and safeguarding of assets), reliability,
timeliness, transparency of our reporting, and compliance with applicable rulings, laws and
regulations.

2. An internal control system has inherent limitations. No matter how perfectly designed,
an effective internal control system can provide only reasonable assurance of
accomplishing its stated objectives. Moreover, the effectiveness of an internal control
system may be subject to changes due to extenuating circumstances beyond our control.
Nevertheless, our internal control system contains self-monitoring mechanisms, and Arbor
takes immediate remedial actions in response to any identified deficiencies.

3. Arbor evaluates the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system
based on the criteria provided in the Regulations Governing the Establishment of Internal
Control Systems by Public Companies (herein below, the Regulations). The criteria
adopted by the Regulations identify five key components of managerial internal control:
(1) control environment, (2) risk assessment, (3) control activities, (4) information and
communication, and (5) monitoring activities.

4. Arbor has evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system
according to the aforesaid Regulations.

5. Based on the findings of such evaluation, Arbor believes that, as of December 31, 2023,
it has maintained, in all material respects, an effective internal control system (that
includes the supervision and management of our subsidiaries), to provide reasonable
assurance over our operational effectiveness and efficiency, reliability, timeliness,
transparency of reporting, and compliance with applicable rulings, laws and regulations.

6. This Statement is an integral part of Arbor’s annual report for the year 2023 and
Prospectus, and is publicly disclosed. Any falsehood, concealment, or other illegality in
the content made public will entail legal liability under Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the
Securities and Exchange Act.

7. This statement was approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on March
15, 2024, with none of the eight attending directors expressing dissenting opinions. All
attending directors have affirmed the contents of this Statement.

Arbor Technology Corporation

Chairman: Eric Lee

General Manager: Clark Lien
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2. Disclosure of the CPA audit report if CPA was engaged to conduct special audit
of the Internal control system: None

(10) In the most recent year and as of the publication date of the annual report, the
Company and its internal personnel have been punished by law, the Company has
punished internal personnel for violating the regulations of the internal control
system, and the major deficiencies and improvements: None.
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Significant resolutions of the shareholders' meeting held on June 27, 2023 and

the status of implementation

Significant Resolutions

Status of Implementation

Business Report and
Financial Statements for
fiscal year 2022

Resolution results: 97.11% voted in favor, and it was
passed as proposed.

Implementation status: Proceeded as per resolution result.

Distribution of earnings for
fiscal year 2022

Resolution results: 97.11% voted in favor, and it was
passed as proposed.

Implementation status: In accordance with Resolution, a
cash dividend of NT $75,609,086 will be distributed, and
the ex-dividend base date is 14 September 2023, and the
release date is 6 October 2023.

Amendment to the
"Procedures for the
Acquisition or Disposal of
Assets

Resolution results: 97.11% voted in favor, and it was
passed as proposed.

Implementation status: Proceeded as per resolution result.

Amendment to the
Operational Procedures
for Loaning of Company
Funds

Resolution results: 97.11% voted in favor, and it was
passed as proposed.

Implementation status: Proceeded as per resolution result.

Amendment to the
"Regulations for
Transactions with Group
Companies"

Resolution results: 97.11% voted in favor, and it was
passed as proposed.

Implementation status: Proceeded as per resolution result.

Proposal to issue new
shares in a private
placement of Proceeds
from issuing shares to
bring in strategic
investors.

Resolution approved the private placement, and the Board
of Directors was authorised to handle the private placement
in two batches within one year from the date of the
shareholders' meeting of Resolution.

2024.03.15 The Board of Directors approved the
termination of the Company's 2023 shareholders' meeting.
Approved the issuance of new shares for the private
placement of Proceeds from issuing shares.

By-election of Independent
director

New Independent Director:

Chein, Tai (Term: 2023.6.27-2024.7.04)

Release of new directors
and their representatives
from the prohibition of
competition

Resolution results: 96.86% voted in favor, and it was
passed as proposed.

Implementation status: Proceeded as per resolution result.

(12) In the most recent year and as of the publication date of the annual report, the
directors or supervisors had different opinions on important resolutions passed
by the Board of Directors, and there are records or written statements of the main
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contents: None.

(13) Summary of the resignation and dismissal of the Chairman, President, Head of
Accounting, Head of Finance, Head of Internal Audit, Head of Corporate
Governance and Head of Research and Development of the Company in the most
recent year and as of the publication date of the annual report:

Effecti Reasons for
Title Name (f:t e Status dismissal or
© resignation
Leader of
Advanced Luo-Long Personal career
Technology W | 2023/5/5 |Resignation lanni
and Resource u planning
Center
4. Accountant's fee information :
1. CPA fee information
CPA firm Name of CPA Audit Period Remark
PricewaterhouseCoopers Ming Sunn
(PwC) Taiwan Chuan, Y 2023/1/~2023/12/31 None
Huang
Hsu
Currency: NTD/Thousands
Item
Audit fee Non-Audit fee Total
Range of CPA fee
1 Under 2M 549 549
2 2M-4M 3,180 3,180
3 4M-6M
4 6M-8M
6 SM-10M
7 Above 10M
2. The proportion of non-audit fees paid to the CPA, the CPA's firm and its affiliates is
at least one-fourth of the audit fees :
Name of | Name of | Audit Non Audit Fee Audit Remark
CPA firm CPA Fee System Company Human period
. . . Subtotal
design |registration | Resource Others
Pricewater |Ming 2023/1/1- |Others:
houseCoop |Chuan, 2023/12/3 |Tax Audit
ers (PwC) |Hsu 3,180 0 0 0 549 549 1 ';‘;‘jnburse
Taiwan |Sunny ments
Huang
3. Replacement of accounting firm and decrease in audit fees paid in the year of

replacement compared to the audit fees paid in the year before the replacement:
None.
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Audit public expense decreased by more than 10% compared to the previous year:



None.

5. Replacement of accountant information :

a) Predecessor auditor:

Replacement date

Approved by the Board on May 12, 2023

Reasons and explanations

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the
Company have changed the CPAs from Hsiu-Ling Lee and
Sunny Huang to Ming-Chuan, Hsu and Sunny Huang
starting from 2023.

Article 10, paragraph 6, items 4 to 7
of this standard)

Involved
party |CpPA Appointer
circumstance
Explanation of termination or v
) oluntary
nonacceptance.of appointment by the termination of [Not applicable Not applicable
appointer or CPA .
appointment
Declining
(further) Not applicable Not applicable
appointment
The opinions and reasons of audit
reports issued in the past two years, None
excluding unqualified opinions
Accounting principles or |Not applicable
practices
v Disclosure of financial Not applicable
Differences of opinion with the = statqnents -
{ssuer Audit scope or procedures |Not applicable
Others Not applicable
None A%
Explanation None
The disclosure of other matters
(those required to be disclosed under None

b) Successor auditor:

Name of the firm

PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) Taiwan

Names of the auditors

Ming-Chuan, Hsu and Sunny Huang

Date of appointment

Approved by the Board on May 12, 2023

appointment

Consultation and results on the accounting

treatment methods or accounting principles for
specific transactions and possible opinions to be  [None
issued on the financial statements before the
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Written opinions of the successor auditor on

matters where they differ from the former auditor

None

c) Response from the Former auditor regarding the Matters of Article 10, Paragraph 6,

Subparagraphs 1 and 2, Item 3 of This Standard: None.

6. The Company's chairman, general manager, or manager in charge of financial or
accounting affairs has worked for the firm of the CPA or its affiliated companies within

the last year: None.

7. Share transfer and pledge of shareholdings of directors, supervisors, managers and
shareholders holding more than 10% of the shares in the latest year and as of the date of

publication of the annual report :
(1) Changes in Shareholding :

FY2023 YTD 04/29
Title Name
Holding +/- | Pledged holding +/-| Holding +/- | Pledged holding +/-
Chairman Eric Lee 0 0 30,000 0
Director Clark Lien (200,000) 0 17,000 0
Wistron
Director Corporatlop Legal 0 0 0 0
representative:
Robert Lin
Ennoconn
International
Director Investment Ltd. 0 0 0 0
Legal
representative:
Neng-Chi, Tsai
Vice Annie Lin 0 (1,022,000) 20,000 0
President T ’
Associate
general Adonis Lin 66,000 0 0 0
manager
Independent |, 15ng-Chien Chiu 0 0 0 0
Director
Independent .
Director Ming-De Wang 0 0 0 0
Independent |y, cpun, Lin 0 0 0 0
Director
Chein, Tai(On
};(izgte(?rdent board date 0 0 0 0
(2023/6/27)
CFO Feng-Ling, Kuo (184,000) 0 11,000 0
Advanced  |Luo-Long, Wu
Technology |(On Board
and Resource |date:2022/05/13; 0 0 0 0
Center Vice |Resigned on
President 2023/5/5.)
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(2) Transfer of equity information: None for the current period

(3) Equity pledge information :

The counterparty of the
Reason for transaction is a director of
change in the Company Shareholdin Pledge | Redem
Name Ple(% o Change date Transaction party Supervisor and shares % holding| ption
hol di%l shareholding percentage 7 % value
& Relationship with 10%
Shareholders
Annie Lin |Redemption| 2023/04/07 |Yuanta Stock Exchange N/A| 700,000 0.73| N/A| N/A
Annie Lin |Redemption| 2023/04/07 |Yuanta Stock Exchange N/A| 700,000 0.73| N/A| N/A
Annie Lin |Redemption| 2023/11/02 |First Commercial Bank N/A| 127,000 0.13| N/A| N/A
8. Information on the top ten shareholders who are related to each other or are related to
each other as spouses, relatives within two degrees, etc. :
Name and Relationship
Spouse/minor . . Between the Company's
Current shareholding s’ Shareh;)rlrilrrllgelfg/e?l?mmee Top Ten Shareholders, liilin
shareholding & or Spouses or Relatives
Name Within Two Degrees
Shares % Shares % Shares % Name Relat;onshl
Ennoconn International
16,000,000 16.72% - 0.00% - 0.00% - - -
Investments.
Ennoconn International
Investments legal ] 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% - 1 -
representative : Fu-Chuan - -
Chu
Wise Cap| Parent-
Wistron Corporation 4,678,586 4.89% | 0.00% | 0.00% Limited| of Wise -
Company|company
Wistron Legal o 0 o
Rep.:Robert Lin - 0.00% -l 0.00% | 0.00% - - -
Eric Lee 4,105,173 4.29% 1,808,176] 1.89%]- 0.00%| Annie Lin Spouse -
Hong-Teng Investments 4,029,011 4.21% - 0.00% - 0.00% - - -
Hong Teng Investment o ) o ) o . )
Legal Rep:Annic Lin 1,808,176 1.89% 0.00% 0.00% Eric Lee Spouse
Mu Lin, Lee 3,324,000 3.47% - 0.00% - 0.00% - - -
Chun Jhong, Zheng 2,896,000 3.03% - 0.00% - 0.00% - - -
President Secarrities 2,027,084 2.12% | 0.00% | 0.00%
Corporation
Wise Cap Limited 2,005,107 2.10% A 0.00% 1 0.00% Wlstr.on Subs1§1ary )
Company Corporation|of Wistron
Wise Cap Limited
Company Legal Rep.: Fu- - 0.00% -l 0.00% -l 0.00% - - -
Chien Lin
Annie Lin 1,808,176 1.89% 4,105,173 4.29% - 0.00% Eric Lee Spouse -
Hsiu Mei, Hsu 1,671,000 1.75% -l 0.00% -l 0.00% - - -
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9. The number of shares held by the Company, its directors, supervisors, managers, and
businesses directly or indirectly controlled by the Company in the same investee
business, and the consolidated shareholding ratio shall be calculated. :

April 29, 2024 Units: Thousands of shares ; 9%

Direct or Indirect
. . Ownership by the . Ownership by Total ownership
Affiliate companies Company Directors/Supervisors/
Manager
Shares % Shares % Shares %
ARBOR SOLUTION, INC. 9,000 100.00 - - 9,000 100.00
GUIDING TECHNOLOGY
CO., LTD. 500 100.00 - - 500 100.00
ALLIED INFO
INVESTMENTS LTD. 850 100.00 - - 850 100.00
Arbor Beijing Technology Co. - - - 100.00 - 100.00
Excellent Top International
Development Limited(H.K) 40,562 100.00 - - 40,562 100.00
Holding
ARBOR Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd ) ) ) 100.00 ) 100.00
ARBOR FRANCE S.A.S - 100.00 - - - 100.00
FLOURISH TECHNOLOGY
CO.. LTD. 35,195 100.00 - - 35,195 100.00
Arbor China Technology Co. - - - 100.00 - 100.00
ARBOR KOREA CO.,LTD. 101 100.00 - - 101 100.00
Acloud Intelligence Services 4,025 67.08 ) ) 4,025 67.08
Corp. Ltd.
HONGKONG AMOBILE
INTELLIGENT CORP. 3,849 39.31 - - 3,849 39.31
LIMITED TAITWAN(note 2)
BEST VINTAGE GLOBAL i 100.00 i i i 100.00
LTD.
PERFECT STREAM LTD. - - - 100.00 - 100.00
fFF])BOR TECHNOLOGY UK i i i 100.00 i 100.00

Note 1: The Company adopts Equity Method for long-term investment.
Note 2: HONGKONG AMOBILE INTELLIGENT CORP. LIMITED, a 39.31% reinvested company,

is located in Hong Kong.
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IV ~ Funding Status

1. Capital & Shares
(1) Sources of capital
April 29, 2024; units: shares/thousands
Authorized Capital Authorized Capital Remark
Par ital
Year/Mont Value(N Amount Amount ,Capl 4
h Shares Shares . increased by
TS (NT (NT Sources of Capital Others
) assets other than
Thousands) Thousands)
cash

1993.09 10 500 5,000 500 5,000 -
Issuance of shares

1994.01 10 1,325 13,250 1,325 13,250 . -
New issuance of shares

1994.11 10 2,475 24,750 2,475 24,750 . -
New issuance of shares

1998.11 10 6,712 67,125 5,327 53,625 . -
New issuance of shares

2001.03 10 8,742 87,423 8,742 87,423 . -
New issuance of shares

2001.12 10 14,742 147,423 10,638 106,381 . -
New issuance of shares

2002.02 11.5 14,742 147,423 13,038 130,381 . -
New issuance of shares

2002.04 21 27,500 275,000 16,238 162,381 . -
New issuance of shares

2002.08 10 27,500 275,000 18,874 188,738 . -
New issuance of shares

2006.06 16 27,500 | 275,000 | 24,674 246,738 [New issuance of shares -
and issuance of
employee stock option

2006.08 10 30,000 300,000 27,683 276,830 . -
New issuance of shares

2007.10 10 38,000 380,000 31,057 310,569 . -
New issuance of shares

2008.10 10 38,000 380,000 34,840 348,396 |New issuance of shares -

2009.10 10 38,000 380,000 35,667 356,666 . -
New issuance of shares

2010.10 10 48,000 480,000 36,992 369,922 . -
New issuance of shares

2011.07 10 48,000 480,000 38,091 380,909 . -
New issuance of shares

2012.06 10 48,000 480,000 39,257 392,569 |issuance of employee -
stock option

2012.08 10 48,000 480,000 40,394 403,940 . -
New issuance of shares
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Authorized Capital Authorized Capital Remark
Par Capital
Year/Mont A t A t P
h Value(N Shares fhoun Shares ot . increased by
TS (NT (NT Sources of Capital Others
) assets other than
Thousands) Thousands)
cash

2013.05 10 48,000 480,000 45,780 457,300 . -
New issuance of shares

2014.09 10 55,000 550,000 48,067 480,673 . -
New issuance of shares

2014.12 10 55,000 550,000 50,067 500,673 . -
New issuance of shares

2015.04 10 65,000 650,000 56,145 561,445 |New issuance of shares; -
Convertible bonds

2016.10 10 65,000 650,000 57,782 577,806 . -
New issuance of shares

2017.10 10 65,000 650,000 62,781 627,807 . -
New issuance of shares

2018.10 10 65,000 | 650,000 | 63,548 635,475 [New issuance of shares; -
Decrease in Treasury
stock

2018.12 10 65,000 650,000 62,998 629,985 |Decrease in Treasury -
stock

2019.10 10 100,000 { 1,000,000 64,227 642,275 . -
New issuance of shares

2020.10 10 100,000 | 1,000,000 | 65,537 655,370 |Convertible Bonds; -
Decrease in Treasury
stock

2020.11 10 100,000 { 1,000,000 66,790 667,906 . -
New issuance of shares

2021.01 10 100,000 1,000,000 | 69,646 696,459 |P1an for Exchange of .
Share (Bond)
Certificates

2021.04 10 100,000 1,000,000 71,588 715,884 Convertible Bonds; -

2021.09 10 150,000 1,500,000 73,230 732,305 -

’ T ’ ’ Convertible Bonds

New issuance of

2021.12 10 150,000 1,500,000 74,422 744,218 | hares : -
Convertible Bonds

2022.04 10 150,000 1,500,000 90,422 904,218 ) -
New issuance of shares

2022.09 10 150,000 1,500,000 93,509 935,092 -

’ T ’ ’ Convertible Bonds
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Authorized Capital Authorized Capital Remark
Par Capital
Year/Mont P
caron Value(N Shares Amount Shares Amount . increased by
h T$) (NT (NT Sources of Capital s other th Others
Thousands) Thousands) assels othet thatt
cash
2022.11 10 150,000 (1,500,000 95,439 954,394 Convertible Bonds -
2024.03 10 150,000 (1,500,000 95,697 956,975 |Employee stock options - Unregistered.
NTD 2,580,000
(2) Shareholding structure
April 29, 2024 ; units: shares
Foreign
Category | Government | Financial Other . institutions
Number Institution | Institution | Institution Individuals and other Total
legal entities
No. of persons 1 40 19,426 29 19,496
i‘;res of  holding 0 2,009 32,401,864 62,716,682 576,803 95,697,358
Shareholding% 0.00% 0.00% 33.86% 65.54% 0.60% 100.00%
(3) Share Distribution
Par Value NT$10 April 29, 2024; Unit: person/ shares
Range of Shareholding Number of Shareholders|Number of holding shares| Shareholding%
1-999 13,842 1,065,163 1.11%
1,000-5,000 4,554 8,762,780 9.16%
5,001-10,000 485 3,729,706 3.90%
10,001-15,000 192 2,449,008 2.56%
15,001-20,000 94 1,679,360 1.76%
20,001-30,000 99 2,481,087 2.59%
30,001-40,000 47 1,674,393 1.75%
40,001-50,000 36 1,669,428 1.74%
50,001-100,000 69 4,864,438 5.08%
100,001-200,000 30 4,482,050 4.68%
200,001-400,000 20 5,625,076 5.88%
400,001-600,000 6 2,792,770 2.92%
600,001-800,000 4 2,708,599 2.83%
800,001-1,000,000 3 2,804,759 2.93%
Above 1,000,001 15 48,908,741 51.11%
Total 19,496 95,697,358 100.00%
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(4) List of Major Shareholders :
April 29, 2024 (book closure date); units: shares

Shares . .

Name of Major shareholders Holding shares Holding %

Ennoconn International Investment Co., Ltd. 16,000,000 16.72%
Wistron Corporation 4,678,586 4.89%
Eric Lee 4,105,173 4.29%
Hong Teng Investment Ltd. Company 4,029,011 4.21%
Mu Lin, Lee o 3,324,000 3.47%
Chun Jhong, Zheng 2,896,000 3.03%
President Securities Corporation 2,027,084 2.12%
Wise Cap Limited Company 2,005,107 2.10%
Annie Lin 1,808,176 1.89%
Hsiu Mei, Hsu 1,671,000 1.75%

(5) Market price, book value, earnings, dividends per share and related information in
the past two years

Year Year To date
2022 2023 2024/4/30(Note 2)
Item
Highest 31.45 63 47.70
Market price per share |Lowest 21.35 26.80 38.80
Average 27.25 46.34 42.88
Before distribution 21.85 22.74
Net worth per share s - distribution 21.85 22.14
Weighted average number of Shares 21.06 94,400
Before retrospective
Earnings per share  |Earnings per |adjustment 87,823 130
share After retrospective 151 Not yet
adjustment ) distributed
B(f.f"re retrospective 1.50 0.60 Not applicable
Cash dividendsfoiustment (Note 3)
Before retrospective 0.80 Not yet
Dividend per share adjustment ) distributed
Bonus shares Earnings per share N/A N/A
Paid-in-capital N/A N/A
Cumulative unpaid dividends - -
R . P/E Ratio 18.05 35.65
emma‘r’l‘;ﬂ‘;svi‘s’“mem P/D Ratio | 34.06 7723
Cash Dividend Yield 2.94% 1.29%

Note 1: Distribution ratified by Shareholder’s Meetings; 2023 distributions are not ratified
by Shareholder’s Meeting yet.

Note 2: The book value and earnings per share should be presented as of the most recent
quarter period audited by the accountants as of the date of publication of the
annual report; the rest of the columns should be presented as of the current year as
of the date of publication of the annual report.

Note 3: The formula for calculating this table is as follows :

(1) Price-to-earnings ratio = average closing price per share of the current year /
earnings per share.
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(2) Principal-to-profit ratio = average closing price per share of the current year /
cash dividends per share.

(3) Cash dividend yield = Cash dividend per share / Average closing price per
share of the current year.

(6) Company's Dividend Policy and Implementation Status :

1. Dividend Policy :

The Company's dividend policy is a "residual dividend policy". Depending on
the Company's current and future investment environment, capital requirements,
domestic and foreign competition, and capital budget, the Board of Directors
shall prepare a proposal for distribution each year in accordance with the law
and submit it to the shareholders' meeting for resolution, considering the
interests of shareholders, the balance of dividends and the Company's long-term
financial planning. The percentage of cash dividends to be distributed each year
shall not be less than 10% of the total amount of cash and stock dividends to be
distributed in the current year.

If there is any surplus in the Company's annual financial statements, the
Company shall first pay tax to cover the accumulated deficit and then set aside
10% as legal reserve; except when the accumulated legal reserve has reached
the Company's total capital, the Company may set aside or reverse the special
reserve depending on operational needs or laws and regulations, and if there is
any surplus, it shall be included in the accumulated undistributed earnings. In
accordance with the Company's Articles of Incorporation (no less than 5%) and
with reference to the Company's dividend payments in the past three years
(12.34% ~ 17.49%) and the Company's business outlook, the Board of Directors
shall prepare a proposal for the distribution of dividends and bonuses to
shareholders and submit it to the shareholders for resolution. However, if the
total amount of distributed earnings does not reach NT$1 per share, the above
ratio is not restricted.

Dividend distribution in the current year :

The dividend distribution proposal for fiscal year 2023 has been approved by
the Board of Directors on March 15, 2024: shareholders' bonus - cash
dividends of $56,861,000, with an allotment of NT$0.6 per share.

(7) The effect of the free stock allotment proposed in the current year's plan on the
Company's operating performance and earnings per share: Not applicable.
(8) Remuneration of employees and remuneration of directors and supervisor :

1. The percentage or scope of remuneration for employees and remuneration for
directors and supervisors as described under the Articles of Incorporation:
The Company shall set aside 2% to 10% of its annual profit as compensation to
employees and up to 5% as compensation to directors and supervisors if the
Company makes a profit (Profit is defined as pre-tax income before employee
compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors). However, the
Company shall reserve the amount of compensation in advance if the Company
has accumulated losses.

2. The basis for estimating the amount of compensation to employees, directors
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and supervisors, the basis for calculating the number of shares to be allotted, and
the accounting treatment if the actual amount of allotment is different from the

estimated amount. :

The remuneration of employees for the current period is estimated based on the net
income after tax for the current period, after considering the legal reserve, at least
2% of which is recognized as operating expenses for the current period, and if the
actual amount of allotment resolved by the shareholders' meeting is different from
the estimated amount, it is recorded as profit or loss in the next period.

3. The Board of Directors resolved to distribute the amount of remuneration to
employees and remuneration to directors and supervisors as follows :

(1) The resolutions of the Board of Directors of the Company on March 15, 2024
are as follows -

Employee's remuneration: NT$4,000,000
Director's remuneration: NT$1,000,000

There is no difference between the amount of remuneration to employees and
directors and supervisors resolved by the Board of Directors and the estimated
amount of expenses recognized in fiscal year.

(2) Amount of employee stock allotment and ratio of total net income after tax
and total employee remuneration for the period: Not applicable.

4. The actual allotment of employees' remuneration, directors' and supervisors'
remuneration (including the number of shares allotted, the amount and share price)
in 2023, and the difference between the allotment and the recognition of
employees' remuneration, directors' and supervisors' remuneration, as well as the
amount of the difference, the reasons for the difference and the treatment of the

difference :

The Board of Directors resolved to distribute employees' remuneration and
directors' and supervisors' remuneration totaling NT$5,000,000 and are not
different from the amounts recognized as remuneration to employees and directors
and supervisors.

(9) Repurchase of the Company's shares : None.

Issuance of corporate bonds : None
Issuance of preferred stocks: None

Issuance of Overseas Depository Receipts: None.
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V ~ Overview of Business Operations
I.  Content of business

(1)Business scope

1. The main contents of the business :

CC01080 Electronic Parts and Components Manufacturing

CCO01110 Computers and Computing Peripheral Equipment
Manufacturing

CC01990 Other Electrical Engineering and Electronic Machinery
Equipment Manufacturing

CE01010 Precision Instruments Manufacturing

CFO01011 Medical Devices Manufacturing

E605010 Computer Equipment Installation

EZ05010 Instrument and Meters Installation Engineering

F108031 Wholesale of Medical Devices

F113010 Wholesale of Machinery

F113050 Wholesale of Computers and Clerical Machinery Equipment

F113070 Wholesale of Telecommunication Apparatus

F113990 Wholesale of Other Machinery and Tools

F118010 Wholesale of Computer Software

F119010 Wholesale of Electronic Materials

F208031 Retail Sale of Medical Apparatus

F213030 Retail Sale of Computers and Clerical Machinery Equipment

F213060 Retail Sale of Telecommunication Apparatus

F213990 Retail Sale of Other Machinery and Tools

F218010 Retail Sale of Computer Software

F219010 Retail Sale of Electronic Materials

F401010 International Trade

1301010 Information Software Services

1301020 Data Processing Services

7799999 All business activities that are not prohibited or restricted by

law, except those that are subject to special approval.

2. Revenue Distribution

Unit: NT$ Thousands; %

Fiscal Year 2023 2022
Ttem Value % of total Value % of total
sales sales
Main Board 606,535 36.29% 560,073 31.10%
System 777,145 46.50% 1,038,472 57.66%
Others 287,747 17.22% 202,510 11.24%
Total 1,671,427 100.00% 1,801,055 100.00%

Current Products and Services
A. Industrial Computer Products
B. Network Security Products
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C. Automotive Electronic Mobile Surveillance Products
D. Medical Electronic Products

E. HMI Tablet

F. Fanless Industrial Control System

G. Gaming System

H. Customized products and related application software
I. Wide temperature product line

J. Modular Computer

K. Tablet PC

L. In-vehicle computer products

M. Factory Automation Products

N. Rail transportation, power plant automation, intelligent power grid, etc.
O. Industrial safety, thermal imaging applications

P. Smart City [oT

4. New Products and Services to be Developed by the Company

A. Traffic monitoring controller

B. Multi-interface gateways for power industry applications

C. High-end motherboards for video acquisition and communication systems
D. Portable tablet PC for warehousing and logistics management applications

E. Medical LCD panel PC for surgery, diagnosis and drug dispensing
applications

F. Rail Transportation loT

G. Total body temperature and mask monitoring solution for epidemic
prevention technology

H. Industrial Safety & Thermal Imaging Applications

(2) Overview of the Industry

1.

Current status and development of the industry

Our company is a manufacturer of Industrial Personal Computer (IPC),
which is defined as a variety of customized computer equipment used in
different industries, and therefore has a small number of diverse and powerful
functions. In terms of applications, IPC was first used in the control, monitoring
and testing of instruments and machines in the manufacturing process of
factories, and was narrowly limited to industrial automation board systems,
mainly used for automation equipment. Broadly speaking, any computer other
than personal computer (PC) can be classified as IPC industry, such as POS
(Point of Sale), ATM, security monitoring system, car computer, medical
electronics, gaming machine, digital signage, industrial controller, rail traffic
monitoring system, security system, and so on. Rail traffic monitoring systems,
epidemic detection devices, industrial safety thermometers, etc., can be included
in the IPC industry.
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Industrial Computer Application Fields

Industrial Tablet PC | Ruggedized | Handheld Automation | Digital Medical
Computers computer/sca | Control Signage Electronics
nner

1‘-

Intelligent
Transportation

ATM

Special Lottery
Printers Machine

Internet of Things In-vehicle
computers

Smart Grid

Smart Home

POS/KIOSK
E-H

‘;hﬂlﬂ!.

Source of Information: IBTSIC

Industrial computers are different from general consumer and commercial PCs in that they
must operate normally in harsh environments and focus on product stability and require
longer product life cycles than PCs. The product life cycle requirements are also longer.
In addition, industrial computers are not produced in large quantities like personal
computers because the user groups are locked in special fields. Therefore, compared to
personal computers, industrial computers are a diverse and highly customized industry,
and customers are mostly technically competent equipment users or system integrators
with some degree of special requirements for product specifications, design and services.
Therefore, industrial computer manufacturers not only need to have the technical ability,
but also must have a sufficient degree of understanding of the customer's industry in order
to meet the requirements of different industry customers to change the design, and the
service orientation is obvious.
Table 1: Application differences between industrial computers and general computers

Item Industrial Computers General Computers

Standardized products are

Customized products are the main )
the main products ,

Market Scale products, production and market .
: production and market scale
scale is smaller 5
is larger
Price Sensitivity Low price sensitivity High price sensitivity
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Purpose of Use /
Quality of Service

According to the purpose and
environment of use, there are
different requirements (application
orientation), so it is necessary to
communicate with customers
individually.

More fixed purpose and
stable environment, after-
sales service of
standardized products

Environment / Can be operated in harsh working Mostly used in stable
Application Field environment (long working hours, working environment (short
dangerous climate, outside the city, | working hours, indoor,
vibration, waterproof), special room temperature)
market home/office
Product Life Cycle | Slow product innovation, long New products are
product life cycle (at least 3-5 years) | introduced faster, short
product life cycle (about 2-
3 seasons)
Procurement / Quality/stability/durability/flexibility | High performance/price
Design are the priority factors for ratio, multiple
purchasing, and more standardization
customization.
Delivery/Supply Small quantity and multiple samples, | Less sample, more quantity,

high repurchase rate general consumer brand
loyalty is not high except

for a few brands

Industrial computers were mostly used for control, monitoring, testing, and
production equipment in the automation process of factories in early years.
However, industrial computers have been rapidly expanding their applications to
the general life level with the change of industrial ecology and technological
evolution in recent years, coupled with the high integration of information and
communication technologies such as optoelectronics, network, and software
design, such as POS, Kiosk, ATM, Digital Signage, MRT ticket reading system,
gaming machines, lottery machines, car computers, medical electronics, and
other devices. In addition, with the rise of the Internet of Things, cloud computing
and smart living concepts, intelligent transportation, smart grid, smart housing
and other related applications are also gradually emerging, and industrial
computer industry applications can be found everywhere in the living
environment, mainly divided into the following five categories :

A. Industrial PC (IPC) :

The main hardware and software architecture of industrial computers is
the same as that of desktop computers. Wintel (Windows + Intel) was the
main system platform in the past, but with the popularity of the Linux open
system, which can be freely modified, there is an increasing trend of using
Linux system. However, industrial computers are designed differently
from personal computers in that they can be placed in more demanding
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external environments, such as high (low) temperature, high pressure,
waterproof, and vibration resistant, to provide a stable system platform for
long term operation in factories.

B. Industrial Work Station(IWS) :

The higher the level of automation required by the industry, the larger
the range of equipment work, the more industrial computers need to be
connected to form a group operation, and industrial workstations to manage
and monitor the operation of each industrial computer.

C. Single Board Computer

The motherboard integrates computing functions into a single add-on card.
The backplane accommodates additional add-on cards to expand
functionality with automatic detection, control, and processing, and the
backplane size and expansion slots can be designed to meet customer
requirements. The backplane size and expansion slots are designed to meet
customer requirements. The main applications of single board computers
are industrial control, computer telephony integration (CTI), wireless
machines, robots, and medical monitoring systems.

D.Embedded PC :

Embedded computer boards are similar to PC motherboards, but they are
smaller in size and can be designed to be double-sided and can be
developed with different functions and forms to meet customer needs. This
is a niche product with a wide range of products, lower shipment volume,
and higher unit price and gross profit than the motherboard.

E. Panel PC :

It is a slim LCD computer with a touch screen, waterproof function, and
long-lasting power supply, and has a wide range of applications. It can be
used not only in industrial applications, but also in commercial purposes,
such as Kiosk for station and amusement spot tour, building intercom,
intelligent building monitoring system, or as an information interface for
product promotion or product introduction in large shopping malls. With
the modular design, we can quickly change the appearance and functions
of the products according to the customers' needs, and the contents of the
software are designed according to the customers' needs.

2. Linkages between upstream, midstream and downstream of the industry

Our products include single board computer, embedded controller, industrial
tablet PC, medical tablet PC and portable tablet PC. It is mainly focused on
computers, and its upstream includes printed circuit boards, semiconductor
chips, electronic components, mechanical components, thermal modules,
cables and accessories, storage devices, LCD panels, plastic housings,
communication modules, battery modules, and other suppliers and
outsourcing partners. The midstream is the products manufactured by the
Company, while the downstream varies depending on the marketing model,
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as industrial computer manufacturers mainly sell to end users through
distributors, system Integrators and software developers. The industrial
computer industry is not a standardized industry, with a high degree of
functional integration and a wide range of product applications, and
customers are potentially located in various industries. Therefore, most of
the industrial computers are sold to end users worldwide through distributors,
system integrators and software developers with engineering backgrounds.

The upstream, midstream, and downstream linkages of the industry are

tllustrated below :

Upstream

Printed Circuit Board

Semiconductor Wafer

Midstream

Electronic Components

Mechanical Components

Heat Sink Module

Single Board Computer

Downstream

ODM/OEM

Wires and Accessories

A 4

Embedded Controller

Storage Devices

V V¥ ©

LCD Panel

Plastic Case

Industrial Panel PC

\A 4

Communication Module

Battery Module

Medical Tablet PC

VVY VW

Portable Tablet PC

v

_.l Subsidiaries

| Distributor

| System Integrator

_4 Software Integrator
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3.

Various development trends and competition of products

A.

Industry-specific boom cycle

The Company is an industrial computer manufacturer, and the end-users of
industrial computers are corporate users. Although the market demand is still
affected by the regional economic downturn, it is less likely to be affected by ups
and downs, and when the economy recovers, corporate investment in capital
expenditure increases, so the demand for industrial computers also rises. The
overall application of industrial computer products is different from the past
industrial automation-oriented, and the applications are moving towards a variety
of industries and life applications. Generally speaking, the proportion of the first
and second half of the sales is about 40:60.

Product Substitutability

Industrial computer products utilize the abundant hardware and software
resources of personal computers, and then evolve with different motherboards,
chipsets, housings, connection slots, and operating systems to meet specific
operational needs. Therefore, industrial computers are distinctly different from
general personal computers in that they are customized products with emphasis
on product stability and a longer product life cycle, creating an irreplaceable
industry value and stable growth. In contrast, most commercial PCs are mass-
produced and designed for office environments, and are used in industrial and life
automation applications, which cannot meet the special needs of standardized
product appearance, harsher working environments, and large differences in

product functionality. Therefore, the threat of replacement is limited.
Industry Future Development

Industrial computers emerged from the Slot Computer architecture in the early
days, emphasizing good scalability, easy maintenance (MTTR), high
compatibility, and long product life cycle. After years of industrial development,
the slot computer has become the mainstream of industrial control industry and
network server manufacturers, among which the application of computerized
computer integrated system (CTI) and digital video recording and playback
system (DVR) The characteristics of slot computers can be best demonstrated.
With the introduction of low-power/high-efficiency CPUs (e.g. AMD GX3 &
Intel CPUs), fanless systems are gradually being developed, with the advantages
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of fanless systems in terms of size, volume and vibration resistance. The
embedded computer developed by our company emphasizes the features of low
power consumption/high integration/no fan/strong vibration resistance, and the
combination of video and voice functions makes the embedded computer more
deeply applied in various industries, including POS, ATM, gaming machine,
KIOSK, medical, car, digital information signage, KIOSK, industrial automation,
building, and other industries. KIOSK, industrial automation, building

monitoring, and HMI tablet PC are the most popular applications.

As mentioned above, our company has always been highly interactive with
the trend of industrial application market, and we are able to grasp the core
technology design for the related technology development and application, such
as our project development mode to meet the needs of customers, and our RISC
architecture products have become mature, and we believe that our company will

be highly competitive in the industry in the future.

Competitive situation

Currently, the leading industrial computer manufacturers in Taiwan are
Advantech, Ennoconn and ADLINK. Other industrial computer manufacturers
include IEI Integration, Portwell, NEXCOM, Lanner, Flytech, Axiomtek,
AAEON and Avalu, etc. Each manufacturer has different business results
according to their technology, business philosophy and product features. In terms
of product orientation, except for single-board computers, which are workstation
computers, and data acquisition computers for life support equipment, all of them
are sold with self-developed finished products, unlike other companies that only
develop one kind of application products (with different sizes) or only undertake
the embedded board design of medical computers for ODM customers, therefore,
the actual competitors of our medical tablet PC are mostly foreign companies.
Therefore, most of our competitors for medical tablet PC are foreign companies.
Therefore, the Company's actual competitors for medical tablet PC are mostly
foreign companies. Therefore, the Company is more mature than other companies
in the industry in terms of technology, demand specifications for new vertical

applications and industry trends.

Our main source of technology is our long history of recruiting R&D talents and

gaining experience in various fields to develop products across different industries,
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and to accumulate experience and try to make technological breakthroughs through
practical work. On the other hand, we have maintained a long-standing relationship
with Intel, a major supplier, and are a strategic partner in the Intel Embedded
Alliance, through which we have early access to the technical specifications and
design manuals for CPUs and Chipsets of various generations. In addition, we have
also joined PICMG, SFF-SIG, PCISIG, PC104, and other related organizations to
continuously obtain the standard specifications for various industrial computer
products. Except for joining the above standards, we also join various other unions
such as Taiwan Electrical and Electronic Industry Association and Electrical

Technicians Association to increase our connection with the electronic industry.

Our company mainly researched and developed embedded single board
computers in the early days, when Kontron, a major foreign industrial computer
manufacturer, started to launch the ETX standard CPU module specification. We
were the first company in Taiwan to launch such products. After several years of
research and development, we have not only developed new CPU module-based
single board computers, but also developed many major product lines such as
embedded controllers, portable rugged tablet PCs, and medical tablet PCs. The
following is a description of our product competitiveness: :

a. Leading in R&D technology: We are a leading industrial computer
manufacturer with a complete range of wide temperature products, and
our wide temperature technology spans dozens of products such as
embedded single board computers and embedded controllers. In
addition, we have the R&D capability of mobile computing devices,
especially the technology that supports dual battery hot-swappable,
which is not only unique in the industrial computer industry, but also

ahead of some commercial notebook or tablet PC manufacturers.

b. Complete product structure: We have a complete product structure for
all major product lines, including industrial automation, transportation
automation, in-vehicle information systems, medical and health care,
multimedia information terminals, military computers and other

industries, providing customers with more diversified choices.

c. Fast and flexible service: According to the diversification of various
industry specifications, our strong R&D team can reuse existing
product resources to modify BIOS or specifications and form new
models in the first time to meet customers' urgent needs.
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d. Advanced market advantage: We are the first to introduce mobile
computing technology and have developed tablet PCs for various
industrial applications, such as portable medical computers, in-vehicle
LCD computers, mobile cash registers, and mobile warehouse
management computers. Therefore, we are more mature than our
competitors in terms of technology, demand specifications and industry
trends for these new vertical applications. Competitors need at least
two years to prepare for the development of such products, thus

creating a competitive barrier.

(3) Technology and R&D Overview

1.

Technical level of the business operated

Currently, the mainstream technology development of industrial computer, among
which Intel x86 series is the core of our product development strategy, our company
has its corresponding product development and marketing, especially in the
development of System on module, is beyond the performance of the world's leading
brands, this high-density CPU module fully meet the IPC industry's diverse and small
amount of market demand, for customers, can For our customers, we are able to
quickly complete our customers' products and achieve a highly competitive
performance in terms of time to market; for our company, the mass production of COM
express, ETX and Q7 CPU modules is the core value of Modular Computer - fast and
diverse. At this stage, the Company has invested more R&D manpower in the field of
embedded computer applications, and has spared no effort in the research of the harsh
environment of wide temperature and in-vehicle, hoping to become the leader in the

field of embedded applications in the future.

Our RISC BASED R&D team provides a one-stop innovative R&D and production
technology capability from hardware design, embedded development to end product
mass production. Our key R&D personnel have more than 10 years of experience in
ARM embedded design and development, and are familiar with porting, optimizing,
long-term maintenance and updating of various Linux operating systems, providing
customers with another innovative product development technology with low power

consumption and high performance.

Research Development Status
Through the development of the electronic industry for many years, new hardware and

113



software technologies have been introduced one after another. With the continuous
introduction of low-power/high CP-performance CPUs and the rapid development of
network communications, the traditional industrial automation control industry has
tilted toward a decentralized processing architecture, gradually evolving into the trend
of using embedded controllers and industrial tablet PCs. Moreover, since the
customer's requirements for product stability are becoming more and more stringent,
there are more and more demands for fanless and wide operating voltage products.
The Company has been developing wide temperature technology in recent years, and
now we are able to provide nearly 30 -40~+85°C wide temperature products to our
single board computer customers, and most of the general single board computer
products can also support -20~+70°C specification. On the other hand, due to the rising
trend of labor salary and commodity price, most of the customers have reduced their
investment in human resources and have reduced the practice of purchasing single
board computer and designing their own chassis to form the system, and have evolved
into the mode of purchasing the whole machine. In view of this, our company also
provides customers with complete solutions, such as rugged embedded controllers for
outdoor traffic control, atmospheric physical detection, power and energy
management, in-vehicle computers, self-driving cars, and other harsh environments,

with features such as fanless, wide operating temperature, and high vibration immunity.

On the other hand, as new technologies such as mobile communication and mobile
computing become more and more widespread, the traditional industrial computer
industry is constantly evolving and many new applications have been created, such as
mobile POS for outdoor business establishments, mobile LCD computers for
automatic navigation, automatic driving and communication for vehicle carriers,
portable LCD computers for warehouse access and management, etc. We have been
researching and developing related technologies since 2007, and now we have
launched several portable tablet PCs with high integration (wireless network,
Bluetooth, mobile communication, barcode machine, RFID, chip card and magnetic
stripe reader...) and high battery life. The rugged design and high battery life of these
products are the most important factors in the development of portable tablets. This

type of product is a niche product due to its high technology threshold.

The Company has also set the direction for future product development, with the Intel
x86 series as the core of the Company's product development strategy, the Company
has its corresponding products developed and launched, such as Intel 8th, 10th and
11th generation 17/ 15/ 13 and Xeon servers and Atom-class CPUs. Atom-class CPUs.
We will also invest more R&D manpower in the field of embedded computer
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applications in order to become a leader in embedded applications in the future, based
on wide temperature technology for The Company will also invest more R&D efforts
in embedded computer applications in order to become a leader in embedded
applications in the future, with embedded controllers based on wide temperature
technology for industrial automation, transportation, power industry, etc.; portable and
rugged tablet PC products based on mobile computing technology for in-vehicle
computers, smart inspection (power and oil & gas, etc.), warehouse management,
retail industry, medical and health care, etc. The future direction of its planning is :

A. Short-term development direction :

(A) Introduce and nurture outstanding R&D talents to form a solid R&D team and

maintain our technological advantage to launch niche products quickly.

(B) We actively utilize our existing R&D strengths to grasp the trends of CPUs,
chipsets and market changes, and launch competitive new products ahead of the

market.

(C) Industrial PC single board products continue to introduce higher-end CoreTM
processor series and new generation AtomTM series products with low power
consumption to develop COM (Computer On Module) series products and wide
temperature, low power, small size and high integration embedded products. The
Company is also developing COM (Computer On Module) series products and
embedded products with wide temperature, low power, small size and high
integration.

(D) Industrial computer system products focus on the development of HMI,
Rugged Tablet PC, Embedded Controller, Expert Medical Station, Nursing PC,

Bedside Infotainment Terminal, In-Vehicle Computer and other series of products.

(E) Develop RISC Based system modules for industrial electrical system products,
such as HMI, Rugged Tablet, Rugged handheld, Embedded BOX PC, In-Vehicle
Computer, Kiosk Retail POS and other series products.

B. Medium and long-term development direction :

(A) We are actively cultivating R&D talents in system integration, application
software, and BIOS to lay the foundation for the expansion of industrial computer

system product lines.

(B) Strategic alliances with industry key technology vendors for technology

collaboration to enhance R&D capabilities.

(C) Create a market-oriented and responsive R&D team.

115



(D) Provide long-term maintenance and updates for industrial development

systems such as Linux and Android operating systems.

3. Research and development staff and their qualifications
Unit: Person

2023 2022
| Year No.Of | % oftotal | No.Of | % of total
Education
Persons | Employees | Persons | Employees
PhD 1 1.20% 0 0
Master degree 12 14.46% 12 13.48%
College degree 68 81.93% 75 84.27%
Senior High
school(inclusive) or belowg 2 2.41% 2 2.25%
Total (Notel) 83 100.00% 89 100.00%

Note 1: No significant difference between 2023 and 2022

4. Research and development(R&D) expenses for each year within the past five years
Unit: NT$ Thousands

Item 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
R&D expenses 114,099 97,252 84,353 89,812 86,972
Net revenue 1,595,829 1,510,316 1,509,412 1,801,055| 1,671,427
% of net revenue 7.15 6.44 5.59 4.99 5.20

5. Technology and products successfully developed in FY 2023

Year Item

1.Developed Intel Q670/H610 motherboard, supported Intel's 12th generation

Gadget processor, which is used exclusively for Al machine vision equipment.

2. Developed Intel Whiskey Lake COM Express Compact Type 6 Module, for

Al recognition system.

FY 2023 3.Designed with Intel Tiger Lake-UP3 platform, used in human-shaped
robots.

4.Intel Elkhart Lake platform-designed Rugged Tablet, supports Wi-Fi 6° USB

3.0 and function Keys, for retail or warehousing vertical markets

S.Intel 13 th Raptor Lake S processor, the machine's wide temperature

operation is fanless and streamlined 10 design to support the standard PCle*
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Year

Item

16/PCI/PCle graphics card/IO shortcut card

6.Intel 12 th Alder Lake S Al fanless vehicle and railway controller, the
highest support for Nvidia RTX-A2000 MXM GPU, and a variety of camera
interfaces-POE/USB/10G/5G, E-Mark certification

7.Implementation of the ASLAN next-generation centricity upgrade program,
full-size upgrade to the Intel Tiger Lake platform Status of marketing and

promotion.

6. The Company's future R&D plans and estimated R&D expenses

R&D expenses are forecasted to stand around 5% of revenue in fiscal year 2024.
All R&D programs are focused on providing new technology applications, meeting
customer needs in the market, and improving customer satisfaction. We also expect to
increase our competitiveness and scale of operations by developing new products and
technologies.

The major R&D highlights of the Company for the period from FY2023 to FY 2024 as of the

publication date of the annual report are as follows :

Plan Name Plan Description

ARES-5420 Upgrade plan of ETC gateway explosion-proof Al camera, development of
C1D2/ATEX explosion-proof embedded system, using the latest INTEL
AMSTON LAKE platform

FPC-8209 Intel 14 h Raptor Lake Refresh S processor, supporting 5 xPCle/PCI multi-
slot expansion card, supporting up to 150 W GPU expansion needs, mid-
level AI PC application controller

FPC-9208 Intel 14 h Raptor Lake Refresh S processor, support 5 xPCle/PCI multi-slot
expansion card, support application of up to 350 W GPU display card,
high-end AI PC application controller

LYNC-HMI The full range of HMI was upgraded to the latest INTEL AMSTON LAKE

platform to meet the future Al demand of equipment

FPC-9200-V1-MRT

Arbor’s 3" generation railway PISC/NVR controller, integrating the
previous generation's practical vehicle integration experience in Metro
Taipei and Taiwan Railway, with the goal of integrating PISC/NVR
specifications into all-in-one machines as a model transfer of future railway

controllers

EmETXe-194M0

Intel Raptor Lake-H/P/U platform design COM Express Compact Type 6
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Plan Name

Plan Description

COM Express Compct
Type 6 Module

Module, for use in harsh environmental applications such as military

industry.

EmETXe-194U0 COM
Express Compct Type
6 Module

Designed Intel Raptor Lake-U platform COM Express Compact Type 6

Module, for upgrading wide temperature applications.

EmETXe-195M1
COM Express Compct
Type 6 Module

Intel Meteor Lake-H/U platform design COM Express Compact Type 6
Module, for Al edge computing.

IEC-3702 Signage
BOX

BOX integrates the use of Intel Tiger Lake-UP3 platform, small economic
design to meet customer needs for large indoor high-resolution digital

dialling systems.

NVIDIA Al Box PC

The NVIDIA Jetson AGX Orin design, which supports POE + and GMSL

interfaces, is designed for the Al smart recognition market.

M1923-1340PE

Designed for the medical market using the RAPTOR LAKE platform
design’ 19inch panel PC’ 4 KV isolation USB and Serial interfaces

(4) Long and short-term business development plans

1.

A. We

Marketing Strategy

are committed to the fixed market with the three elements of service,

technology, and brand, and to establish good customer interaction with the three

directions of efficient service, quality service, technical service and continue to

assist existing customers to expand their market share and gross profit.

Strengthen technology leadership to maintain good customer interaction, and

continue brand promotion and image building, so that the upstream, midstream

and downstream industries can designate branded products and bring benefits to

customers by the nature of technology.

We

will develop various product lines under our own brand name "ARBOR" in

the future. Regarding market expansion, the Company operates in China, the

United States and France through its investment subsidiaries, and in Australia

through strategic alliances and cooperation with local distributors in the rest of

the world. In the rest of the world, we work with local distributors to enhance

customer satisfaction and loyalty, strengthen brand awareness and expand

market share with solid technology and a solid and honest management
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philosophy, in order to achieve steady growth.

With "industrialization of communication and industrialization of
communication" as the main axle, we are developing four vertical markets:
smart medical, car networking, smart retail and factory intelligence, and

actively deploying solutions that meet the demands of specific industries.

Combining digital marketing and big data applications, we use offensive
marketing, budgeting for Google Ads, PPC, Remarketing and SEO,
supplemented by our own communities such as FB and Linkedin and online
media, to continue to develop new customers in the US, Europe and Asia

Pacific, and to promote the global corporate recognition of the ARBOR brand.

With the advantages of strategic alliance and the trend of AI computing, the
company simultaneously promotes the competitive industrial computers
developed by the company online and offline, and conducts brand

communication to improve product awareness.

Short-term business development plan.

A.

Develop OEM/ODM business opportunities with well-known manufacturers by
aggressively utilizing our R&D strengths to establish a customized professional
R&D image.

Expand the product line of industrial computer boards and interface cards and
promote industrial computer system products with market potential and high
added value to meet the demands of customers in different industries with
diversified product lines.

Strengthen our FAE and RMA capabilities to provide attentive after-sales
service.

Participate aggressively in industrial computer exhibitions in various potential
countries around the world to increase reputation and develop new customers.

Establish a database of potential customers and actively publish new products
and related technical information through internet marketing.

Strengthen the collection of information from upstream and downstream
industries to quickly respond to market demands and create niche products.

Establish a dedicated business team (channel & project development) for
product lines to focus on product sales resources and sales development.

Increase R&D strength and provide customers with more perfect solutions and
services through strategic alliance of consulting system or industry-academia.

Implement the positioning of each subsidiary and integrate resources to
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strengthen the function of each subsidiary to serve customers nearby and provide
real-time feedback on local market demand.

3. Long-term business development plan

A. Establish long-term partnership with key component suppliers and excellent

outsourcing companies to create a win-win strategy.

B. Form strategic alliances with well-known customers to support cooperative

products with professional technology and create prosperity together.

C. Deeply develop the Greater China and Asian markets, and meanwhile expand the

markets in Europe and the United States.

D. With the increase of system integration capability, the main axis of the original
sales of industrial computer single board products will gradually change to the
strategy of industrial computer single board products and system products

together, and deepen the vertical industry.

E. Planning and evaluating the establishment of overseas offices and establishing a
global distributor system for each regional market to facilitate deeper penetration

into the local market.

F. Increase the sales of ODM/OEM or customized products to a reasonable
proportion of 40%~50%.

G. Transform overseas subsidiaries into technical support service centers to support

customer development and rapid service in the vicinity.

II.  Market and Production Overview

(1) Market Analysis
1. Main product sales regions

Unit: NT$Thousands

Year 2023 2022
Regions Value % Value %
Domestic sales 181,242 10.84% 83,836 4.65%
9 Asia 581,738| 37.74% 767,656| 42.62%
2 America 407,654  26.45% 441,349 24.51%
g Europe 500,793| 32.49% 508,214| 28.22%
Total 1,671,427) 100.00% 1,801,055 100.00%
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Market share and future supply and demand situation and growth

As an industrial computer manufacturer, the Company continues to manage brand
awareness in Europe, America, Asia Pacific and the big region, and continues to expand
distribution channels and establish a global sales system.

In response to the increased investment in infrastructure plans by governments of
various countries to stimulate the economy, and the increase in demand for self-service
driven by factors such as the accelerated digital transformation of enterprises in the
post-epidemic era, labor shortages, and epidemic prevention, industrial computer
manufacturers generally felt that the demand for orders rebounded significantly last
year.

Due to the rapid development of emerging information technologies such as cloud
computing, artificial intelligence, the Internet of Things, edge computing and block
chain, as well as the innovation of related applications, which drives the evolution of
business models and drives the added value of industrial transformation, it will be
conducive to the performance of demand for information industry-related products.
Among them, industrial applications, medical care, and transportation are estimated to
be the most potential markets. These field applications are also the vertical markets
where Arbor technology has deeply cultivated the layout. It is estimated that the annual
growth rate of the Group's total revenue will continue to grow.

Competitive niche

Our main competitive niche products are industrial computers, medical computers,
and rugged tablet PCs, etc. The characteristics of the industrial computer industry are
high durability, high quality stability, diverse and small quantities, and long-life cycles.
In order to accurately grasp the development trend of PC-based computer industry, our
company not only develops market-oriented products, but also chooses to research and
develop products with high technological threshold and high added value in order to
maintain our technological advantage, create profits, maintain long-term
competitiveness, and establish the rock of sustainable management. The key factors are
as follows -

A. Strong research and development team to ensure rapid response for market
demand

Technology is the key to survival and profitability of our company, and we
have put a lot of emphasis on R&D (integration of hardware, software, firmware
engineers and advanced equipment) and invested a lot of manpower and funds. At
the end of December 2023, the R&D staff accounted for 27% of the Company's
total workforce, in order to combine innovation, speed and technology to create
marketable, forward-looking and futuristic products, and to help customers
provide the best solutions. We have developed a series of low-power, highly
integrated embedded products, and led the industry in launching high-end medical
computers and rugged tablet PC products. Our excellent R&D team is the best
guarantee to deliver new products quickly and in line with the market trend.
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B. Management Team

Our main management team has more than 20 years of experience in
industrial computer-related fields and has an engineering background, so they are
familiar with the market, products and customers. Therefore, we are able to make
quick and correct decision and development direction in product and market
strategy. °

C. Good employee centripetal force, strong ambition, and high team consensus

The main management team of our company had a high level of consensus
at the beginning of the Company's establishment that employee centripetal force
and ambition are the main driving force of the Company's growth, therefore, we
actively open up employee shareholding to allow employees to share the fruits of
management in order to cohesion and ambition of employees. Since its
establishment, the Company has maintained a high level of employee motivation
and ambition, and therefore, the Company has been able to achieve good growth

in recent years.
D. Image Recognition and Affirmation

Our products have been adopted by many well-known international
manufacturers and have built up an image of professional excellence in industrial
computer and medical computer design and manufacturing. Since our product
strategy in the early stage of establishment, we focus on high end and low
function, small size and high integration products in the middle of difficult design,
and often launch market-leading products ahead of the industry, we have quickly
gained the recognition and affirmation of many well-known international

manufacturers, which is beneficial to our growth and long-term competitiveness.
E. Marketing channels

Our company has a global integrated marketing channel and multinational
subsidiaries to keep close to the market pulse and demand, respond to customer

needs immediately and provide perfect and fast after-sales technical service.
4. Favorable and unfavorable factors of development prospect and countermeasures

A. Favorable factors for future development

1. Information industry structure is complete and resources are abundantly
available

The advantages of both vertical integration and vertical division of labor
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ii.

iil.

1v.

in the information industry have already taken shape. In addition, domestic
manufacturers have made great progress in the development of key
components, and this complete information industry structure and increasingly
complete production and sales system are sufficient to fully support the
development of the industrial computer industry, creating an excellent

environment for industry development.

Industrial computers have a wide range of applications and Business

opportunities are unlimited

The application of industrial computers covers automation, Internet of
Things, smart grid, rail transportation, communication, military, medical and
other fields. The scope of application is very wide and will bring unlimited

business opportunities to the industry.

Industrial computer industry characteristics create profitability

The product range is diverse and small, and it is not possible to adopt the
mass production method of economy of scale, so it is possible to maintain a
rather high price. In addition, industrial computer manufacturers must tailor
their products to meet the specific needs of their customers, as they may be
used in harsh environments such as low and high temperatures, vibration, and
humidity. Therefore, the most important factors for customers are product
reliability and stability, and finally, the price of the product is considered.
Therefore, the average gross margin of industrial computer manufacturers can
enjoy a high profit level of more than 20%, and the life cycle of industrial
computers can generally last for 3-5 years. Compared with personal computers,
which will be updated in 6-9 months due to the change of CPU generations,
industrial computer products are more stable and not easily eliminated by the
market. Since industrial computers are often customized according to
customers' needs, once they are verified by customers, the chances of
subsequent cooperation are very high, so the loyalty of customers in this

industry is very high.

Technology advantage and product leadership base

Technology advantage is the only way for our company to survive and make

profits. Since our company was established, we have put a lot of emphasis on
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V.

V1.

vil.

R&D (integration of hardware, software, firmware engineers and advanced
equipment) and invested a lot of manpower and money, especially for medical
and rugged tablet PCs, and actively innovated. We have accumulated many
years of experience and technology in the fields of wide temperature, fanless
cooling and mobile computing, and are able to provide new products and
services that meet the market trend faster than our competitors when facing
the future demand.

Independent R&D capability

In the high-tech industry, our company has many years of experience in
industrial computer research and development, and has independent and
independent research and development capabilities, which is also a guarantee
of creating a brand in the market, establishing a reputation and profitability. We
have accumulated abundant resources in product applications and our main
source of technology, in addition to a long history of recruiting R&D talents
and gaining experience from various sources, has enabled us to develop
products across different industry sectors, and to accumulate experience and
try out technological breakthroughs from actual practice. Through this
relationship, we have been able to obtain early access to the technical
specifications and design manuals for CPUs and Chipsets of various

generations.

Insist on producing and selling high quality products and services to

accumulate market trust

The most important basis for the survival and development of an
enterprise is to provide high quality products, and the quality requirements of
industrial computers are even more stringent, therefore, our company always
takes the improvement of product quality as the first priority, and passed the
ISO-9001 quality certification in FY88 and the ISO-13485 medical
specification certification in FY2010, which are helpful for the promotion of

products and winning the trust of customers.
Use of management information systems to improve operational performance

The internal management of ARBOR is moving towards

institutionalization and computerization. The use of the management
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Viil.

information system will improve the quality of decision making, increase

operational performance and benefit ARBOR's future development.

Develop customers aggressively and have strong future development

We have established ARBOR SOLUTION INC., ARBOR FRANCE
S.A.S., ARBOR TECHNOLOGY UK LTD. and ARBOR KOREA CO., LTD.
in order to further develop the market in the United States, Europe and Korea.
In order to seize the business opportunities in Mainland China market, in
addition to the original North China region, the Company established ARBOR
SOLUTION INC., ARBOR FRANCE S.A.S, ARBOR TECHNOLOGY UK
LTD. and ARBOR KOREA CO. In order to capture the market opportunities
in Mainland China, we acquired a subsidiary in South China, Sibosi
Technology (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. to capture the growing industrial computer
market in China. The Company has built up a marketing network with its
investee companies and distributors in different parts of the world to fully
understand the market demand, which is expected to lay a good foundation for

future business growth.

B. Negative factors and countermeasures

1.

il.

Key components are not easy to control.

Countermeasures -

-‘Maintain long-term cooperation and establish good relationship with original

suppliers.
‘The sources of purchase are appropriately diversified to reduce risk.

‘Estimate the supply and demand from the receipt of orders and the history of

the usage and control the inventory at any time.

The sales quotation is mainly in US dollars and there is a potential risk of

exchange rate changes.
Countermeasures -
‘Prepare product price lists to include evaluation of exchange rate movements.

-Collect information on exchange rate changes and keep an eye on the trend.
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‘Use of bank foreign exchange to hedge exchange risk.

(2) Important usage and manufacturing process of main products

1.

Important usage for main products

Main Products

Important Usage

Single Board
Computer

PICMG single-board computers are mainly designed to expand
by combining various computing functions on a single
motherboard with expandable ISA BUS, PCI BUS, Express
Bus, and other add-on cards, or by combining various
combinations of back planes. The applications are as follows:
Computer Telephony Integration (CTI), Digital Video
Recording (DVR), Surveillance, Automatic Teller Machine
(ATM), and other applications.

Embedded
Computer

The concept of embedded is to achieve system integration and
application through module or complete functional system|
board design or through module carrier board with multiple
functional add-on design or complete functional system board.
The applications are as follows: single and fixed function
embedded applications, emphasizing on various working
environments. For example: POS, Vending Marchine, Control
Box, Medical Equipment, Military, Gaming, Lottery,
Electronic Signage, Telematics, Smart Grid, Rail Transit,
Internet of Things, and Information Services.

LCD Flat
Panel
Computer

The main concept is to combine the computer host, LCD
screen, and peripheral interface into one All-In-One PC, but the
industrial LCD panel PC will have higher peripheral integration
than the general commercial computer, such as swipe card
machine, barcode machine, etc., plus the thin and light
appearance design, suitable for application in building
navigation system, access control system, KIOSK, electronic
signage, medical imaging auxiliary computer It is suitable for|
applications such as building navigation system, access control
system, KIOSK, electronic signage, medical imaging assistant
computer, retail terminal computer POS, factory automation
system, and various human-machine interface systems (e.g.
CNC, monitoring).
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Main Products

Important Usage

Wide
Temperature

Products

The main concept is to design products for harsh environments,
featuring a wider operating temperature tolerance. The
operating temperature design specification of general products
is usually 0~60°C, while the operating temperature
specification of wide temperature products reaches -20~+70°C
or even -40~+85°C, which is often required for certain special
environment applications, such as: automotive computers,
railroad traffic control, military aerospace applications,

meteorological detection, etc.

Medical

Computer

Most of them are derived from the concept of LCD panel PC,
mainly two types of thin and light LCD panel PC and portable
panel PC, with low noise, dustproof and waterproof,
antibacterial, easy to clean and other features. One of them is
the slim LCD tablet PC which is suitable for patient
infotainment system, medical workstation, medical imaging
assistance system, etc., while the portable tablet PC is suitable
for medical assistant tablet PC, medical data acquisition

terminal PC, bedside infotainment PC, etc.

In-vehicle

computer

Embedded PC and portable tablet PC are the main derivatives
of embedded PC and portable tablet PC, and the product
demands various functions or features such as wireless
connectivity, rugged design, support for car power and GPS
positioning. One of them is the embedded In-vehicle PC with
integrated applications such as bus electronic signage, mobile
DVR, and electronic navigation; while the portable In-vehicle
Tablet PC can be applied to fleet task dispatch, navigation,
wireless communication, and other practical applications, and
can be applied to field dispatch operations such as pipeline
inspection and maintenance that require the computer to be

carried out of the vehicle because of the battery.
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2.

Manufacturing process of main products

Production order issuing by production managers, production

scheduling and material procurement planning

!

Incoming material inspection, material preparation, and

material dispatch to outsourcing factories for OEM production

Return

A 4

A 4

SMT, DIP outsourcing factory

'

Outsourcing factory test start-up

'

Incoming Quality Control(IQC)

'

Dynamic or static burn-in

'

Fully functional test or assembly

v

Packaging

\ 4

Inspection

A

Final Quality Control(FQC)

|

Finished product storage
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(3) Status of supply of main raw materials

Material Name Suppliers
Central CPU Sertek,Synnex , RichPower, WT, WPG Holdings
Chipsets Yosun, Sertek,FAE, Synnex, MediaTek, WPG Holdings,

RichPower, Macnica, WT, HYS.
Printed Circuit Boards |EW, Hannstar, Song-Shang.

Memory Innodisk, Transcend, Adata, Apacer, Phison , Jager, Team
Group

Panel Type Acmepoint, Sanshin, 3AScreen, EDT, GMI, Bunion

Mechanical Han Chang, Punchtek, Janyu, Ching-Hsin, Chitai, Chen Yi,

Components EnRack, Good Mold

The main suppliers are well-known and well-received in the industry, and they

maintain stable and good cooperative relationships with the Company, and the supply
of raw materials is stable and sufficient. °

(4) The names of customers who have accounted for more than 10% of the total purchase
(sales) in any of the two most recent years and the reasons for the changes in the amount,

proportion and increase/decrease of purchase (sales)

1. List of suppliers who have accounted for more than 10% of the total amount of imports
in either of the last two years :

Unit: NT$ Thousands; %

2022 2023 Year to Date up to latest quarter
Percentage IPercentage Percentage
of annual of annual of annual
Item| Name | Value |net Relationship| Name | Value net  [Relationship| Name | Value net  [Relationship
purchases purchases purchases
(%) (%) (%)
Victor
1 |Amobile| 290,320 21.71| Affiliate |[Amobile| 192,099 21.41| Affiliate Plus 34,292 21.53| Affiliate
Amobile
2 | Sertek | 136,872 10.24 None Sertek 92,284 10.29] None Solutions| 15,246 9.57| Affiliate
(Xiamen)
3 | Others | 909,797 68.05 -| Others | 612,685 68.30 -| Others {109,710 68.90 None
Net Net Net
urchases 1,336,989 100.00 urchases 897,068 100.00 urchases 159,248 100.00
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Analysis of the change:

The amount and proportion of purchases from Hongkong Amobile
Intelligent Corp. do not change much, mainly due to the stable order quantity of
customer's product sales projects in each year; in addition, the purchase ratio of
a single supplier does not exceed 30%, so there is no risk of concentration or
unstable source of supply.

2.  List of customers who have accounted for more than 10% of the total sales in either of
the last two years: No such situation.
3. Production value in the past two years
Unit : NTD 1,000 ; Set
Year 2023 2022
Production Capacity ) Capacity )
Quantity Value Quantity | Value
value[ (Note 1) (Note 1)
Major produc
Main Boards — 118,633 111,399 — 169,775|125,060
Systems — 46,707) 474,511 — 60,328(530,361
Total — 165,340 585,910 — 230,103|655,421

Note 1: The Company's production method was mainly outsourced in the last two years.

(5) Sales volume value in the last two years

Unit : NTD 1,000 ; Set

Y ear
Sales
Value
2023 2022
Major
products
Domestic Export Domestic Export
Quantity | Value | Quantity Value Quantity | Value | Quantity | Value
Main Boards 1,934 11,104 105,594 595,431 1,112 5,294 107,382 554,779
Systems 8,505] 157,800 55911 619,345 3,480 42,815 66,316] 995,657
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Others(Note)

40,608

12,338

1,813,327

275,409

45,964

35,727

811,125

166,783

Total

51,047

181,242

1,974,832

1,490,185

50,556

83,836

984,823

1,717,219

Note: Other includes CPU, HDD and other products, sales of raw materials, commodities and
development and design revenue.

III. Headcount Information
Statistical breakdown of the number of employees by job nature, total average age, average
length of service and education distribution for the last two years and as of the date of
publication of the annual report. :
Unit: Person ; %
. Year to date as of
Fiscal Year 2022 2023 4/30/2024
Administrative 51 47 46
personnel
Sales and
No. Of marketln% 50 48 50
Employe personne
R&D personnel 89 83 86
es - —
Direct/indirect
production 177 130 132
personnel
Total (Note 1) 367 308 314
Average age 40.89 42.65 42.76
Average years of service 6.32 7.92 7.99
0% 0% 0.32% 0.32%
)
BT e Master 8.99% 10.06% 9.87%
L = Q T .
5 g 2| Univesity 58.58% 62.01% 62.10%
o 2 (College) ‘ ' ‘
=}
High School 32.43% 27.60% 27.71%

IV.

Information on Environmental Expenditures

We are engaged in the research, development, manufacture and sale of industrial computer
products and interface cards without the risk of environmental pollution.

(1) In accordance with the provisions of the law, shall apply for a pollution facility
installation permit or pollution discharge permit or shall pay pollution prevention and
control fees or shall establish a special environmental protection unit personnel: Not

applicable.

(2) Investment in major equipment for the prevention and control of environmental pollution

and its use and possible benefits: No such situation.
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€)

(4)

()

(1)

The history of environmental pollution improvement in the most recent year and as of the

date of the annual report, and the history of pollution disputes: No such situation.

The total amount of losses and penalties incurred due to environmental pollution in the
most recent year and up to the date of publication of the annual report, with a description

of future countermeasures and possible expenses: No such situation.

The impact of the current pollution situation and its improvement on the Company's
earnings, competitive position and capital expenditures, and the estimated significant
environmental capital expenditures in the next two years: No such situation.

Labor Relations

The Company's employee welfare measures, retirement system and their implementation,
as well as the agreements between employers and employees and measures to protect
employees' rights and interests :

1. Employee welfare measures -

The Company has been paying great attention to the welfare policy of its employees.
We have set up a special unit (Human Resources Department) in our organization
system to plan a series of welfare measures in order to stabilize employees' lives,
protect their rights and interests, enhance their sense of identification with the
Company, and further promote labor harmony. Our company believes that only when
employees' welfare is valued and their lives are free of worries can they devote
themselves to their work, give full play to their strengths, create higher quality
products, and contribute to the overall corporate progress and prosperity.

A. Welfare measures directly handled by the Company -

(A) ~ Year-end bonuses and employee dividends.

(B) ~ Labor insurance.

(C) ~ National health insurance.

(D) ~ Group insurance.

(E) ~ Travel safety insurance.

(F) ~ New system of labor pension.

(G) ~ Dragon Boat Festival and Mid-Autumn Festival gift boxes
(H) ~ Year-end dinner party.

(D) ~ Departmental dinner.

(J) ~ Training courses, various kinds of training from time to time, etc.

(K) ~ Festival activities, meals.

B. Welfare measures handled by the Company's Employee Welfare Committee
(Welfare Committee) -
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The main sources of welfare benefits are 0.5% of the Company's monthly
operating income, 40% of the Company's sales, and 0.2% of employees'

salaries, etc. The main welfare measures are as follows :

(A) ~ Domestic travel.

(B) ~ Overseas travel.

(C) ~ Magazine subscription subsidy.

(D) ~ Community activities.

(E) ~ Wedding, funeral, celebration, maternity and hospitalization subsidies.
(F) ~ Annual health checkup.
(G) ~ Birthday cash gift.

(H) ~ Planning activities according to the meeting of the Welfare Committee.

Advanced education, training :

In order to improve the quality and skills of our employees, we are committed to

human resources training and implement general and professional training from time
to time. We also actively encourage our employees to participate in various training
courses, including internal and external training courses, in the hope that through
solid education and training, we can establish a good corporate culture, cultivate
employee skills and improve technical standards, so that our employees can grow
together with the Company.

A.

Training of new recruit

Formulate training courses for new recruits so that they can understand the rules
and regulations of the Company and the general situation.

Professional Vocational Training

According to the professional functions of each department, we formulate
internal training courses, or send employees to attend the courses of various
training institutions to enhance personal professional knowledge and skills,
including professional technical training, business training, etc.

Management Training

(A). Regarding the supervisors at each level, we arrange various management
skills training for their characteristics to build a common vision and
management consensus of the team.

(B). Managers participate in corporate governance-related studies and training.

Liberal Training
Fire safety training and labor safety education training are planned annually to
maintain the safety of the labors themselves.

Financial information transparency related personnel to obtain relevant licenses,
education and training
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(A). The financial supervisor of the Company participated in the continuing
education program for accounting supervisors organized by the Securities
and Futures Institute and obtained the relevant certificates.

(B). The audit supervisors and auditors of the Company participated in the
continuing education courses for auditors organized by the Securities and
Futures Institute and obtained the relevant certificates.

F. Advanced education and training are as follows :
Unit: NT$1, 000

Items Total
Number of]
number of | Total Hours | Total Cost
classes
people

Newcomer Training 26 49 49 0
Professional Training 67 670 1340 68.5
Management 2 86 688 56.7
Training
General Knowledge 3 270 540 0
Training

Total 98 1075 2617 125.2

Employee conduct or code of ethic

Regarding the employee's conduct and code of ethics, the Company has
established many relevant rules and regulations, which are posted on the Company's
intranet bulletin area for all employees to consult at any time, as a standard for
employee conduct, and the relevant rules and regulations are summarized as follows :

A. Work rules:

In order to clearly stipulate the rights and obligations of both employees and
employers, the Company has formulated "Work Rules" with reference to the
relevant laws and regulations. The main regulations include: appointment,
attendance, service, leave, salary, benefits, evaluation, rewards and punishments,
dismissal and retirement, etc. °

B. Recruitment and appointment management system

Our company will follow the "Recruitment and Employment Management
Regulations" when the employees arrive at work to handle the payroll operation,
and to ensure the Company's commercial property, we also need to sign a
confidentiality undertaking to ensure the safety of the Company's assets.

C. Management method of Approval Authority
The Company has a division of functions and responsibilities at each level, and
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there are duty agents at each level. The Company has established the "Management
of Approval Authority" and a list of duty agents for each department to follow in
order to ensure the normal operation of the Company's business.

D. Staff appraisal management method

In order to make the daily work performance and performance evaluation of all
employees comply with the principle of fairness, impartiality and openness, so as
to achieve the purpose of distinguishing rewards and punishments for employees
and to improve the overall work efficiency and management performance, the
Company has established the "Employee Evaluation Management Regulations" for
compliance.

E. Employee reward and punishment management method

In order to standardize the rewards and punishments for our staff, we have specified
in the "Management Regulations for Rewards and Punishments" that rewards are
divided into commendation, minor merit, major merit and exceptional promotion;
and punishments are divided into admonishment, minor fault, major fault and
dismissal, with additional deduction of performance and discretionary deduction of
year-end bonus according to the rewards and punishments.

F. Prevention of sexual harassment in the workplace and disciplinary methods

In order to provide a work and service environment free from sexual harassment for
employees and job seekers, the Company takes appropriate preventive, corrective,
disciplinary and handling measures, and establishes rules and employee grievance
channels to regulate employees' behavior and speech in the workplace.

Protection measures for work environment and employee safety

In order to prevent occupational disasters and protect the safety and health of
workers, the Company has established an occupational safety and health management
committee and occupational safety and health management personnel in accordance
with Article 23 of the Occupational Safety and Health Law, and has established a
safety and health code of practice in accordance with Article 34 of the Occupational
Safety and Health Law, which stipulates safety management matters for employees to
follow.

Retirement system and implementation :

The Company complies with the relevant retirement laws and regulations, and there
are currently "Old Labor Pension System" and "New Labor Pension System" for
employees, and eligible employees can apply to the Human Resources Department.
The explanation is as follows :

(1) Pension :

(a) Old Labor Pension System
Regulations: Labor Standards Act
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Applicable candidates: Employees who arrived at work before June 30,
2005 can choose the old system or the new system by themselves.

The percentage of contribution : The Company has a retirement plan that
provides for a monthly contribution of 2% of the employee's total payroll.
The reserve is deposited into the Bank of Taiwan's Labor Retirement
Reserve Account.

Status of contribution : Accrued Labor Retirement Reserve NT$4,053,000
(b) New Labor Pension System

Regulations: Labor Pension Act

Applicable candidates: Employees who started working after July 1, 2005;
or employees who started working before July 1, 2005 and chose the new
system.

The percentage of contribution : The Company contributes 6% of the
employee's monthly wages to the employee's personal pension account.
Employees may also contribute 0% to 6% of their monthly wages to their
individual pension accounts at their own discretion, and the Company will
deduct the amount of their contributions from their wages on a monthly basis.
Status of contribution : The Company made a contribution of
NT$7,586,000 in fiscal year 2023.

(2) Retirement requirements : Employees whose years of service or age meet the
requirements for retirement under the Labor Standards Act may submit an

application.

(3) Retirement Procedures : Application shall be made in accordance with the
Company's "Separation Management Regulations". In the case of self-
application for retirement, the application shall be submitted "six months" in
advance and approved by the supervisor in charge; in the case of compulsory
retirement, the application shall be submitted by the unit in charge and

approved by the general manager and then notified for retirement.

Agreements between labor and management and various measures to protect
employees' rights and benefits :

Our company adheres to the concept of "one employer, one employee",
emphasizes rational and humanized management, establishes smooth communication
channels, and complies with all government laws and regulations. All employees'
employment, termination, retirement and various welfare measures are handled in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, so as to maintain a good
relationship between employers and employees, create productivity and share profits
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together, and establish a stable and harmonious labor-management relationship.

(2) The losses suffered from labor disputes in the most recent year and as of the date of the
annual report, and disclose the estimated amount of current and potential future losses
and measures to address them, and if it is not possible to make a reasonable estimate,

state the fact that it is not possible to make a reasonable estimate :

The Company has harmonious labor relations and considers its employees as the
most valuable assets of the Company and spares no effort to maintain harmonious labor
relations. There were no labor disputes in the latest year and up to the date of publication

of the annual report.

VI. ICT security management
1. Information Security Policy

(1) Purpose

In order to strengthen information security management and ensure the confidentiality,
integrity and availability of the information assets to which they belong, so as to
provide an information environment in which the Company's business can continue to
operate and to meet the requirements of relevant government regulations and internal
and external stakeholders, so that they can be protected from any intentional or
accidental threats, both internal and external, and to achieve information security.

(2) Applicable Candidates

All of our employees, vendors and visitors who have business dealings with us shall
comply with this policy.
(3) Information Security Goals

(A) Ensure the confidentiality of the Company's important information and
implement data access control, which shall not be exceeded until the information
is approved by authorized personnel. °

(B) Respect intellectual property rights and protect customer and company
information.

(C) Ensure that all information security incidents or suspected security weaknesses
are reported upwards in accordance with the appropriate notification mechanism
and are properly investigated and handled.

2. Information Security Risk Management Framework
(1) The information security authority of the Company is the Information Center. The

Information Center has an information supervisor and several professional information
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2

3)

“)

personnel who are responsible for formulating internal information security policies,
planning and implementing information security operations, and promoting and
implementing information security policies.

The Company's Audit Office is the supervisory unit for information security
monitoring and is responsible for supervising the implementation of internal
information security. If deficiencies are found in the audit, the inspected unit is
immediately requested to propose relevant improvement plans and specific actions,
and the effectiveness of the improvements is regularly tracked to reduce internal
information security risks, and an overview of the implementation of the Company's
information security governance is reported to the Board of Directors annually in
accordance with the audit plan.

Information security meeting

Agenda: Internal corporate information security planning and management

Time: The second Wednesday of every June and December of the year on from 1pm
to 2pm.

Host: Information Center

Participants: All team colleagues of the company

Venue: HQ meeting room

Purpose: a) To strengthen personnel information security and anti-hacking education

b) To Strengthen the information security inside and outside the organization

Organizational operation mode:
PDCA (Plan-Do-Check-Act) cycle management to ensure the achievement of

reliability targets and continuous improvement

Information Security Governance

Establish a corporate information security policy
Establish internal information security procedures

Information
: Department
Risk Improvement

Improvement of internal operation
es

Promote implem

mal solutions Information security poli
promotion and education traini
Information security meas
implementation

Information security risk evaluation mechanism
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3. Specific management solution
(1) Management Direction

(A) Regulation of system: Establish the Company's information security
management system and regulate personnel's operation behavior.

(B) Technology application: To build information security management equipment
and implement information security management measures.

(C) Personnel training: In addition to the information security promotion on the first
week of each quarter; Regularly implement company-wide cyber security
education and training every year to strengthen the awareness of colleagues on
cyber security.

(D) Information security website: Provide the latest information security-related
information on the Company's website for all employees to know and raise their
awareness of information security.

(2) ICT Security Input Resources

(A) Fortinet Network Security Next Generation Firewall System.

(B) Chunghwa Digital Proactive Spam Blocking System.

(C) Trend Micro anti-virus system to prevent virus/malware, spyware/possible
information security threats.

(D) Establishing a secure VPN channel between head office and overseas branches.

(3) The specific information security management measures, include the following :

) Management measures for - Personnel account privilege
Authority personnel accounts, management and audit
Management authority management and - Regular inventory of personnel account
system operation behavior privileges

Control measures for

Access personnel access to internal Internal/external access control

measurcs

and external systems and . . .
Control data transmission charmels Operation behavior track record
Potential internal .
External vulnerabilities, poisoning Host/computer weakness detection and
Threats channels, and protective . %I;Sﬁ; fi’rrl(l)?gg}[ligens and Malware Detection
measures
- System/network availability monitoring
. . and notification mechanism
System Disposal measures in case - Service interruption contingency

of system availability and

Availability  service interruption IR

- Information backup measures,
local/offsite backup mechanism
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- Regular disaster recovery drills

4. Performance Report for Fiscal Year 2023
Annual information security audit achievement rate for fiscal year 2023 was
100%, and no significant information security incidents occurred throughout the
year.

5. Analysis of Information Security Risk Audit Results and Response Measures for Fiscal
Year 2023 :

Audit Highlights Audit Results and Risk Evaluation Response
measures
Has a security control We have established a security control
mechanism for computer | mechanism, set up a firewall, and
network systems been updated the anti-virus software from
established to ensure the time to time. We have signed a contract Not
security of data for the firewall and anti-virus software applicable
transmitted over the in fiscal year 2022, and they are
network? routinely managed by information
personnel.
Has unauthorized access The ERP and human resources
to the system been application systems are controlled by
prevented? authority and authorized by the system Not
0
administrator in accordance with the )
) o applicable
authority application form approved by
the responsible supervisor. There was
no abnormality in fiscal 2022.
Have employees properl
PIOYEES property 1. Besides formulating and
used legal software, e- ] ) )
} i announcing relevant information
mail usage security, and .
. . management regulations, new
other information usage .
i employees must sign the "Software
security concepts? .
Usage and Information Network Not
. . Y
Security Regulations". .
applicable
2. The Information Center is
responsible for managing the
number of licensed software sets
acquired by the Company,
controlling the maximum number
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of users in the order of login, and
conducting random checks on the
installation of software on personal
computers from time to time. There
is no abnormality in the software
installation management performed
by the Information Center in fiscal
year 2022.

When system
maintenance is performed
remotely by external
personnel, is it properly
authorized and recorded,
with restricted access

rights, so that the system

When the system is maintained
remotely by external personnel, the
system manager generates a set of
account numbers and passwords using
the "Remote Control Software" and
provides the supplier with remote login.

This method is a one-time use, when the

) Not
manager can keep track of | "remote control software" is closed, the .
) ) ) o applicable
the system maintenance account and password will be invalid, in
status? line with the principle of no repeated
use; and the supplier must report to the
person in charge of the system for the
system maintenance processing status,
and there is no abnormality in fiscal
year 2022 after inspection.
VII. Important contracts
Contract Start and Ending Restricted
Nature Counterparty Main content
Dates Clause
. . American Megatrends March 15,2024 ~ March 14, |AMI BIOS SOURCE CODE
Patent Licensing None
International, LLC 2025 (Technology License)
Distributor January 13, 2024~ January
ARBOR Italia Distributor None
Agreement 12,2025
Distributor January 01, 2024~
Code Distributor None
Agreement December 31, 2024
Long-term Taiwan Cooperative February 5, 2021~ Purchase of Office, 8th floor, N
one
loans Bank February 5, 2041 No. 700, Zhongzheng Road,
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Zhonghe District

Long-term Taiwan Cooperative September 16, 2019 ~ Repayment of convertible N
one
loans Bank September 16, 2024 bonds
Purchase of Plant 7F, No. 119,
Long-term Taiwan Cooperative May 14, 2020 ~
Jiankang Road, Zhonghe None
loans Bank May 14, 2040

District

Note: The above information is the significant contracts that are still in effect as of the publication
date of the annual report and expired in the most recent year.
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VI ~ Financial Overview

1. Consolidated balance sheet and income statement for recent five fiscal years
(1) Concise Balance Sheet

Unit: NT$1,000
Fiscal Financial Information for Most Recent Five Years
Year Financial
Data as of
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
March 31,
Item 2024
Current assets 1,622,638 1,796,951 1,932,981 2,439,177 2,416,190 2,322,606
Financial assets at fair
value  through  other
.o, 5,895 6,082 7,675 11,268 12,660 12,660
comprehensive income or
loss - non-current
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or 72,062 72,062 - - - -
loss
Investments accounted for
. : 458,067 447,118 452,043 457,505 432,193 422,171
using equity method
Property, — plant  and 148,297 142,939 556,851 565,027 562,753 559,956
equipment
Right-of-use Asset 73,588 24,638 13,163 32,276 33,801 30,573
Intangible Assets 55,575 49,218 37,638 36,599 33,522 35,672
Other assets 125,041 506,960 188,793 140,927 139,576 138,705
Total Assets 2,561,163 3,045,968 3,189,144 3,682,779 3,630,695 3,522,343
dB.efo.f py 1,012,492 958,576 964,346| 1,094,594/ 1,059,451 971,487
Current  distrbution
er
SRIETEP Not yet Not yet
liabilities |distribution 1,018,760 964,844 971,369 1,103,503 orYe orye
(Note 1) distributed|  distributed
Non-current Liabilities 214,259 601,525 676,966 496,448 424,286 417,869
Before 1,226,751 1,560,101  1,641,312]  1,591,042| 1,483,737 1,389,356
distribution
Total After
iabiliti RS Not yet Not yet
Liabilities | ;ctribution 1233,010]  1,566369] 1648335 15599951 7 o
(Note 1) distributed|  distributed
Equity Attributable to
Shareholders of the Parent 1,322,110 1,475,251 1,537,781 2,085,532 2,139,313 2,125,914
Ordinary shares 642,275 696,460 744,218 954,394 954,394 956,974
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Bond Conversion
Entitlement Certificate ) 15,074 ) ) ) )
Paid in capital 482,426 576,151 610,280 805,341 808,946 811,818
dB.efO.re . 294,376 284,315 292,131 417,489 457,870 418,811
. istribution
Retained
carnings |After Not yet Not yet
distribution 288,231 278,047 285,108 408,580 o o
(Note 1) distributed|  distributed
Other Equity (61,064) (65,284) (76,029) (55,177) (58,806) (38,598)
Treasury Stock (35,903) (31,465) (32,819) (36,515) (23,091) (23,091)
Non-controlling Interests 12,302 10,616 10,051 6,205 7,645 7,073
Before 1,334,412  1,485.867| 1,547,832| 2,091,737 2,146,958 2,132,987
Total distribution
sharehold After
' . Not yet Not yet
ers’ equity | distribution 1,328,267 1,479,599  1,540,809| 2,082,828 o Y o Y
(Note 1) distributed|  distributed

Note 1: After the above distribution, the appropriation of the fiscal year 2023 earnings is subject to the

approval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting of fiscal year 2024.
Note 2: The above consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, and Interpretations and Interpretations approved by the FSC.

The financial information for the first quarter of fiscal year 2024 was reviewed by the accountants.
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(2) Concise Statement of Comprehensive Income

Unit: NT$1,000

Financial Information for Recent Five Years
Fiscal
Financial Data
Year
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 as of March
Item
31,2024
Operating Revenue 1,595,829 1,510,316 1,509,412 1,801,055 1,671,427 263,453
Gross profit 494,712 424,376 412,051 541,629 545,814 80,957
Operating income
(loss) 66,046 36,044 31,640 129,944 151,770 (5,229)
Non-operating
income and| (26,998) (17,161) (6,292) 47,407 8,660 31,218
expenses
Net income before
tax 39,048 18,883 25,348 177,351 160,430 25,989
Net income 41,475 8,436 21,492 128,542 124,338 17,230
Other
comprehensive (19,669) (4,066) (10,940) 22,731 (10,537) 20,208
income, net of tax
Total
comprehensive 21,806 4,370 10,552 151,273 113,801 37,438
income
Net Income
attributable to
stockholders of the 44,433 10,143 22,057 132,388 122,898 17,802
parent
Net Income
attributable to non- (2,958) (1,707) (565) (3,846) 1,440 (572)
controlling interests
Total
comprehensive
income attributable 25,185 6,056 11,117 155,119 112,361 38,010
to stockholders of]
the parent
Total
comprehensive
income attributable (3,379) (1,686) (565) (3,846) 1,440 (572)
to non-controlling
interests
Earnings per share
(NTS) 0.70 0.15 0.30 1.51 1.30 0.19

Note 1: The above consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Explanations approved by the FSC.

The financial information for the first quarter of 2024 was audited by the accountants.
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(3) Parent Company only balance sheet and income statement information—

Individual Financial Statements

1. Parent Company only balance sheet for most recent five fiscal years

Unit: NT$1,000

Fiscal Financial Information for Most Recent Five Years
year 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Item (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1)
Current assets 1,183,280 1,214,966 1,397,817 1,826,289 1,845,669
Financial assets at fair
value - through other 5,895 6,082 7,675 11,268 12,660
comprehensive income or
loss - non-current
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or 72,062 72,062 - - -
loss
Non-current financial
assets at cost ) ) ) ) )
Investments accounted for 870,805 969,542|  977,667| 993,715 988,816
using equity method
Property, plant  and
: 140,378 136,706 541,936 550,653 549,912
equipment
Right-of-use Asset 47,379 11,081 4,339 1,358 3,734
Investment, property Net 51,777 413,534 69,176 74,341 73,538
Intangible Assets 22,960 20,575 12,047 10,226 7,084
Other assets 58,692 78,494 100,924 50,029 47,821
Total Assets 2,453,228 2,923,042 3,111,581 3,517,879 3,529,234
Before 924,186 847,522 897,449 958,511 981,509
Distribution
Current Liabilities A'fter. ' Not et
Distribution 930,454 853,790 904,472 967,420 o
(Note 2) distributed
Long-term liabilities 164,099 590,261 670,948 471,806 404,336
Other liabilities 42,833 10,008 5,403 2,030 4,076
Before 1) 131 113 1,447,791| 1,573,800 1,432,347| 1,389,921
Distribution
Total liabilities A'fter. ' Not yet
Distribution | 1,137,386 1,454,059 1,580,823 1,441,256 o
(Note 2) distributed
Ordinary shares 642,275 696,460 744,218 954,394 954,394
Bond Conversion
Entitlement Certificate ) 15,074 ) ) )
Capital surplus 482,426 576,151 610,280 805,341 808,946
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Before 294,376 284,315 292,131 417,489 457,870
Distribution

Retained earnings A'fter. ' Not et
Distribution 288,108 278,047 285,108 408,580 o
(Note 2) distributed|

Other Equity (61,064) (65284)  (76,029)|  (55,177)  (58,806)

Treasury Stock (35,903) (31,465)  (32,819)|  (36,515)  (23,091)
Before 1) 35110 1,475251|  1,537,781| 2,085,532 2,139,313
Distribution

Total shareholders' equity A'fter. ' Not et
Distribution | 1,315,842 1,468,983 1,530,758 2,076,623 o
(Note 2) distributed|

Note 1: The above individual financial statements have been audited by a CPA.
Note 2: The above post-appropriation figures are based on the appropriations resolved at the shareholders' meeting held in the

following year.

2 ~ Parent Company only Income statement for the recent five fiscal years.
Unit: NT$1,000

Fiscal Financial Information for Most Recent Five Years
Year 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Item (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1)

Operating Revenue 1,041,816  1,012,774| 1,059,735|  1,257,706| 1,146,979
Gross profit 241,569 231,396 212,366 288,996 320,383
Operating income (loss) 8,034 17,670 9,362 80,790 97,545
Non-operating income and expenses 32,063 (7,299) 11,105 90,778 53,180
Net income before tax 40,097 10,371 20,467 171,568 150,725
Net income 44,433 10,143 22,057 132,388 122,898
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (19,248) (4,087)]  (10,940) 22,731 (10,537)
Total comprehensive income 25,185 6,056 11,117 155,119 112,361
Earnings per share (NTS$) 0.70 0.15 0.30 1.51 1.30

Note 1: The above Parent Company only financial statements have been audited by CPA.

(4) Name and audit opinion of the accountant for the most recent five fiscal years

(1) Names of CPAs and their audit opinions for the last five fiscal years :

Year Name of CPA Auditor’ s Opinion Accounting Firm
Hsiu-Ling, Lee & Zhao- ) .. . .
2019 , Unqualified opinion PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan
Ming, Wang.
2020 Zhao-Ming, Wang & Unqualified opinion PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan
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Hsiu-Ling, Lee

Hsiu-Ling, Lee & Zhao-

2021 , Unqualified opinion PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan
Ming, Wang.
Hsiu-Ling, Lee & Sunny . .. . .
2022 Unqualified opinion PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan
Huang
Ming-Chuan, Hsu & . o . .
2023 Ungqualified opinion PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan

Sunny Huang

2. Financial analysis for recent five fiscal years

(1) Consolidated Financial Analysis - International Financial Reporting Standards

1. Financial Analysis
Fiscal Year Financial information for most recent 5 years(Note 1) Year to Date
as of
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Item(Note 9) 3/31/2024
Debt ratio 47.90 51.22 51.47 43.20 40.87 39.44
Capital |Long-term fund to
structure % |property, plant, and 1,044.30 1,460.34 399.53 458.06 456.89 454.57
equipment ratio
Ability to |Current ratio 160.26 187.46 200.44 222.84 228.06 239.08
payoff debt |Quick ratio 105.47 121.24 125.67 148.41 174.65 180.87
(%)
Interest protection 334.64 193.79 249.26 1088.63 772.16 566.42
A/R turnover (times) 3.54 3.12 2.64 2.92 2.81 1.98
A/R turnover days 103 117 129.76 125.21 129.76 183.90
Inventory turnover
1.85 1.87 1.69 1.74 1.64 1.23
(times)
Account payable
Ability to 6.58 6.99 7.13 7.29 4.98 4.87
turnover (times)
operate
Days sales outstanding 197 195 216 210 223 297
Fixed assets turnover
10.63 10.37 431 3.21 2.96 1.88
(times)
Total assets turnover
0.64 0.54 0.48 0.52 0.46 0.29
(times
Earning |Return on assets (%) 2.19 0.87 1.13 4.16 3.92 2.43
ability  |Return on equity (%) 3.13 0.60 1.42 7.06 5.87 3.22
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PBT to pay-in capital 6.08 2.70 3.41 18.58 16.81 2.72
Net income ratio (96) 2.06 0.56 1.42 7.14 7.44 6.54
EPS (NTD) 0.70 0.16 0.30 1.51 1.30 0.19
Cash flow ratio 11.15 (2.36) (22.62) 21.67 30.73 19.60
Cash flow adequacy
Cash (39.71) 1.72 (37.24) 24.85 109.73 136.58
ratio
flow(%)
Cash reinvestment
6.57 (1.34) (9.90) 8.56 9.41 7.20
ratio
Operating leverage 6.54 10.17 11.22 3.73 3.20 (12.88)
Leverage
Financial leverage 1.34 2.26 2.16 1.16 1.19 0.48

Note 1: The calculation formula of the analyzed items is listed on page 154.
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2. Analysis of the reasons for the 20% increase or decrease in financial ratios for
the last two fiscal years

Hem Fiscal Year| )5 2022 Change(%) | Note: Change>20%
. . Debt to asset ratio 40.87 43.20 (5.39) —
Financial -
Structure  |ong term capital to
(%) property, plant and 456.89 458.06 (0.26) -
equipment ratio
Current ratio(%) 228.06 222.84 2.34 —
Solvency . —
(%) Quick ratio(%) 174.65 148.41 17.68 —
Interest coverage ratio 772.16 1088.63 (29.07) Note 1
Rf:celvable turnover rate 581 292 3.77) o
(times)
Average cash recovery 12976 12501 363 o
day
Inyentory turnover rate 1.64 1.74 (5.75) o
(times)
Operating |Payable turnover rate 498 799 (31.69) Note 2
capacity  |(times) ) ) )
Average Days of Sales 222.56 209.77 6.10 —
Property, plant and
equipment turnover rate 2.96 3.21 (7.79) -
(times)
Tgtal asset turnover rate 046 052 (11.54) .
(times)
Return on assets (%) 3.92 4.16 (5.77) —
Return on equity (% ) 5.87 7.06 (16.86) —
Pre-tax net profit to paid- —
Profitability |in capital ratio (%)(Note 16.81 18.58 (9.53)
7)
Net profit rate % ) 7.44 7.14 4.20 —
Earnings per share (NT$) 1.30 1.51 (13.91) —
Cash flow ratio (%) 30.73 21.67 41.81 Note3
Cash flow adequacy ratio
Cash flow  |(%) 109.73 24.85 341.57
(E)ash reinvestment ratio 9.41 8.56 9.93 _
(%)
Operating leverage 3.20 3.73 (14.21) -
Leverage ; :
Financial leverage 1.19 1.16 2.59 —
Analysis:

Note 1: Interest coverage ratio(times) for the current period decreased by 29.07% from the
previous year, mainly due to the increase in interest rate announced by the Central
Bank of Taiwan and decrease in revenue for FY2023.

Note 2: The decrease in the turnover rate of payables (times) was mainly due to the decrease
in purchases in the current period and the impact of different payment terms of
suppliers.

Note 3: The significant increase in cash flow ratio was mainly due to the significant increase
in net cash inflow from operating activities in the last five years compared with that
of previous year, and inventory management including continuous inventory
destocking and control of purchases in the current period was effective.
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Parent Company only- Financial Analysis - International Financial Reporting Standards

1. Financial analysis
. Ficeal Most recent 5-Year Financial v b .
tem 1sca : ear to Date as o
Year Information (Notel) 3/31/2024
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Debt ratio 46.11|  49.53| 50.58| 40.72| 39.38
Capital Long-term  fund to
structure % |property, plant, and| 1,089.23| 1,518.24| 408.56| 464.79| 463.28
equipment ratio
Ability to |Current ratio 128.03| 143.36| 155.75| 190.53| 188.04
PaY((’gf/f )debt Quick ratio 79.66|  94.08] 90.83| 120.47]129.48
° Interest protection 353.91] 153.05| 223.73|1087.95|759.20
A/R turnover (times) 3.83 3.62| 3.01 347, 3.37
A/R turnover days 95 101 121.26] 105.19/108.31
Inventory —tumover) 541 525 252 271 211
(times)
Account ayable
Ability to tumoser (time 5 Y 756 757 833 922 721
OPETAe |y sales outstanding 163 164 145 135|173
Fixed assets tumover| ;5,0 5411 3ol 230 2.08 _
(times) Not Applicable
Total ‘assets tumover| ¢ 441 038 035 038 033
(times
Return on assets (29) 2.39 0.96| 1.17 441 4.01
Return on equity (96) 3.39 0.73| 1.46 7.31| 5.82
Earning . .
ability PBT to pay-in capital 6.24 146 2.75| 17.98| 15.79
Net income ratio (%) 4.26 1.00{ 2.08] 10.53| 10.71
EPS (NTD) 0.70 0.16/ 0.30 .51 1.30
Cash flow ratio 13.54 7.62((23.18)| 13.90| 23.16
Cash flow adequacy
Cash flow(%)|ratio (25.75)]  26.47| (6.69)] 16.73| 96.40
Cash reinvestment| 5 (o 578 (9.62) 447 5.3
ratio
Operating leverage 26.85 11.34| 20.07 3.20f 3.01
Leverage - -
Financial leverage (1.04)] (9.40)| (1.30) 1.27) 1.31

Notel : The calculation formula of the analyzed items is listed on page 154.
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2. Analysis of the reasons for the 20% increase or decrease in financial ratios for
the last two fiscal years
Item o Note:
(Note 9) Year 2023 2022 Change(%) change>20%
. . Debt to asset ratio 39.38 40.72 (3.29) —
Financial -
structure  |Long term capital to
(%) property, plant and 463.28 464.79 (0.32) —
equipment ratio
Current ratio 188.04 190.53 (1.31) —
Solvency - -
(%) Quick ratio 129.48 120.47 7.48 -
Interest coverage ratio 759.20 1,087.95 (30.22) Notel
Receivable turnover
rate (times) 3.37 3.47 (2.88)
Average cash recovery 108.31 105.19 297 o
day
Inventory turnover rate
(times) 2.11 2.71 (22.14) Note 2
Operating Ej‘;aebsl)e turnover rate 721 922  (21.80) Note 3
capacity  IA - erage Days of Sales 172.99 134.69] 2844 Note d
Property, plant and
equipment turnover 2.08 2.30 (9.57) —
rate (times)
Property, plant and
equipment turnover 0.33 0.38 (13.16) —
rate (times)
Return on assets (%) 4.01 4.41 (9.07) —
Return on equity (%) 5.82 7.31 (20.38)] Note 5
Pre-tax net profit to
Profitability g;l;l-ln capital ratio 15.79 17.98 (12.18) —
0
Net profit rate (%) 10.71 10.53 1.71 —
Earnings per share _
(NTS) 1.30 1.51 (13.91)
Cash flow ratio (%) 23.16 13.90 66.62
Cash flow adequacy
Cash flow [ratio (%) 96.40 16.73 476.21 Note 6
Cash reinvestment
ratio (%) 5.83 4.77 22.22
Operating leverage 3.01 3.20 (5.94) —
L
cverage Financial leverage 1.31 1.27 3.15 —
Analysis:

Note 1: Interest coverage ratio(times) for the current period decreased by 29.07% from the
previous year, mainly due to the increase in interest rate announced by the Central
Bank of Taiwan and decrease in revenue for FY2023.

Note 2: The decrease in inventory turnover rate(times) is mainly because of continuous strict
inventory management including destocking and less purchases.

Note 3: The decrease in the turnover rate of payables (times) was mainly due to the decrease
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in purchases in the current period and the impact of different payment terms of
suppliers.
Note 4: Average days of sales are long, mainly due to the transaction terms for related parties.
Note 5: Return on equity decreased, mainly because FY2023 was not as profitable as FY2022.
Note 6: The significant increase in cash flow ratio was mainly due to the significant increase
in net cash inflow from operating activities in the last five years compared with the
previous year, and the continued destocking and control of purchases in the current

period were effective.
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Note: The calculation formula for the analyzed items is as follows :
Financial Ratio :

A.Capital structure
a. Debt Ratio = Total Liabilities / Total Asset
b. ) Long-term capital as a proportion of PP&E = (Total equities + Non-current liabilities)/ Net value
of PP&E.

B. Liquidity analysis
a. Current Ratio = Current Assets / Current Liabilities.
b. Quick Ratio = (Current Assets - Inventories - Prepaid Expenses) / Current Liabilities
c. Interest protection= Earnings before Interest and Taxes / Interest Expenses.

C. Operation performance
Receivables turnover rate (including bills receivable resulting from accounts receivable and business
operations) = Net sales/Average accounts receivable in various periods (including bills receivable
resulting from accounts receivable and business operations).
b. Days Sales Outstanding = 365 / Average Collection Turnover.
c. Inventory Turnover Rate = Cost of Sales / Average Inventory
d. Payables turnover rate (including bills payable resulting from accounts payable and business
operations) = Cost of sales/Average accounts payable in various periods (including bills payable
resulting from accounts payable and business operations)
e. Average Inventory Turnover Days = 365 / Average Inventory Turnover.
f. Property, Plant, and Equipment Turnover Rate = Net Sales / Average Net Property, Plant, and
Equipment.
g. Total Asset Turnover = Net Sales / Average Total Assets.

D. Profitability
a. Return on Total Assets = (Net Income + Interest Expenses*(1 - Effective Tax Rate))/Average Total
Assets
b. Return on Equity = Net Income / Average Sharcholders’ Equity
c. Ratio of net profit before tax to paid-in capital = Net income before tax/paid-in capital
d. Net Margin = Net Income / Net Sales
e. Earnings Per Share = (Net Income Attributable to Shareholders of the Parent Company - Preferred
Stock Dividend) / Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding.

E. Cash flow
a. Cash Flow Ratio = Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities / Current Liabilities.
b. Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio = Five-year Sum of Cash from Operations / Five-year Sum of Capital
Expenditures, Inventory Additions, and Cash Dividend
c. Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio = Five-year Sum of Cash from Operations / Five-year Sum of Capital

Expenditures, Inventory Additions, and Cash Dividend

F. Leverage:
a. Operating leverage = (Net operating revenue - Variable operating cost and expense) / Operating
income
b. Financial Leverage = Operating profit/(Operating profit - Interest expenditures).
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3. Audit Report of the Audit Committee in most recent fiscal year
Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Audit Committee has reviewed and agreed to the financial statements of 2023,
being audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) Taiwan, resolved by the Board
Meeting, and issued the review report.

The abovementioned financial statements, business reports, and earnings distribution
statements for 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, and it is found that
there is no discrepancy. The report is prepared in accordance with Article 14-4 of the
Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Act for your verification.

To Arbor Technology Corporation 2024 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
Convener of the Audit Committee: Ming-De, Wang March 15, 2024
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Financial statements for the most recent fiscal year

Arbor Technology Corporation
Declaration

The entities of the Company that are required to be included in the combined financial
statements for the year of 2023 (from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023) under the
Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business
Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises are the same as
those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards No. 10 by the Financial Supervisory
Commission, “Consolidated Financial Statements”. In addition, the information required
to be disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of associates is included in the
consolidated financial statements. Consequently, we do not prepare a separate set of
consolidated financial statements of associates.

Hereby certify

Name of company: Arbor Technology Corporation
Legal Representative: Eric Lee
Date: 2024/3/15
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Independent Auditors’ Report
(2024)Audited NO 23005399

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
ARBOR Technology Corporation

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ARBOR Technology
Corporation and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as
of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Based on our opinions, audit results, and other CPA reports (see Others), the accompanying
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the accompanying
consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years ended then
ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International
Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC)
endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Audititng and
Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on
Auditing of the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with The
Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountants of the Republic of China, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter for the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2023 is stated as follows:
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Adequacy of export revenue recognition

Description
For information on accounting policy on sales revenue, please refer to Note 4(32) and Note

6(25) of consolidated financial statements.

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of industrial computers and electronic
medical devices as well as the trade of other electronic components. Sales revenue is mainly
from export which is across the world. Terms of sales may be different with different
customers; therefore, points in time when risks and rewards of goods are transferred and when
the sales revenue is recognized. Since the confirmation of point in time when export revenue
should be recognized usually involves in manual confirmation of sales and related documents,
which is prone to the inadequacy of point in time to recognize revenue near the end of reporting
period. Therefore, we consider the point in time to recognize revenue one of the most important
audit matters for the current year.

Corresponding audit procedures:

In response to the abovementioned key audit matter, the following procedures were performed:

1. Understood and tested the internal control adopted to address the point in time to recognize
export revenue, including obtaining forms related to the internal control of export revenue
and sampling in order to confirm the validity of control by checking the data consistency.

2. Performed cutoff tests against the export sales within a certain period before and after the
balance sheet date, checked the information of contracts or original order as well as the
relevant documents of revenue recognition, and determined the appropriate point in time to
recognize based on the transaction documents in order to ensure that revenue was recorded in
the appropriate period.

Valuation of allowance to reduce inventory to market

Description

For information on accounting policy on inventories, please refer to Note 4(14) of consolidated
financial statements. For information on significant accounting estimates and assumptions,
please refer to Note 5(2) of consolidated financial statements. For information on allowance to
reduce inventory to market, please refer to Note 6(5) of consolidated financial statements.

The products of the Group are industrial computers. Due to highly competitive market, there
are higher risks of inventory valuation loss and obsolescence. The Group measures inventories
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The net realizable value of inventories with age
over certain period and inventories individually identified as obsolete is determined based on
the past experience of the degree of disposal of excess inventories.
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Since the net realizable value used by the Group and some subsidiaries in obsolete inventory
valuation often involves subjective judgment and uncertainty; considering inventories and the
allowance to reduce inventory to market are both material to the parent company only financial
statements, we considered the valuation of inventory one of the most important audit matters
for the current year.

Corresponding audit procedures:

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key audit matter:

1. Assessed the reasonableness and consistency of policies and procedures on recognizing
allowance to reduce inventory to market based on our understanding of the characteristics
of the Group’s industry.

2. Understood the Group’s warehousing control procedures, reviewed the annual physical
inventory count plan and participated in the annual inventory count in order to assess the
effectiveness of the classification of inventory and internal control over obsolete
inventory.

3. Verified the accuracy of inventory aging report used to identify individual obsolete
inventory, including ensuring that changes in inventories fell into appropriate age intervals,
and obtain supporting documents that management used to evaluate obsolete products in
order to ensure that the Group has reasonably recognized the allowance to reduce
inventory to market.

4. Checked the adequacy of basis of estimation of net realizable value of each inventory,
including testing the accuracy of selling and purchasing prices of products and reassessing
to determine the reasonableness of allowance to reduce inventory to market.

Impairment assessment of receivables

Description

For information on accounting policy on accounts and notes receivable, please refer to Note
4(10) of the consolidated financial statements. For information on significant accounting
estimates and assumptions, please refer to Note 5(2) of the consolidated financial statements.
For information on details of loss allowance for accounts and notes receivable, please refer to
Note 6(4) of the consolidated financial statements.

The Group manages the collection procedures and bears the related credit risk. Management
assesses periodically the credit quality and accounts collection of customers in order to adjust
the credit policy adequately. In addition, the impairment loss on accounts receivable is
evaluated in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” by adopting the simplified
approach to evaluate expected credit loss. Management establishes the expected rate of loss
based on multiple factors that may affect the ability of an individual customer to pay, such as
overdue period, financial position and economic position both on the balance sheet date and in
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the past as well as the forward-looking information.

As the ratio of loss allowance recognition is subject to management’s judgment, and the
amount of accounts receivable are material, we consider the loss allowance for accounts
receivable a key audit matter.

Corresponding audit procedures:

In response to the abovementioned key audit matter, the following procedures were performed:

1. To understand the quality of the Group’s credit and assess the reasonableness of policies and
procedures to recognized the impairment loss on its accounts and notes receivable.

2. Assessed the reasonableness of the ratio of loss allowance recognition by referring to the
historical loss rate and considering the forward-looking information, obtained and reviewed
the materials provided by management.

3. Tested the change in age of accounts receivable, and examined the accuracy of classification
of age by reviewing the relevant documents of overdue dates of accounts receivable.

4. Understood the reasons of overdue accounts of which amount were individually assessed
material, reviewed their subsequent collection, and discussed the loss allowance recognized
with management.

Other Matters - Parent Company Only Financial Statements

We have audited the parent company only financial statements of ARBOR Technology
Corporation as of and for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 on which we have
issued an unqualified opinion with other matter section and an unqualified opinion,
respectively.

Other matter - Reference to the audits of other accountants

We did not audit the 2023 financial statements of certain investments accounted for under the
equity method of the company. These investments were audited by other accountants. Therefore,
our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these
associates, is based solely on the report of other accountants. As of December 31, 2023, the
carrying amount of Investments accounted for using equity method was NT $432,193 thousand,
representing 12.25% of that of Total assets. From January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023, the
Company recognized NT $(25,287) thousand in profit or loss of total, representing (22.22%) of
that of total.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers and the IFRS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into
effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
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financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including members of the Audit Committee) are responsible

for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

161



auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Independent Accountants
Hsu, Ming-Chuan
Huang, Chin-Lien

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan

March 15, 2024
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ARBOR Technology Corporation and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Unit: NT $thousands

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Assets Note Amount % Amount %
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents VI (I) 3 650,519 18 $ 487,302 13
1110 Current financial assets at fair value VI (11), VII

through profit or loss 105,300 3 104,846 3
1136 Current financial assets at VI (1) (1),

amortized cost VIl 292,301 8 245,025 7
1150 Notes receivable, net VI(IV) 13,511 1 2,718 -
1160 Notes receivable - related parties  VI(IV),VII 13,427 - 13,557 -
1170 Accounts receivable, net VI (1V) 364,504 10 414,674 11
1180 Accounts receivable due from VI(IV), VII

related parties, net 201,096 6 110,439 3
1210 Other receivables due from related VIl

parties 144,154 4 162,481 4
130X  Inventories VI (V) 515,105 14 693,144 19
1470 Other current assets VI (VID), VI 116,273 3 204,991 6
11XX Total current assets 2,416,190 67 2,439,177 66

Non-current assets

1517 Non-current financial assets at fair VI (VII)

value through other comprehensive

income 12,660 - 11,268 -
1550 Investments accounted for using VI(VII)

equity method 432,193 12 457,505 13
1600 Property, plant and equipment VI(IX),

VILVII 562,753 15 565,027 15
1755 Right-of-use asset VI(X) 33,801 1 32,276 1
1760 Investment property, net VI(XIN,VIHI 73,538 2 74,341 2
1780 Intangible assets VI(XIT) 33,522 1 36,599 1
1840 Deferred tax assets VI(XXXII) 23,894 1 20,282 1
1900 Other non-current assets VI(XIV)
(XX) ,VII 42,144 1 46,304 1

15XX Total non-current assets 1,214,505 33 1,243,602 34
IXXX  Total Assets $ 3,630,695 100 $ 3,682,779 100

(Continued)
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ARBOR Technology Corporation and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2023 and 2022

December 31, 2023

Unit: NT $thousands

December 31, 2022

Liabilities and equity Note Amount % Amount %
Current liabilities
2100 Short-term borrowings VI(XV),VIII $ 646,500 18 559,082 15
2110 Short-term notes and bills payable VI(XVI),VII 72,000 2 72,000 2
2120 Current financial liabilities at fair VI(IN)
value through profit or loss - - 1,709 -
2130 Liabilities-current VI(XXV),VII 14,259 - 17,323 1
2150 Notes payable - - 231 -
2170 Accounts payable 88,500 2 197,181 5
2180 Accounts payable to related parties VI 42,463 1 32,040 1
2200 Other payables VI(XVI) 77,052 2 95,989 3
2220 Other payables to related parties Vil 3,325 - 5,763 -
2230 Income tax liabilities for the current
period 26,954 1 8,847 -
2280 Liabilities-current VI(X) 17,401 1 9,740 -
2320 Long-term liabilities, current portion \/|(XVIX),VIII 67,601 2 93,672 3
2399 Other current liabilities, others 3,396 - 1,017 -
21XX Total current liabilities 1,059,451 29 1,094,594 30
Non-current liabilities
2540 Long-term borrowings VI(XVIX), VI 404,336 11 471,806 13
2570 Deferred tax liabilities VIXXXII) 68 - 1,177 -
2580 Liabilities-Non-current VI(X) 17,135 1 22,805 -
2600 Other non-current liabilities VI(XX) 2,747 - 660 -
25XX Total non-current liabilities 424,286 12 496,448 13
2XXX Total Liabilities 1,483,737 41 1,591,042 43
Equity
Equity attributable to owners of
parent
Share capital VI(XXIT)
3110 Ordinary share 954,394 26 954,394 26
Capital surplus VIXVH(XXIIT)
3200 Capital surplus 808,946 22 805,341 22
Retained earnings VI(XXIV)
3310 Legal reserve 97,476 84,049
3320 Special reserve 55,177 76,030
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings 305,217 257,410
Other equity interest
3400 Other equity interest 58,806) ( 2) ( 55,177) ( 1)
3500  Treasury shares VI(XXIT) 23,091) ( 1) ( 36,515) ( 1)
31XX Total Equity Attributable to
Owners of Parent 2,139,313 59 2,085,532 57
36XX Non-controlling equity V(1) 7,645 - 6,205 -
3XXX Total Equity 2,146,958 59 2,091,737 57
Significant contingent liabilitiesand  |x
unrecognized contract commitments x|
3X2X Total Liabilities and Equity $ 3,630,695 100 $ 3,682,779 100

Chairman: Lee, Min

Manager: Lien, Chi-Ruei
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Chief Accountant: Kuo, Feng-Ling



ARBOR Technology Corporation and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022

Unit: NT $thousands
(Except for earnings per share in NT $)

2023 2022
Item Note Amount % Amount %
4000 Operating revenue VI(XXV),VII $ 1,671,427 100 $ 1,801,055 100
5000 Operating costs VI(V)(XT (XX
X)XXXD),VIE - ( 1,125613) ( 67) ( 1,259,426) ( 70)
5900 Gross profit from operations 545,814 33 541,629 30
5910 Unrealized profit from sales ( 1,609) - ( 2,902) -
5920 Realized profit on from sales VI(VII) 2,902 - 270 -
5950 Gross profit from operations 547,107 33 538,997 30
Operating expenses VICKHT) (XXX)(
XXXI)
6100 Selling expenses ( 216,263) ( 13) ( 197,244) ( 11)
6200 Administrative expenses ( 86,420) ( 5) ( 90,589) ( 5)
6300 Research and development
expenses ( 86,972) ( 5) ( 89,812) ( 5)
6450 Expected credit Impairment loss ~ VI(XXX),XI(11) ( 5,682) ( 1 ( 31,408) ( 2)
6000 Total operating expenses ( 395,337) ( 24) ( 409,053) ( 23)
6900 Operating gain 151,770 9 129,944 7
Non-operating income and expenses
7100 Interest income VI(XXVI) 24,627 1 2,531 -
7010 Other income VI(XXVI,VII 14,369 1 9,336 1
7020 Other gains and losses VI(XXVII) 18,819 1 43,292 2
7050  Finance costs VI(XXIX) ( 23,868) ( 1) ( 17,939) ( 1)
7060 Share of profits of associates and ~ VI(VIII)
joint ventures accounted for using
equity method, net ( 25,287) ( 1) 10,187 1
7000 Total non-operating income and
expenses 8,660 1 47,407 3
7900 Net income before tax 160,430 10 177,351 10
7950 Income tax expense VI(XXXIT) ( 36,092) ( 2) ( 48,809) ( 3)
8200 Net income for the year $ 124,338 8 $ 128,542 7

(Continued)
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ARBOR Technology Corporation and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022

Unit: NT $thousands
(Except for earnings per share in NT $)

2023 2022
Item Note Amount % Amount %

Other comprehensive income

(Net)

Item that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss
8311 Remeasurement of defined VI(XX)

benefit obligation ($ 3,816) - $ 1,807 -

8316 Unrealized gain (loss) on VI(VII)

investments in equity
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income 1,392
8320 Share of other comprehensive
gain of associates that will not
be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss - - 72 -
Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
8361 Exchange differences on
translation of foreign financial
statements ( 8,113) ( 1) 18,022 1
8360 Total amount of Item that may
be reclassified subsequently to

2,830 -

profit or loss ( 8,113) ( 1) 18,022 1
8300 Other comprehensive income
(loss) of the period ($ 10,537) ( 1) $ 22,731 1
8500 Total comprehensive income for
the period $ 113,801 7 % 151,273 8
Net income attributable to
8610 Owners of the parent $ 122,898 8 $ 132,388 7
8620 Non-controlling interest 1,440 - ( 3,846) -
$ 124,338 8 $ 128,542 7

Comprehensive income
attributable to:

8710 Owners of the parent $ 112,361 7 % 155,119 8
8720 Non-controlling interest 1,440 - ( 3,846) -
$ 113,801 7 % 151,273 8

Earnings per share VI(XXXII)
9750 Basic earnings per share $ 130 $ 151
9850 Diluted earnings per share $ 130 $ 1.50

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. Please refer to them as a whole.

Chairman: Lee, Min Manager: Lien, Chi-Ruei Chief Accountant: Kuo, Feng-Ling
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ARBOR TECHNOLOGY Co., Ltd

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Income before income tax
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Unrealized sales profits
Realized gains from sales

Net loss (profit) from financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through loss (profit)

Expected credit impairment loss

Depreciation expense- Property, plant and

equipment and Investment property

Depreciation expense- Right-of-use asset

Amortization expense

Loss (gain) on disposal of investment
Interest income

Dividend income

Interest expense

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Share-based payment compensation

Share of loss (profit) of associates accounted

for using equity method
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets

Financial instruments at fair value through

profit or loss
Notes receivable
Notes receivable - related parties
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable - related parties
Other receivables-related parties
Inventories
Other current assets
Other noncurrent assets
Changes in operating liabilities
Current contract liabilities
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - related parties
Other payables
Other payables - related parties
Other current liabilities
Other noncurrent liabilities
Cash inflow generated from operations

Interest received

Dividends received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Income tax refunded

Net cash flows from operating activities

Unit; NT $thousands

Note 2023 2022
160,430  $ 177,351
VI(VII) 1,609 2,902
VI(VII) ( 2,902) ( 270)
VI (XX V1)
17,582) ( 11,556)
VI(XXX) 5,682 31,408
VI(IX)(X)(XXX)
16,844 18,602
VI(X)(XXX) 18,146 16,441
VIXHIT)(XXX) 5,898 9,610
VI(XXVIIN) 81 ( 177)
VI(XXVI) ( 24,627) ( 2,531)
VI(XXVII) ( 937) ( 700)
VI(XXIX) 23,868 17,939
VI(XXVIIT)
76 3,455
V(XX (XXXI) 3,605 2,298
VI(VII)
25287 10,187)
7,931 17,562
427 10,052
130 ( 5,677)
45,786 16,807
( 90,212) ( 66,502 )
18,238 ( 1,421)
176,722 ( 33,406 )
89,231 ( 13,375)
( 37) 2,474
( 3,424) 3,458
( 231) ( 2,124)
( 109,117) 63,246
16,795 3,763
( 18,844) 23,828
( 2,438) 5,705
2399 ( 1,066)
( 1,759) ( 1,778)
347,075 276,131
24,627 2,531
937 700
( 23,819) ( 16,263 )
( 23,231) ( 11,686 )
11 33
325,600 251,446

(Continued)
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ARBOR TECHNOLOGY Co., Ltd

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss Fair value Financial Assets
Disposal Fair value Financial Assets
Acquisition of Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Proceeds from sale of Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Purchase of financial assets at amortized cost
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment price

Acquisition of intangible assets

Increase in equipment prepayment

Increase in refundable deposits

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Increase in short-term borrowings
Decrease in short-term notes and bills payable
Repayments of long-term debt
Repayment of lease principal
Increase in guarantee deposits received
Cash dividends paid
Increase capital in cash
Payments to acquire treasury shares
Exercise of employee share options
Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing
activities
Effect of foreign exchange translations
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Unit: NT $thousands

Note 2023 2022

($ 27,650) ($ 22,916)
35,057 8,665

X1I(Iy
- ( 4,500 )

X1y
- 3,737
( 49,882) ( 197,016 )
VI(IX) ( 3,801) ( 4,011)
862 -
VI(XIIT) ( 2,600) ( 1,919)
( 6,593) ( 9,554 )
( 806) ( 3,060 )
( 55,413) ( 230,574)
VI(XXXV) 87,418 58,976
VI(XXXV) - | 42,000)
VI(XXXV) ( 93,541) ( 120,178)
VI(XXXV) ( 17,579) ( 17,657)
VI(XXXV) 30 226
VIXXIV) ( 75,609) ( 8,909)
VI(XXII) - 296,000
VI(XXII) - 3,696 )
VI(XXIT) 13,424 -
( 85,857 ) 162,762
( 21,113) ( 40,479)
163,217 143,155
487,302 344,147
$ 650,519 $ 487,302

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. Please refer to them as a whole.

Chairman: Lee, Min

Manager: Lien, Chi-Ruei
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ARBOR Technology Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
2023 and 2022

Unit: NT $thousands
(Unless Stated Otherwise)

Company History

The original name of ARBOR Technology Corporation (hereinafter referred to as
“the Company”) was ARBOR Technology Company, which was established in
September 1993 and went through the reincorporation on January 27, 1995. The
Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in the R&D, assembly, combination,
processing, manufacturing, and trading of industrial motherboards, computer
products, peripheral devices, and electronic parts. The Company's shares were
approved for listing on the Main board of Taipei Exchange (TPEx) on May 7, 2013.

Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of
Directors on March 15, 2024.

Application of new and revised standards and interpretations

(I) The effect of adopting new and revised IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect
by the Financial Supervisory Commission (hereafter the FSC)

The following table summarizes the new, revised or amended standards and
interpretations of IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC as of the

year 2023:
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations Effective Date Issued by IASB
“Disclosure of Accounting Policies” (Amendments to IAS 1) January 1, 2023
“Definition of Accounting Estimates” (Amendments to IAS 8) January 1, 2023
“Deferred income tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising January 1, 2023
from a Single Transaction” (Amendments to IAS 12)
“International Tax Reform-Pillar Two Rules Template” May 23, 2023

(Amendments to IAS 12)

The Group assessed that there is no significant effect of the standards and
interpretations above on the Group’s financial position and financial
performance.

(I1) The effect of not adopting new and revised IFRSs endorsed by the FSC

The following table summarizes the new, revised or amended standards and
interpretations of IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC as of the

year 2024:
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations Effective Date Issued by IASB
“Leases in Sale and Leaseback Liabilities”(Amendments to January 1, 2024
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New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations Effective Date Issued by IASB

IFRS 16)

“Classification of Current or Non-current of Liabilities” January 1, 2024
(Amendments to IFRS 1)

“Onerous Contracts-Cost of Fulfilling a Contract Non-current January 1, 2024

liabilities (Amendments to IFRS 1)
“Supplier Financing Arrangements”(Amendments to IAS7/ IFRS January 1, 2024
7)

The Group assessed that there is no significant effect of the standards and
interpretations above on the Group’s financial position and financial
performance.

(I11) The effect of IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) but not yet endorsed by the FSC

The following table summarizes the new, revised or amended standards and
interpretations of IFRSs issued by the IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC:

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations Effective Date Issued by IASB

“Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its To be determined by (IASB)
Associate or Joint Venture Assets”(Amendments to IFRS 10
and 1AS 28)

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023

Amendments to IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative January 1, 2023

Information (Amendment to IFRS 17)

Lack of Compatibility”(Amendments to 1AS 21) January 1, 2025

The Group assessed that there is no significant effect of the standards and
interpretations above on the Group’s financial position and financial
performance.

IV. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying
parent company only financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

(I) Statement of compliance

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC
Interpretations as endorsed by the FSC (collectively referred herein as the
“IFRSs”).
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(11) Basis of preparation

1. Except for the following items, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention:

(1) Financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

(2) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

(3) Defined benefit liabilities recognized based on the net amount of pension
fund assets less present value of defined benefit obligation.

2. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the IFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the parent company only financial statements are disclosed in
Note 5.

(111) Basis for consolidation

1. Principles of preparation of consolidated financial statements

(1) AIll subsidiaries are included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. A subsidiary is referred to the entity controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Consolidation of
subsidiaries begins from the date the Group obtains control of the
subsidiaries and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiaries.

(2) Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealized gains or losses on
transactions between companies within the Group are eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(3) Each component of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is
attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the parent and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

(4) Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in the parent losing control of the subsidiary (transactions with
non-controlling interests) are accounted for as equity transactions, i.e.
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized
directly in equity.

(5) When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the Group remeasures any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at its fair value. That fair
value is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or the cost on initial recognition of the investment in associate or
joint venture. Any difference between fair value and carrying amount is
recognized in profit or loss. All amounts previously recognized in other
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comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are reclassified to
profit or loss on the same basis as would be required if the related assets
or liabilities were disposed of. That is, when the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, all gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary should be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss, if such gains or losses would be
reclassified to profit or loss when the related assets or liabilities are
disposed of.
2. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:

Proportion of Ownership (%)
December 31, December 31,

Investor Subsidiary name Business nature 2023 2022 Note
ARBOR Arbor Solution,Inc. (Arbor Trading of industrial 100.00 100.00
Technology Co., Solution) computers and peripherals
Ltd.
" Guiding Technology Ltd. Trading of industrial 100.00 100.00
(Guiding) computers and peripherals
" Allied Info Investments  Holding company 100.00 100.00
Ltd. (Allied Info)
" Excellent Top International Holding company 100.00 100.00

Development Ltd.
(Excellent Top)

" Arbor France S.A.S. (ArborTrading of industrial 100.00 100.00
France) computers and peripherals

" Flourish Technology Co.,  Holding company and 100.00 100.00
Ltd. (Flourish) trading of industrial

computers

" Arbor Korea Co.,Ltd. Trading of industrial 100.00 100.00
(Arbor Korea) computers and peripherals

" Best Vintage Global LTD. Holding company 100.00 100.00
(Best Vintage)

" Acloud Intelligence Trading of industrial 67.08 67.08
Services Corp. Ltd. computers and peripherals
(‘Acloud)

Allied Info Arbor Beijing Technology Trading of industrial 90.91 90.91
Co., Ltd. (Arbor Beijing) computers and peripherals

Excellent Top ~ Arbor Technology Manufacture and trading of 100.00 100.00
(Shenzhen)co., Ltd.(Arbor industrial computers
Shenzhen)

Flourish Arbor China Technology Trading of industrial 100.00 100.00
Co.,Ltd.(Arbor China) computers and peripherals

Arbor China Arbor Beijing Technology Trading of industrial 9.09 9.09

Technology Co., Ltd. (Arbor Beijing) computers and peripherals

Co.,Ltd.(Arbor

China)

Best Vintage Perfect Stream LTD. Holding company 100.00 100.00
(Perfect Stream)

Perfect Stream  Arbor Technology UK Trading of industrial 100.00 100.00
LTD. (Arbor UK) computers and peripherals

3. Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements: None
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4. Adjustments for subsidiaries with different accounting periods: None

5. Significant restrictions: As of December 31, 2023, cash and bank deposit of
$71,434 was in China and restricted by the local foreign exchange controls.
Such foreign exchange controls restrict the export of funds out of China
(except by means of normal dividend distribution).

6. Subsidiaries with non-controlling interests that are material to the Group:

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the non-controlling interests amounted
to $7,645 and $6,205, respectively. There are no subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

(IV) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each entity of the Group are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

1. Foreign currency transactions and balances

(1) Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the spot exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
measurement. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions are recognized in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

(2) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising upon adjustment at the balance sheet date are
recognized in profit or loss.

(3) Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
measured at fair value through profit or loss are retranslated at the spot
exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date; their translation
differences are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are retranslated at the spot exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date; their exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income. However, non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are not measured at fair
value are translated using the historical exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions.

(4) All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income within ‘other gains and losses.’

2. Translation of foreign operations

The operating results and financial positions of all entities and associates
that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

A. Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the
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closing exchange rate at the date of that balance sheet;

B. Incomes and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates of that period; and

C. All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

(2) Goodwill and fair value adjustments resulting from the acquisition of
foreign entities are deemed as the assets and liabilities of those foreign
entities and translated at the ending exchange rate.

(V) Classification of current and noncurrent assets and liabilities

1. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current
assets:

(1) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realized,
or are intended to be sold or consumed within the normal operating
cycle;

(2) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;

(3) Assets that are expected to be realized within twelve months from the
balance sheet date;

(4) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash
equivalents and those that are to be exchanged or used to settle liabilities
more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.

All the other assets that do not meet the criteria above are classified as
noncurrent assets.

2. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current
liabilities:
(1) Liabilities that are expected to be settled within the normal operating
cycle;
(2) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;
(3) Liabilities that are to be settled within twelve months from the balance
sheet date;

(4) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended
unconditionally to more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.
Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in
its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

All the other liabilities that do not meet the criteria above are classified as
noncurrent liabilities.

(V1) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents refer to short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits that meet the definition
above and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments
in operations are classified as cash equivalents.
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(VI1) Einancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are financial

(V1)

assets that are not measured at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income.

. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets at FVTPL are

recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.

. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value

and recognizes the transaction costs in profit or loss. The Group
subsequently measures the financial assets at fair value, and recognizes the
gain or loss in profit or loss.

. The Group recognizes the dividend income when the right to receive

payment is established, future economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

are equity securities for which the Group has made an irrevocable election at
initial recognition to recognize changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income.

. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets at FVTOCI are

recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.

. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value

plus transaction costs. The Group subsequently measures the financial assets
at fair value:

The changes in fair value of equity investments are recognized in other
comprehensive income. The accumulated gains or losses previously
recognized in other comprehensive income should not be reclassified to
profit or loss following the derecognition and be reclassified to retained
earnings. Dividends are recognized as revenue when the right to receive
payment is established, future economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

(IX) Einancial assets at amortized cost

1. Financial assets that meet the following two conditions are subsequently

measured at amortized cost:

(1) The financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

(2) The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

2. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets at amortized cost are

recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.

3. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value

plus transaction costs. Interest revenue is subsequently recognized by using
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the effective interest method to amortize during the outstanding period less
any impairment loss. Gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss
following the derecognition.

. The time deposits held by the Group that do not meet the criteria of cash

equivalents are measured at the amount of investment due to the short
holding period and immaterial effect of discounting.

(X) Accounts and notes receivable

1. Accounts and notes receivable entitle the Group a legal right to receive

consideration in exchange for transferred goods or rendered services.

2. The short-term accounts and notes receivable without bearing interest are

subsequently measured at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting
is immaterial.

(X1) Impairment of financial assets

(X11)

(X111)

(X1V)

(XV)

For financial assets at amortized cost and financial guarantee contracts,
after taking into consideration all reasonable and verifiable information
(including forward-looking), the Group measures the impairment provision
for 12-month expected credit losses if there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition at each balance sheet date.
The Group measures the impairment provision for the lifetime expected
credit losses (ECLs) if such credit risk has significantly increased since
initial recognition. For accounts receivable or contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component, the Group measures the
impairment provision for lifetime ECLs.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire.

Leasing arrangements (lessor) — Lease payments receivable/Operating lease

Lease income from operating leases less any lease incentive to lessors is
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
relevant leases.

Inventories

The Group adopts the perpetual inventory system. Inventories are stated at
the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted-average method. The cost of finished goods and work in process
comprises raw materials, direct labor, other direct costs and related
manufacturing overheads (allocated based on normal operating capacity),
excluding borrowing costs. The item-by-item approach is used in applying
the lower of cost and net realizable value rule. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
cost of completion and applicable variable selling expenses.

Investments accounted for using equity method — associates

1. Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence
but not control. Generally speaking, it refers to the fact that an investor
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holds, directly or indirectly, 20 percent or more of the voting shares of the
investee. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method and are initially recognized at cost.

. The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognized in profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition other
comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate (including any other unsecured receivables), the
Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred statutory
or constructive obligations, or made payments on behalf of the associate.

. When changes in an associate’s equity do not arise from either profit or
loss, or other comprehensive income of the associate, and such changes do
not affect the Group’s ownership percentage of the associate, the Group
recognizes the Group’s share of change in equity of the associate in
‘capital surplus’ in proportion to its ownership.

. Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

. In the case that an associate issues new shares and the Group does not
subscribe or acquire new shares proportionately, which results in a change
in the Group’s ownership percentage of the associate but maintains
significant influence on the associate, then ‘capital surplus’ and
‘investments accounted for under the equity method’ shall be adjusted for
the increase or decrease of its share of equity interest. If the above
condition results in a decrease in the Group’s ownership percentage of the
associate, in addition to the adjustment above, the amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate are
reclassified to profit or loss proportionately on the same basis as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

. Upon loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group remeasures any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at fair value as the amount
for the initial recognition of the fair value of financial asset or the cost of
investment in associates and joint ventures. Any difference between fair
value and carrying amount is recognized in profit or loss. All the amount
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary is reclassified to profit or loss, on the same basis as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of. That is,
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary, the profit or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

. Upon loss of significant influence over an associate, the Group
remeasures any investment retained in the former associate at its fair
value. Any difference between fair value and carrying amount is
recognized in profit or loss.

. When the Group disposes its investment in an associate and loses
significant influence over this associate, the amounts previously
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recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate, are
reclassified to profit or loss, on the same basis as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of by the Group. If it retains
significant influence over this associate, the amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate are
reclassified to profit or loss proportionately in accordance with the
aforementioned approach.

(XVI1) Property, plant and equipment

1. Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost.

2. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

3. Property, plant, and equipment are subsequently measured under cost
model. Except land is not depreciated, other property, plant and
equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method. If each part of
an item of property, plant, and equipment is significant, the part should be
depreciated separately.

4. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of the assets
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the financial
period. If expectations for residual values and useful lives of the assets
differ from previous estimates or the patterns of consumption of the assets’
future economic benefits embodied in the assets have changed
significantly, any change is accounted for as a change in estimate under
IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors’, from the date of the change. The useful lives of property, plant
and equipment are as follows:

Buildings 10-50 years
Machinery and equipment 5 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Other equipment 3-5 years

(XVII1) Leasing arrangements (lessee) — right-of-use assets/lease liabilities

1. Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group. For short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, lease payments
are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2. Lease liabilities are recognized at the net present value of the remaining
lease payments at the commencement date, discounted using the
incremental borrowing interest rate. Lease payments are comprised of
fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable. The Group
subsequently measures the lease liability at amortized cost using the
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interest method and recognizes interest expense over the lease term. The
lease liability is remeasured and the amount of remeasurement is
recognized as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset when there are
changes in the lease term or lease payments and such changes do not arise
from contract modifications.

. The right-of-use asset is stated at cost at the commencement date. The

cost is comprised of the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability. The right-of-use asset is measured subsequently using the cost
model and is depreciated from the commencement date to the earlier of the
end of the asset’s useful life or the end of the lease term. When the lease
liability is remeasured, the amount of remeasurement is recognized as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

. For the lease modification that decreases the scope of the lease, the lessee

should decrease the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the
partial or full termination of the lease. The difference between the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability should be recognized in profit or loss.

(XVIII) Investment properties

Investment properties are initially recognized at cost, and subsequently
measured under cost model. Except land, investment properties are
depreciated using the straight-line method with 20 to 50 years of estimated
useful lives.

(X1X) Intangible assets

1.

Computer software

Computer software is initially recognized at cost and amortized using the
straight-line method with 3 to 5 years of estimated useful lives.

. Goodwill

Goodwill arose from business combinations under the acquisition method.

. Patents

Patents that are acquired separately are recognized at cost. Patents are
assets with finite useful lives, and are amortized using the straight-line
method with 5 years of estimated useful lives.

. Customer relationships

Customer relationships are amortized using the straight-line method with
7 years of estimated useful lives.
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(XX)

Impairment of non-financial assets

1.The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of

those assets where there is an indication that they are impaired. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use.
When the circumstances or reasons for recognizing impairment loss for an
asset in prior years no longer exist or diminish, the impairment loss is
reversed, except for goodwill. The increased carrying amount due to
reversal should not be more than what the depreciated or amortized
historical cost would have been if the impairment had not been
recognized.

2.The recoverable amounts of goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite

(XXI)

useful lives, and intangible assets not yet available for use, should be
assessed on a regular basis. When the recoverable amount of an asset is
less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss should be recognized.
An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
years.

. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for impairment testing

purposes. Such allocation is based on the cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units which are identified by operating segments, and
which are expected to benefit from the business combination that can
generate goodwill.

Borrowings

Borrowings comprise long-term and short-term bank borrowings.
Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value less transaction costs,
and subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds less transaction costs, and the redemption value, is recognized in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

(XX11) Accounts and notes receivable

(XXI11)

1. Accounts payable are liabilities for purchases of raw materials, goods
or services and notes payable are those resulting from operating and
non-operating activities.

2. The short-term notes and accounts payable without bearing interest are
subsequently measured at initial invoice amount as the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

1. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are those
financial liabilities that are incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing them in the near term, and that are held for trading other
than the derivative instruments that are designated hedging instrument
under hedge accounting.

2. Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, with related
transaction costs recognized in profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
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subsequently measured at fair value, and the gain or loss are recognized
in profit or loss.

(XX1V)Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(XXV) Bonds payable

The convertible bonds payable are issued by the Company with embedded
conversion rights (i.e., the bond holders have rights to elect to convert
bonds into a fixed number of common shares of the Company at a fixed
price.), put options, and call options. At initial issuance, the Company
should classify the issue price into financial assets, financial liabilities,
or equities in accordance with the contractual arrangement as follows:

1. The host contract, embedded put option, and call option, are initially
recognized at fair value. The difference in the redemption price is
recognized as the discount on bonds payable. Interest amortization is
subsequently recognized in profit or loss, as an adjustment to “financial
cost,” using the effective interest method in the outstanding period.

2. The embedded conversion rights that meet the definition of equity are
initially recognized as “capital surplus — conversion rights” at the
amount of issue price minus net bonds payable, without subsequent
measurement.

3. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance are
allocated to the liability and equity components of the instrument in
proportion to the initial carrying amount.

4. When conversion rights are exercised, bonds payable are first
accounted for in accordance with its subsequent measurement. The
issue cost of converted common shares are the determined by the
carrying amount of the aforementioned bonds payable plus the carrying
amount of “capital surplus — conversion rights.”

(XXV1)Einancial guarantee contracts

(XXVII)

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the Group to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss incurred
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. The Group has
initially recognized it at fair value and subsequently measured it at the
high of the amount of the loss allowance determined by the expected
credit loss and the cumulative amount of income recognized.
Employee benefits
1. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid and should be recognized as
expenses in that period when the employees render service.
2. Pensions
(1) Defined contribution plan
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(XXVII)

For defined contribution plan, the contributions are recognized as
pension expenses when they are due on an accrual basis. Prepaid
contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent of a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments.

(2) Defined benefit plan

A. Net obligation under a defined benefit plan is calculated as the
present value of an amount of pension benefits that employees
will receive on retirement for their services with the Group in
current period or prior periods, and is recognized as a liability in
the balance sheet the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan
assets. The net defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The discount rate is determined by referring to the interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
liability. When there is no deep market in high-quality corporate
bonds, the Group uses interest rates of government bonds (at the
balance sheet date) instead.

B. Remeasurements arising on defined benefit plan are recognized
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise
and are presented in retained earnings.

3. Compensation of employees and remuneration of directors

Compensation of employees and remuneration of directors are
recognized as expense and liability, provided that such recognition is
required under legal or constructive obligation and those amounts can
be reliably estimated. Any difference between the estimated amounts
and the subsequently actual distributed amounts is accounted for as
changes in estimates. As for the compensation of employees distributed
by stocks, the base used to determine number of shares is the closing
price of the day prior to the date of the board of directors resolution.

Employee share-based payment

For equity-settled share-based payment transactions, the Group should
measure the employee services received at the fair value of equity
instruments granted at the grant date. Compensation costs are recognized
during the vesting period and are made adjustment to equity. The fair
value of the equity instruments reflects the effects of vesting market
conditions and non-vesting conditions. Previously recognized
compensation costs are adjusted based on the number of awards that are
expected to satisfy the service condition and non-market vesting condition
so that the amount is ultimately recognized based on the vesting number
on vesting date.

(XXI1X)Taxation

1.

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
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Tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized in other comprehensive income or items recognized
directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognized in other
comprehensive income or equity.

. The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Group operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in accordance with applicable tax regulations. It establishes
provisions where appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities. An additional tax is levied on the unappropriated
retained earnings and is recorded as income tax expense in the year the
stockholders resolve to retain the earnings based on the actual earnings
distribution.

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated balance
sheet. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of goodwill, or of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss.
Temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates is not recognized if the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

. Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized. At each balance sheet date,
unrecognized and recognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed.

. Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet when the
entity has the legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities, and they are levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities that intend to
settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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(XXX) Share capital

1.

2.

Ordinary share is classified as equity. Incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of new stocks or stock options are presented
in equity net of income tax as a contra account to the price.

Where the Company repurchases the Company’s equity share capital that
has been issued, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental cost net of income tax, is recognized as a contra
account to equity. Where such shares are subsequently reissued, the
difference between their book value and any consideration received, net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction cost and the related
income tax effects, is adjusted to equity.

(XXXI)Dividends distribution

(XXXI1)

(XXX

Dividends are recognized in the Company’s financial statements in the

period in which they are approved by shareholders’ meeting of the

Company. Cash dividends are recorded as liabilities; stock dividends are

recorded as stock dividends to be distributed and are reclassified to

ordinary shares on the effective date of new shares issuance.
Revenue recognition

1. The Group manufactures and sells industrial motherboards, computer
products, peripheral devices, electronic parts, and related products.
Sales revenue is recognized when control of the products has been
transferred to the customer, being when the products are delivered to
the customer, and there are unfulfilled performance obligations that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery of
goods occurs only when the products have been shipped to the specific
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

2. A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered to the
customer because this is the point of time when the consideration is
unconditional to the Group with only the passage of time required
before the payment is due.

3. Financing component

Based on the Group’s contracts with customers, the period between
when the Group transfers a promised good or service to a customer and
when the customer pays for that good or service is never more than one
year; therefore, the transaction price is not adjusted to reflect the time
value of money.

Operating segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments. The chief operating decision-maker of the Group is
identified as the board of directors.
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V. Critical Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Key Sources of Assumption
Uncertainty
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to
make critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies and make
critical assumptions and estimates concerning future events on balance sheet dates.
Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are continually
evaluated and adjusted based on historical experience and other factors. Such
assumptions and estimates have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year; and
the related information is as follows:

(1) Critical judgments in applying the Company’s accounting policies
None.
(1) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

1. Impairment assessment of accounts receivable
In the process of assessing impairment of accounts receivable, the Group
uses the expected credit loss in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”. Management assesses the expected credit loss on impairment
of accounts receivable based on assumptions about the individual customer’s
overdue period, financial position, operating condition, and historical
experience as well as the forward-looking information.
As of December 31, 2023, the carrying amount of accounts and notes
receivable was $592,538.

2. Valuation of inventories
As inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, the
Group must determine the net realizable value of inventories on balance
sheet dates using judgments and estimates. Due to the rapid technology
innovation, the Group evaluates the amounts of normal inventory
consumption, obsolete inventories or inventories without market selling
value on balance sheet dates, and writes down the cost of inventories to the
net realizable value. Such a valuation of inventories is principally based on
the demand for the products within the specified period in the future.
Therefore, there might be material changes to the valuation.
As of December 31, 2023, the carrying amount of inventories was $515,105.

VI. Details of Significant Accounts

(XXXI1V) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Cash on hand and working fund $ 9204 $ 675
Checking accounts and demand deposits 386,729 356,109
Time deposits 262,886 130,518
Total $ 650,519 $ 487,302

1. The Group transacts with a variety of financial institutions all with high
credit quality to disperse credit risk, so it expects that the probability of
counterparty default is remote.

2. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts of restricted cash and cash
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equivalents due to borrowings were $272,726and $233,898, respectively,
and were classified as “financial assets at amortized cost.” Please refer to
Notes VI (111) and VIII for more information.

3. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts of time deposits held by the
Group for more than 3 months were $19,575 and $11,127, respectively, and
were classified as “financial assets at amortized cost” based on the liquidity.
Please refer to Note VI (I11) for more information.

(XXXV)  FEinancial assets at fair value through profit or loss — current

Item December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Current item:

Financial assets mandatorily
measured at fair value

Beneficiary certificate $ 27,871 $ 35,278

Convertible bonds 70,012 70,012

Valuation adjustment 7417 ( 444)
$ 105,300 $ 104,846

Financial liabilities mandatorily
measured at fair value

Non-hedging derivatives —

FX swap $ - 3 1,709

1.Amounts recognized in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are listed below:

2023 2022
Financial assets and liabilities
mandatorily measured at fair value
Beneficiary certificate $ 1,467 ($ 1,551)
Convertible bonds 9,700 260
Non-hedging derivatives
—FX swap 6,415 13,407
—FX forward - ( 560)
Total $ 17582 _$ 11,556

2. The information on the Group’s transactions and contracts of derivative
liabilities which are ineligible for hedge accounting:

December 31, 2022
Contract amount

Derivative liabilities (Notional value) Contract period
FX swap USD 850 thousand  2022.09.08-2023.03.13
FX swap USD 1,000 thousand 2022.09.28-2023.03.30
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December 31, 2022
Contract amount

Derivative liabilities (Notional value) Contract period
FX swap uUSsD 1,000 thousand 2022.09.29-2023.03.29

The Group entered into FX swap contracts for purchasing raw materials
(buying USD and selling NTD) in order to hedge the exchange rate risk of

selling prices, yet ineligible for hedge accounting.

3.The Group did not pledge financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

to others as collateral.

4.Information relating to credit risk of financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss is provided in Note XXII (I11).
(I11)  Financial assets at amortized cost — current

Item December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Current items :
Repurchase agreement of commercial papers $ 87,524  § 87,523
Restricted bank deposits 185,202 146,375
Time deposits 19.575 11,127
Total $ 292,301 _$ 245,025
1.Amounts recognized in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at
amortized cost are listed below:
2023 2022
Interest revenue $ 12523 § 1453

2.As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements, the maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of the amount that best represented the financial assets
at amortised cost held by the Group were $292,301 and $245,025,
respectively.

3.For information on the Group’s financial assets at amortized cost pledged to
others as collateral, please refer to Note VIII.

4.For information on the credit risk of financial assets at amortized cost,
please refer to Note XII (11). The Group invests in the certificates of deposit
issued by financial institutions with high credit quality, so it expects that the
probability of counterparty default is remote.

(v) Notes and accounts receivable
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Notes receivable $ 13,511 $ 41,834
Less: Allowance for impairment loss - ( 39,116)
$ 13,511 $ 2,718
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Notes receivable —related parties $ 13,427 $ 13,557

Accounts receivable $ 374,038 $ 420,473
Less: Allowance for impairment loss  ( 9,534) ( 5,799)

$ 364,504 $ 414,674
Accounts receivable —related parties _$ 201,096 $ 110,439

1. The following is the notes and accounts receivable (including related parties)
aging report:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Notes Accounts Notes Accounts

receivable receivable receivable receivable
Current $ 26,938 $ 410,604  $ 16,275 $ 441,341
Within 30 days - 47,628 - 37,903
31-90 days - 31,024 - 34,025
91-180 days - 33,266 - 11,193
Over 180 days - 52,612 39,116 6,450

$ 26938 $ 575134 % 55,391 _$ 530912

The aging analysis above is based on overdue days.

2.As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, accounts and notes receivable were all
from contracts with customers. As of January 1, 2022, the balances of notes
and accounts receivable from contracts with customers were $46,346 and
$589,605, respectively.

3.As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancement, the maximum exposures to
credit risk in respect of the amount that best represented the Group’s notes
receivable (including related parties) were $26,938 and $16,275,
respectively. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the maximum exposures to
credit risk in respect of the amount that best represented the Group’s
accounts receivable (including related parties) were $565,600 and $525,113,
respectively.

4.The Group does not hold any collateral.

5.For information related to credit risk of accounts and notes receivable,
please refer to Note XII (11).
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(V) Inventories
December 31, 2023
Allowance to reduce
Cost inventory to market Carrying amount
Raw materials $ 254,443 (% 37,402) $ 217,041
Work-in-process 134,143 ( 7,539) 126,604
Finished goods 176,529 ( 15,369) 161,160
Merchandise 35,094 ( 24,794) 10,300
Total $ 600,209 ($ 85,104) 3 515,105
December 31, 2022
Allowance to reduce
Cost inventory to market  Carrying amount
Raw materials $ 368,131 ($ 31,605) $ 336,526
Work-in-process 188,366 ( 8,959) 179,407
Finished goods 175,786 ( 11,185) 164,601
Merchandise 38,558 ( 25,948) 12,610
Total $ 770,841 ($ 77,697) 3 693,144
Expense and loss incurred on inventories for the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022 were as follows:
2023 2022
Cost of goods sold $ 1,068,787) $ 1,200,041)
Unallocated labor and manufacturing overhead ( 36,290) ( 31,559)
Gain (loss) on inventory valuation ( 7,564) ( 23,742)
Loss from obsolescence ( 13,023) ( 4,497)
Effect of exchange rates 51 413
($ 1,125,613) ($ 1,259,426)
(V1) Other current assets
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Prepayment for purchases $ 39,341  $ 107,598
Prepaid expense 55,445 75,632
Overpaid sales tax 11,435 13,939
Income tax refund receivable 2,571 4,540
Other receivables 7,481 3,282
$ 116,273 $ 204,991

(VII)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income (FVTOCI)

— noncurrent
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ltem December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Equity instrument

Non-listed stocks $ 12,220 $ 15,312
Valuation adjustment 440 ( 4,044)
$ 12,660 $ 11,268

1. The Group chose to classify the strategic investment in non-listed stocks as

financial assets at FVTOCI. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, fair value of
those investments was $12,660 and $11,268, respectively.

The Group disposed of all stocks of Top Cloud Technology Inc. in
September 2022, with a total of 373,750 shares and price of $3,737. The
Company derecognized the cost of investment (i.e., carrying amount) of
$3,737, without gain on disposal.

. In July 2023, the Group obtained Arbor Australia Pty’s certificate of

completion of liquidation, and derecognized the original investment cost and
accumulated impairment of $3,092.

4. Items recognized in profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
relation to financial assets at FVTOCI were as follows:
2023 2022
Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Changes in fair value recognized in other

comprehensive income $ 1,392 $ 2,830
Cumulative gains or losses reclassified to

retained earnings due to derecognition ($ 3,092) _$ -
Dividend revenue recognized in

profit or loss

Still held by the Company at the end

of reporting period $ 937 _$ 700

5. For information on fair value related to financial assets at FVTOCI, please

(V1)

refer to Note XXII (111).
Investments accounted for using equity method

1. Changes in investments accounted for using equity method (including those

2

classified as liabilities) are as follows:

2023 2022
January 1 $ 457,505 $ 452,043
Share of investment income ( 25,287) 10,187
Unrealized sales gross profits ( 1,609) ( 2,902)
Realized sales gross profits 2,902 270
Changes in other equity ( 1,318) ( 2,093)
December 31 $ 432,193 _$ 457,505

. The details of investments accounted for using equity method are as follows:
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Associates December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

AMobile Intelligent Corp. Ltd
(AMobile HK) $ 432,193 _$ 457,505

3. The basic information of the associate that is material to the Group is as
follows:

Company Principle place Shareholding ratio Method of
name of business measurement
December 31 December 31
2023 2022
AMobile HK Taiwan 39.31% 39.31% Equity method

4. The summarized financial information of the associate that is material to the
Group is as follows:

Balance Sheet

AMobile HK

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Current assets $ 1,281,435 $ 1,344,156
Noncurrent assets 54,768 47,433
Current liabilities ( 845,684) ( 750,494)
Noncurrent liabilities ( 11557) ( 94,470)
Total net assets 3 478962 3 546,625
Share in associate's net assets 3 188,272 3 214,878

(Note)

Note: The difference with the carrying amount is mainly from the difference
between the original investment cost minus fair value of identifiable
net assets and the adjustment to unrealized sales gross profit.

Statement of comprehensive income

2023 2022
Revenue $ 457,287 $ 666,022
Net income % 64,329) $ 23,882
Total comprehensive income (loss)  ($ 68,652) $ 24,041

5.The investments accounted for using the equity method, AMobile HK, as of
31 December 2023 were based on financial statements audited by other
auditors.

6. The Group holds 39.31% of shares of AMobile HK and is the single biggest
shareholder. Because the other three shareholders (unrelated parties) hold a
total of 39.31% of shares of AMobile HK; and based on the investment
agreement, significant policies should not be only executed without written
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agreements of both AMobile HK and investors; in addition, since the Group
and other two listed corporate shareholders are responsible for significant
relevant activities, such as sales, development of products, and technical
support, respectively, under the framework of three-party joint venture, no
single party of the three can decide significant operating activities alone to
establish the business model and product value of AMobile HK, which
means that the value-added activities are under mutual management and
support by the three listed companies; therefore, it is judged that the Group
has only significant influence but not control over AMobile HK since it is
shown that the Group does not take the lead on relevant activities.

(IX) Property, plant, and equipment

2023
Machinery
And Office
Land Buildings equipment equipment Other Total

January 1
Cost $397,131 $168,110 $ 41,700 $ 15,145 $ 42,872 $664,958
Accumulated
depreciation - (. 31297)( 27,813) (_ 10,571) (_ 30,250) (99,931)

$397,131 _$136,813 _$ 13887 _$§ 4574 $ 12,622 _$565,027
January 1 $397,131 $136,813 $ 13,887 $ 4,574 $ 12,622 $565,027
Additions - - 113 1,877 1,811 3,801
Disposals —Cost - - (0 1,341) ( 508) (  5,948) (  7,797)
Disposals —
Accumulated
depreciation - - 933 501 5,425 6,859
Reclassifications
(Note) - - - 1,505 9,612 11,117

Depreciation expense
Net exchange

( 6,783)( 2,626 ( 1,764)

(45868 ( 16,041)

differences - - ( 208) - ( 5) ( 213)
December 31 $397,131 $130,030 $ 10,758 $ 6,185 $ 18,649 $562,753

December 31

Cost $397,131 $168,110 $ 39,717 $ 19,538 $ 48,138 $672,634
Accumulated
depreciation - (_38,080) (_ 28959) (13,353) (__29,489) (_ 109,881)

$397,131 _$130,030 _$ 10,758 _$ 6,185

$ 18,649 $562.753

2022

Machinery
And Office
Land Buildings equipment equipment
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January 1

Cost $401,081 $141,906 $ 38,931 $ 14,451 $ 59,575 $ 655,944
Accumulated
depreciation -(__26847)(  24637) (_ 10326) ( 37,283) (__ 99,093)

$401,081 $115059 $ 14,294 $ 4125 _$§ 22,292 $ 556,851

January 1 $401,081 $115,059 $ 14,294 $ 4125 $§ 22,292 $ 556,851
Additions - - 1,914 1,909 188 4,011
Disposals — Cost - -( 99) ( 1,474) (  17,420) (  18,993)
Disposals — Accumulated

depreciation - - 99 1,280 14,159 15,538
Reclassifications (Note) ( 3,950) 28,303 368 - 428 25,149
Depreciation expense -( 6549)( 2901 ( 1292 (  7,056) ( 17,798)
Net exchange differences - - 212 26 31 269
December 31 $397,131 $136,813 $ 13,887 $ 4574 $ 12622 _$565,027
December 31

Cost $397,131 $168,110 $ 41,700 $ 15145 $ 42,872 $ 664,958
Accumulated

depreciation -( 31297)( 27813) (_ 10,571) (_ 30,250) (_ 99,931)

$397,131 $136,813 $ 13,887 $ 4574 $ 12,622 $ 565,027

Note: The amounts were reclassified from prepayment on properties and
property, plant, and equipment to investment properties. Please refer to
Notes VI (XI1) and VI (XXXI1V) for related information.

1. There were no interests that should be capitalized for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

2. For information on the property, plant and equipment that were pledged to
others as collateral please refer to Note VIII.

(X) Leasing arrangements — lessee

1. The Group leases various assets including buildings, company cars, and
multifunction devices. Lease contracts are typically made for periods
between 2020 to 2027. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

2. The carrying amount of right-of-use assets and the depreciation charge were

as follows:
2023
Shipping Office
Buildings equipment equipment Total
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January 1

Cost $ 48,061 $ 3933 $ 3174 $ 55,168
Accumulated
depreciation ( 17,278) ( 3,153) ( 2,461) ( 22,892)
$ 30,783 % 780 _$ 713 $ 32,276
January 1 $ 30,783 $ 780 $ 713 $ 32,276
Additions— New leases 11,666 4,238 3,968 19,872
Derecognition—Cost  ( 12,258) ( 2,001) ( 3,174) ( 17,433)
Derecognition —
Accumulated 12,258 2,001 3,174 17,433
depreciation
Depreciation expense  ( 14,898) ( 1,378) ( 1,870) ( 18,146)
Net exchange
difference 235 ( 436) - ( 201)
December 31 $ 27,786 $ 3204 $ 2811 $ 33,801
December 31
Cost $ 46,860 $ 5615 $ 3,98 $ 56,443
Accumulated
depreciation ( 19,074) ( 2411) ( 1,157) ( 22,642)
$ 27,786 $ 3,204 % 2811 % 33,801
2022
Shipping Office
Buildings equipment equipment Total
January 1
Cost $ 41,072 $ 385 $ 2,938 $ 47,865
Accumulated
depreciation ( 31,873) ( 1,972) ( 857) ( 34,702)
$ 9,199 $ 1,883 $ 2081 $ 13,163
January 1 $ 9,199 $ 1,883 $ 2,081 $ 13,163
Additions —New 35,176 : 236 35,412
leases
Derecognition—Cost  ( 28,377) - - ( 28,377)
Derecognition —
Accumulated 28,377 - - 28,377
depreciation
Depreciation expense ( 13,715) ( 1,122) ( 1,604) ( 16,441)
N'et exchange 123 19 ) 142
difference
December 31 $ 30,783 _$ 780 _$ 713 $ 32,276
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2022

Shipping Office
Buildings equipment equipment Total
December 31
Cost $ 48,061 $ 3933 % 3174 $ 55,168
Accumulated
depreciation ( 17,278) ( 3153) ( 2,461) ( 22.892)
3 30,783 $ 780 % 713 $ 32,276

3. The information on lease liabilities relating to lease contracts is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Total lease liabilities $ 34,536 $ 32,545
Less: Current portion (Presented as

“Lease liabilities — Current”) ( 17.401) ( 9,740)

$ 17,135 $ 22,805

4. The information on profit and loss relating to lease contracts is as follows:

2023 2022
Items affecting profit or loss
Interest expense on lease liabilities $ 1,020 $ 580
Expense on short-term lease contracts 7,220 5,571
Expense on leases for assets of low value 92 82

5. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’s total cash
outflow for leases were $25,911 and $23,890, respectively.

(X1) Leasing arrangements — lessor

1. The Company leases assets including land and buildings. Lease contracts
are typically made for periods between 2023 to 2028. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In order to secure the rental assets, the lease
agreements usually require lessors not to pledge the lease assets as
collaterals or require lessors to provide guaranteed residual value.

2. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company
recognized rent income (including revenue from sublease of right-of-use
assets) of $3,396 and $3,523 based on the operating lease contracts,
respectively, in which there were no changes to the lease payments.

3. The analysis of the due dates of lease payments of operating lease
contracts is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
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(X11)

Less than 1 year

Over 1 year but less than 5 years

Total

Investment properties

January 1
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

January 1
Depreciation expense
December 31

December 31

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

January 1
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

January 1
Reclassification (Note )

Depreciation expense
December 31

December 31

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

$ 971 $ 971
3,886 3,886
$ 4,857 $ 4,857
2023
Land Buildings Total
51,389 26,517 $ 77,906
- 3,565) ( 3,565)
51,389 22,952 $ 74,341
51,389 22,952 $ 74,341
- 803) ( 803)
51,389 22,149 $ 73,538
51,389 26,517 $ 77,906
- 4,368) ( 4.368)
51,389 22,149 $ 73,538
2022
Land Buildings Total
$ 47,439 $ 22,400 $ 69,839
- ( 663)( 663)
$ 47,439 $ 21,737 $ 69,176
$ 47,439 $ 21,737 % 69,176
3,950 2,019 5,969
- ( 804)( 804)
$ 51,389 $ 22952 % 74,341
$ 51,389 $ 26517 $ 77,906
- ( 3,565) ( 3,565)
$ 51,389 $ 22952 % 74,341

Note: The amounts were reclassified from property, plant, and equipment to
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investment properties. Please refer to Note VI (1X)and VI(XXXIV) for
related information.

1. Rent revenue and direct operating expenses of investment properties are
summarized as follows:

2023 2022
Rent revenue from investment
properties $ 2504 % 2,552
Direct operating expenses incurred by
the investment properties that
generate current rent revenue

$ 1296 _$ 921

2. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the fair value of investment
properties held by the Group was $89,047 and $98,393, respectively. The
aforementioned fair value was estimated based on the market prices of
similar properties in the neighborhood of related properties, which is the
level 2 fair value measurement.

3. For information on the investment properties pledged as collaterals,
please refer to Note VIII.

(XI11) Intangible assets

2023
Computer
software Goodwill Patent Total
January 1
Cost $ 29,806 $ 26,349 $ 9,762 $ 65,917
Accumulated amortization ( 20.389) - ( 8.929) ( 29.318)
$ 9,417 $ 26,349 $ 833 % 36,599
January 1 $ 9,417 $ 26,349 $ 833 $ 36,599
Additions — Separate
acquisition 2,600 - - 2,600
Reclassification (Note) 132 - - 132
Amortization expense ( 5 065) _ ( 833) ( 5 898)
Net exchange difference - 89 - 89
December 31 $ 7,084 $ 26,438 $ - _$ 33,522
December 31
Cost $ 32,538 $ 26,438 $ 9,762 $ 68,738
Accumulated amortization ( 25 454) - ( 9.762) ( 35.216)
$ 7,084 $ 26,438 $ - $ 33,522
2022
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Computer Customer

software Goodwill Patent relationships Total

January 1
Cost $ 23,838 $ 23877 $ 9762 $ 14178 $ 71,655
Accumulated
amortization (14577 - ( 6,976) ( 12,464) ( 34,017)

$ 9261 $ 23877 $ 2786 $ 1714 $ 37,638
January 1 $ 9261 $ 23877 $ 2,786 $ 1,714 $ 37,638
Additions — Separate
acquisition 1,919 - - - 1,919
Reclassification (Note) 4,049 - - - 4,049
Amortization expense 5,812) -( 1,953) ( 1,845) ( 9,610)
Net exchange difference - 2472 - 131 2.603
December 31 $ 9417 $ 26349 $ 833 _$ - _$ 36599

December 31

Cost $ 29,806 $ 26349 $ 9,762 $ 14178 $ 80,095

Accumulated

amortization (_ 20,389) -( 8,929) ( 14.178) ( 43,496)
$ 9417 $ 26349 $ 833 $ - $ 36,599

Note: It was reclassified from prepayment on equipment. Please refer to
Note VI (XXXI1V) for related information.

The details of amortization of intangible assets are as follows:

2023 2022
Operating costs $ 869 3 875
Selling expenses 1,792 3,635
General and administrative expenses 1,807 2,708
Research and development expenses 1,430 2,392
$ 5898 _$ 9,610

(XI1V) Other non-current assets

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Refundable deposits $ 32990 $ 32,579
Prepayment on equipment 5,506 10,210
Other assets 3,648 3,515
Overdue receivables 38,287 -
Allowance for impairment loss on overdue

receivables ( 38,287)

$ 42,144 _$ 46,304
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1.In 2021, the Group sold goods to Jiangsu Tianyu Jiyuan Intelligent
Technology Development Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Jiangsu
Tianyu”), and the outstanding receivables totaled $39,065. After assessing
the possibility of bad debts, the Group has fully recognized impairment
losses in 2022. On 25 August 2022, the Group applied to the People’s
Court of New North District, Changzhou City, Jiangsu Province for
property preservation, requesting that the property of RMB 9,614,562 in
the value of Jiangsu Tianyu be seized or frozen in accordance with the law.
After the trial of the court, the case may be executed immediately. Jiangsu
Tianyu refused to accept the judgment and filed an appeal to the
Intermediate People’s Court of Changzhou City, Jiangsu Province on 9
January 2023, and subsequently withdrew the appeal on 1 April 2023. The
Group started to transfer the receivables from Jiangsu Tianyu to the
overdue amount on 30 September 2023, and discussed with the appointed
lawyer for subsequent collection actions.

2. For information on the Refundable deposits pledged as collaterals, please
refer to Note VIII.

(XV)  Short-term borrowings

Type of borrowings December 31, 2023 Interest rate range  Collateral
Bank loans
Credit loans $ 410,000 0.50%~2.22% Notes guarantee issued
Land, buildings and
Secured loans 236,500 0.50%~1.97% restricted deposits
$ 646,500
Type of borrowings December 31, 2022 Interest rate range  Collateral
Bank loans
Credit loans $ 320,000  1.58%~1.98% Notes guarantee issued
Secured loans 179,000  1.36%~1.96% Land, buildings and

restricted deposits

Purchase order
financing 60,082  1.50%~1.92% None

_$ 559,082

(XVI1) Short-term notes and bills payable

December 31, 2023  Interest rate range Collateral
Commercial paper payable $ 72,000 1.94%~1.97% Notes guarantee issued
and Repurchase
agreement of
commercial papers

Less: Unamortized discount -
$ 72,000

December 31, 2022 Interest rate range  Collateral
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Commercial paper payable $ 72,000 1.89% Notes guarantee issued
and Repurchase
agreement of
commercial papers

Less: Unamortized discount -

$ 72,000
(XVI1I) Other payables

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Salary payable $ 35771 % 43,563
Insurance premiums payable 8,473 8,537
Employee compensation payable 8,000 4,500
Compensation due to directors and 1,000 1,000

supervisors
Other expenses payable 23,808 38,389
$ 77,052 _$ 95,989

(XVIII) Bonds payable

1.The offering and issuance of the Company’s third unsecured domestic convertible bonds
were approved by the competent authority in December 2019. The offering was
completed in January 2020. The principal covenants are as follows:

(1) Total par value: NT $300,000.

(2) Outstanding period: 3 years, from January 20, 2020 to January 20, 2023

(3) Coupon rate: 0%

(4) Conversion period: The bondholder is entitled to require the stock transfer agent of
the Company to convert the bonds into ordinary shares after the third month of the
issuance to the maturity date unless book closure is required by the covenants or
regulations. The converted common shares shall rank pari passu with the issued and
outstanding common shares.

(5) Conversion price and adjustment: The conversion price is determined by the model
stated in the conversion rule. If the anti-dilution provisions are subsequently
applicable, the Company will adjust the conversion price in accordance with the
model stated in the conversion rule. Subsequently on the base date set in the rule,
conversion price will be re-determined based on the model stated in the conversion
rule. If the re-determined conversion price is higher than the current conversion
price, adjustment will not be applicable.

(6) Redemption rule:

A. Redemption on the maturity date: The Company will redeem all the outstanding
bonds on the maturity date in cash.

B. Early redemption: After the third month of the issuance date to 40 days before
maturity, if the closing price of the Company’s common share exceeds 30% of
the current conversion price for 30 consecutive business days, or if the
convertible bonds’ outstanding balance is lower than 10% of the total issuance
amount, the Company is entitled to redeem the bonds in cash at par value from
the bondholder on the fifth business day after the redemption date, plus accrued
interest at the annual rate of 0.5% from the issuance date to the redemption date.
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C. In accordance with the conversion rule, all redeemed (including redeemed via
TPEX), repaid, and converted bonds will be retired with extinction of all attached
rights and obligations and will not be reissued anymore.

(7) For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the balances of capital surplus —
stock option related to exercised conversion rights were $0 and $8,853, respectively.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the par value of bonds with conversion right

exercised was both $300,000. Based on the current conversion price per share upon

conversion 13,634 thousand has been converted. The amount of capital surplus
arising from the conversion was $182,751.

. When the Company issued the third unsecured domestic convertible bonds, since the

economic characteristics and risks of the call option, a non-equity item, are not closely
related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract, the call option is
accounted for and presented as a “financial asset at FVTPL” at net carrying amount
separately in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial instruments.” The effective interest rate
of the host contract is 2.27% after separation.

. When the Company issues convertible bonds, the Company separates the conversion

right, which is an equity component, from all the other liability components in
accordance with IAS 32 and presents it as “capital surplus—stock option.” As of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the amount of capital surplus —stock option was both $0.

. When the convertible bonds’ outstanding balance is lower than 10% of the total issuance

amount, the Company is entitled to redeem the bonds in cash at par value from the
bondholder in accordance with the Article 18 of The Third Unsecured Domestic
Convertible Bonds Issuance and Conversion Rule. The over-the-counter trading of the
aforementioned convertible bonds was terminated on September 21, 2022 because all
the conversion rights were exercised before the redemption base date, September 20,
2022.

(X1X) Long-term borrowings

Types of borrowings

December 31, 2023

Interest rate range

Collateral

Bank credit loan $

Bank mortgage loan 442,791
Subtotal 471,937
Less: Current portion (

$ 404,336

Types of borrowings

December 31, 2022

2.05%~2.10%
1.90%~2.05%

Interest rate range

Restricted bank deposit
Land and buildings

Collateral

Bank credit loan $

Bank mortgage loan 472,375
Subtotal 565,478
Less: Current portion (

$ 471,806

(XX) Pensions

1.71%~1.95%
1.61%~1.80%

Restricted bank deposit
Land and buildings

1.(1) The Company has a defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Labor
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Standards Act, covering all regular employees’ service years prior to the
enforcement of the Labor Pension Act on July 1, 2005 and service years thereafter
of employees who chose to continue to be subject to the pension mechanism under
the Act. Under the defined benefit pension plan, for those employees qualified for
retirement conditions, two units are accrued for each year of service for the first 15
years and one unit for each additional year thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45
units. Pension benefits are based on the number of units accrued and the average
monthly salaries and wages of the last 6 months prior to retirement. From November
2021, the Company started to increase the monthly contribution equal to from 2% to
15% of the employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the retirement fund deposited
with Bank of Taiwan, under the name of the retirement fund supervisory committee.
Also, the Company would assess the balance in the aforementioned labor pension
reserve account by December 31, every year. If the account balance is insufficient to
pay the pension calculated by the aforementioned method to the employees
expected to qualify for retirement in the following year, the Company will make
contributions for the deficit by next March.

(2) The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Present value of defined benefit $ 6,111) ($ 2,581)
obligations
Fair value of plan assets 4,053 2,638
Net defined benefit (liability) asset
(Stated as “other noncurrent
liabilities” and “other noncurrent
assets,” respectively ($ 2,058) _$ 57

(3) Movements in present value of net defined benefit obligations are as follows:
Present value of

defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligations plan assets benefit liability
2023
Balance at January 1 $ 2,581) % 2,638 % 57
Interest expense (income) ( 34) 47 13
( 2,615) 2,685 70
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets (Excluding - 9 9
amounts included in interest
revenue or expense)
Effects of change in financial ( 622) - ( 622)
assumptions
Experience adjustments ( 3,203) - ( 3,203)
( 3,825) 9 ( 3,816)
Pension fund contribution - 1,688 1,688
Paid pension 829 ( 829) =
Balance at December 31 ($ 6.111) _$ 4,053 ($ 2,058)
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Present value of

defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligations plan assets benefit liability

2022
Balance at January 1 $ 4,625) $ 1,097 ($ 3,528)
Interest expense (income) ( 33) 14 ( 19)

( 4,658) 1,111 ( 3,547)
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets (Excluding - 61 61
amounts included in interest
revenue or expense)
Effects of change in demographic - - -
assumptions
Effects of change in financial 187 - 187
assumptions
Experience adjustments 1,559 - 1,559

1,746 61 1,807

Pension fund contribution - 1,797 1,797
Paid pension 331 ( 331) -
Balance at December 31 ($ 2,581) _$ 2,638 _$ 57

(4) The Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manages the fund of the Company’s
defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the fund’s annual investment and
utilization plan and the “Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and
Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund” (Article 6: The scope of utilization for
the fund includes deposit in domestic or foreign financial institutions, investment in
domestic or foreign listed, over-the-counter, or private placement equity securities,
investment in domestic or foreign real estate securitization products, etc.) under the
supervision of the Labor Retirement Fund Supervisory Committee. With regard to
the utilization of the fund, its minimum return in the annual distributions on the
financial statements shall be no less than the earnings attainable from the amounts
accrued from two-year time deposits with the interest rates offered by local banks. If
the return is less than aforementioned rates, government shall compensate for the
deficit after being authorized by the authority. The Company has no right to
participate in managing and operating that fund; hence, the Company is unable to
disclose the classification of fair value of plan assets in accordance with 1AS 19
paragraph 142. The composition of fair value of plan assets as of December 31,
2023 and 2022 is given in the Annual Labor Retirement Fund Utilization Report
announced by the government.

(5) The principal actuarial assumptions were summarized as follows:

2023 2022
Discount rate 1.20% 1.35%
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Future salary increase rate 3.00% 2.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are estimated based on the 6" Taiwan
Standard Ordinary Experience Mortality Table for the years of 20223and 2022.

Because the main actuarial assumption changed, the present value of defined benefit
obligation is affected. The analysis is as follows:

Discount rate Future salary increases
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25%

December 31, 2023
Effect on present value of

defined benefitobligation($ 144) $ 149 $ 146 ($ 142)

December 31, 2022
Effect on present value of

defined benefit obligation (% 67) $ 70 $ 69 (% 67)

The sensitivity analysis above was arrived at based on one single changing
assumption while the other conditions remain constant. In practice, multiple
assumptions may change at the same time. The method of analyzing sensitivity and
the method of calculating net pension liability in the balance sheet are the same.

The method and assumptions of analyzing sensitivity are the same with the previous
period.

(6)Expected contributions to the defined benefit pension plan of the Company for the
year 2024 are $1,424.

(7) As of December 31, 2023, the weighted average duration of the retirement plan was
9 years. The analysis of due fund payment is as follows:

Period Benefits payment
2024 $ 128
2025 118
2026 224
2027 194
2028 253
After 2029 5,601
S 6,518

(8) For the years 2023 and 2022, the Company recognized pension costs of ($13) and
$19, respectively, in accordance with the aforementioned plan.

(9) Actuarial gains and losses that were recognized in other comprehensive income are
as follows:

Currently recognized (3 3,816) $ 1,807
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Accumulated amount (3 2,705) 3 1,111

2. (1) The Company and its domestic subsidiaries have established a defined contribution
pension plan (the “New Plan”) under the Labor Pension Act (the “Act”), covering
all regular employees with R.O.C. nationality. Under the New Plan, the Company
and its domestic subsidiaries contribute a monthly amount based on 6% of the
employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the employees’ individual pension
accounts at the Bureau of Labor Insurance. The benefits are paid either monthly or
in lump sum based on the principal and accumulated returns in the employees’
individual pension accounts upon termination of employment.

(2)The Company’s foreign subsidiaries have a defined contribution
pension plan.

(3) The Company’s subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (PRC)
make monthly pension contributions in accordance with the pension
regulations in the PRC based on certain percentage of employees’
monthly salaries and wages. The contribution rates are 14-15% in
accordance with local regulations. Every employee’s pension fund is
administered by the government. Other than the monthly contributions,
the Group has no further obligations.

(4) The pension costs under the aforementioned defined pension plan of
the Group for the years 2022 and 2021 were $14,469 and $14,666,
respectively.

(XXI1) Share-based payment

1.For the years 2023 and 2022, the agreements of share-based payment of
the Group were as follows:

Types of agreements Grant date Amount granted Vesting condition
Employee stock option plan 2021.11.26 675 thousand shares  2-year services
(Same as above) 2021.11.26 675 thousand shares  3-year services
Transferring treasury stocks to  2023.01.16 616 thousand shares  Vesting immediately
employees

The stocks that were repurchased by the Group and that were then
transferred to employees are restricted from transferring within the
first year that employees receive the stocks.

All the share-based payment arrangements above are settled by equity.
2. The details on the share-based payment arrangements above are as
follows:

2023 2022
Number of Weighted average Number of Weighted average

options exercise price (NT$) options exercise price (NTS)

Outstanding stock options,

January 1 1350 $ 21.55 1,350 $ 21.55
Options granted 616 21.79 - -
Options exercised 616 21.79 - -
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Outstanding stock options,
December 31 1,350 21.55 1,350 21.55
Exercisable stock options,
December 31 - - - -

3.As of December 31, 2023, the weighted average remaining contractual life of
outstanding stock options was 2.92 years.

4. The Company estimated the fair value of stock options of the
share-based payment transactions on the grant date with binomial tree
pricing model and Black-Scholes option pricing model. Related
information is as follows:

Expected
Types of Grant Stock Exercise Expected  remaining Risk-free  Fair value per unit
arrangements date price price fluctuation life interest rate (NT$)
Employee 2021.11.26 $21.55 $21.55 35.31% 3.5 years 0.4003% $5.69
stock option
plan
(Same as 2021.11.26 21.55 21.55 34.70% 4 years 0.4151% 5.98
above)
Transferring  2023.01.16 23.46 21.79 39.70%  0.14 years 0.7902% 2.35
treasury
stocks to
employees

5.For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, expenses from share-based
payment transactions were $3,605 and $2,298, respectively.

(XXI1) Share capital

1. As of December 31, 2023, the authorized capital of the Company was $1,500,000.
The paid-in capital was $954,394 consisting of 95,439 thousand shares with a par
value of $10 per share. All proceeds from shares issued have been collected.

2. A reconciliation of common shares of the Company is as follows:
(Unit: Thousand Shares)

2023 2022
January 1 95,439 74,422
Conversion of convertible bond - 5,017
Seasoned equity offering -private
placement - 16,000
December 31 95,439 95,439

3. Treasury stocks
(1) Reasons for repurchase and number of repurchased shares:
December 31, 2023

Company that holds

shares Reasons for repurchase = Number of shares Carrying amount
The Compan For transferring to
pany employees 928 (thousand) $ 23,091
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December 31, 2022

Company that holds

shares Reasons for repurchase = Number of shares Carrying amount
The Compan For transferring to
pany employees 1,544 (thousand) $ 36,515
(2) Movements in value of the Company’s treasury stocks are as follows:
2023 2022

January 1 $ 36,515) ($ 32,819)
Treasury stocks repurchased - | 3,696)
Treasury stocks transferred —

Employee stock options exercised 13,424 -
December 31 ($ 23,091) (3 36,515)

(3) Based on the Securities and Exchange Act, the number of shares bought
back may not exceed 10% of the total number of issued and outstanding
shares of the Company. The total amount of the shares bought back may
not exceed the amount of retained earnings plus premium on capital
stock plus realized capital reserve.

(4) Based on the Securities and Exchange Act, treasury stocks held by the
Company shall not be pledged. Before transfer, the sharecholder’s rights
shall not be enjoyed, either.

(5) Based on the Securities and Exchange Act, the shares bought back for
transferring shares to its employees shall be transferred within five years
from the date of buyback. The shares not transferred within the said time
limit shall be deemed as not issued by the Company, and amendment
registration shall be processed to cancel the shares. As for those shares
bought back for maintaining the Company’s credit and shareholders’
rights and interests, amendment registration shall be effected within six
months from the date of buyback to cancel the shares.

(6) The board of directors of the Company resolved to repurchase treasury stocks for
transferring to employees of the Company on November 15, 2021. It was
scheduled to repurchase 1,000 thousand shares. As of December 31, 2021, the
actual buyback was 469 thousand shares with total amount of $9,728 (including
discounts and allowances). In January 2022 there was another buyback of 147
thousand shares with total amount of $3,696. As of January 14, 2022, the end of
the buyback period, the actual buyback was 616 thousand shares with total
amount of $13,424. On January 16, 2023, Resolution, the Board of Directors of
the Company, transferred all the aforementioned treasury shares to employees at
NT $21.79 per share, with a transfer amount of $13,424, and recognized
compensation costs of $1,448.

. In order to align with the future development and introduce strategic investors, the
Company planned a seasoned equity offering through a private placement pursuant to
the shareholder resolutions on July 5, 2021. The number of shares shall not exceed
16,000 thousand shares with par value of $10 per share through the private placement.
The Company arranged specific places to purchase 16,000 thousand shares at $18.5
per share in the private placement. The capital increase was amounted to $296,000.
The record date of capital increase was March 11, 2022, and the amendment
registration was completed on April 25, 2022. Those common shares issued in the
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(XXI11)

private placement were subject to transfer restriction of counterparty and quantity in
accordance with relevant laws. A public offering shall not be conducted until three
years after the grant date.

Capital surplus

According to the Company Act, where a company incurs no loss, it may
distribute the income derived from the issuance of new shares at a premium,
and the income from endowments received by the company, by issuing new
shares which shall be distributable as dividend shares to its original
shareholders in proportion to the number of shares being held by each of them
or by cash. Based on the relevant regulations of Securities and Exchange Act,
where a company intends to capitalize the aforementioned capital surplus, the
total amount per year shall not exceed 10% of paid-in capital. A company shall
not use the capital surplus to make good its capital loss, unless the surplus
reserve is insufficient to make good such loss.

(XXIV)Retained earnings

1.Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the current annual
earnings, if any, shall first be used to pay all taxes and offset losses in
prior years, and then 10% of the remaining amount shall be set aside as
legal reserve. The remaining balance shall be whether retained or
distributed in accordance with shareholder resolutions.

2.The Company adopts “residual dividend policy” for its dividend policies,
authorizing the proposal of earning distribution resolved by the board
of directors within the scope of distributable earnings from 0% to 100%
and submitted to the shareholders’ meeting, after taking various factors
into consideration, such as the current and future investment
environment, needs of funds, domestic and foreign competition, and
capital budget as well as balancing the benefits of shareholders,
dividends, and long-term financial plans. The ratio of annual cash
dividends shall not be less than 10% of the total of current cash and
stock dividends.

3.The legal reserve shall not be used except for making good the deficit of
the company and being distributed by issuing new shares which shall be
distributable as dividend shares to its original shareholders in
proportion to the number of shares being held by each of them or by
cash, for the portion in excess of 25% of the paid-in capital.

4.(1) When distributing distributable earnings, the Company shall set
aside special reserve for the debit balance under other equity in the
balance sheets according to regulations. If any of the debit balance
under other equity is reversed, the special reserve in the amount
equal to the reversal may be reversed for earnings distribution.

(2) Upon the first-time adoption of IFRS, the Company reverses the
special reserve that was set aside in accordance with the FSC
Regulation No. 1010012865 in proportion to the relevant assets
when Company subsequently uses, disposes of, or reclassifies them
on April 6, 2012.

5. The earnings distribution proposals of 2022 and 2021 have been resolved by the
shareholders’ meetings held on June 27, 2023 and June 27, 2022, respectively, are as
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follows:

2022 2021
Dividends Dividends
Amount per share ($) Amount _per share ($)
Legal reserve $ 13427 % - 3 2186 $ -
Special reserve ( 20,853) - 10,745 -
Cash dividends 75,609 0.80 8,909 0.10
Stock dividends $ 68,183 $ 21,840

6. The earnings distribution proposal of 2023 that was resolved by the board of directors
on March 15, 2024 is as follows:

2023
Amount Dividends per share ($)

Legal reserve $ 11599 $ -
Reversal of special reserve 3,629 -

Cash dividends 56,861 0.60

Total $ 72,089

(XXV) Operating revenue
2023 2022
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sales revenue $ 1,671,427 $ 1,801,055

1. Classification of revenue from contracts with customers

The revenue of the Group is from providing goods that are transferred
at a certain point in time and can be classified geographically as

follows:
Asia
2023 Taiwan Mainland China Korea Americas Europe Total
Segment revenue $1,192,634 $ 584,132 $ 91,678 $ 362,475 $ 239,180 $ 2,470,099
Internal segment ( 520.621) ( 274.852) - 1,691) ( 1508) ( 798,672)
revenue
Revenue from
contracts with $ 672,013 $ 309,280 $ 91678 _$ 360,784 $ 237,672 $ 1,671,427
external customers
Asia
2022 Taiwan Mainland China _Korea Americas Europe Total
Segment revenue  $ 1,259,792 $ 847,354 $ 83,966 $ 443,399 $ 228,277 $ 2,862,788
Internal segment
revenue (_505909) (_ 547.478) ( 971) ( 5,166) ( 2,209) (_ 1,061,733)
Revenue from
contracts with $ 753,883 $ 299,876 $ 82995 _$ 438,233 $ 226,068 $ 1,801,055

external customers
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2. Contract liabilities:
The Group recognized revenue from contract liabilities as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 January 1, 2022

Contract liabilities—
unearned sales revenue $ 14,259 $ 17.323 $ 13,165

Revenue arising from contract liabilities at the beginning of the period
recognized in the current period:

2023 2022
Unearned sales revenue $ 14525 _$ 12,758
(XXV1)Interest revenue
2023 2022
Interest from bank deposit $ 12,079  $ 1,064
Interest from financial assets at amortized
cost 12,523 1,453
Other interest revenue 25 14
$ 24,627 $ 2,531
(XXVII)  Other revenue
2023 2022
Rent revenue $ 33% % 3,523
Dividends revenue 937 700
Other revenue 10,036 5,113
$ 14369 _$ 9,336
(XXVIIl) Other gains and losses
2023 2022
Loss on disposal of property, plant, and ($ 76) ($ 3,455)
equipment
(Loss) Gain on disposal of investment  ( 81) 177
Net exchange gain 1,992 35,014
Net gain on financial assets or liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss 17.582 11 556
Other loss ( 598) -

_$ 18,819 _$ 43,292
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(XXIX)Einancial costs

2023 2022
Interest expense:
Bank loans $ 21,707 $ 14,808
Convertible bonds - 1,430
Short-term notes and bills payable 1,132 1,117
Lease liabilities 1,020 580
Other 9 4
$ 23,868 $ 17,939
(XXX) Additional information on nature of expenses
2023 2022
Changes in finished goods and $ 431,088 $ 671,728
work-in-process inventories
Materials and supplies used 567,416 449,941
Employee benefits expense 336,459 345,443
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 18,146 16,441
Depreciation expense of property, plant,
and equipment; and investment properties 16,844 18,602
Shipping expense 12,868 18,972
Research and development materials
expense 10,002 13,775
Service charge 10,336 11,032
Amortization expense 5,898 9,610
Rent of operating leases 7,312 5,744
Expected credit impairment losses 5,682 31,408
Other expenses 98,899 75.783
Operating costs and expenses $ 1,520,950 $ 1,668,479
(XXXI)Employee benefit expense
2023 2022
Payroll expense $ 283,224 291,045
Employee stock options 3,605 2,298
Labor and health insurance expenses 22,914 22,971
Pension expense 14,456 14,685
Remuneration of directors 1,937 1,801
Other personnel expenses 10,323 12,643
$ 336,459 345,443

1. The Company’s Articles of Incorporation provide that, after making up

212



(XXXI1)

for the accumulative losses, the remainder of profits shall be set aside
for compensation of employees at a rate from 2% to 10%, and for
remuneration of directors at a rate of no more than 5%.

. The Company estimated that the amounts of compensation of employees were both

$4,000; and that the amounts of remuneration of directors were $1,000, for the years
2023 and 2022. The aforementioned amounts were recognized as payroll expense.

For the year 2023, compensation of employees and remuneration of directors were
accrued at rates of 2.57% and 0.64%, respectively, based on the profitability of the
current year. The accrued amounts were consistent with those resolved by the board
of directors.

The amounts of compensation of employees and remuneration of directors resolved
by the board of directors for the year 2022, were consistent with those recognized in
the financial report for the year ended December 31, 2022. As of December 31, 2023,
there were still $4,000 to be distributed.

The related information on compensation of employees and remuneration of directors
resolved by the board of directors and the shareholders’ meeting is at “Market
Observation Post System.”

Taxation

. Components of income tax expense:

2023 2022
Current income tax:
Current tax on profits for the year $ 40,226 $ 18,057
Surtax on undistributed retained
earnings 2,502 -
(Over)/Under estimation of income tax
in respect of prior years ( 1,805) 602
Total current tax 40,923 18,659
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences ( 1,507) ( 1,443)
Loss deduction from prior year ( 3,324) 31,593
Total deferred tax ( 4.831) 30,150
Income tax expense _$ 36,092 _$ 48,809
2. The relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit
2023 2022
Tax calculated based on profit before $ 32,086 $ 35,470
tax and statutory tax rate
Tax exempt income based on tax laws ( 1,400) ( 176)
Expenses that should be adjusted based
on tax laws 10 3,295
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Unrecognized deferred tax assets
arising from temporary differences

Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities
arising from temporary differences
Using unrecognized deductible
temporary differences of prior years

(Over)/Under estimation of income tax
in respect of prior periods

Surtax on undistributed retained
earnings

Effects of intragroup differences of tax
rates on income tax

Income tax expense

- 2,136
( 451) 186)
( 4,274) 5,028
( 1,805) 602
2,502 -

9,424 2,640

$ 36,092 48,809

3. The amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from temporary

differences and tax loss:

2023

Recognized in

Effects of

January 1 profit or loss

exchange rates December 31

Temporary differences:
— Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful

accounts $ 3767 2171) (% 24) $ 1572

Allowance to reduce

inventory to market 10,427 929 - 11,356

Unrealized exchange losses - 1,496 - 1,496

Intragroup unrealized sales

gross profits 2,735 395 - 3,130

Payment in lieu of untaken

annual leave 590 21 - 611

Other 272( 272) - -
— Loss carryforward 2,491 3,324 ( 86) 5,729
Subtotal 20,282 3,722 ( 110) 23,894
Deferred tax liabilities:
— Temporary differences:

Unrealized exchange gains ( 1,177) 1,177 - -

Other -( 68) - ( 68)
Subtotal ( 1,177) 1,109 - ( 68)
Total $ 19105 $ 4831 ($ 110) $ 23,826

2022
Recognized in  Effects of
January 1 profit or loss exchange rates December 31
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Temporary differences:
— Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful

accounts $ 1190 $ 2582 (% 5) $ 3,767

Allowance to reduce

inventory to market 7,663 2,764 - 10,427

Unrealized exchange losses 1,636 ( 1,636) - -

Intragroup unrealized sales

gross profits 3,713 ( 978) - 2,735

Payment in lieu of untaken

annual leave 660 ( 70) - 590

Other 628 ( 356) - 272
— Loss carryforward 33,999 ( 31,593) 85 2,491
Subtotal 49,489 (__ 29,287) 80 20,282
Deferred tax liabilities:
— Temporary differences:

Unrealized exchange gains - ( 1,177) - ( 1,177)

Business combination ( 291) 314 ( 23) -
Subtotal ( 291) ( 863) ( 23) 1,177)
Total $ 49,198 ($ 30,150) _$ 57 $ 19,105

4.The expiration dates of unused tax losses and the related amounts of
unrecognized deferred tax assets of the Group are as follows:

December 31, 2023

Amounts of
Year of Filed/assessed Undeducted unrecognized Year of
occurrence amounts amounts deferred tax assets  expiration
2020 $ 1,762 3 1,762 $ - Note
2021 1,927 1,927 - Note
2022 6,206 6,206 - Note
2023 13,355 13,355 - Note
December 31, 2022
Amounts of
Year of Filed/assessed Undeducted unrecognized Year of
occurrence amounts amounts deferred tax assets  expiration
2020 $ 1,762 $ 1,762 $ - Note
2021 1,927 1,927 - Note
2022 6,206 6,206 - Note

Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the loss carry forward of Arbor China, a subsidiary of the

Group, is valid for 5 years.

5. Deductible temporary differences that were not recognized as deferred

215



(XXX

tax assets are as follows:

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Deductible temporary differences _$

9,572 $

8,544

6.The group has not recognized the deferred tax liabilities which from certain

subsidiaries taxable temporary differences

in their investing

related. The

unrecognized temporary differences of Deferred tax liabilities as of December 31,
2023 and December 31, 2022 were $34,248 and $27,767, respectively.

7.The Company’s profit-seeking enterprise income tax returns through
2021 have been assessed and approved by the tax authority.

Earnings per share

2023
Weighted-average Earnings
After-tax outstanding shares per share
amounts (thousand) (NTS)
Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders $ 122,898 94400 $ 1.30
Diluted earnings per share
Effect of diluted potential
ordinary shares
Compensation of employees - 458
Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders plus the effect of
potential ordinary shares $ 122,898 94,858 _$ 1.30
2022
Weighted-average Earnings
After-tax outstanding shares per share
amounts (thousand) (NTS)
Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders $ 132,388 87,823 151
Diluted earnings per share
Effect of diluted potential
ordinary shares
Compensation of employees - 152
Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders plus the effect of
potential ordinary shares $ 132,388 87,975 $ 1.50
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Supplementary information of cash flows

(XXXIV)

Investing activities without affecting cash flow

2023 2022
Reclassification of prepayments for
business facilities to intangible assets $ 132 % 4,049
Reclassification of prepayments for
refurbishment to property, plant, and
equipment $ - % 30,690
Reclassification of prepayments for
business facilities to property, plant, and
equipment $ 11,117 _$ 428
Reclassification of property, plant, and
equipment to investment properties $ - 3% 5.969
(XXXV)  Changes in the liabilities arising from financing activities
2023
Long-term Total
borrowings Lease liabilities liabilities
Short-term (including  Bonds payable (including Guarantee from
Short-term  notes and bills _the current  (including the the current deposits financing
borrowings payable portion) current portion) portion) received activities
January 1 $ 559,082 $ 72,000 $ 565478 $ - $ 32,545 $ 660 $ 1,229,765
Changes in cash flows 87,418 -« 93,541) - 17,579) 30 ( 23,672)
from financing activities
Effect of changes - - - - 302) -« 302)
in exchange rates
Other non-cash changes 19,872 - 19.872
December 31 $ 646,500 $ 72,000 $ 471937  _$ - $ 34,536 $ 690 _$ 1225663
2022
Long-term Total
borrowings Lease liabilities liabilities
Short-term (including Bonds payable (including Guarantee from
Short-term  notes and bills the current (including the the current deposits financing
borrowings payable portion) current portion) portion) received activities
January 1 $ 500106 $ 114,000 $ 685,656 $ 105584 $ 13,216 $ 434 $ 1,418,996
Changes in cash flows 58,976  ( 42,000) ( 120,178) - ( 17,657) 226( 120,633)
from financing activities
Effect of changes - - - - 1574 - 1574
in exchange rates
Other non-cash changes - - - 105,584) 35,412 -( 70,172)
December 31 $ 550082 _$ 72,000 $ 565478 $ - $ 32,545 $ 660 $ 1,229,765
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VII. Related party transactions

(XXXVI) Names and relationship with related parties

Relationship Relationship with the Group
AMobile Intelligent Corp. Ltd. (AMobile HK) Associate

AMobile Solutions Corp. (AMobile Solutions) Associate

Mobilink Intelligent (Shanghai) Ltd. Associate
Amobile (HK) Limited(Amobile) Associate
AMobile Solutions (Xiamen) CO., LTD. Associate

Ennoconn International Investment Co., Ltd. (EI)  Other related party

Ennoconn Technology Co., Ltd. (Ennoconn) Other related party
American Industrial Systems Inc. (AIS INC) Other related party
Ennoconn (Suzhou) Technology Co., Ltd) Other related party
(Ennoconn Suzhou)

Victor Plus Holdings Ltd. Other related party

Vecow Co., Ltd. (Vecow) Other related party

Satem Technology Co., Ltd. (Satem) Other related party

Lee Min Key management personnel
Lien, Chi-Ruei Key management personnel

(I1) Significant transactions with related parties

1. Operating revenue

2023 2022
Sales of goods:
- Associates $ 157,163  $ 137,324
- Other related parties 70,724 8,564
$ 227,887 $ 145,888

(1) Prices of goods sold to the aforementioned related parties were
determined based on the economic environment and market competition
of each sales territory, respectively. The payment terms of related parties
are slightly longer than those of normal customers, with an average of 2
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to 4 months.

(2) The Group eliminates the portion of net sales and purchases of which the
risk and ownership are not transferred yet in accordance with the (87)
Tai Tsai Cheng (Six) No. 00747 Regulation issued on March 18, 1998 by
the Securities and Future Bureau. For the years 2023 and 2022, the
eliminated sales revenue and accounts receivable are as follows:

2023 2022
Eliminated Accounts Eliminated Accounts
Sales revenue receivable Sales revenue receivable
Other related parties ¢ 45555 ¢ 45555  _§ 2128 _$ 2,128
2. Purchases
2023 2022
Purchase of goods:
- Associates
AMobile HK $ 192,107  $ 290,320
Other 41,066 46,957
- Other related parties
Victor Plus 76,784 9,922
Other 279 441
$ 310,236 _$ 347,640

In addition to purchases of goods and materials, the Group also purchased
molds, shipping service, repair service, and processing service from the
aforementioned related parties. For the years 2023 and 2022, the purchase
expenses were $8,704 and $1,596, respectively. The purchasing prices from
the related parties were determined after referring to the actual price. The
payment terms are the same as those of normal suppliers, which are both net

30.
3. Accounts receivable due from related parties

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Notes receivable:
- Associates
AMobile (Xiamen) $ 13,427 $ 13,557
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Accounts receivable:
- Associates
AMobile (Xiamen) $ 121,758 $ 105,958
AMobile Solutions 56,873 -
Other 1,606 4,305

- Other related parties
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AIS INC 20,713 -
Other 146 176

$ 201,096 $ 110,439

Other receivables:

- Associates
AMobile (Xiamen) $ 111,807 $ 144,235
Other 4,884 17,998
- Other related parties
Ennoconn Suzhou 27,463 248

$ 144,154 $ 162,481

Other receivables mainly consist of prices of materials purchased on behalf
of others and supportive HR services revenue receivable.

4. Prepayments (recognized as “other current assets”)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

—Associates
AMobile Solutions $ 32990 $ -
AMobile HK - 95,580
—Other related parties 613 2.928
$ 33,603 $ 98,508

They mainly consist of prepayments for goods.
5. Accounts payable due to related parties

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Accounts payable:

- Associates
AMobile Solutions $ 13,524 $ -
AMobile HK - 29,865
Other 9,170 2,049
- Other related parties
Victor Plus 15,455 126
Other 4,314 -

$ 42,463 $ 32,040
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Other payables:

- Associates $ 187 $ 5,071
- Other related parties 3,138 692
$ 3325 § 5,763

(1) Accounts payable were mainly from purchasing transactions and were
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due two months after the purchasing date. Such accounts payable did not
bear interest.

(2) Other payables were mainly accrued for molds expense. Such accounts
payable did not bear interest.

6. Other revenues

2023 2022
AMobile HK $ 400 $ 3,028
Ennoconn Suzhou 3,634 118
3 4,034 $ 3,146

Other revenues are revenue from materials purchasing agent services,
interest revenue, and revenue from supportive HR services.

7. Lease transactions — lessor

(1)The Group leases buildings as the right-of-use assets to AMobile HK. The
lease contract period is from January 1, 2019 and does not end until both
parties agree to terminate. Lease contracts were individually negotiated
and consisted of various terms and conditions. Leased assets cannot be
pledged as collaterals; in addition, the rights of leased assets cannot be
transferred to others in the form of business transfer or business
combination, either.

(2) Rent revenue
2023 2022
—Associates $ 822 _$ 971

8. Property transactions

(1)As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts of convertible bonds of
AMobile HK held by the Group were $78,459 and $71,904, respectively,
which are classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

(2) The Company negotiated for Ennoconn International Investment Co.,
Ltd. to participate in the private placement in 2022. Please refer to VI
(XXII) 4 for details.

(3) Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

2023 2022
—Associates $ 757 % -
—Other related parties 2947 -
$ 3,704 % -

9. Details of providing endorsement and guarantee
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
AMobile HK $ 156,420 _$ 156,420

10. The key management is the joint guarantor of some long-term and
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VIII.

XI.

XI1.

short-term loans of the Group.
(111) Information on key management personnel compensation

2023 2022
Salaries and other short-term employee
benefits $ 26,153 $ 32,909
Post-retirement benefits 216 294
Total $ 26,369 _$ 33,203
Pledged assets
The assets pledged as collaterals are as follows:
Carrying amount

Assets December 31, 2023 _December 31, 2022 Object

Restricted bank deposits $ 185,202 $ 146,375 Long-term and

(Classified as “financial assets at short-term

amortized cost”) borrowings

Repurchase agreement of commercial 87,524 87,523 Short-term notes

papers (Classified as “financial assets at and bills

amortized cost”) payable

Refundable deposit 32,990 32,579 Lease and project

(Classified as “other noncurrent assets deposits

cost”)

Property, plant, and equipment 494,894 498,465 Long-term and
short-term
borrowings
Long-term

Investment properties 73,538 74,341 borrowings

$ 874,148 $ 839,283

Significant contingent liabilities and unrecognized commitments

()_Contingencies
Please refer to Notes VI (X1V).
(I)_Commitments

Please refer to Notes VI (X),V(XI) and VII.
Losses due to major disasters

None.
Significant subsequent events

Please refer to Note VI (XXIV) for the information on earnings distribution for the year 2023.

Other

(1) Capital risk management

The Group plans its demand for funds, research and development expense,
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and dividends expenditure based on the characteristics of current operating
industry and future development as well as changes in external
environment in order to ensure that each entity of the Group can maintain
optimal capital structure to maximize shareholders value by optimizing the
balances of liabilities and equity under the going concern assumption.

(I1) FEinancial instruments

1. Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022
Financial assets at FVTPL —current
Financial assets mandatorily $ 105,300 $ 104,846
measured at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTOCI— noncurrent

Designated investments in equity 12,660 11,268
investments

Financial assets/loans and receivables at

amortized costs

Cash and cash equivalents 650,519 487,302
Financial assets at amortized cost 292,301 245,025
Notes receivable (including due from 26,938 16,275
related parties)

Accounts receivable (including due from 565,600 525,113

related parties)

Other receivables (including due from

related parties)) 151,635 165,763
Refundable depOSit 32,990 32,579

$ 1,732,643 $ 1,588,171

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVTPL — current

Financial liabilities mandatorily $ - $ 1,709
measured at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at amortized costs
Short-term borrowings 646,500 559,082
Short-term notes and bills payable 72,000 72,000
Notes payable - 231
Accounts payable (including due to 130,963 229,221
related parties)
Other payables (including due to related 80,377 101,752
parties)
Long-term borrowings (including
current portion) 471,937 565,478
Guarantee deposit received 690 660

_$ 1,402,467 _$ 1,530,133
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Lease liabilities (including current portion)_$ 34,536 $ 32,545

2. Risk management policies

(1)

(2)

The Group’s operation is affected by various financial risks, including
market risk (including exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, and price
risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk.

Risk management is implemented by the finance department of the
Group based on the policies authorized by the board of directors. The
finance department of the Company identifies, assesses, and avoids
financial risks by closely cooperating with each operating unit in the
Group. The board of directors has set written principles for overall
risk management and provided written policies on specific scope and
issues, e.g., exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivative and non-derivative instruments, and investment of the
residual liquidity.

3. Nature and extent of significant financial risks

(1)

Market risk
Exchange rate risk

A. The Group operates across international borders; therefore, the
Group is exposed to exchange rate risk arising from transactions
denominated in different currencies, mainly USD, EUR, and RMB,
other than the Company’s and each subsidiary’s functional
currencies. Relevant exchange rate risk is from future business
transactions as well as recognized assets and liabilities.

B. The Group avoids exchange rate risk via forward transactions
which are, however, not eligible for hedging accounting. Forward
transactions are recognized as financial assets or liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, and please refer to Note VI (Il) for
more information.

C.The Group’s operations are involved in different currencies other
than the functional currencies. (The functional currency of the
Company and some subsidiaries is NTD, while other functional
currencies of other subsidiaries include USD, EUR, GBP, RMB, and
KRW.). Therefore, the Group is exposed to the fluctuation of
exchange rates. The information on assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies with significant exposure to the
fluctuation of exchange rates is as follows:

December 31, 2023

Sensitivity analysis

Carrying amount

Other
Foreign currencies Exchange  (in thousands of Profit or loss comprehensive
(in thousands) rate NT$) Changes affected income affected

(Foreign currencies to

functional currency)
Financial assets

Monetary items
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USD to NTD
USD to RMB
EUR to NTD
GBPto NTD
USD to EUR

Non-monetary items

USD to NTD
Financial liabilities

Monetary items
USD to NTD

USD to RMB
USD to KRW

$ 30,016 30.71 $ 921,791 1% $ 9,218 $ -
5,577 7.0973 171,270 1% 1,713 -
1,354 33.98 46,009 1% 460 -

577 39.15 22,590 1% 226 -

417 0.9038 12,806 1% 128 -

14,073 30.71 432,193 1% - 4,322

$ 2,326 30.71 $ 71,431 1% $ 714 $ -
5,079 7.0973 155,976 1% 1,560 -
1,608 1,535.50 49,382 1% 494 -

December 31, 2022

Sensitivity analysis

Carrying amount
Other

Foreign currencies Exchange (in thousands of Profit or loss comprehensive

(Foreign currencies to

functional currency)

Financial assets
Monetary items
USD to NTD
USD to RMB
EUR to NTD
GBPto NTD

Non-monetary items

USD to NTD
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD to NTD
USD to RMB
USD to KRW

(in thousands) rate NT$) Changes affected income affected
$ 21,889 30.71 $ 672,211 1% $ 6,722 $ -
2,887 6.9574 88,660 1% 887 -
2,109 32.72 69,006 1% 690 -
730 37.09 27,076 1% 271 -
14,898 30.71 457,505 1% - 4,575
$ 3,218 30.71 $ 98,825 1% $ 988 $ -
8,481 6.9574 260,452 1% 2,605 -
1,729 1,249.8982 53,098 1% 531 -
D.For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the total

recognized amounts of exchange gains (including both realized and
unrealized) arising from monetary items with significant effects of
fluctuation of exchange rates were $1,992 and $35,014,
respectively.

Price risk

A. The Group’s financial instruments with exposure to price risk are
all financial assets at FVTPL. The Group diversifies the portfolio
based on the limit set by the Group in order to manage price risk
arising from investment in financial instruments.

B. The Group mainly invests in equity instruments issued by domestic
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companies, open-end funds, and convertible bonds. The price of
such financial instruments will be affected by the uncertainties of
future value of underlying assets. If the price of such financial
instruments increases or decreases by 1%, ceteris paribus, net loss
after tax will increase or decrease by $1,053 and $1,048 arising
from gains or losses on financial instruments at FVTPL for the
years 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Cash flows and fair value interest rate risks

A. The Group’s interest risk is from loans issued with a floating
interest rate, which expose the Group to cash flows interest rate
risks. The Group’s policy is to maintain at least 35% of loans with
fixed rates. For the years 2023 and 2022, the loans issued by the
Group with floating interest rates were mainly denominated in
NTD.

B. The Group’s loans are measured at amortized cost and revalued
based on contractual covenants; therefore, the Group is exposed to
risks of changes in future market interest rates.

C. When the borrowing rates increase or decrease by 0.1%, ceteris
paribus, net loss after tax will decrease and increase by $895 and
$900 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. It is mainly the floating borrowing rates that result in
the changes in interest expenses accordingly.

(2) Credit risk

A.The Group’s credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to
the Group. The Group is exposed to credit risks mainly from notes
receivable, accounts receivable, and other receivables that the
counterparty is unable to pay off by the payment term, and the
contractual cash flows from financial assets at amortized cost and
investment in debt instruments at FVTPL.

B.The Group establishes the risk management from the corporate
perspective. As for banks and financial institutions, only those with
an independent credit rating of at least “A” can be accepted as
counterparties. Based on the internal credit policies, the Group
shall manage and conduct credit risk analysis before determining
payment and delivery terms with every new customer. Internal risk
control evaluates customers’ credit quality by considering the
financial position, past experiences, and other factors. Individual
risk limit is set by the board of directors based on internal or
external ratings, and the use of credit line is also monitored on a
regular basis.

C.The Group adopts the presumptions in the scope of IFRS 9. When
contractual payments are over 90 days past due, a default is deemed
to have occurred.

D.The Group adopts the following presumptions in the scope of IFRS
9, on which the Company determines based whether the credit risk
of the financial instruments has significantly increased since initial
recognition:

(A) The credit risk on financial assets is deemed to increase
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significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are over 30 days past due.

(B) The credit risk on financial assets is deemed low if an
investment grade is assigned by any external credit agency on
the balance sheet date.

E.Indicators adopted by the Group to determine if an investment in

debt instruments is credit-impaired are as follows:

(A)The issuer is in significant financial distress, or there is a higher
possibility of bankruptcy proceedings or other financial
reorganization;

(B)The active market of such financial assets becomes unavailable
due to the issuer in financial distress;

(C)The issuer delays or defaults on the payments of interest or
principal;

(D)There is an unfavorable change in national or regional economic
situation that causes the issuer to default.

F.The Group adopts the simplified approach to estimate expected

credit losses based on the loss rate approach, by grouping accounts
receivable based on the characteristics of types of customers.

G.The Group writes off the financial assets which cannot be

reasonably expected to be recovered after initiating recourse
procedures. However, the Group will continue to execute the
recourse procedures to secure the claims. As of December 31, 2023
and 2022, claims still under recourse procedures amounted to
$1,791 and $0 have been written off by the Group, respectively.

H.The Group adjusts the loss rates which were established to estimate

the loss allowance for notes and accounts receivable (excluding due
from related parties) based on historical and current information
within a specific period of time by adopting the forward-looking
consideration in the economic forecast reports issued by Taiwan
Institute of Economic Research (TIER). The information on the loss
rate approach for the years 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

Individual(Note) Group A Group B Total
December 31, 2023
Expected loss rate 100% 0.03%-2.60% 0.05%
Total carrying amount _$ 38,287 3 366,478 3 21,071 _$ 425,836
Loss allowance 3 38,287 3 9,534 3 - $ 47,821

Individual Group A Group B Total

December 31, 2022
Expected loss rate 100% 0.06% 0.06%

Total carrying amount _$ 42,680 $ 384,169 $ 35,458 $ 462,307
- $ 44,915

Loss allowance

1553

42,680 $ 2,235

1553

Group A: Customers without any record of more than 90 days
overdue payments.
Group B: Customer under special projects.

227



Note: Individual assessment of expected credit losses have included
individual accounts receivable classified to overdue receivables

(Classified as “other noncurrent assets™), please refer to Note
6(XI1V).

I.Statements of changes in loss allowance for accounts receivable
estimated by the simplified approach adopted by the Group are as

follows:
2023
Accounts Notes Overdue Total
receivable receivable receivable
Balance, January 1 $ 5,799 $ 39116 $ - $ 44915
Loss allowance recognized 5,682 - - 5,682
Write-off of unrecoverable
accounts ( 1,950) - -( 1,950)
Reclassification - ( 38,287) 38,287 -
Effect of exchange rate 3 829) -( 826)
Balance, December 31 $ 9,534 $ - $ 38287 $ 47821
2022
Accounts receivable Notes receivable Total
Balance, January 1 $ 3,099 $ 10,273 $ 13,372
Loss allowance recognized 2,662 28,746 31,408
Effect of exchange rate 38 97 135
Balance, December 31 $ 5,799 $ 39,116 $ 44,915

J.As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the balances of notes
receivable-related parties were $13,427 and $13,557, respectively;
the balances of accounts receivable-related parties were $201,096
and $110,439, respectively; the balances of other
receivables-related parties were $144,154 and $162,481,
respectively. Impairment was assessed on an individual basis, and it
was assessed that there was no material impairment for financial
statements.

(3) Liquidity risk

A.The cash flow forecast is performed by each operating entity and
aggregated by the financial department of the Group. The financial
department monitors the forecast of working capital requirement
and ensures that there is enough capital to support the operating
requirements.

B.Surplus cash over the balance required for working capital
management held by the operating entities is transferred back to the
financial department of the Group. The financial department of the
Group invests surplus cash in interest-bearing demand deposits and
time deposits. The chosen instruments should be with appropriate
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maturities or sufficient liquidity to provide sufficient headroom as

determined by the abovementioned forecasts.
C. Unused credit lines of the Company are as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Due within 1 year $ 762,500 $ 443,918

Due over 1 year -

$ 762,500 $ 443,918

D.The following table is an analysis of non-derivative financial
liabilities of the Group grouped by maturities and based on the

remaining period from balance sheet date to maturities. The
contractual cash flows disclosed below are not discounted.
December 31, 2023 Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Short-term borrowings $ 646,500 $ - $ - $ -
Short-term notes and bills payable 72,000 - - -
Accounts payable (including due 130,963 - - -
to related parties)
Other payables (including due to 80,377 - - -
related parties)
Lease liabilities (including
current portion) (Note) 18,063 8,164 9,632 )
Long-term borrowings (including
current portion) (Note) 77.455 47519 124,852 296,882
$ 1,025,358 $ 55,683 $134,484 $ 296,882

Over 5 years

December 31, 2022 Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Short-term borrowings $ 559,082 $ - $ -
Short-term notes and bills payable 72,000 - -
Notes payable 231 - -
Accounts payable (including due to 229,221 - -
related parties)
Other payables (including due to 101,752 - -

related parties)
Lease liabilities (including current
portion) (Note)

10,479 8,880 14,975
Long-term borrowings (including
current portion) (Note) 101.029 73261 130590
Derivative financial liabilities:
Interest swap (net settlement) 1.709 ) )

$

294,892
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$ 1,075,503 $ 82141 $ 145565 _$ 294,892

Notes: The amounts included future interest payments.
(111) EFair value information

1.The definitions of each level of valuation techniques used to measure fair
value of financial instruments are as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that entities can access at the
measurement date. An active market is a market in which
transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis. The fair value of
beneficiary certificates in which the Group invests is
included in Level 1.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly. The fair value of most derivative instruments and
convertible bonds in which the Group invests is included in
Level 2.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The fair value
of equity instruments without active markets in which the
Group invests is included in Level 3.

2.Please refer to Note VI (XII) for the information on the fair value of
investment properties measured at cost.

3.The carrying amounts of financial instruments that are not measured at fair
value, including cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at amortized
cost, notes receivable (including due from related parties), accounts
receivable (including due from related parties), other receivables
(including due from related parties), refundable deposits, short-term
borrowings, short-term notes and bills payable, notes payable, accounts
payable (including due to related parties), other payables (including due
to related parties), bonds payable, long-term borrowings, and guaranteed
deposits received, are the reasonable approximations of the fair value.

4.The related information on financial and non-financial instruments
measured at fair value which were grouped on the basis of the nature,
characteristics, risks, and fair value measurement of the assets and
liabilities, is as follows:

(1) The Group has grouped the assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature as follows:

December 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Recurring fair value measurements

Financial assets at FVTPL
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Beneficiary certificates $ 26,841 $ - $ - $ 26,841
Convertible bonds - 78,459 - 78,459

Financial assets at FVTOCI
Equity securities - - 12,660 12,660

$ 26,841 $ 78,459 $ 12,660 $ 117,960

December 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets

Recurring fair value measurements

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL $ 32,942 $ - $ - $ 32,942
Beneficiary certificates - 71,904 - 71,904

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Equity securities - - 11,268 11,268

$ 32942 $ 71,904 $ 11,268 $ 116,114

Liabilities
Recurring fair value measurements

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Interest swap contracts $ - $ 1,709 $ - $ 1,709

(2)The methods and assumptions the Group used to measure fair value are
as follows:

A.As for the open-end funds to which the Group adopted quoted
market prices as the fair value inputs, the quoted market price is the
net worth of funds.

B.Except for financial instruments with active markets above, the fair
value of other financial instruments is measured by using valuation
techniques or by reference to counterparty quotes. The fair value at
which the valuation techniques are adopted to arrive can be referred
to the current fair value of other financial instruments with similar
terms and characteristics in substance as well as discounted cash
flow method; or it can be calculated by other valuation techniques,
including applying models with market information inputs available
at the parent company only balance sheet date. (e.g., Reference
Yield Curve by Taipei Exchange and Taiwan Secondary Commercial
Paper Benchmark by Reuters.)

C.When assessing unstandardized and low-complexity financial
instruments, for example, debt instruments without active market,
interest rate swap contracts, foreign exchange swap contracts, and
options, the Group adopts the valuation techniques that are widely
used by market participants. The inputs used in the valuation model
of these financial instruments are normally observable in the
market.
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D.The valuation of derivative financial instruments is based on the
valuation models which are widely accepted by market participants,
such as discounted cash flow approach and option pricing models.
Forward exchange contracts are usually valued based on the current
forward exchange rate. Structured interest derivative instruments
are measured by using appropriate option pricing models (e.g.,
Black-Scholes model) or other valuation methods, such as Monte
Carlo simulation.

E. The output of valuation model is an estimated value and the
valuation technique may not be able to reflect all relevant factors of
the financial instruments held by the Group. Therefore, the
estimated value derived using valuation model will be adjusted
appropriately based on additional inputs, for example, model risk or
liquidity risk, etc. In accordance with the Group’s management
policies and relevant control procedures relating to the valuation
models used for fair value measurement, management believes that
valuation adjustment is both appropriate and necessary in order to
present fairly the fair value of financial instruments at the parent
company only balance sheet. The price information and inputs used
during valuation are carefully assessed and adjusted based on
current market situation.

5. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was no transfer
between Level 1 and Level 2.

6. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was no transfer
from or to Level 3.

7. The following chart is the movement of Level 3 for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Non-derivative equity =~ Non-derivative equity
instrument instrument
January 1 $ 11,268 $ 7,675
Gains or losses recognized in other
comprehensive income
Recorded as unrealized gains or losses on
valuation of investments in equity
instruments measured at FVTOCI 1.392 2 830
Purchase for the period - 4,500
Disposal for the period - ( 3,737)
December 31 $ 12,660 _$ 11,268

8. The following is the quantitative information on significant unobservable
inputs and sensitivity analysis of changes in significant unobservable
inputs to valuation models used in the Level 3 fair value measurement:

December 31, 2023

Valuation  _Significant Relationships of inputs
Fair value technique  unobservable inputs to fair value
Non-derivative equity instrument:
Unlisted stocks $ 12,660 Guideline  Price to earnings ratio The higher the multiples,
public multiple, enterprise  the higher the fair value;
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X111,

the higher the discount for
income ratio multiple, lack of marketability, the
lower the fair value

Relationships of inputs

to fair value

Price to earnings ratio The higher the multiples,
the higher the fair value;
the higher the discount for

company value to operating
method
discount for lack of
marketability
December 31, 2022
Valuation Significant
Fair value technique  unobservable inputs
Non-derivative equity instrument:
Unlisted stocks $ 11,268 Guideline
public multiple, enterprise
company value to operating
method

. The Group has carefully assessed the

used to measure fair value. However, us

income ratio multiple, lack of marketability, the
discount for lack of  lower the fair value
marketability

valuation models and parameters
e of different valuation models or

parameters may have different results. The following is the effect on other
comprehensive income from financial assets categorized within Level 3 if
the parameters used to valuation models have changed:

December 31, 2023
Recognized in other comprehensive income

Favorable Unfavorable
Input Change change change
Financial assets
Price to earnings ratio
multiple, enterprise
o value to operatin
Equity mstrumentsincome ra'?io mul%iple, +1% $ 127 (% 127)
discount for lack of
marketability
December 31, 2022
Recognized in other comprehensive income
Favorable Unfavorable
Input Change change change
Financial assets
Price to earnings ratio
multiple, enterprise
Equity instrumentsyalue to operating +1% $ 113 (% 113)

income ratio multiple,
discount for lack of
marketability

Supplementary disclosures

(1

Significant transactions information

1. Loans to others: See Table 1 attached.
2.Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others: See Table 2 attached.
3.Holding of marketable securities at the end of the period (excluding

investment in subsidiaries, associates,
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8.

9.

attached.

. Acquisition or sale of the same security with the accumulated cost

exceeding NT$300 million or 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital or
more: None.

. Acquisition of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20% of the

Company’s paid-in capital or more: None.

. Disposal of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20% of the Company’s

paid-in capital or more: None.

. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching NT$100

million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: See Table 4 attached.
Receivables from related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of
paid-in capital or more: See Table 5 attached.

Trading in derivative instruments: See Notes VI (11).

10. Business relationships among the parent company and subsidiaries, and

significant intragroup transactions: See Table 6 attached.

(I1) Information on investees

Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not
including investees in Mainland China): See Table 7 attached.

(111) Information on investees in Mainland China

1.
2.

Basic information: See Table 8 attached.

Significant transactions, either directly or indirectly through a third area,
with investee companies in the Mainland Area: Please refer to table 6.

(V) Major shareholders information

Major shareholders information: Please refer to table 9.
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(V) Einancial information on products

Details of revenue by products of the Group for the years 2023 and 2022 are

as follows:
2023 2022
PCBs $ 606,535 $ 560,073
Systems 777,145 1,038,472
Other 287,747 202,510
Total $ 1,671,427 3 1,801,055

(V1) Geographic financial information

(V1)

Geographic information of the Group for the years 2023 and 2022 is as

follows:
2023 2022
Revenue Non-current assets Revenue Non-current assets

Taiwan $ 672,013 $ 637,490 $ 753,883 $ 644,480
Mainland China 309,280 30,986 299,876 30,416
Korea 91,678 2,199 82,995 179
Americas 360,784 15,939 438,233 20,441
Europe 237,672 26,154 226,068 26,395
Total $ 1671427 _$ 712,768 $ 180105 _$ 721,911

Information on major customers

There were no customers from which the net sales revenue amounted to over
10% of total sales revenue in the income statement for the years 2023 and

2022.
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5. Parent Company only Financial Statements

Independent Auditors’ Report
(2024)Audited NO 23005138
The Board of Directors and Shareholders

ARBOR Technology Corporation
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying parent company only financial statements of ARBOR Technology Corporation
(the Company), which comprise the parent company only balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the parent

company only statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended, and notes to the

parent company only financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Based on our opinions, audit results, and other CPA reports (see Others), the accompanying parent company only
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the accompanying parent company only financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its parent company only financial performance and its parent company
only cash flows for the years ended then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial

Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with The Norm of
Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountants of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Based on our audit results and the audit reports of other CPAs, we

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
parent company only financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the parent company only financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter for the Company’s parent company only financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
is stated as follows
Adequacy of export revenue recognition

Description

For information on accounting policy on sales revenue, please refer to Note 4(31) and Note 6(24) of parent company
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only financial statements.

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of industrial computers and electronic medical devices as
well as the trade of other electronic components. Sales revenue is mainly from export which is across the world. Terms of
sales may be different with different customers; therefore, points in time when risks and rewards of goods are transferred
and when the sales revenue is recognized. Since the confirmation of point in time when export revenue should be
recognized usually involves in manual confirmation of sales and related documents, which is prone to the inadequacy of
point in time to recognize revenue near the end of reporting period. Therefore, we consider the point in time to recognize

revenue one of the most important audit matters for the current year.

Corresponding audit procedures:

In response to the abovementioned key audit matter, the following procedures were performed:

1. Understood and tested the internal control adopted to address the point in time to recognize export revenue, including
obtaining forms related to the internal control of export revenue and sampling in order to confirm the validity of control by

checking the data consistency.

2. Performed cutoff tests against the export sales within a certain period before and after the balance sheet date, checked the
information of contracts or original order as well as the relevant documents of revenue recognition, and determined the
appropriate point in time to recognize based on the transaction documents in order to ensure that revenue was recorded in

the appropriate period.

Valuation of allowance to reduce inventory to market

Description

For information on accounting policy on inventories, please refer to Note 4(13) of parent company only financial
statements. For information on significant accounting estimates and assumptions, please refer to Note 5(2) of parent
company only financial statements. For information on allowance to reduce inventory to market, please refer to Note 6(5)

of parent company only financial statements.

The products of the Company are industrial computers. Due to highly competitive market, there are higher risks of
inventory valuation loss and obsolescence. The Company measures inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
The net realizable value of inventories with age over certain period and inventories individually identified as obsolete is
determined based on the past experience of the degree of disposal of excess inventories. The aforementioned matter may
also exist in its directly or indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries, such as Arbor Solution, Inc., Arbor Technology (Shenzhen)

Co., Ltd., and Arbor China Technology Co., Ltd at the same time.

Since the net realizable value used by the Company and some subsidiaries in obsolete inventory valuation often
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involves subjective judgment and uncertainty; considering inventories and the allowance to reduce inventory to market are
both material to the parent company only financial statements, we considered the valuation of inventory one of the most

important audit matters for the current year.

Corresponding audit procedures:

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key audit matter:

1. Assessed the reasonableness and consistency of policies and procedures on recognizing allowance to reduce inventory
to market based on our understanding of the characteristics of the Company’s industry.

2. Understood the Company’s warehousing control procedures, reviewed the annual physical inventory count plan and
participated in the annual inventory count in order to assess the effectiveness of the classification of inventory and

internal control over obsolete inventory.

3. Verified the accuracy of inventory aging report used to identify individual obsolete inventory, including ensuring that
changes in inventories fell into appropriate age intervals, and obtain supporting documents that management used to
evaluate obsolete products in order to ensure that the Company has reasonably recognized the allowance to reduce
inventory to market.

4. Checked the adequacy of basis of estimation of net realizable value of each inventory, including testing the accuracy of
selling and purchasing prices of products and reassessing to determine the reasonableness of allowance to reduce

inventory to market.

Impairment assessment of receivables

Description

For information on accounting policy on accounts and notes receivable, please refer to Note 4(9) of parent company only
financial statements. For information on significant accounting estimates and assumptions, please refer to Note 5(2) of
parent company only financial statements. For information on details of loss allowance of accounts and notes receivable,

please refer to Note 6(4) of parent company only financial statements.

The Company manages the collection procedures and bears the related credit risk. Management assesses periodically the
credit quality and accounts collection of customers in order to adjust the credit policy adequately. In addition, the
impairment loss on accounts receivable is evaluated in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” by adopting the
simplified approach to evaluate expected credit loss. Management establishes the expected rate of loss based on multiple
factors that may affect the ability of an individual customer to pay, such as overdue period, financial position and economic
position both on the balance sheet date and in the past as well as the forward-looking information. The aforementioned

matter may also exist in its directly or indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries, such as Arbor Solution, Inc., Arbor
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Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., and Arbor China Technology Co., Ltd at the same time.

As the ratio of loss allowance recognition is subject to judgment of management of the Company and certain subsidiaries
(part of Investments accounted for using equity method), and the amount of accounts receivable are material, we consider

the loss allowance for accounts receivable a key audit matter.

Corresponding audit procedures:

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key audit matter:

1. To understand the quality of the Company’s credit and assess the reasonableness of policies and procedures to
recognized the impairment loss on its accounts and notes receivable.

2. Assessed the reasonableness of the ratio of loss allowance recognition by referring to the historical loss rate and
considering the forward-looking information, obtained and reviewed the materials provided by management.

3. Tested the change in age of accounts receivable, and examined the accuracy of classification of age by reviewing the
relevant documents of overdue dates of accounts receivable.

4. Understood the reasons of overdue accounts of which amount were individually assessed material, reviewed their

subsequent collection, and discussed the loss allowance recognized with management.

Other matter —Reference to the audits of other accountants

We did not audit the 2023 financial statements of certain investments accounted for under the
equity method of the company. These investments were audited by other accountants. Therefore, our
opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these associates, is
based solely on the report of other accountants. As of December 31, 2023, the carrying amount of
Investments accounted for using equity method was NT $432,193 thousand, representing 12.25% of
that of Total assets. From January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023, the Company recognized NT
$(25,287) thousand in profit or loss of total, representing (22.51%) of that of total.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of parent company only financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
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to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including members of the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the

Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company only

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the parent company only financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to

the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
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going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the parent company only financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Company to express an opinion on the parent company only financial statements. We are responsible for the

direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the parent company only financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

Independent Accountants
Hsu, Ming-Chuan
Huang, Chin-Lien

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan

March 15, 2024
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Arbot Technology Corp.

Parent Company Only Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023 and 2022

December 31, 2023

Unit: NT $thousands
December 31, 2022

Assets Note Amount % Amount %
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents VI (1) $ 416,670 12 290,732 8
1110 Current financial assets at fair value VI(Il), VII

through profit or loss 105,300 3 104,846 3
1136 Current financial assets at amortized cost VI (1) (111), V1II 260,526 7 233,652 7
1150 Notes receivable, net VI(IV) 29 - 45 -
1170 Accounts receivable, net VI (IV) 146,892 4 149,691 4
1180 Accounts receivable due from related VI(IV), VII

parties, net 211,005 6 169,585 5
1210 Other receivables due from related VII

parties 122,056 4 191,967 5
130X Inventories VI (V) 324,202 9 347,072 10
1470 Other current assets VI (VI), VIl 258,989 7 338,699 10
11XX Total current assets 1,845,669 52 1,826,289 52

Non-current assets

1517 Non-current financial assets at fair value VI (VII)

through other comprehensive income 12,660 - 11,268 -
1550 Investments accounted for using equity VI(VII), VII

method 988,816 28 993,715 28
1600 Property, plant and equipment VI(1X),VIII 549,912 16 550,653 16
1755 Right-of-use asset VI (X) 3,734 - 1,358 -
1760 Investment property, net VI(XI), VI 73,538 2 74,341 2
1780 Intangible assets VI(XII) 7,084 - 10,226 -
1840 Deferred tax assets VI(XXXI) 18,165 1 15,660 1
1900 Other non-current assets VI(XIX), VI 29,656 1 34,369 1
15XX Total non-current assets 1,683,565 48 1,691,590 48
IXXX  Total Assets $ 3,529,234 100 3,517,879 100

(Continued)
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Arbot Technology Corp.

Parent Company Only Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023 and 2022

December 31, 2023

Unit: NT $thousands

December 31, 2022

Liabilities and equity Note Amount % Amount %

Current liabilities
2100 Short-term borrowings VIXIV),VIII $ 646500 18§ 550,082 16
2110 Short-term notes and bills payable VI(XV) VI 72.000 2 72.000 2
2120 Current financial liabilities at fair value VIl

through profit or loss - - 1,709 -
2130 Liabilities-current VI(XXIV),VII 8,071 - 10,121 -
2150 Notes payable - - 231 -
2170 Accounts payable 65,543 2 118,167 3
2180 Accounts payable to related parties VIl 32,505 1 22 261 1
2200 Other payables VI(XVI) 56,176 2 64,647 2
2220 Other payables to related parties VIl 3.325 ) 5763 }
2230 Income tax liabilities for the current
period 26,451 1 8,847 -

2280 Liabilities-current VI(X) 2,661 - 1,354 R
2320 Long-term liabilities, current portion VIXVII, VI 67,601 2 93,672 3
2399 Other current liabilities, others 676 - 657 -
21XX Total current liabilities 981,509 28 958,511 27

Non-current liabilities
2540 Long-term borrowings VIV, VI 40433 11 471,806 14
2570 Deferred tax liabilities VI(XXXI) 68 } 1,177 }
2580 Liabilities-Non-current VI(X) 1,068 - - -
2600 Other non-current liabilities VIV (XIX) 2.940 } 853 }
25XX Total non-current liabilities 408,412 11 473,836 14
2XXX Total Liabilities 1,389,921 39 1,432,347 41

Equity

Share capital VI(XXI)
3110 Ordinary share 954,394 27 954,394 27

Capital surplus VI(XXII)
3200 Capital surplus 808,946 23 805,341 23

Retained earnings VI(XXII)
3310 Legal reserve 97,476 84,049
3320 Special reserve 55,177 76,030
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings 305,217 257,410

Other equity interest
3400 Other equity interest ( 58,806) ( 2) ( 55,177) ( 1)
3500  Treasury shares VI(XXI) ( 23,091) ( 1) ( 36,515) ( 1)
3XXX Total Equity 2,139,313 61 2,085,532 59

SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT IX

LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNIZED

COMMITMENTS Under Liabilities

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE XI

REPORTING PERIOD
3X2X Total Liabilities and Equity $ 3,529,234 100 $ 3,517,879 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements. Please refer to them as a whole.

Chairman: Lee, Min

Manager: Lien, Chi-Ruei
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Arbot Technology Corp.

Parent Company Only Statements of Comprehensive Income

January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022

Unit: NT $thousands
(Except for earnings per share in NT $)

2023 2022
Item Note Amount % Amount %
4000  Operating revenue VIXXIV),VII $ 1,146,979 100 $ 1,257,706 100
5000 Operating costs VIV)(XHT)XXIX)(XXX),
v ( 824,621) ( 72) ( 973,599) ( 77)
5900 Gross profit from operations 322,358 28 284,107 23
5910 Unrealized profit from sales VI(VII) ( 15,651) ( 1) ( 13,676) ( 1)
5920 Realized profit on from sales VI(VIIT) 13,676 1 18,565 1
5950  Gross profit from operations 320,383 28 288,996 23
Operating expenses VIXHT(XXIX)(XXX), VI
6100 Selling expenses ( 89,220) ( 8) ( 71,965) ( 6)
6200 Administrative expenses ( 56,129) ( 5) ( 57,939) ( 5)
6300 Research and development expenses ( 77,489) ( 7 ( 76,838) ( 6)
6450 Expected credit Impairment loss X11(1y - - ( 1,464) -
6000 Total operating expenses ( 222,838) ( 20) ( 208,206) ( 17)
6900  Net operating income 97,545 8 80,790 6
Non-operating income and expenses
7100 Interest revenue VI(XXV).VII 22,251 2 2,858 -
7010 Other income VI(XXVI),VII 22,522 2 32,223 3
7020 Other gains and losses VI(XXVI) 26,084 2 79,975 6
7050 Finance costs VIXXVIIY ( 22,865) ( 2) ( 17,366) ( 1)
7070 Share of profits of associates and vivin)
joint ventures accounted for
using equity method, net 5,188 1 ( 6,912) ( 1)
7000 Total non-operating income and
expenses 53,180 5 90,778 7
7900  Net income before tax 150,725 13 171,568 13
7950 Income tax expense VI(XXXI) ( 27,827) ( 2) ( 39,180) ( 3)
8200  Net income for the year $ 122,898 11 $ 132,388 10
Other comprehensive income (Net)
Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
8311 Remeasurement of defined benefit vigxix)
plans ($ 3,816) - 3 1,807 -
8316 Unrealized gain (loss) on VI(VIT)
investments in equity instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income 1,392 - 2,830 -
8330 Share of Equity associates and joint
ventures accounted for using Other
comprehensive income-Item - - 72 -
8310 Total of Item that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss ( 2,424) - 4,709 -
Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
8361 Exchange differences on translation viviny
of foreign financial statements ( 8,113) ( 1) 18,022 2
8360 Total amount of Item that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss ( 8,113) ( 1) 18,022 2
8300  Other comprehensive income (Net) (% 10,537) ( 1) $ 22,731 2
8500 Total comprehensive income for
the period $ 112,361 10 $ 155,119 12
Earnings per share VI(XXXII)
9750 Basic earnings per share $ 130 $ 1.51
9850 Diluted earnings per share $ 130 $ 1.50

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements. Please refer to them as a whole.

Chairman: Lee, Min

Manager: Lien, Chi-Ruei
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Arbot Technology Corp.
Parent Company Only Statements of Cash Flows
January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022

Unit; NT $thousands

Notes FY2023 FY2022
Cash flows from operating activities
Income before income tax $ 150,725 $ 171,568
Adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Unrealized gain on inter-affiliate accounts ~ VI(VIII) 15,651 13,676
Realized gain on inter-affiliate accounts VI(VII ( 13,676) ( 18,565 )
Net gain on financial assets or liabilities at VI(I1)(XXVII)
fair value through profit or loss ( 17,582) ( 11,556)
Expected credit Impairment loss VI(XXIX) - 1,464
Depreciation expense VI(IX)(X)(XIN (X
XIX) 17,046 18,953
Amortization expense VIXHTD(XXIX) 5,874 7,740
Share-based payments VI(XX)(XXX) 3,605 2,298
Dividend revenue VI(XXIV) ( 937) ( 700)
Interest revenue VI(XXV) ( 22,251) ( 2,858)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and VI(XXVII)
equipment 52 3,441
Losses on disposals of investments (Gain) VI(XXVII) 81 ( 177)
Interest expense VI(XXVIII) 22,865 17,366
Share of loss (profit) of associates accounted VI(VIII)
for using equity method ( 5,188) 6,912
Changes in operating activities related to
Assets/Liabilities
Changes in operating assets
Fair value Financial Assets and Liabilities 7,931 17,562
Notes receivable, net 16 726
Accounts receivable 2,799 25,908
Accounts receivable-related parties ( 41,420) 55,711
Other receivables-related parties 71,680 ( 111,966 )
Inventories 22,870 ( 66,851 )
Other current assets 79,710 ( 31,690)
Changes in operating liabilities
Liabilities-current ( 2,050) 3,300
Notes payable ( 231) ( 2,124)
Accounts payable ( 52,624 ) 53,136
Accounts payable to related parties 10,244  ( 17,609 )
Other payables ( 8,520) 21,165
Other payables-related parties ( 2,438) 4,906
Other current liabilities 19 ( 330)
Other non-current liabilities ( 1,703 ) ( 1,777)
Cash inflow generated from operations 242,548 159,629
Interest received 20,482 2,781
Dividends received 937 700
Interest paid ( 22,816) ( 15,690 )
Income taxes paid ( 13,848) -
Income taxes refund 11 33
Net cash flows from operating activities 227,314 147,453

(Continued)
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Arbot Technology Corp.

Parent Company Only Statements of Cash Flows

January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022

Unit: NT $thousands

Notes FY2023 FY2022
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss Fair value Financial Assets (% 27,650) ($ 22,916)
Disposal Fair value Financial Assets 35,057 8,665
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other XII(I1)
comprehensive income - | 4,500)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value XII(III)
through other comprehensive income - 3,737
Acquisition of financial assets at amortized cost ( 26,874) ( 186,228 )
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment VI(IX) ( 2,364) ( 1,941)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
price 862 -
Acquisition of intangible assets VI(XTHT) ( 2,600) ( 1,870)
Increase in prepayments for business facilities ( 6,593 ) ( 9,763)
Increase in refundable deposits - | 3,439)
Net cash flows used in investing activities ( 30,162) ( 218,255)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in short-term loans VI(XXXIV) 87,418 58,976
Decrease in short-term notes and bills payable VI(XXXIV) - 42,000)
Repayments of long-term debt VI(XXXIV) ( 93,541) ( 120,178)
Repayment of lease principal VIXXXIV)  ( 2,936) ( 3,221)
Increase in guarantee deposits received VI(XXXIV) 30 226
Cash dividends paid VI(XXII) ( 75,609) ( 8,909)
Purchase of treasury share Cost VI(XXI) - 3,696 )
Proceeds from issuing shares VI(XXI) - 296,000
Exercise of employee share options VI(XXI) 13,424 -
Net cash flows (used in) from financing activities ( 71,214) 177,198
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 125,938 106,396
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 290,732 184,336
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 416,670 $ 290,732

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements. Please refer to them as a whole.

Chairman: Lee, Min Manager: Lien, Chi-Ruei
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Arbot Technology Corp.

Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements
2023 and 2022

Unit: NT $thousands
(Unless Stated Otherwise)

l. Company History

The original name of ARBOR Technology Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) was ARBOR
Technology Company, which was established in September 1993 and went through the reincorporation on January 27,
1995. The Company is engaged in the R&D, assembly, combination, processing, manufacturing, and trading of
industrial motherboards, computer products, peripheral devices, and electronic parts. The Company's shares were

approved for listing on the Main board of Taipei Exchange (TPEX) on May 7, 2013.

1. Approval date and procedures of the parent company only financial statements

The accompanying parent company only financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on March 15,
2024.

111. Application of new and revised standards and interpretations

The effect of adopting new and revised IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission

(hereafter the FSC)

The following table summarizes the new, revised or amended standards and interpretations of IFRSs endorsed

and issued into effect by the FSC as of the year 2023:

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations Effective Date Issued by IASB
“Disclosure of Accounting Policies” (Amendments to IAS 1) January 1, 2023
“Definition of Accounting Estimates” (Amendments to IAS 8) January 1, 2023
“Deferred income tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising January 1, 2023

from a Single Transaction” (Amendments to 1AS 12)
“International Tax Reform-Pillar Two Rules Template” May 23, 2023
(Amendments to IAS 12)

The Company assessed that there is no significant effect of the standards and interpretations above on the

Company’s financial position and financial performance.

The effect of not adopting new and revised IFRSs endorsed by the FSC

The following table summarizes the new, revised or amended standards and interpretations of IFRSs endorsed

and issued into effect by the FSC as of the year 2024:
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New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations Effective Date Issued by IASB

“Leases in Sale and Leaseback Liabilities”(Amendments to January 1, 2024
IFRS 16)
“Classification of Current or Non-current of Liabilities” January 1, 2024

(Amendments to IFRS 1)

“Onerous Contracts-Cost of Fulfilling a Contract Non-current liabilitiesJanuary 1, 2024
(Amendments to IFRS 1)

“Supplier Financing Arrangements”(Amendments to IAS7/ IFRS 7) January 1, 2024

The Company assessed that there is no significant effect of the standards and interpretations above on the

Company’s financial position and financial performance.

The effect of IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) but not yet endorsed by the FSC

The following table summarizes the new, revised or amended standards and interpretations of IFRSs issued by

the 1ASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC:

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations Effective Date Issued by IASB

“Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or JointTo be determined by (IASB)
Venture Assets”(Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28)

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023

Amendments to IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative InformationJanuary 1, 2023

(Amendment to IFRS 17)

Lack of Compatibility”(Amendments to 1AS 21) January 1, 2025

The Company assessed that there is no significant effect of the standards and interpretations above on the

Company’s financial position and financial performance.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying parent company only financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise

stated.

(1)  Statement of compliance
The accompanying parent company only financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the

Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

(11) Basis of preparation

1. Except for the following items, the accompanying parent company only financial statements have been
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(1)

(V)

prepared under the historical cost convention;

(1) Financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or
loss.

(2) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(3) Defined benefit liabilities recognized based on the net amount of pension fund assets less present value of
defined benefit obligation.

. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards,

International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the FSC
(collectively referred herein as the “IFRSs”) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the parent company only financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the Company’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (the “functional currency”). The parent company only financial
statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

1. Foreign currency transactions and balances

(1) Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or measurement. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(2) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the spot exchange
rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising upon adjustment at the balance
sheet date are recognized in profit or loss.

(3) Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies measured at fair value through
profit or loss are retranslated at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date; their
translation differences are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are retranslated at the
spot exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date; their exchange differences are recognized in
other comprehensive income. However, non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are not measured at fair value are translated using the historical exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions.

(4) All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of comprehensive income within
‘other gains and losses.’

2. Translation of foreign operations

(1) The operating results and financial positions of all entities and associates that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
A. Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange rate at
the date of that balance sheet;
B. Incomes and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates of that period; and
C. All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(2) Goodwill and fair value adjustments resulting from the acquisition of foreign entities are deemed as the
assets and liabilities of those foreign entities and translated at the ending exchange rate.

Classification of current and noncurrent assets and liabilities

1. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets:

(1) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realized, or are intended to be sold or
consumed within the normal operating cycle;

(2) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;

(3) Assets that are expected to be realized within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(4) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are to be
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exchanged or used to settle liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.
All the other assets that do not meet the criteria above are classified as noncurrent assets.
2. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities:

(1) Liabilities that are expected to be settled within the normal operating cycle;

(2) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;

(3) Liabilities that are to be settled within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(4) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than twelve months
after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All the other liabilities that do not meet the criteria above are classified as honcurrent liabilities.

(V) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash equivalents refer to short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits that meet the definition
above and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments in operations are classified as cash
equivalents.

(V1) FEinancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are financial assets that are not measured at
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.

2. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets at FVTPL are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis.

3. At initial recognition, the Company measures the financial assets at fair value and recognizes the transaction
costs in profit or loss. The Company subsequently measures the financial assets at fair value, and recognizes
the gain or loss in profit or loss.

4. The Company recognizes the dividend income when the right to receive payment is established, future
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

(VI Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

1. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) are equity securities for which
the Company has made an irrevocable election at initial recognition to recognize changes in fair value in
other comprehensive income.

2. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets at FVTOCI are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis.

3. At initial recognition, the Company measures the financial assets at fair value plus transaction costs. The
Company subsequently measures the financial assets at fair value:
The changes in fair value of equity investments are recognized in other comprehensive income. The
accumulated gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income should not be reclassified
to profit or loss following the derecognition and be reclassified to retained earnings. Dividends are recognized
as revenue when the right to receive payment is established, future economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(V1)  FEinancial assets at amortized cost
1. Financial assets that meet the following two conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:
(1) The financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and
(2) The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
2. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets at amortized cost are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date basis.
3. Atinitial recognition, the Company measures the financial assets at fair value plus transaction costs. Interest
revenue is subsequently recognized by using the effective interest method to amortize during the outstanding
period less any impairment loss. Gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss following the derecognition.
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(1X)

(X)

4. The time deposits held by the Company that do not meet the criteria of cash equivalents are measured at the
amount of investment due to the short holding period and immaterial effect of discounting.

Accounts and notes receivable

1. Accounts and notes receivable entitle the Company a legal right to receive consideration in exchange for
transferred goods or rendered services.

2. The short-term accounts and notes receivable without bearing interest are subsequently measured at initial
invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

(X1)

For financial assets at amortized cost and financial guarantee contracts, after taking into consideration all
reasonable and verifiable information (including forward-looking), the Company measures the impairment
provision for 12-month expected credit losses if there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition at each balance sheet date. The Company measures the impairment provision for the lifetime
expected credit losses (ECLSs) if such credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition. For accounts
receivable or contract assets that do not contain a significant financing component, the Company measures the
impairment provision for lifetime ECLs.

Derecognition of financial assets

(X11)

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
financial asset expire.

Leasing arrangements (lessor) — Lease payments receivable/Operating lease

Lease income from operating leases less any lease incentive to lessors is recognized in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

(X1H1)  Inventories

(X1V)

The Company adopts the perpetual inventory system. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted-average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in process comprises raw materials, direct labor, other direct costs and related manufacturing overheads
(allocated based on normal operating capacity), excluding borrowing costs. The item-by-item approach is
used in applying the lower of cost and net realizable value rule. Net realizable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and applicable variable selling
expenses.

Investments accounted for using equity method/subsidiaries and associates

1. A subsidiary is referred to the entity controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when
the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

2. Unrealized gains and losses on transactions between the Company and subsidiaries are eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Company.

3. The Company’s share of its subsidiaries’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in profit or loss,
and its share of post-acquisition other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive
income. When the Company’s share of losses in a subsidiary equals or exceeds its interest in the
subsidiary, the Company continues to recognize losses proportionate to its ownership.

4. 1If changes in the Company’s shares in subsidiaries do not result in loss in control (transactions with
noncontrolling interest), transactions shall be considered as equity transactions, i.e., transactions between
owners in their capacity as owners. Difference between adjustment of noncontrolling interest and fair
value of consideration paid or received is directly recognized in equity.

5. Upon loss of control of a subsidiary, the Company remeasures any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at fair value as the amount for the initial recognition of the fair value of financial asset or the
cost of investment in associates and joint ventures. Any difference between fair value and carrying
amount is recognized in profit or loss. All the amount previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary is reclassified to profit or loss, on the same basis as would be
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required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of. That is, when the Company loses control of
the subsidiary, the profit or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

6. Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control. Generally
speaking, it refers to the fact that an investor holds, directly or indirectly, 20 percent or more of the
voting shares of the investee. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are
initially recognized at cost.

7. The Company’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in profit or loss,
and its share of post-acquisition other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive
income. When the Company’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate (including any other unsecured receivables), the Company does not recognize further losses,
unless it has incurred statutory or constructive obligations, or made payments on behalf of the associate.

8. When changes in an associate’s equity do not arise from either profit or loss, or other comprehensive
income of the associate, and such changes do not affect the Company’s ownership percentage of the
associate, the Company recognizes the Company’s share of change in equity of the associate in ‘capital
surplus’ in proportion to its ownership.

9. Unrealized gains on transactions between the Company and its associates are eliminated to the extent of
the Company’s interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Company.

10. In the case that an associate issues new shares and the Company does not subscribe or acquire new shares
proportionately, which results in a change in the Company’s ownership percentage of the associate but
maintains significant influence on the associate, then ‘capital surplus’ and ‘investments accounted for
under the equity method’ shall be adjusted for the increase or decrease of its share of equity interest. If
the above condition results in a decrease in the Company’s ownership percentage of the associate, in
addition to the adjustment above, the amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
relation to the associate are reclassified to profit or loss proportionately on the same basis as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

11. According to the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers,
profit (loss) of the current period and other comprehensive income in the parent company only financial
statements shall equal to the amount attributable to owners of the parent in the consolidated financial
statements. Owners’ equity in the parent company only financial statements shall equal to equity
attributable to owners of the parent in the consolidated financial statements.

(XV) Property, plant and equipment

1. Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost.

2. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

3. Property, plant, and equipment are subsequently measured using cost model. Except land is not
depreciated, other property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method. If each
part of an item of property, plant, and equipment is significant, the part should be depreciated separately.

4. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of the assets are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each end of the financial period. If expectations for residual values and useful lives of the
assets differ from previous estimates or the patterns of consumption of the assets’ future economic
benefits embodied in the assets have changed significantly, any change is accounted for as a change in
estimate under IAS &, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’, from the date
of the change. The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Buildings 10-50 years
Machinery and equipment 5 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
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(XVI)

(XVI1)

(XVI1I1)

(X1X)

(XX)

Other equipment 3-5 years

Leasing arrangements (lessee) — right — of - use assets/lease liabilities

1. Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Company. For short-term leases or leases of low-value assets,
lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2. Lease liabilities are recognized at the net present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing interest rate. Lease payments are
comprised of fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable. The Company subsequently measures
the lease liability at amortized cost using the interest method and recognizes interest expense over the
lease term. The lease liability is remeasured and the amount of remeasurement is recognized as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset when there are changes in the lease term or lease payments and such
changes do not arise from contract modifications.

3. The right-of-use asset is stated at cost at the commencement date. The cost is comprised of the amount of
the initial measurement of lease liability. The right-of-use asset is measured subsequently using the cost
model and is depreciated from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the asset’s useful life
or the end of the lease term. When the lease liability is remeasured, the amount of remeasurement is
recognized as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

4. For the lease modification that decreases the scope of the lease, the lessee should decrease the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease. The difference
between the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability should be recognized in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are initially recognized at cost, and subsequently measured under cost model. Except

land, investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method with 20 to 50 years of estimated
useful lives.

Intangible assets
Computer software

Computer software is initially recognized at cost and amortized using the straight-line method with 3 to 5
years of estimated useful lives.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets where there is an
indication that they are impaired. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell or value in use. When the circumstances or reasons for recognizing impairment loss for an
asset in prior years no longer exist or diminish, the impairment loss is reversed. The increased carrying
amount due to reversal should not be more than what the depreciated or amortized historical cost would have
been if the impairment had not been recognized.

Borrowings
Borrowings comprise long-term and short-term bank borrowings. Borrowings are initially recognized at fair

value less transaction costs, and subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds
less transaction costs, and the redemption value, is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
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(XXI)

(XXI1)

(XXI111)

(XX1V)

(XXV)

(XX V1)

Notes and accounts payable

1. Accounts payable are liabilities for purchases of raw materials, goods or services and notes payable are
those resulting from operating and non-operating activities.

2. The short-term notes and accounts payable without bearing interest are subsequently measured at initial
invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

1. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are those financial liabilities that are incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing them in the near term, and that are held for trading other
than the derivative instruments that are designated hedging instrument under hedge accounting.

2. Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, with related transaction costs recognized in
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value, and the gain or loss are
recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

Bonds payable

The convertible bonds payable are issued by the Company with embedded conversion rights (i.e., the
bond holders have rights to elect to convert bonds into a fixed number of common shares of the Company
at a fixed price.), put options, and call options. At initial issuance, the Company should classify the issue
price into financial assets, financial liabilities, or equities in accordance with the contractual arrangement
as follows:

1. The host contract, embedded put option, and call option, are initially recognized at fair value. The
difference in the redemption price is recognized as the discount on bonds payable. Interest amortization is
subsequently recognized in profit or loss, as an adjustment to “financial cost,” using the effective interest
method in the outstanding period.

2. The embedded conversion rights that meet the definition of equity are initially recognized as “capital
surplus —conversion rights” at the amount of issue price minus net bonds payable, without subsequent
measurement.

3. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance are allocated to the liability and equity
components of the instrument in proportion to the initial carrying amount.

4.When conversion rights are exercised, bonds payable are first accounted for in accordance with its
subsequent measurement. The issue cost of converted common shares are the determined by the carrying
amount of the aforementioned bonds payable plus the carrying amount of “capital surplus— conversion
rights.”

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported in the net amount in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial quarantee contracts

1. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
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paid and should be recognized as expenses in that period when the employees render service.

2. Pensions

(1) Defined contribution plan
For defined contribution plan, the contributions are recognized as pension expenses when they
are due on an accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent of a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments.
(2) Defined benefit plan
A. Net obligation under a defined benefit plan is calculated as the present value of an amount of
pension benefits that employees will receive on retirement for their services with the
Company in current period or prior periods, and is recognized as a liability in the balance
sheet the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair
value of plan assets. The net defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent
actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The discount rate is determined by referring
to the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related pension liability. When there is no deep market in high-quality corporate bonds,
the Company uses interest rates of government bonds (at the balance sheet date) instead.
B.Remeasurements arising on defined benefit plan are recognized in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise and are presented in retained earnings.

3. Compensation of employees and remuneration of directors

Compensation of employees and remuneration of directors are recognized as expense and liability,
provided that such recognition is required under legal or constructive obligation and those amounts
can be reliably estimated. Any difference between the estimated amounts and the subsequently actual
distributed amounts is accounted for as changes in estimates. As for the compensation of employees
distributed by stocks, the base used to determine number of shares is the closing price of the day prior
to the date of the board of directors’ resolution.

(XXVII) Employee share-based payment

(XXVIIN)

For equity-settled share-based payment transactions, the Company should measure the employee
services received at the fair value of equity instruments granted at the grant date. Compensation costs
are recognized during the vesting period and are made adjustment to equity. The fair value of the
equity instruments reflects the effects of vesting market conditions and non-vesting conditions.
Previously recognized compensation costs are adjusted based on the number of awards that are
expected to satisfy the service condition and non-market vesting condition so that the amount is
ultimately recognized based on the vesting number on vesting date.

Taxation

. The income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in profit

or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or items
recognized directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognized in other comprehensive income or

equity.

. The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively

enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
accordance with applicable tax regulations. It establishes provisions where appropriate based on the
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. An additional tax is levied on the unappropriated

retained earnings and is recorded as income tax expense in the year the stockholders resolve to retain
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the earnings based on the actual earnings distribution.

3. Deferred income tax is recognized, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences

arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
balance sheet. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of goodwill, or of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates is not recognized if the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Company and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

4. Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit

will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. At each balance sheet date,

unrecognized and recognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed.

5. Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet when the entity has the legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and they are levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities that intend to settle on a net

basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(XXI1X) Share capital

(XXX)

1. Ordinary share is classified as equity. Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of

new stocks or stock options are presented in equity net of income tax as a contra account to the price.

. Where the Company repurchases the Company’s equity share capital that has been issued, the

consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental cost net of income tax, is
recognized as a contra account to equity. Where such shares are subsequently reissued, the difference
between their book value and any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction cost and the related income tax effects, is adjusted to equity.

Dividends distribution

Dividends are recognized in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders’ meeting of the Company. Cash dividends are recorded as liabilities; stock dividends are
recorded as stock dividends to be distributed and are reclassified to ordinary shares on the effective date of
new shares issuance.

(XXXI1) Revenue recognition

1.The Company manufactures and sells industrial motherboards, computer products, peripheral devices,

electronic parts, and related products. Sales revenue is recognized when control of the products has

been transferred to the customer, being when the products are delivered to the customer, and there are
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unfulfilled performance obligations that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery of goods occurs only when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks
of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, or the Company has objective evidence that all

criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

2. A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered to the customer because this is the point of
time when the consideration is unconditional to the Company with only the passage of time required

before the payment is due.
3. Financing component

Based on the Company’s contracts with customers, the period between when the Company transfers a
promised good or service to a customer and when the customer pays for that good or service is never

more than one year; therefore, the transaction price is not adjusted to reflect the time value of money.

Critical Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Key Sources of Assumption Uncertainty

The preparation of these parent company only financial statements requires management to make critical judgments in
applying the Company’s accounting policies and make critical assumptions and estimates concerning future events on
balance sheet dates. Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are continually evaluated and
adjusted based on historical experience and other factors. Such assumptions and estimates have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year; and the

related information is as follows:

(1)  Critical judgments in applying the Company’s accounting policies

None.

(I1)  Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

1. Impairment assessment of accounts receivable

In the process of assessing impairment of accounts receivable, the Company uses the expected credit loss in
accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. Management assesses the expected credit loss on
impairment of accounts receivable based on assumptions about the individual customer’s overdue period,
financial position, operating condition, and historical experience as well as the forward-looking information.

As of December 31, 2023, the carrying amount of accounts and notes receivable was $357,9266.
2. Valuation of inventories

As inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, the Company and some subsidiaries
(investment accounted for using the equity method) must determine the net realizable value of inventories on
balance sheet dates using judgments and estimates. Due to the rapid technology innovation, the Company and
some subsidiaries (investment accounted for using the equity method) evaluate the amounts of normal

inventory consumption, obsolete inventories or inventories without market selling value on balance sheet
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dates, and writes down the cost of inventories to the net realizable value. Such a valuation of inventories is
principally based on the demand for the products within the specified period in the future. Therefore, there
might be material changes to the valuation.

As of December 31, 2023, the carrying amount of inventories was $324,202.

V1. Details of Significant Accounts

(I)  Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Cash on hand and working fund $ 348 $ 466
Checking accounts and demand deposits 161,266 159,748
Time deposits 255,056 130,518
Total $ 416,670 $ 290,732

1. The Company transacts with a variety of financial institutions all with high credit quality to disperse credit

risk, so it expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote.

2. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts of restricted cash and cash equivalents due to borrowings
were $260,526 and $233,652, respectively, and were classified as “financial assets at amortized cost.” Please

refer to Notes VI (I11) and VIII for more information.

(1) Einancial assets (liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss —current

Item December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current item:

Financial assets mandatorily measured

at fair value

Beneficiary certificate $ 27,871 $ 35,278

Convertible bonds 70,012 70,012

Valuation adjustment 7417 ( 444)
$ 105,300 $ 104,846

Financial liabilities mandatorily
measured at fair value
Non-hedging derivatives —FX swap 3 ) 3 1709
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1. Amounts recognized in profit or loss in relation to financial assets (liabilities) at fair value through

profit or loss are listed below: :

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
Beneficiary certificate
Convertible bonds— AMobile
Non-hedging derivatives
- FX swap
- FX forward

Total

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

mandatorily
$ 1,467 $ 1,551)
9,700 260
6,415 13,407
( 560)
$ 17,582 $ 11,556

2. The information on the Company’s transactions and contracts of derivative liabilities which are ineligible for

hedge accounting:

Derivative liabilities

FX swap
FX swap
FX swap

December 31, 2022

Contract amount
(Notional value)
usD 850 thousand
USD 1,000 thousand
USD 1,000 thousand

Contract period

2022.09.08-2023.03.13
2022.09.28-2023.03.30
2022.09.29-2023.03.29

The Company entered into FX swap contracts for purchasing raw materials (buying USD and selling NTD) in

order to hedge the exchange rate risk of selling prices, yet ineligible for hedge accounting.

3. The Company did not pledge financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to others as collateral.

4. Information relating to credit risk of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is provided in Note

XX11 (1)

(I11) FEinancial assets at amortized cost—current

Item
Current items
Repurchase agreement of
commercial papers
Restricted bank deposits
Total

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

$ 87,524 $ 87,523
173,002 146,129
$ 260,526 $ 233,652
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(V)

1. Amounts recognized in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at amortized cost are listed below:

2023 2022

Interest revenue $ 12,076 $ 1,387

2.As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represented the

financial assets at amortised cost held by the Group were $260,526 and $233,652, respectively.

3. For information on the Company’s financial assets at amortized cost pledged to others as collateral, please

refer to Note VIII.

4. For information on the credit risk of financial assets at amortized cost, please refer to Note XII (II). The
Company invests in the certificates of deposit issued by financial institutions with high credit quality, so it

expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote.

Notes and accounts receivable

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Notes receivable $ 29 $ 45
Accounts receivable $ 148,870 $ 151,827
Less: Allowance for impairment loss ( 1,978) ( 2,136)
$ 146,892 3 149,691
Accounts receivable —related parties $ 211,005 3 169,585

1. The following is the notes and accounts receivable (including related parties) aging report:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Notes Accounts Notes Accounts

receivable receivable receivable receivable
Current $ 29 $ 261,829 $ 45 $ 275,752
Within 30 days - 38,836 - 13,107
31-90 days - 20,883 - 856
91-180 days - 29,100 - 19,327
Over 180 days - 9,227 - 12,370
$ 29 $ 359,875 $ 45 $ 321,412

The above aging analysis was based on past due date.

2. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, accounts and notes receivable were all from contracts with customers. As

of January 1, 2022, the balances of notes and accounts receivable from contracts with customers were $771
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and $402,359, respectively.

3. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancement, the maximum exposures to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represented the
Company’s notes receivable (including related parties) were $29 and $45, respectively. As of December 31,
2023 and 2022, the maximum exposures to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represented the

Company’s accounts receivable (including related parties) were $357,897 and $319,276, respectively.
4. The Company does not hold any collateral.

5. For information related to credit risk of accounts and notes receivable, please refer to Note XII (11).

(V) Inventories

December 31, 2023

Allowance to reduce

Cost inventory to market Carrying amount
Raw materials $ 161,973 ($ 20,710) $ 141,263
Work-in-process 82,656 ( 7,064) 75,592
Finished goods 102,249 ( 4,313) 97,936
Merchandise 34,104 ( 24,693) 9,411
Total $ 380,982 $ 56,780) $ 324,202

December 31, 2022

Allowance to reduce

Cost inventory to market Carrying amount
Raw materials $ 165,268 ($ 15,280) $ 149,988
Work-in-process 121,490 ( 6,561) 114,929
Finished goods 74,864 ( 4,899) 69,965
Merchandise 37,586 ( 25,396) 12,190
Total $ 399,208 $ 52,136) $ 347,072

The expenses related to Inventories recognized in the current period:

2023 2022
Cost of goods sold (% 770,664) (% 923,725)
Unamortized labor and manufacturing overhead ( 36,290) ( 31,559)
Gain (loss) on inventory valuation ( 4,644) ( 13,818)
Loss from obsolescence ( 13,023) ( 4,497)
$ 824,621) $ 973,599)
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(V1) Other current assets

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Prepayment for purchases $ 243,614 $ 313,879
Prepaid expense 6,959 10,657
Overpaid sales tax 3,925 9,463
Income tax refund receivable 2,571 4,540
Other receivables 1,920 160
$ 258,989 $ 338,699

(V1) Einancial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) —noncurrent

Ite December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Equity instrument

Non-listed stocks $ 12,220 $ 15,312
Valuation adjustment 440 ( 4,044)
$ 12,660 $ 11,268

1. The Company chose to classify the strategic investment in non-listed stocks as financial assets at FVTOCI. As

of December 31, 2022 and 2021, fair value of those investments was $12,660 and $11,268, respectively.

2. The Company disposed of all stocks of Top Cloud Technology Inc. in September 2022, with a total of
373,750 shares and price of $3,737. The Company derecognized the cost of investment (i.e., carrying amount)

of $3,737, without gain on disposal.

3.In July 2023, the Company obtained the Arbor Australia Pty Liquidation Completion
Certificate and derecognized the original investment cost and accumulated impairment of
$3,092.

4. Items recognized in profit or loss and other comprehensive income in relation to financial assets at FVTOCI

were as follows:

2023 2022
Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Changes in fair value recognized in other

comprehensive income $ 1,392 $ 2,830

Cumulative gains or losses reclassified to

retained earnings due to derecognition % 3,092) $ -

Dividend revenue recognized in profit or loss

still held at the end of the period $ 937 $ 700
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(V1)

5. For information on fair value related to financial assets at FVTOCI, please refer to Note XII (111).

Investments accounted for using equity method

1. Changes in investments accounted for using equity method (including those classified as liabilities) are as

follows:
2023 2022

January 1 $ 993,523 $ 977,472
Share of investment income (loss) 5,188 6,912)
Changes in capital surplus - 20)
Changes in retained earnings - 72
Changes in other equity ( 8,113) 18,022
Changes in unrealized sales gross profits ( 1,975) 4,889
December 31 $ 988,623 $ 993,523

2. The details of investments accounted for using equity method are as follows:

December 31, 2023

Classified as assets:

Subsidiaries

Arbor Solution,Inc. (Arbor Solution) $ 93,250
Guiding Technology Ltd. (Guiding) 9,620
Excellent Top International Development Limited 214,253

(Excellent Top)

Arbor France S.A.S (Arbor France) 43,260
Flourish Technology Co., Ltd.(Flourish) 54,890
Arbor Korea Co.,Ltd. (Arbor Korea) 25,088
Acloud Intelligence Services Corp. Ltd. (Acloud) 15,575
Best Vintage Global LTD.(Best Vintage) 100,687
Associates
AMobile Intelligent Corp. Ltd (AMobile HK) 432,193
$ 988,816

December 31, 2023

Classified as liabilities:
Subsidiaries
Ailled Info Investments Ltd.
(Ailled Info) $ 193

December 31, 2022

$ 86,313
9,558
215,182

37,776
69,878
28,203
12,644

76,656

457,505

$ 993,715

December 31, 2022

$ 192
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3. Share of income (loss) from subsidiaries accounted for using equity method:

Investees 2023 2022
Subsidiaries
Arbor Solution $ 9,007 $ 2,644
Guiding 63 307
Ailled Info ( 4) 6
Excellent Top 3,346 2,624
Arbor France 3,995 13,376
Flourish ( 13,835) ( 34,287)
Arbor Korea 4,313 ( 1,135)
Acloud 2,931 ( 7,839)
Best Vintage 20,659 7,205
Associates
AMobile HK ( 25,287) 10,187
$ 5,188 (¢ 6,912)

4.For information on subsidiaries of the Company, please refer to the Note IV (l11) of consolidated financial

statements for the year ended December 31, 2023.

5.In December 2022, AMobile HK raised capital by issuing new shares for US$ 2,300,000. The Company did
not purchase in proportion to its ownership; therefore, the ownership ration decreased from 45.29% to
39.31%.

6. The basic information of the associate that is material to the Company is as follows:

Company name Principle place Shareholding ratio Method of
of business measurement
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
AMobile HK Taiwan 39.31% 39.31% Equity method

7.The summarized financial information of the associate that is material to the Company is as follows:

Balance Sheet

AMobile HK
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Current assets $ 1,281,435 $ 1,344,156
Noncurrent assets 54,768 47,433
Current liabilities ( 845,684) ( 750,494)
Noncurrent liabilities ( 11,577) ( 94,470)
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Total net assets $ 478,942 $ 546,625
Share in associate's net assets (Note) $ 188,272 $ 214,878

Note: The difference with the carrying amount is mainly from the difference between the original investment

cost minus fair value of identifiable net assets and the adjustment to unrealized sales gross profit.

Statement of comprehensive income

AMobile HK
2023 2022
Revenue $ 457,287 $ 666,022
Net income $ 64,329) $ 23,882
Total comprehensive income $ 68,652) $ 24,041

8.In the Investments accounted for using equity method on December 31, 2023, AMobile
HK was evaluated according to the financial statements audited and certified by other

accountant.

9. The Company holds 39.31% of shares of AMobile HK and is the single biggest shareholder. Because the
other three shareholders (unrelated parties) hold a total of 39.31% of shares of AMobile HK; and based on the
investment agreement, significant policies should not be only executed without written agreements of both
AMobile HK and investors; in addition, since the Company and other two listed corporate shareholders are
responsible for significant relevant activities, such as sales, development of products, and technical support,
respectively, under the framework of three-party joint venture, no single party of the three can decide
significant operating activities alone to establish the business model and product value of AMobile HK,
which means that the value-added activities are under mutual management and support by the three listed
companies; therefore, it is judged that the Company has only significant influence but not control over

AMobile HK since it is shown that the Company does not take the lead on relevant activities.

(1X) Property, plant, and equipment

2023
Machinery Office
Land Buildings and equipment equipment Other Total
January 1
Cost
$ 397,131 $ 168,110 $ 3,134 $ 5,980 $ 40,525 $ 614,880
Accumulated
depreciation . (31297 ( 1.664) (_ 2751) (__28515) (_ 64,227)

$ 397,131 $ 136,813 $ 1470 $ 3,229 $ 12,010 $ 550,653

January 1
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2023

Machinery Office
Land Buildings and equipment equipment Other Total
Additions ) ; ; 554 1,810 2,364
Disposals — Cost
] S 700) ( 195) (  5879) (  6774)
Disposals -
Accumulated
depreciation ) - 292 191 5,377 5,860
Reclassifications
(Note) . - - 1,505 9,612 11,117
Depreciation
Expense - 6,783)  ( 316) (_ 1,525) (__ 4684) (_ 13,308)
December 31
$ 397,131 $ 130,030 $ 746 $ 3,759 $ 18,246 $549,912
December 31
Cost
$ 397,131 $ 168,110 $ 2434 $ 7,844 $ 46,068 $ 621,587
Accumulated
depreciation - 38,080) ( 1.688) ( 4,085) (27822) (__71675)
$ 397,131 $ 130,030 $ 746 $ 3,759 $ 18,246 $549,912
2022
Machinery Office
Land Buildings and equipment equipment Other Total
January 1
Cost $ 401,081 $ 141,906 $ 2,766 $ 5,616 $ 57,303 $ 608,672
Accumulated
depreciation - ( 26,847) ( 1,198) 2,905) (__35,786) (__66,736)
$ 401,081 $ 115,059 1,568 2,711 21,517 $ 541,936
January 1 $ 401,081 $ 115,059 1,568 2,711 21,517 $ 541,936
Additions i i . 1,753 188 1,941
Disposals — Cost
- - - 1,389) ( 17,394) ( 18,783)
Disposals -
Accumulated
depreciation i i . 1,206 14,136 15,342
Reclassifications
(Note) 3,950) 28,303 368 - 428 25,149
Depreciation
expense ) ( 6.549) ( 466) 1,052) ( 6,865) (_14,932)
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December 31

$ 397,131 $ 136,813 $ 1470 $ 3,229 $ 12,010 $ 550,653
December 31
Cost $ 397,131 $ 168,110 $ 3134 $ 5,980 $ 40,525 $ 614,880
Accumulated
depreciation - ( 31,297) ( 1,664) ( 2,751) (__28,515) (_64,227)
$397,131 $ 136,813 $ 1470 $ 3229 $ 12,010 $ 550,653

Note: The amounts were reclassified from prepayment on properties and investment properties to property, plant,

and equipment. Please refer to Notes VI (XI1I) and VI (XXXIII) for related information.

1. There were no interests that should be capitalized for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,

respectively.

2. For information on the property, plant and equipment that were pledged to others as collateral please refer to
Note VIII.

(X) Leasing arrangements — lessee

1. The Company leases various assets including buildings, company cars, and multifunction devices. Lease
contracts are typically made for periods between 2020 to 2025. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose

covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

2. The carrying amount of right-of-use assets and the depreciation charge were as follows:

2023

Buildings Shipping equipment Office equipment Total
January 1
Cost $ 1,893 $ 2,001 $ 3,174 $ 7,068
Accumulated depreciation ( 1,498) ( 1,751) ( 2,461) ( 5,710)

$ 395 $ 250 $ 713 $ 1,358
January 1 $ 395 $ 250 $ 713 $ 1,358
Additions— New leases - 1,343 3,968 5,311
Derecognition-cost ( 1,893) ( 2,001) ( 3,174) ( 7,068)
Derecognition-
Accumulated depreciation 1,893 2,001 3,174 7,068
Depreciation expense ( 395) ( 670) ( 1,870) ( 2,935)
December 31 $ - $ 923 $ 2,811 $ 3,734
December 31
Cost $ - $ 1,343 $ 3,968 $ 5,311
Accumulated depreciation - ( 420) ( 1,157) ( 1,577)
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January 1
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

January 1

Additions— New leases
Depreciation expense
December 31
December 31

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

3 - $ 923 $ 2,811 3 3,734
2022

Buildings Shipping equipment Office equipment Total
$ 1,893 $ 2,001 $ 2,938 $ 6,832
( 552) ( 1,084) ( 857) ( 2,493)
$ 1,341 $ 917 $ 2,081 $ 4,339
1,341 917 $ 2,081 4,339
- - 236 236
( 946) ( 667) ( 1,604) ( 3,217)
$ 395 $ 250 $ 713 $ 1,358
$ 1,893 $ 2,001 $ 3,174 $ 7,068
( 1,498) ( 1,751) ( 2,461) ( 5,710)
$ 395 $ 250 $ 713 $ 1,358

3. The information on lease liabilities relating to lease contracts is as follows:

Total lease liabilities

Less: Current portion

(Presented as “Lease liabilities — Current”)

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

4. The information on profit and loss relating to lease contracts is as follows:

Items affecting profit or loss

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Expense on short-term lease contracts

Expense on leases for assets of low value

3,729 $ 1,354
2,661) ( 1,354)
1,068 $ -
2023 2022
60 $ 43
647 110
92 82

5.For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s total cash outflow for leases were $3,735

and $3,452, respectively.
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(X1) Leasing arrangements — lessor

1. The Company leases assets including land and buildings. Lease contracts are typically made for periods

between 2023 to 2028. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of

different terms and conditions. In order to secure the rental assets, the lease agreements usually require

lessors not to pledge the lease assets as collaterals or require lessors to provide guaranteed residual value.

2. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company recognized rent income of $3,432 and

$3,559 based on the operating lease contracts, respectively, in which there were no changes to the lease

payments.

3. The analysis of the due dates of lease payments of operating lease contracts is as follows:

Less than 1 year

Over 1 year but less than 5 years

Total

(X11) Investment properties

January 1
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

January 1
Depreciation expense

December 31

December 31
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

January 1
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

$ 1,007 1,007
4,030 4,030
$ 5,037 5,037
2023
Land Buildings Total
51,389 $ 26,517 77,906
- ( 3,565) 3,565)
51,389 $ 22,952 74,341
51,389 $ 22,952 74,341
- ( 803) 803)
51,389 $ 22,149 73,538
51,389 $ 26,517 77,906
- ( 4,368) 4,368)
51,389 $ 22,149 73,538
2022
Land Buildings Total
47,439 $ 22,400 69,839
- ( 663) 663)
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(X111)

47,439 21,737 69,176
January 1 47,439 21,737 69,176
Reclassification (Note 1) 3,950 2,019 5,969
Depreciation expense - 804) 804)
December 31 51,389 22,952 74,341
December 31
Cost 51,389 26,517 77,906
Accumulated depreciation - 3,565) 3,565)

51,389 22,952 74,341

Note: The amounts were reclassified from property, plant, and equipment to investment properties. Please

refer to Note VI (XXXII1) for related information.

1. Rent revenue and direct operating expenses of investment properties are summarized as follows:

2023 2022
Rent revenue from investment properties $ 2,504 3 2,552
Direct operating expenses incurred by the
investment properties that generate current
rent revenue $ 1,296 $ 921

. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the fair value of investment properties held by the Company was

$89,047 and $98,393, respectively. The aforementioned fair value was estimated based on the market

prices of similar properties in the neighborhood of related properties, which is the level 2 fair value

measurement.

3. For information on the investment properties pledged as collaterals, please refer to Note VIII.

Intangible assets

2023
Computer software Patent Total

January 1
Cost $ 22,578 9,762 $ 32,340
Accumulated amortization 13,185) 8,929) 22,114)

$ 9,393 833 10,226
January 1 $ 9,393 833 10,226
Additions 2,600 - 2,600
Reclassification(Note) 132 - 132
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(X1V)

Amortization expense ( 5,041) ( 833) 5,874)
December 31 $ 7,084 $ - $ 7,084
December 31
Cost $ 25,310 $ 9,762 $ 35,072
Accumulated amortization ( 18,226) ( 9,762) 27,988)
$ 7,084 $ - $ 7,084
2022
Computer software Patent Total
January 1
Cost $ 23,838 $ 9,762 $ 33,600
Accumulated amortization ( 14,577) ( 6,976) 21,553)
9,261 2,786 12,047
January 1 9,261 2,786 12,047
Additions 1,870 - 1,870
Reclassification(Note) 4,049 - 4,049
Amortization expense ( 5,787) ( 1,953) 7,740)
December 31 $ 9,393 $ 833 $ 10,226
December 31
Cost $ 22,578 $ 9,762 $ 32,340
Accumulated amortization ( 13,185) ( 8,929) 22,114)
$ 9,393 $ 833 $ 10,226

Note: Reclassified from Prepayments for business facilities to Intangible assets. Please

refer to VI (XXXIII).

The details of amortization of intangible assets are as follows:

2023

Operating costs $ 869
Selling expenses 1,768
General and administrative expenses 1,807
Research and development expenses 1,430

$ 5,874

Short-term borrowings
Type of borrowings December 31, 2023 Interest rate range

Bank loans
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2022

875

1,765
2,708
2,392

7,740

Collateral



Credit loans

Secured loans

Type of borrowings

410,000
236,500

646,500

Bank loans
Credit loans

Secured loans

Purchase order

financing

December 31, 2022

320,000
179,000

0.50%~2.22%
0.50%~1.97%

Interest rate range

1.58%~1.98%
1.36%~1.96%

1.50%~1.92%

60,082

559,082

(XV) Short-term notes and bills payable

Commercial paper

payable

Less: Unamortized

discount

Commercial paper

payable

Less: Unamortized

discount

(XVI1)  Other payables

Salary payable

Employee compensation payable

Compensation due to directors and

December 31, 2023 |

nterest rate range

72,000

72,000

December 31, 2022

1.94~1.97%

Interest rate range

72,000

72,000

December 31, 2023

$ 27,271
8,000
1,000
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1.89%

Notes guarantee issued

Land, buildings and restricted
deposits

Collateral
Notes guarantee issued
Land, buildings and restricted
deposits
None

Collateral
Notes guarantee issued and
Repurchase agreement of
commercial papers

Collateral
Notes guarantee issued and
Repurchase agreement of

commercial papers

December 31, 2022

$

33,078
4,500
1,000



(XVII)

supervisors

Other expenses payable 19,905 26,069

$ 56,176 $ 64,647

Bonds payable

1. The offering and issuance of the Company’s third unsecured domestic convertible bonds were approved

by the competent authority in December 2019. The offering was completed in January 2020. The principal

covenants are as follows:

(1) Total par value: NT $300,000.

(2) Outstanding period: 3 years, from January 20, 2020 to January 20, 2023

(3) Coupon rate: 0%

(4) Conversion period: The bondholder is entitled to require the stock transfer agent of the Company to
convert the bonds into ordinary shares after the third month of the issuance to the maturity date
unless book closure is required by the covenants or regulations. The converted common shares shall
rank pari passu with the issued and outstanding common shares.

(5) Conversion price and adjustment: The conversion price is determined by the model stated in the
conversion rule. If the anti-dilution provisions are subsequently applicable, the Company will adjust
the conversion price in accordance with the model stated in the conversion rule. Subsequently on the
base date set in the rule, conversion price will be re-determined based on the model stated in the
conversion rule. If the re-determined conversion price is higher than the current conversion price,
adjustment will not be applicable.

(6) Redemption rule:

A. Redemption on the maturity date: The Company will redeem all the outstanding bonds on the
maturity date in cash.

B. Early redemption: After the third month of the issuance date to 40 days before maturity, if the
closing price of the Company’s common share exceeds 30% of the current conversion price for
30 consecutive business days, or if the convertible bonds’ outstanding balance is lower than 10%
of the total issuance amount, the Company is entitled to redeem the bonds in cash at par value
from the bondholder on the fifth business day after the redemption date, plus accrued interest at
the annual rate of 0.5% from the issuance date to the redemption date.

C. In accordance with the conversion rule, all redeemed (including redeemed via TPEX), repaid, and
converted bonds will be retired with extinction of all attached rights and obligations and will not
be reissued anymore.

(7) For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the balances of capital surplus—stock option
related to exercised conversion rights were $0 and $8,853, respectively. As of December 31, 2023
and 2022, the par value of bonds with conversion right exercised was both $300,000. Based on the
current conversion price per share upon conversion 13,634 thousand has been converted. The amount
of capital surplus arising from the conversion was $182,751.

2.When the Company issued the third unsecured domestic convertible bonds, since the economic

characteristics and risks of the call option, a non-equity item, are not closely related to the economic
characteristics and risks of the host contract, the call option is accounted for and presented as a “financial
asset at FVTPL” at net carrying amount separately in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial instruments.”

The effective interest rate of the host contract is 2.27% after separation.

3. When the Company issues convertible bonds, the Company separates the conversion right, which is an

equity component, from all the other liability components in accordance with 1AS 32 and presents it as

“capital surplus—stock option.” As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the amount of capital surplus — stock

option was both $0.

4. When the convertible bonds’ outstanding balance is lower than 10% of the total issuance amount, the

286



Company is entitled to redeem the bonds in cash at par value from the bondholder in accordance with the
Article 18 of The Third Unsecured Domestic Convertible Bonds Issuance and Conversion Rule. The
over-the-counter trading of the aforementioned convertible bonds was terminated on September 21, 2022

because all the conversion rights were exercised before the redemption base date, September 20, 2022.

(XVI1I11) Long-term borrowings

Types of borrowings December 31, 2023 Interest rate range Collateral
Bank credit loan $ 29,146 2.05%~2.10% Restricted bank deposits
Bank mortgage loan 442,791 1.90%~2.05% Land and buildings
Subtotal 471,937
Less: Current portion ( 67,601)

$ 404,336
Types of borrowings December 31, 2022 Interest rate range Collateral
Bank credit loan $ 93,103 1.71%~1.95% Restricted bank deposits
Bank mortgage loan 472,375 1.61%~1.80% Land and buildings
Subtotal 565,478
Less: Current portion ( 93,672)

$ 471,806

(X1X)  Pensions

1.(1) The Company has a defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Labor Standards Act, covering
all regular employees’ service years prior to the enforcement of the Labor Pension Act on July 1,
2005 and service years thereafter of employees who chose to continue to be subject to the pension
mechanism under the Act. Under the defined benefit pension plan, for those employees qualified for
retirement conditions, two units are accrued for each year of service for the first 15 years and one
unit for each additional year thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are based
on the number of units accrued and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last 6 months prior
to retirement. From November 2021, the Company started to increase the monthly contribution equal
to from 2% to 15% of the employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the retirement fund deposited
with Bank of Taiwan, under the name of the retirement fund supervisory committee. Also, the
Company would assess the balance in the aforementioned labor pension reserve account by
December 31, every year. If the account balance is insufficient to pay the pension calculated by the
aforementioned method to the employees expected to qualify for retirement in the following year, the

Company will make contributions for the deficit by next March.
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(2) The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligations ($ 6,111) $ 2,581)
Fair value of plan assets 4,053 2,638
Net defined benefit (liability) asset
(Stated as “other noncurrent liabilities” and
“other noncurrent assets,” respectively % 2,058) $ 57

(3) Movements in present value of net defined benefit obligations are as follows:

Present value of

defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligations plan assets benefit liability

2023
Balance at January 1 % 2,581) $ 2,638 $ 57
Interest expense (income) ( 34) 47 13

( 2,615) 2,685 70
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets (Excluding - 9 9
amounts included in interest revenue or
expense)
Effects of change in financial( 622) -
assumptions ( 622)
Experience adjustments ( 3,203) - ( 3,203)

( 3,825) 9 ( 3,816)
Pension fund contribution - 1,688 1,688
Paid pension 329 ( 329) -
Balance at December 31 $ 6,111) $ 4,053 $ 2,058)

Present value of
defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligations plan assets benefit liability
2022
Balance at January 1 $ 4,625) $ 1,097 % 3,528)
Interest expense (income) ( 33) 14 ( 19)
( 4,658) 1,111 ( 3,547)

Remeasurements:
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Return on plan assets (Excluding - 61 61
amounts included in interest revenue

or expense)

Effects of change in financial 187 -

assumptions 187

Experience adjustments 1,559 - 1,559
1,746 61 1,807

Pension fund contribution - 1,797 1,797

Paid pension 331 ( 331) -

Balance at December 31 ($ 2,581) $ 2,638 $ 57

(4) The Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manages the fund of the Company’s defined benefit
pension plan in accordance with the fund’s annual investment and utilization plan and the
“Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund”
(Article 6: The scope of utilization for the fund includes deposit in domestic or foreign financial
institutions, investment in domestic or foreign listed, over-the-counter, or private placement equity
securities, investment in domestic or foreign real estate securitization products, etc.) under the
supervision of the Labor Retirement Fund Supervisory Committee. With regard to the utilization of
the fund, its minimum return in the annual distributions on the financial statements shall be no less
than the earnings attainable from the amounts accrued from two-year time deposits with the interest
rates offered by local banks. If the return is less than aforementioned rates, government shall
compensate for the deficit after being authorized by the authority. The Company has no right to
participate in managing and operating that fund; hence, the Company is unable to disclose the
classification of fair value of plan assets in accordance with I1AS 19 paragraph 142. The composition
of fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 is given in the Annual Labor

Retirement Fund Utilization Report announced by the government.

(5) The principal actuarial assumptions were summarized as follows:

2023 2022
Discount rate 1.20% 1.35%
Future salary increase rate 3.00% 2.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are estimated based on the 6™ Taiwan Standard Ordinary

Experience Mortality Table for the years of 20223and 2022.

Because the main actuarial assumption changed, the present value of defined benefit obligation is

affected. The analysis is as follows:

Discount rate Future salary increases
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Increase 0.25%  Decrease 0.25% Increase 0.25%  Decrease 0.25%

December 31, 2023
Effect on present value of
defined benefit obligation (% 144) $ 149 $ 146 $ 142)

December 31, 2022
Effect on present value of
defined benefit obligation (% 67) $ 70 $ 69 $ 67)

The sensitivity analysis above was arrived at based on one single changing assumption while the
other conditions remain constant. In practice, multiple assumptions may change at the same time.
The method of analyzing sensitivity and the method of calculating net pension liability in the balance

sheet are the same.

The method and assumptions of analyzing sensitivity are the same with the previous period.

(6) Expected contributions to the defined benefit pension plan of the Company for the year 2024 are
$1,424.
(7) As of December 31, 2023, the weighted average duration of the retirement plan was 9 years. The

analysis of due fund payment is as follows:

Period Benefits payment
2024 $ 128
2025 118
2026 224
2027 194
2028 253
After 2029 5,601
$ 6,518

(8)For the years 2023 and 2022, the Company recognized pension costs of ($13) and $19, respectively,

in accordance with the aforementioned plan.

(9) Actuarial gains and losses that were recognized in other comprehensive income are as follows:

2023 2022
Currently recognized $ 3,816) $ 1,807
Accumulated amount ($ 2,705) $ 1,111

2.(1) From July 1, 2005, the Company has established a defined contribution pension plan (the “New Plan”)
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under the Labor Pension Act (the “Act”), covering all regular employees with R.O.C. nationality.

Under the New Plan, the Company contributes a monthly amount based on 6% of the employees’

monthly salaries and wages to the employees’ individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labor

Insurance. The benefits are paid either monthly or in lump sum based on the principal and

accumulated returns in the employees’ individual pension accounts upon termination of employment.

(2) The pension costs under the aforementioned defined contribution pension plan of the Company for the

years 2023 and 2022 were $7,759 and $7,821, respectively.

(XX) Share-based payment

1. For the years 2023 and 2022, the share-based payment arrangements of the Company were as follows:

Types of arrangements Grant date
Employee stock option plan 2021.11.26
(Same as above) 2021.11.26

Transferring treasury stocks to

2023.01.16
employees

Amount granted

675 thousand shares

675 thousand shares

616 thousand shares

Vesting condition

2-year services

3-year services

Vesting immediately

The stocks that were repurchased by the Company and that were then transferred to employees are

restricted from transferring within the first year that employees receive the stocks.

All the share-based payment arrangements above are settled by equity.

2. The details on the share-based payment arrangements above are as follows:

2023 2022
Number of  Weighted average Number of Weighted average
options exercise price (NT$) options  _exercise price (NT$)

Outstanding stock options,

January 1 1,350 $ 21.55 1,350 $ 21.55
Options granted 616 21.79 - -
Options exercised 616 21.79 - -
Outstanding stock options,

December 31 1,350 21.55 1,350 21.55

Exercisable stock options,

December 31 -

3. As of December 31, 2023, the weighted average remaining contractual life of outstanding stock options

was 2.92 years.
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4. The Company estimated the fair value of stock options of the share-based payment transactions on the

grant date with binomial tree pricing model and Black-Scholes option pricing model. Related information

is as follows:
Types of Grant Stock
arrangements date price

Employee stock  2021.11.26  $21.55
option plan

(Same as above) 20211126 21.95

Transferring 2023.01.16  23.46
treasury stocks to

employees

Expected
Expected  remaining Risk-free Fair value
fluctuation life interest rate per unit
35.31% 3.5 years 0.4003% $5.69
34.70% 4 years 0.4151% 5.98
39.70% 0.14years  0.7902% 2.35

5. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, expenses from share-based payment transactions were

$3,605 and $2,298, respectively.

(XXI1) Share capital

1. As of December 31, 2023, the authorized capital of the Company was $1,500,000. The pai-in capital

was $954,394 consisting of 95,439 thousand shares with a par value of $10 per share. All proceeds

from shares issued have been collected.

2. A reconciliation of common shares of the Company is as follows:

January 1
Conversion of convertible bond

Seasoned equity offering -private

placement
December 31

3. Treasury stocks

(Unit: Thousand Shares)

2023 2022
95,439 74,422
- 5,017
- 16,000
95,439 95,439

(1) Reasons for repurchase and number of repurchased shares:

Company that holds shares

December 31, 2023

Reasons for repurchase Number of shares Carrying amount
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The Company For transferring to employees _928(thousand) $ 23,091

December 31, 2022

Company that holds shares Reasons for repurchase Number of shares Carrying amount
The Company For transferring to employees _1,544(thousand) 3 36,515

(2) Movements in value of the Company’s treasury stocks are as follows:

2023 2022
January 1 $ 36,515) $ 32,819)
Treasury stocks repurchased - ( 3,696)
Treasury stocks transferred —Employee
stock options exercised 13.424 -
($ 23,091) ($ 36,515)

December 31

(3) Based on the Securities and Exchange Act, the number of shares bought back may not exceed
10% of the total number of issued and outstanding shares of the Company. The total amount of
the shares bought back may not exceed the amount of retained earnings plus premium on capital
stock plus realized capital reserve.

(4) Based on the Securities and Exchange Act, treasury stocks held by the Company shall not be
pledged. Before transfer, the shareholder’s rights shall not be enjoyed, either.

(5) Based on the Securities and Exchange Act, the shares bought back for transferring shares to its
employees shall be transferred within five years from the date of buyback. The shares not
transferred within the said time limit shall be deemed as not issued by the Company, and
amendment registration shall be processed to cancel the shares. As for those shares bought back
for maintaining the Company’s credit and shareholders’ rights and interests, amendment

registration shall be effected within six months from the date of buyback to cancel the shares.
(6) The board of directors of the Company resolved to repurchase treasury stocks for transferring to

employees of the Company on November 15, 2021. It was scheduled to repurchase 1,000
thousand shares. As of December 31, 2021, the actual buyback was 469 thousand shares with
total amount of $9,728 (including discounts and allowances). In January 2022 there was another
buyback of 147 thousand shares with total amount of $3,696. As of January 14, 2022, the end of
the buyback period, the actual buyback was 616 thousand shares with total amount of $13,424.
On January 16, 2023, Resolution, the Board of Directors of the Company, transferred all the
aforementioned treasury shares to employees at NT $21.79 per share, with a transfer amount of

$13,424, and recognized compensation costs of $1,448.

4. In order to align with the future development and introduce strategic investors, the Company planned a

seasoned equity offering through a private placement pursuant to the shareholder resolutions on July 5,
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2021. The number of shares shall not exceed 16,000 thousand shares with par value of $10 per share
through the private placement. The Company arranged specific places to purchase 16,000 thousand
shares at $18.5 per share in the private placement. The capital increase was amounted to $296,000.
The record date of capital increase was March 11, 2022, and the amendment registration was
completed on April 25, 2022. Those common shares issued in the private placement were subject to
transfer restriction of counterparty and quantity in accordance with relevant laws. A public offering

shall not be conducted until three years after the grant date.

(XXI11) Capital surplus

According to the Company Act, where a company incurs no loss, it may distribute the income derived
from the issuance of new shares at a premium, and the income from endowments received by the company,
by issuing new shares which shall be distributable as dividend shares to its original shareholders in
proportion to the number of shares being held by each of them or by cash. Based on the relevant
regulations of Securities and Exchange Act, where a company intends to capitalize the aforementioned
capital surplus, the total amount per year shall not exceed 10% of paid-in capital. A company shall not use
the capital surplus to make good its capital loss, unless the surplus reserve is insufficient to make good

such loss.

(XXI11) Retained earnings

1. Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the current annual earnings, if any, shall first be used
to pay all taxes and offset losses in prior years, and then 10% of the remaining amount shall be set
aside as legal reserve. The remaining balance shall be whether retained or distributed in accordance

with shareholder resolutions.

2. The Company adopts “residual dividend policy” for its dividend policies, authorizing the proposal of
earning distribution resolved by the board of directors within the scope of distributable earnings from
0% to 100% and submitted to the shareholders’ meeting, after taking various factors into consideration,
such as the current and future investment environment, needs of funds, domestic and foreign
competition, and capital budget as well as balancing the benefits of shareholders, dividends, and
long-term financial plans. The ratio of annual cash dividends shall not be less than 10% of the total of

current cash and stock dividends.

3. The legal reserve shall not be used except for making good the deficit of the company and being
distributed by issuing new shares which shall be distributable as dividend shares to its original
shareholders in proportion to the number of shares being held by each of them or by cash, for the

portion in excess of 25% of the paid-in capital.

4. (1) When distributing distributable earnings, the Company shall set aside special reserve for the debit
balance under other equity in the balance sheets according to regulations. If any of the debit

balance under other equity is reversed, the special reserve in the amount equal to the reversal may
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be reversed for earnings distribution.

(2) Upon the first-time adoption of IFRS, the Company reverses the special reserve that was set aside
in accordance with the FSC Regulation No. 1010012865 in proportion to the relevant assets

when Company subsequently uses, disposes of, or reclassifies them on April 6, 2012.

5. The earnings distribution proposals of 2022 and 2021 have been resolved by the shareholders’

meetings held on June 27, 2023 and June 27, 2022, respectively, are as follows:

2022 2021
Dividends Dividends
Amount per share ($) Amount per share ($)
Legal reserve $ 13,427 $ - $ 2,186 $ -
Special reserve ( 20,853) - 10,745 -
Cash dividends 75,609 0.80 8,909 0.10
Stock dividends $ 68,183 $ 21,840

Please refer to the website of “Market Observation Post System” of TWSE for the information on

earnings distribution resolved by the shareholders’ meeting.

6. The earnings distribution proposal of 2023 that was resolved by the board of directors on March 15,

2024 is as follows:

2023
Amount Dividends per share ($)

Legal reserve $ 11599 $ -

Reversal of special reserve 3,629 -

Cash dividends 56,861 0.60

Total $ 72,089

(XX1V) Operating revenue
2023 2022
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sales revenue $ 1,146,979 $ 1,257,706

1. Classification of revenue from contracts with customers

The revenue of the Group is from providing goods that are transferred at a certain point in time and

can be classified geographically as follows:
2023 Taiwan Mainland _Americas Europe Korea Other zones _Total
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China

Segment

$ 106,232 $16,210 $ 314,609 $ 398,032 $ 66,340 $ 245,556 $1,146,979
revenue

. Mainland .
2022 Taiwan ] Americas Europe Korea Other zones _Total
China

Segment

$ 87,240 $23,088 $310,434 $424,314 $110,488 $ 302,142 $ 1,257,706
revenue

2. Contract liabilities:
The Company recognized revenue from contract liabilities as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 January 1, 2022

Contract liabilities —
$ 8,071 $ 10,121 $ 6,821

unearned sales revenue

Revenue arising from contract liabilities at the beginning of the period recognized in the current period

2023 2022
Unearned sales revenue $ 9,769 $ 6,377
(XXV) Interest revenue
2023 2022
Interest from bank deposit $ 10,046 $ 686
Interest from financial assets at amortized cost
12,076 1,387
Other interest revenue 129 785
$ 22,251 $ 2,858
(XXV1) Other revenue
2023 2022
Revenue from materials purchasing agent services $ 7,980 $ 14,041
Revenue from supportive HR services 6,013 7,059
Rent revenue 3,432 3,559
Dividends revenue 937 700
Other revenue 4,160 6,864
Total $ 22,522 _$ 32,223
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(XXV 1) Other gains and losses

2023 2022

Net gain on financial assets or liabilities at fair ~ $ 17,582 $ 11,556

value through profit or loss
Loss on disposal of property, plant, and ( 52) ( 3,441)
equipment
(Loss) Gain on disposal of investment ( 81) 177
Net exchange gain 9,232 71,683
Other loss ( 597) -
Total $ 26,084 $ 79,975

(XXVII) Financial costs
2023 2022

Interest expense:

Bank loans 3 21,664 $ 14,772

Convertible bonds - 1,430

Short-term notes and bills payable 1,132 1,117

Lease liabilities 60 43

Other 9 4

$ 22,865 $ 17,366
(XXI1X) Additional information on nature of expenses
2023 2022

Changes in finished goods and work-in-process ~ $ 508,760 $ 665,565
inventories
Materials and supplies used 230,783 219,047
Employee benefits expense 190,249 191,348
Depreciation expense of property, plant, and 14,111 15,736
equipment; and investment properties
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 2,935 3,217
R & D material fee 9,995 13,716
Shipping expense 9,545 13,971
Service charge 6,787 7,381
Amortization expense of intangible assets 5,874 7,740
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(XXX)

Advertising expense 5,627 1,492

Rent of operating lease 739 192
Expected credit impairment losses - 1,464
Other expenses 62,054 40,936
Operating costs and expenses $ 1,047,459 $ 1,181,805
Employee benefit expense
2023 2022
Payroll expense $ 152,707 $ 155,434
Employee stock options 3,605 2,298
Labor and health insurance expenses 15,144 14,726
Pension expense 7,746 7,840
Remuneration of directors 1,937 1,801
Other personnel expenses 9,110 9,249
$ 190,249 $ 191,348

1. The Company’s Articles of Incorporation provide that, after making up for the accumulative losses, the

remainder of profits shall be set aside for compensation of employees at a rate from 2% to 10%, and for

remuneration of directors at a rate of no more than 5%.

2. The Company estimated that the amounts of compensation of employees were both $4,000; and that the

amounts of remuneration of directors were $1,000, for the years 2023 and 2022. The aforementioned

amounts were recognized as payroll expense.

For the year 2023, compensation of employees and remuneration of directors were accrued at rates of
2.57% and 0.64%, respectively, based on the profitability of the current year. The accrued amounts were

consistent with those resolved by the board of directors.

The amounts of compensation of employees and remuneration of directors resolved by the board of
directors for the year 2022, were consistent with those recognized in the financial report for the year ended

December 31, 2022. As of December 31, 2023, there were still $4,000 to be distributed.

The related information on compensation of employees and remuneration of directors resolved by the

board of directors and the shareholders’ meeting is at “Market Observation Post System.”

(XXXI) Taxation

1. Components of income tax expense (benefit):

N
N
w
N
N
N

Current income tax:

Current tax on profits for the year $ 29,372 $ 9,016
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Surtax on undistributed retained earnings 2,502 -
Overestimation of income tax in respect of prior

years ( 433) -
Total current tax 31,441 9,016

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of

temporary differences ( 3,614) 1,007
Loss deduction from prior year - 29,157
Income tax expense $ 27,827 $ 39,180

2. The relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit

2023 2022
Tax calculated based on profit before tax and
statutory tax rate $ 30,145 $ 34,314
Tax exempt income based on tax laws ( 814) ( 176)
Expenses that should be adjusted based on tax
laws 11 3,295
Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities arising from
temporary differences ( 1,038) ( 186)
Changes in Deferred tax assets assessment of
realizability ( 2,546) 1,933
Prior year income tax overestimation ( 433) -
Surtax on undistributed retained earnings 2,502 -
Income tax expense $ 27,827 $ 39,180

3. The amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from temporary differences and tax loss:

2023
Recognized in
January 1 profit or loss December 31

Deferred tax assets:
—Temporary differences:

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 1,636 (% 64) $ 1,572

Allowance to reduce inventory to market 10,427 929 11,356

Unrealized exchange losses - 1,496 1,496

Intragroup unrealized sales gross profits 2,735 395 3,130
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Payment in lieu of untaken annual leave

Other

Subtotal

Deferred tax liabilities:

—Temporary differences:
Unrealized exchange gains
Other

Subtotal

Total

Deferred tax assets:
—Temporary differences:
Allowance for doubtful account
Allowance to reduce inventory to market
Unrealized exchange losses
Intragroup unrealized sales gross profits
Payment in lieu of untaken annual leave
Other
Loss carryforward
Subtotal
Deferred tax liabilities:
—Temporary differences:
Unrealized exchange gains
Subtotal
Total

590 21 611
272 272) -
15,660 2,505 18,165
( 1,177) 1,177 -
68) ( 68)
( 1,177) 1,109 ( 68)
$ 14,483 $ 3,614 $ 18,097
2022
Recognized in
January 1 profit or loss December 31
$ 1,190 446 $ 1,636
7,663 2,764 10,427
1,636 ( 1,636) -
3,713 ( 978) 2,735
660 ( 70) 590
628 ( 356) 272
29,157 ( 29,157) -
44,647 ( 28,987) 15,660
- ( 1,177) 1,177)
- ( 1,177) 1,177)
$ 44,647 % 30,164) $ 14,483

4. The Company has not recognized the deferred tax liabilities which from certain subsidiaries taxable

temporary differences in their investing related. The unrecognized temporary differences of Deferred
tax liabilities as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 were $34,248 and $27,767,

respectively.

5. The Company’s profit-seeking enterprise income tax returns through 2021 have been assessed and

approved by the tax authority.

(XXXI11) Earnings per share
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(XXXI111)

2023

Weighted-average Earnings
After-tax outstanding shares per share
amounts (thousand) (NT$)
Weighted-average Earnings
After-tax outstanding shares per share
amounts (thousand) (NT$)
Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders _$ 122,898 94,400 1.30
Diluted earnings per share
Effect of diluted potential ordinary shares
Compensation of employees - 458
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
plus the effect of potential ordinary shares $ 122,898 94,858 1.30
2022
Weighted-average Earnings
After-tax outstanding shares per share
amounts (thousand) (NT$)
Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders _$ 132,388 87,823 1.51
Diluted earnings per share
Effect of diluted potential ordinary shares
Compensation of employees - 152
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
plus the effect of potential ordinary shares _$ 132,388 87,975 1.50
Supplementary information of cash flows
Investing activities without affecting cash flows
2023 2022
Reclassification of prepayments for business
facilities to intangible assets $ 132 $ 4,049
Reclassification of prepayments for
refurbishment to property, plant, and equipment _$ - $ 30,690
Reclassification of prepayments for business
facilities to property, plant, and equipment $ 11,117 $ 428
Reclassification of property, plant, and
equipment to investment properties $ - _$ 5,969
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(XXXI1V) Changes in the liabilities arising from financing activities
2023
Long-term
Short-term borrowings Lease liabilities Total liabilities
Short-term notes and bills (including (including Guarantee deposits from financing
borrowings payable the current portion) the current portion) received activities
January 1 $ 559,082 $ 72,000 $ 565,478 $ 1,354 $ 660 $ 1,198,574
Changes in cash flows 87,418 - ( 93,541) ( 2,936) 30 ( 9,029)
from financing
activities
Other non-cash
changes - - - 5,311 - 5,311
December 31 $ 646,500 $ 72,000 $ 471,937 $ 3,729 $ 690 $ 1,194,856
2022
Long-term
Short-term borrowings Bonds payable Lease liabilities Total liabilities
Short-term notes and bills (including (including the (including Guarantee from financing
borrowings payable the current portion) current portion)  the current portion) deposits received activities
January 1 $ 500,106 $ 114,000 $ 685,656 $ 105,584 $ 4,339 $ 434 $ 1,410,119
Changes in cash flows 58,976 ( 42,000) ( 120,178) - ( 3,221) 226 ( 106,197)
from financing activities
Other non-cash changes
- - - ( 105,584) 236 - 105,348)
December 31 $ 559,082 $ 72,000 $ 565,478 $ - $ 1,354 $ 660 $ 1,198,574

VI1I. Related party transactions

Names and relationship with related parties

(M

Name of related parties

Flourish Technology Co.(Flourish)
Guiding Technology Ltd.(Guiding)
Arbor Korea Co.,Ltd.(Arbor Korea)
Arbor Solution,Inc.(Arbor Solution)
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(1m

Name of related parties

Arbor France S.A.S(Arbor France)

Acloud Intelligence Services Corp. Ltd. ( Acloud)
Arbor Technology (Shenzhen)co., Ltd.(Arbor Shenzhen)
Arbor Beijing Technology Ltd.( Arbor Beijing)

Arbor China Technology Co., Ltd. (Arbor China)

Arbor Technology (UK) Ltd.(Arbor UK)

AMobile Intelligent Corp. Ltd. (AMobile HK)

AMobile Solutions Corp. (AMobile Solutions)

AMobile Solutions (Xiamen) CO., LTD.
Ennoconn International Investment Co., Ltd. (EI)
Ennoconn Technology Co., Ltd. (Ennoconn)

Ennoconn (Suzhou) Technology Co., Ltd (Ennoconn
Suzhou)
Victor Plus Holdings Ltd. (Victor Plus)

Vecow Co., Ltd. (Vecow)

Satem Technology Co., Ltd. (Satem)
Lee Min
Lien, Chi-Ruei

Significant transactions with related parties

1. Operating revenue

2023
Sales of goods:
— Subsidiaries
Arbor Solution $ 279,412
Arbor UK 80,080
Arbor France 77,041
Arbor Korea 61,113
Other 17,156
— Associates 12,775
— Other related parties 1,963
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Relationship with the Company
Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Associate

Associate
Associate
Other related party
Other related party

Other related party

Other related party
Other related party

Other related part
Key management personnel
Key management personnel

N
N
N

$ 307,318
73,738

91,048

25,314

6,493

6,499

3,995




$ 529,540 $ 514,405

(1) Prices of goods sold to the aforementioned related parties were determined based on the economic
environment and market competition of each sales territory, respectively. The payment terms of related
parties are slightly longer than those of normal customers, with an average of 2 to 4 months.

(2) The Company eliminates the portion of net sales and purchases of which the risk and ownership are not
transferred yet in accordance with the (87) Tai Tsai Cheng (Six) No. 00747 Regulation issued on March
18, 1998 by the Securities and Future Bureau. For the years 2023 and 2022, the eliminated sales revenue

and accounts receivable are as follows:

2023 2022
Eliminated Accounts Eliminated Accounts
Sales revenue receivable Sales revenue receivable
Subsidiaries $ 87,883 $ 87,883 $ 193,734  $ 193,734
Other related parties 45,536 45,536 2,128 2,128
$ 133,419 $ 133,419 $ 195862 _$ 195,862
. Non-operating income
2023 2022
— Subsidiaries
Arbor Shenzhen $ 4,346 $ 13,885
Arbor Solution 3,742 8,242
Other 2,011 2,463
— Associates 400 3,028
— Other related parties 3,634 118
$ 14,133 $ 27,736

Most of the income is from interest, materials purchasing agent services, and supportive HR services.

. Purchases
2023 2022
Purchase of goods
— Subsidiaries
Arbor Shenzhen $ 219,290 $ 309,611
Guiding - 17,582
Other 12,589 9,853
— Associates
AMobile HK 166,456 268,923
Other 3,860 797
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— Other related parties

Victor Plus 76,784 9,922
Other 122 328
$ 479,101 $ 617,016

In addition to purchases of goods and materials, the Company also purchased molds, shipping service, repair
service, and processing service from the aforementioned related parties. For the years 2023 and 2022, the
purchase expenses were $9,099 and $1,596, respectively. The purchasing prices from the related parties were
determined after referring to the actual price. The payment terms are the same as those of normal suppliers,

which are both net 30.
4. Accounts receivable due from related parties

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Accounts receivable
— Subsidiaries
Arbor Solution $ 109,606 $ 90,486
Arbor Korea 49,385 30,477
Arbor France 17,808 6,405
Arbor UK 11,026 27,091
Other 12,239 12,929
— Associates 10,907 2,095
— Other related parties 34 102
$ 211,005 $ 169,585
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Other receivables
a. Loans of funds
—Subsidiaries
Arbor Korea $ - $ 22,654
Subtotal - 22,654
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
b. Other
—Subsidiaries
Arbor Shenzhen $ 79,516 $ 143,413
Other 15,028 20,968
—Associates
AMobile HK 49 4,684
—Other related parties
(Ennoconn Suzhou) 27,463 248
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Subtotal
Total

122,056

169,313

$ 122,056

$ 191,967

Other receivables— other mainly consist of prices of materials purchased on behalf of others and supportive

HR services revenue receivable.

. Prepayments (recognized as “other current assets”)

— Subsidiaries
Arbor Shenzhen
Guiding
Other

— Associates
AMobile HK

— Other related parties

They mainly consist of prepayments for goods.

. Accounts payable due to related parties

Accounts payable:

— Subsidiaries

— Associates
AMobile Solution
AMobile HK
Other

— Other related parties
Victor Plus
Other
Subtotal

Other payables:
— Associates

— Other related parties

Subtotal

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

$ 203,229 $ 227,285
12,332 3,789

8,810 4

15,322 75,149

613 2,928

$ 240,306 $ 309,155

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

$ 361 $ 9,031
12,310 -

- 13,104

65 -

15,455 -

4,314 126

32,505 22,261

December 31, 2023

$ 187
3,138
3,325
$ 35,830

December 31, 2022

$ 5,071
692

5,763

$ 28,024

(1)Accounts payable were mainly from purchasing transactions and were due two months after the

purchasing date. Such accounts payable did not bear interest.
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(2) Other payables were mainly advances.

. Contract liabilities

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Contract liabilities:

— Subsidiaries $ 5 $ 5

They mainly consist of unearned revenue from goods.

. Property transactions

(1) Please refer to Note VI (V11I) for the information on equity transactions with related parties.
(2) As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts of convertible bonds of AMobile HK held by the
Company were $78,459 and $771,904, respectively, which are classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

(3)The Company negotiated for Ennoconn International Investment Co., Ltd. to

participate in the private placement in 2022. Please refer to VI (XXI)4 for details.

(4) Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

2023 2022
— Associates $ 757 $ -
— Other related parties 2.947 -
$ 3,704 $ -

. Lease transactions— lessor

(1) The Company leases buildings to related parties. The lease contract period is from January 1, 2019
and does not end until both parties agree to terminate. Lease contracts were individually negotiated and
consisted of various terms and conditions. Leased assets cannot be pledged as collaterals; in addition,
the rights of leased assets cannot be transferred to others in the form of business transfer or business
combination, either.

(2) Rent income

2023 2022
— Subsidiaries $ 36 $ 36
— Associates 822 971
$ 858 $ 1,007

10. Details of providing endorsement and guarantee for related parties

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
AMobile HK $ 156,420 $ 156,420
GUIDING 69,712 69,712
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226,132 $ 226,132

11. The key management is the joint guarantor of some long-term and short-term loans of the Company.

(111) Information on key management personnel compensation

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits

Post-retirement benefits

Total

VIII. Pledged assets

The assets pledged as collaterals are as follows:

Assets

Restricted bank deposits

(Classified as “financial assets at amortized
cost”)

Repurchase agreement of commercial
papers (Classified as “financial assets at
amortized cost”)

Refundable deposit

(Classified as “other noncurrent assets cost”™)

Property, plant, and equipment

Investment properties

2023 2022
12,645 $ 16,573
215 294
12,860 $ 16,867

Carrying amount

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022 Object

Long-term and short-term

173,002 $ 146,129 borrowings
Short-term notes and
bills payable
87,524 87,523
26,555 26,555 Lease and project deposits
Long-term and short-term
494,894 498,465 borrowings
73,538 74,341 Long-term borrowings
855,513 $ 833,013

Significant contingent liabilities and unrecognized commitments

(1) Contingencies
None.
(11) Commitments
Please refer to Notes VI (X) and VII.

Losses due to major disasters

None.
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X1. Significant subseguent events

Please refer to Note VI (XXIII) for the information on earnings distribution for the year 2023.

XI11. Other

(1)  Capital risk management

The Company plans its demand for funds, research and development expense, and dividends expenditure
based on the characteristics of current operating industry and future development as well as changes in
external environment in order to ensure that each entity of the Group can maintain optimal capital structure to
maximize shareholders value by optimizing the balances of liabilities and equity under the going concern
assumption.

(1)  Financial instruments

1. Categories of financial instruments

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL —current
Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL $ 105,300 $ 104,846
Financial assets at FVTOCI —noncurrent
Designated investments in equity investments 12,660 11,268
Financial assets/loans and receivables at amortized costs
Cash and cash equivalents 416,670 290,732
Financial assets at amortized cost 260,526 233,652
Notes receivable 29 45
Accounts receivable (including due from related parties) 357,897 319,276
Other receivables (including due from related parties) 123,976 192,127
Refundable deposit 26,555 26,555
$ 1,303,613 $ 1,178,501
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVTPL —current
Financial liabilities mandatorily measured at FVTPL $ - $ 1,709
Financial liabilities at amortized costs
Short-term borrowings 646,500 559,082
Short-term notes and bills payable 72,000 72,000
Notes payable - 231
Accounts payable (including due to related parties) 98,048 140,428
Other payables (including due to related parties) 59,501 70,410
Long-term borrowings (including current portion) 471,937 565,478
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December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Guarantee deposit received 690 660
$ 1,348,676 $ 1,409,998
Lease liahilities (including current portion) $ 3,729 $ 1,354

2. Risk management policies

(1) The Company’s operation is affected by various financial risks, including market risk (including
exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, and price risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk.

(2) Risk management is implemented by the finance department of the Company based on the policies
authorized by the board of directors. The finance department of the Company identifies, assesses,
and avoids financial risks by closely cooperating with each operating unit in the Group. The board of
directors has set written principles for overall risk management and provided written policies on
specific scope and issues, e.g., exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative and

non-derivative instruments, and investment of the residual liquidity.
3. Nature and extent of significant financial risks
(1) Market risk

Exchange rate risk

A. The Company operates across international borders; therefore, the Company is exposed to
exchange rate risk arising from transactions denominated in different currencies, mainly USD,
EUR, KRW, and RMB, other than the Company’s functional currency. Relevant exchange rate
risk is from future business transactions as well as recognized assets and liabilities.

B. The Company avoids exchange rate risk via forward transactions which are, however, not
eligible for hedging accounting. Forward transactions are recognized as financial assets or
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and please refer to Note VI (1) for more
information.

C. The Company’s operations are involved in different currencies other than the functional currency

of the Company (NTD); therefore, the Company is exposed to the fluctuation of exchange rates.
The information on assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies with significant

exposure to the fluctuation of exchange rates is as follows:

December 31, 2023

Sensitivity analysis

Other
Foreign currencies Carrying amount Profitor  Comprehensive

(in thousands)  Exchange rate (in thousands of NT$) Changes loss affected income affected

(Foreign currencies to
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December 31, 2023

Foreign currencies

Sensitivity analysis
Other

Profitor  Comprehensive

Carrying amount

(in thousands)  Exchange rate (in thousands of NT$) Changes loss affected income affected
functional currency
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD to NTD $ 30,016 30.71 $ 921,791 1% $ 9,218 $ -
EURto NTD 1,354 33.98 46,009 1% 460 -
GBP to NTD 577 39.15 22,590 1% 226 -
Non-monetary items
USD to NTD 29,466 30.71 904,893 1% - 9,049
EURto NTD 1,273 33.98 43,260 1% - 433
KRW to NTD 1,254,350 0.0200 25,088 1% - 251
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD to NTD $ 2,326 30.71 $ 71,431 1% $ 714 3 -
December 31, 2022
Sensitivity analysis
Other
Foreign currencies Carrying amount Profit or Comprehensive
(in thousands) Exchange rate  (in thousands of NT$)  Changes loss affected income affected
(Foreign currencies to
functional currency
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD to NTD $ 21,638 30.71 $ 664,503 1% $ 6,645 $ -
RMB to NTD 55 4.41 243 1% 2 -
EURto NTD 2,266 32.72 74,144 1% 741 -
Non-monetary items
USD to NTD 29,798 30.71 915,097 1% - 9,151
EURto NTD 1,155 32.72 37,792 1% - 378
KRW to NTD 1,147,863 0.0246 28,237 1% - 282

Financial liabilities
Monetary items
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USD to NTD

December 31, 2022

Sensitivity analysis

Other
Foreign currencies Carrying amount Profit or Comprehensive

(in thousands) Exchange rate  (in thousands of NT$)  Changes loss affected income affected
$ 3,218 30.71 $ 98,825 1% $ 988 $ -

D. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the total recognized amounts of exchange
gains (including both realized and unrealized) arising from monetary items with significant

effects of fluctuation of exchange rates were $9,232 and $71,683, respectively.
Price risk

A. The Company’s financial instruments with exposure to price risk are all financial assets at
FVTPL. The Company diversifies the portfolio based on the limit set by the Company in order to
manage price risk arising from investment in financial instruments.

B. The Company mainly invests in equity instruments issued by domestic companies, open-end
funds, and convertible bonds. The price of such financial instruments will be affected by the
uncertainties of future value of underlying assets. If the price of such financial instruments
increases or decreases by 1%, ceteris paribus, net income after tax will increase or decrease by
$1,053 and $1,048 arising from gains or losses on financial instruments at FVTPL for the years
2023 and 2022, respectively, other increased or decreased by $127 and $113, respectively, as a
result of the classification of Other comprehensive income as investment in Equity through Fair

value.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

A. The Company’s interest risk is from loans issued with a floating interest rate, which expose the

Company to cash flows interest rate risks. The Company’s policy is to maintain at least 35% of loans
with fixed rates. For the years 2023 and 2022, the loans issued by the Company with floating interest

rates were mainly denominated in NTD and USD, respectively.

. The Company’s loans are measured at amortized cost and revalued based on contractual covenants;

therefore, the Company is exposed to risks of changes in future market interest rates.

. When the borrowing rates increase or decrease by 0.1%, ceteris paribus, net loss after tax will

decrease and increase by $895 and $900 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. It is mainly the floating borrowing rates that result in the changes in interest expenses

accordingly.

(2) Credit risk

A. The Company’s credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual
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obligations resulting in financial losses to the Company. The Company is exposed to credit risks
mainly from notes receivable and accounts receivable that the counterparty is unable to pay off
by the payment term, and the contractual cash flows from financial instruments at amortized
cost.

. The Company establishes the risk management from the corporate perspective. As for banks and
financial institutions, only those with an independent credit rating of at least “A” can be accepted
as counterparties. Based on the internal credit policies, the Company shall manage and conduct
credit risk analysis before determining payment and delivery terms with every new customer.
Internal risk control evaluates customers’ credit quality by considering the financial position,
past experiences, and other factors. Individual risk limit is set by the board of directors based on
internal or external ratings, and the use of credit line is also monitored on a regular basis.

. The Company adopts the presumptions in the scope of IFRS 9. When contractual payments are
over 90 days past due, a default is deemed to have occurred.

. The Company adopts the following presumptions in the scope of IFRS 9, on which the Company
determines based whether the credit risk of the financial instruments has significantly increased
since initial recognition:

(A) The credit risk on financial assets is deemed to increase significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are over 30 days past due.

(B) The credit risk on financial assets is deemed low if an investment grade is assigned by any
external credit agency on the balance sheet date.

Indicators adopted by the Company to determine if an investment in debt instruments is

credit-impaired are as follows:

(A) The issuer is in significant financial distress, or there is a higher possibility of bankruptcy

proceedings or other financial reorganization;

(B) The active market of such financial assets becomes unavailable due to the issuer in financial
distress;

(C) The issuer delays or defaults on the payments of interest or principal,

(D) There is an unfavorable change in national or regional economic situation that causes the
issuer to default.

. The Company adopts the simplified approach to estimate expected credit losses based on the loss
rate approach, by grouping accounts receivable based on the characteristics of types of
customers.

. The Company adjusts the loss rates which were established to estimate the loss allowance for
notes and accounts receivable (excluding due from related parties) based on historical and
current information within a specific period of time by adopting the forward-looking
consideration in the economic forecast reports issued by Taiwan Institute of Economic Research

(TIER). The information on the loss rate approach for the years 2023 and 2022 is as follows:
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Group A Group B Total
December 31, 2023

Expected loss rate 0.05%~1.40% 0.05%

Total carrying amount $ 140,996 $ 7,903 $ 148,899
Loss allowance $ 1,978 $ - $ 1,978

Group A Group B Total

December 31, 2022

Expected loss rate 0.07%~2.49% 0.07%

Total carrying amount $ 85,630 $ 66,242 $ 151,872
Loss allowance $ 2,136 $ - $ 2,136

Group A: Customers without any record of more than 90 days overdue payments.
Group B: Customer under special projects.

H. Statements of changes in loss allowance for accounts receivable estimated by the simplified

approach adopted by the Company are as follows:

2023
Accounts receivable Notes receivable
Balance, January 1 $ 2,136 $ -
Loss allowance recognized - -
Write-off of unrecoverable accounts  ( 158) -
Balance, December 31 $ 1,978 $ -
2022
Accounts receivable Notes receivable
Balance, January 1 $ 672 $ -
Loss allowance recognized 1,464 -
Write-off of unrecoverable accounts - -
Balance, December 31 $ 2,136 $ -

I. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the balances of accounts receivable - related parties were
$211,005 and $169,585, respectively; the balances of other receivables - related parties were
$122,056 and $191,967, respectively. Impairment was assessed on an individual basis, and it was

assessed that there was no material impairment for financial statements.

(3) Liquidity risk

314



A. The cash flow forecast is performed by each operating entity and aggregated by the financial

department of the Company. The financial department monitors the forecast of working capital

requirement and ensures that there is enough capital to support the operating requirements.

B. Surplus cash over the balance required for working capital management held by the operating

entities is transferred back to the financial department of the Company. The financial department

of the Company invests surplus cash in interest-bearing demand deposits and time deposits. The

chosen instruments should be with appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity to provide

sufficient headroom as determined by the abovementioned forecasts.

C. Unused credit lines of the Company are as follows:

December 31, 2023

Due within 1 year $

Due over 1 year

762,500

December 31, 2022

$

443,918

762,500

443,918

D. The following table is an analysis of non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company grouped by

maturities and based on the remaining period from balance sheet date to maturities. The contractual

cash flows disclosed below are not discounted.

December 31, 2023

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Short-term borrowings

Short-term notes and bills payable

Notes payable

Accounts payable (including due to related parties)
Other payables (including due to related parties)
Lease liabilities

(including current portion) (Note)

Long-term borrowings

(including current portion) (Note)

Derivative financial liabilities:

Interest swap (net settlement)

December 31, 2022

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Short-term borrowings
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Within 1 year _1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 years

$ 646,500 $ - $ - $ -
72,000 - - -
98,048_
59,501 - - -

2,711 1,073 - -

77,455 47,519 124,852 296,882

3 956,215- $ 48 592- $ 124,852- $ 296 882-

Within 1 year _1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 years

$ 559,082 $ - $ - -



December 31, 2022 Within 1 year _1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 years

Short-term notes and bills payable 72,000 - - -

Notes payable 231 - - -

Accounts payable (including due to related parties) 140,428 - - -

Other payables (including due to related parties) 70,410 - - -

Lease liabilities

(including current portion) (Note) 1,357 - - -

Long-term borrowings

(including current portion) (Note) 101,029 73,261 130,590 294,872

Derivative financial liabilities:

Interest swap (net settlement) 1,709 - - -

$ 946,246 $ 73261 $ 130,590 $294,872

Notes: The amounts included future interest payments.

(I'11) Fair value information

1. The definitions of each level of valuation techniques used to measure fair value of financial instruments

are as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entities can
access at the measurement date. An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset
or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis. The fair value of beneficiary certificates in which the Company invests is

included in Level 1.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. The fair value of most derivative instruments and

convertible bonds in which the Company invests is included in Level 2.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The fair value of equity instruments without active

markets in which the Company invests is included in Level 3.

2. Please refer to Note VI (XII) for the information on the fair value of investment properties measured at

cost.

3. The carrying amounts of financial instruments that are not measured at fair value, including cash and cash
equivalents, notes receivable (including due from related parties), accounts receivable (including due from
related parties), other receivables (including due from related parties), refundable deposits, short-term
borrowings, notes payable, accounts payable (including due to related parties), other payables (including
due to related parties), bonds payable, long-term borrowings, and guaranteed deposits received, are the

reasonable approximations of the fair value.
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4. The related information on financial and non-financial instruments measured at fair value which were
grouped on the basis of the nature, characteristics, risks, and fair value measurement of the assets and

liabilities, is as follows:
(1) The Company has grouped the assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature as follows:

December 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets

Recurring fair value measurements

Financial assets at FVTPL

Beneficiary certificates $ 26,841 $ - $ - $ 26,841
Convertible bonds - 78,459 - 78,459

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Equity securities - - 12,660 12,660
Total $ 26,841 $ 78,459 $ 12,660 $117,960
December 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets

Recurring fair value measurements

Financial assets at FVTPL

Beneficiary certificates $ 32,942 $ - $ - $ 32,942
Convertible bonds - 71,904 - 71,904

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Equity securities - - 11,268 11,268
Total $ 32,942 $ 71,904 $ 11,268 $116,114
Liabilities

Recurring fair value measurements

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Interest swap contracts $ ; $  1.709 $ - $ 1,709

(2) The methods and assumptions the Company used to measure fair value are as follows:
A. As for the open-end funds to which the Company adopted quoted market prices as the fair value
inputs, the quoted market price is the net worth of funds.
B. Except for financial instruments with active markets above, the fair value of other financial
instruments is measured by using valuation techniques or by reference to counterparty quotes.
The fair value at which the valuation techniques are adopted to arrive can be referred to the

317



current fair value of other financial instruments with similar terms and characteristics in
substance as well as discounted cash flow method; or it can be calculated by other valuation
techniques, including applying models with market information inputs available at the parent
company only balance sheet date. (e.g., Reference Yield Curve by Taipei Exchange and Taiwan
Secondary Commercial Paper Benchmark by Reuters.)

C. When assessing unstandardized and low-complexity financial instruments, for example, debt
instruments without active market, interest rate swap contracts, foreign exchange swap contracts,
and options, the Company adopts the valuation techniques that are widely used by market
participants. The inputs used in the valuation model of these financial instruments are normally
observable in the market.

D. The valuation of derivative financial instruments is based on the valuation models which are
widely accepted by market participants, such as discounted cash flow approach and option
pricing models. Forward exchange contracts are usually valued based on the current forward
exchange rate. Structured interest derivative instruments are measured by using appropriate
option pricing models (e.g., Black-Scholes model) or other valuation methods, such as Monte
Carlo simulation.

E. The output of valuation model is an estimated value and the valuation technique may not be able
to reflect all relevant factors of the financial instruments held by the Company. Therefore, the
estimated value derived using valuation model will be adjusted appropriately based on additional
inputs, for example, model risk or liquidity risk, etc. In accordance with the Company’s
management policies and relevant control procedures relating to the valuation models used for
fair value measurement, management believes that valuation adjustment is both appropriate and
necessary in order to present fairly the fair value of financial instruments at the parent company
only balance sheet. The price information and inputs used during valuation are carefully assessed
and adjusted based on current market situation.

5. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2.
6. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was no transfer from or to Level 3.

7. The following chart is the movement of Level 3 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Non-derivative Non-derivative
equity instrument equity instrument

January 1 $ 11,268 $ 7,675
Gains or losses recognized in other comprehensive income

Recorded as unrealized gains or losses on valuation of

investments in equity instruments measured at FVTOCI 1392 2830
Purchase for the period - 4,500
Disposal for the period - ( 3,737)
December 31 $ 12,660 $ 11,268

8. The following is the quantitative information on significant unobservable inputs and sensitivity analysis of
changes in significant unobservable inputs to valuation models used in the Level 3 fair value

measurement:
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December 31, 2023

Fair value

Non-derivative equity instrument:

Unlisted $
stocks

12,660

December 31, 2022

Fair value

Non-derivative equity instrument:

Unlisted $
stocks

11,268

Valuation Significant

technique unobservable inputs

Guideline Price to earnings ratio multiple,

Public company enterprise value to operating

method income ratio multiple, discount
for lack of marketability

Valuation Significant

technique unobservable inputs

Guideline Price to earnings ratio multiple,

Public company enterprise value to operating

method

income ratio multiple, discount
for lack of marketability

Relationships of inputs

to fair value

The higher the multiples, the higher
the fair value; the higher the discount
for lack of marketability, the lower
the fair value

Relationships of inputs

to fair value

The higher the multiples, the higher
the fair value; the higher the discount
for lack of marketability, the lower
the fair value

9. The Company has carefully assessed the valuation models and parameters used to measure fair value.

However, use of different valuation models or parameters may have different results. The following is the

effect on other comprehensive income from financial assets categorized within Level 3 if the parameters

used to valuation models have changed:

Financial assets

Equity instruments

Financial assets

Equity instruments

Input

Price to earnings ratio multiple,
enterprise value to operating
income ratio multiple, discount
for lack of marketability

Input

Price to earnings ratio multiple,
enterprise value to operating
income ratio multiple, discount
for lack of marketability
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Change

+1%

Change

+1%

December 31, 2023
Recognized in other
comprehensive income

Favorable Unfavorable
change change
127 ($ 127)

December 31, 2022
Recognized in other
comprehensive income

Favorable Unfavorable
change change
153 ($ 153)




XI111. Supplementary disclosures

(1)  Significant transactions information

1. Loans to others: See Table 1 attached.
2. Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others: See Table 2 attached.

3. Holding of marketable securities at the end of the period (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates,

and joint ventures): See Table 3 attached.

4. Acquisition or sale of the same security with the accumulated cost exceeding NT$300 million or 20% of

the Company’s paid-in capital or more: None.

5. Acquisition of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital or more:

None.
6. Disposal of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital or more : None.

7. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of paid-in capital
or more: See Table 4 attached.

8. Receivables from related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: See Table 5
attached.

9. Trading in derivative instruments: See Notes VI (11).

10.Business relationships among the parent company and subsidiaries, and significant intragroup

transactions: See Table 6 attached.

(11) Information on investees

Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including investees in Mainland China):
See Table 7 attached.

(1'11) Information on investees in Mainland China

1. Basic information: See Table 8 attached.

2. Significant transactions, either directly or indirectly through a third area, with investee companies in the

Mainland Area: Please refer to table 6.

(1V) Major shareholders information

Major shareholders information: Please refer to table 9.

X1V. Segment Information

Not applicable.
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ARBOR Technology Corporation

Statements of Cash and Cash Equivalents
December 31, 2023

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Item Summary Amount
Cash on hand and petty cash $ 348
Bank deposits
Checking deposits 114
Demand deposits—NTD 41,321
Demand deposits — Foreign currencies USD 2,816,955.87 rate 30.71 86,509
EUR 861,235.08 rate 33.98 29,265
GBP 1,113.13 rate 39.15 44
RMB 927,483.36 rate 4.327 4,013
Time deposits USD 7,600,000.00 rate 30.71 233,396
GBP 553,259.00 rate 39.15 21,660
$ 416,670
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ARBOR Technology Corporation

Statements of Accounts Receivable

December 31, 2023

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Client Name Description Amount Remark
Customer A $ 25,182
Customer B 18,831
Customer C 15,046
Customer D 11,802
Customer E 11,770
Customer F 9,582
The balance of each client
does not exceed 5% of the
Other 56,657 balance of this account
148,870
Less: Allowance for impairment loss ( 1,978)
Total $ 146,892

Note: Aging over one year amounted to $1,443.
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ARBOR Technology Corporation

Statements of Inventories
December 31, 2023

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Amount

Ite Description Cost Market price Remark
The market price is the

Raw materials $ 161,973 $ 150,548 net realizable value.
Work in process 82,656 78,492 (Same as above)
Finished goods 102,249 98,699 (Same as above)
Merchandise 34,104 9,991 (Same as above)
Subtotal 380,982 $ 337,730
Less: Allowance for inventory valuation ( 56,780)
Total $ 324,202
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ARBOR Technology Corporation

Statements of Accounts Payable
December 31, 2023

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Supplier name Amount Remark
Supplier A $ 17,469
Supplier B 16,794
Supplier C 10,975
The balance of each miscellaneous
Other customer does not exceed 5% of the

20,305 balance of this account.

$ 65,543
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ARBOR Technology Corporation

Statements of Operating Revenue
January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Quantity (thousand
Item . Amount Remark
units)
System product 45 $ 620,861
Single board computer 62 374,098
Other 312 152,020

$ 1,146,979
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ARBOR Technology Corporation

Statements of Operating Costs
January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Item Amount Remark
Merchandise, beginning balance $ 37,586
Add: Purchases in the year 64,236
Less: Merchandise, ending balance ( 34,104)
Scraps ( 574)
Cost of purchases 67,144
Raw materials, beginning balance 165,268
Add: Purchases in the year 229,284
Less: Raw materials, ending balance ( 161,973)
Transferred to expenses ( 1,795)
Scraps ( 1)
Raw materials used 230,783
Manufacturing overhead 85,078
Manufacturing cost 315,861
Add: Work in progress, beginning balance 121,490
Purchases in the year 150,651
Less: Work in progress, ending balance ( 82,656)
Transferred to expenses ( 9,229)
Scraps ( 3,353)
Cost of finished goods 492,764
Add: Finished goods, beginning balance 74,864
Purchases in the year 292,149
Less: Finished goods ending balance ( 102,249)
Transferred to expenses ( 9,497)
Scraps ( 9,095)
Cost of goods sold 738,936
Loss on scrap inventory 13,023
Loss on inventory valuation 4,644
Other operating costs 874
Cost of goods sold and other operating costs 757,477
Operating costs $ 824,621
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ARBOR Technology Corporation

Statements of Operating Expenses

January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Item Amount Remark
Salary expenditure $ 40,575
Depreciation expense 12,376
Processing expense 7,660
Labor and health insurance 4,477
Other expenses 19,990
$ 85,078
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ARBOR Technology Corporation

Statements of Selling Expenses
January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Item Amount Remark

Salary expense $ 38,139
Supplies-Consumed in plant 13,877
Insurance expense 6,479
Freight 5,624
Advertisement expense 5,415
Other expenses 19,686

$ 89,220
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ARBOR Technology Corporation

Statements of General and Administrative Expenses
January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Item Amount Remark
Salary expense $ 26,355
Service fee 6,498
Depreciation expense 4,058
Amortization expense 1,807
Other expenses 17,411
$ 56,129
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ARBOR Technology Corporation

Statements of Research and Development Expenses

January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Item Amount Remark
Salary expense $ 47,638
Materials 7,039
Insurance expense 5,096
Other expenses 17,716
$ 77,489
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annatsai
打字機文字
6. Any financial distress experienced by the Company or its affiliates should disclose its impact on the company's financial position for recent year
and up to publication date of this annual report : None.


VII ~ Matters to be recorded in respect of financial position

and performance and evaluation of risks

1. Financial Position

(1) The main reasons for the significant changes in assets, liabilities and equity in the
last two years and their effects. If the impact is significant, the future plans should be

stated.
Unit: NT$1,000
Variance
Year 2023 2022 :

Item Value % Analysis
Current assets 2,416,190 2,439,177 (22,987) -0.94% Notel
Non-Current financial assets Notel
at fair value through other 12,660 11,268 1,392 12.35%
comprehensive income

Notel
Equity investments 432,193 457,505 (25,312) -5.53%

Notel
Property, Plant and equipment 562,753 565,027 (2,274) -0.40%
Right of use asset 33,801 32,276 1,525 4.72% Notel
Intangible Assets 33,522 36,599 (3,077) -8.41% Notel
Other Assets 139,576 140,927 (1,351) -0.96% Notel
Total Assets 3,630,695 3,682,779  (52,084) -1.41% Notel
Current Liabilities 1,059,451 1,094,594|  (35,143) -3.21% Notel
Non-Current Liabilities 424,286 496,448 (72,162)| -14.54% Note2
Total Liabilities 1,483,737 1,591,042 (107,305) -6.74% Notel
Equity attributable to owners 2,139,313 2,085,532 53781 2 58% Notel
of the company
Common Stock 954,394 954,394 0 0.00% Notel
Capital surplus 808,946 805,341 3,605 0.45% Notel
Retained Earnings 457,870 417,489 40,381 9.67% Notel
Other equity (58,806) (55,177) (3,629) 6.58% Notel
Treasury stock (23,091) (36,515) 13,424  -36.76% Notel
Non-controlling equity 7,645 6,205 1,440 23.21% Notel

Notel
Total shareholder’s equity 2,146,958 2,091,737 55,221 2.64%
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1. Description of significant changes (changes of 10% or more in the preceding and following
periods, and changes amounting to one percent of the total assets of the year)
Note 1: There is no significant change in the percentage of items in FY 2023 and FY 2022, so
they are not analyzed.
Note 2: The increase (decrease) of significant change items in FY 2023 compared.
to FY 2022:
(1) Decrease in current liabilities: Mainly due to payment of bank loans.

2. Countermeasures:
The Company's overall performance is not materially abnormal, and therefore no contingency
plan has been prepared.

3. The above financial information has been audited by the accountants.

2. Financial Performance

(1) Analysis of significant changes in operating revenues, net operating income and
net income before income tax in the last two fiscal years :
Unit: NT$1,000

Year
Item

2023

2022

Change

Change (%)

Analysis

Operating revenue

1,671,427

1,801,055

(129,628)

-7.20%

Note 1

Gross profit

545,814

541,629

4,185

0.77%

Note 1

Operating profit

151,770

129,944

21,826

16.80%

Note 2

Non-operating
income and
expenses

8,660

47,407

(38,747)

-81.73%

Note 3

Pre-tax profit

160,430

177,351

(16,921)

-9.54%

Note 1

Profit (loss) from
continuing
operations

124,338

128,542

(4,204)

-3.27%

Note 1

Net operating profit

124,338

128,542

(4,204)

-3.27%

Note 1

Net other
comprehensive
income (loss)

(10,537)

22,731

(33,268)

-146.36%

Note 1

Total
comprehensive
income

113,801

151,273

(37,472)

-24.77%

Note 3

Net profit
attributable to
owners of the
Company

122,898

132,388

(9,490)

-7.17%

Note 1

Net profit
attributable to non-
controlling equity.

1,440

(3,846)

5,286

-137.44%

Note 1

Total
comprehensive
income attributable
to owners of the
company.

112,361

155,119

(42,758)

-27.56%

Note 3
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Total

comprehensive

income attributable 1,440 (3,846) 5,286 -137.44% Note 1
to non-controlling

equity.

1. Description of significant changes (changes of 10% or more in the prior and subsequent periods,
and changes amounting to 1% of total assets for the year):

Note 1: There is no significant change in the percentage of items in FY 2023 and FY 2022, so
they are not analyzed.

Note 2: Net operating income increased by 16.8% in 2023 compared to 2022, mainly due to the
stable supply and demand of semiconductor components and other materials in the
market in 2023, and the appreciation of the currency value of export transactions in
US dollars, under the appropriate control of costs and Operating expenses, Net
operating income has increased significantly.

Note 3: The decrease in total comprehensive income was mainly due to the decrease in non-
operating income and expenses as a result of the recognition of Equity Investment
losses for FY2023.

2. Countermeasures:
The Company's overall performance is not materially abnormal, and therefore no contingency
plan has been prepared.

3. The above financial information has been audited by the accountants.

(2) The expected sales volume and its basis, the possible impact on the Company's
future financial operations and the contingency plan :

The Company has not disclosed its financial forecast for fiscal 2024 and therefore

does not intend to disclose the expected sales volume.

3. Cash flow
(1) Liquidity analysis for the last two fiscal year
Increase Increase
Fiscal Year 2023 2022 (decrease) (decre.ase)
Item amount Ratio
(%)
Net cash inflows (outflows) from 325,600 251,446 74,154 29.49%
operating activities
Net cash inflows (outflows) from\ 55 43| 230 5740 175,161 75.97%
Investing activities
I;E;fgfi ;ncftli‘évi:ises(outﬂows) from g5857) 162,762 (248,619) -152.75%

Analysis description of changes in the ratio of increase and decrease -

1. Net cash inflows (outflows) from operating activities : The increase in cash inflow in
FY 2023 as compared to FY 2022 is mainly due to the net cash impact from inventory
de-stocking, less purchases and interest income.

2. Net cash inflows (outflows) from investing activities : The significant decrease in the
amount of net cash outflow from 2022 to 2023 is mainly due to the impact of only a
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small amount of changes in time deposits and restricted deposits on the underlying
balance of investment activities in 2023 and 2022.

3. Net cash inflows (outflows) from financing activities : The increase in cash inflow in

2022 was mainly due to the increase in cash inflow from private placements whereas the

net cash outflow in 2023 was due to payment of cash dividends.

(2) Improvement plan for liquidity deficiency: The Company has no cash flow
deficiency, therefore, it is not applicable.

(3) Expected Cash flow analysis for the coming year
Unit: NT$1,000

Estimated full-  |Estimated |Estimated |Remedial Measures for
Opening cash year net cash flow |full-year residual  |Estimated Cash Shortage
balance from operating  |cash inflow|cash Financial
oL Investment Plan
activities (outflow) |amount Plan
650,519 178,186  -113,159( 715,546 None None

1. Analysis of changes in cash flows in the coming year :

Operating activities: The results are expected to continue to grow steadily in the coming
year, and the effective control of accounts receivable will result in net cash inflows from
future operating activities.

Investing activities: Expected increase in equipment required for production, etc.

Financing activities: The increase in long-term loans is expected to cover the increase in
fixed assets and repayment of bank loans due in the current period.

2. Estimated cash shortage remediation measures and liquidity analysis: Not applicable.

4. Impact of significant capital expenditures on financial operations in the most recent
fiscal year :

(1) Significant capital expenditures in recent fiscal years and sources of funds:
None.

(2) Expected to generate revenue: None.

Transfer of investment policy for the most recent fiscal year, the main reasons for profit
or loss, improvement plans and investment plans for the coming year :

(1) Transfer of investment policy -

The Company's management policy for its reinvestment business is based on
the "investment cycle", "procedures for the acquisition or disposal of assets" and
"supervision and management of subsidiaries" of the internal control system to

regulate the operations of the reinvestment business. The investee company is

required to provide financial statements and analysis reports on a regular basis, and

to review the operating and financial reports on a regular basis so that the
Company can fully understand the operations. From time to time, the Company

assigns financial and auditing personnel to visit the actual operations and operating
conditions of the subsidiaries, and conducts random checks on the implementation
of internal control operations and reports to the parent company for management
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purposes.

(2) Main reasons for profit or loss on transfer of investments and improvement

plans :

The Company's equity-method investments are made for long-term strategic
purposes and deployment. :

2. The Company adopted the equity method for recognition of investment loss of

NT$25,287,000 in 2023.

3. Investment income by equity method for fiscal year 2023 decreased by
NT$35,474,000 compared to fiscal year 2022, as shown in the table below:

Affiliate Business Scope 2023 2022 | Variance
Industrial
. Computer, Parts and
Amobile HK Accessories Trading (25,287) 10,187 (35,474)
and Investment
Total (25,287)|  10,187| (35,474)

The loss-making business will continue to be evaluated on the basis of long-
term strategic investments and the priority of the Company's core business-
related peripheral businesses.

(3) Investment plan for the coming year: None.
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6. Risk analysis and evaluation

(1) Impact of interest rate, exchange rate changes and inflation on the Company's
profit and loss and future response measures

1. Impact of interest rate changes on the Company's profit and loss and future

measures
Unit: NT$1,000 ; %
Fiscal year 2023
Item
Net Operating Income 1,671,427
Net income before tax 160,430
Interest income 24,627
Interest income to net operating income (%) 1.47
Interest income to net income before income tax (%) 15.35
Interest expense 23,868
Interest expense as a percentage of net operating
; 0 1.43
income (%)
Interest expense to net income before income taxes
%) 14.88

The Company is conservative in the use of capital and invests mainly in time
deposits and demand deposits. Interest rates have not fluctuated significantly
in recent years and remain low, so interest income does not account for a high
proportion of operating income. In addition, the interest expense on bank loans
for operational capital demand is also not high as a percentage of operating
income.

The Company will continue to operate in a conservative and prudent manner
in the future, considering both liquidity and safety, to allocate the most
appropriate capital group for the maximum benefit of shareholders -

A. Maintain close contact with financial institutions to keep abreast of interest
rate changes.

B. With reference to domestic and international economic trend research
reports and observing the fluctuation of domestic and international
benchmark market interest rates, we adjust the capital utilization in a timely
manner.

2. Impact of exchange rate changes on the Company's profit or loss and future

measures
Unit: NT$1,000 ; %
Fiscal year 2023

Item
Net Operating Income 1,671,427
Net income before tax 160,430
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) 1,992
Net foreign exchange (loss) as a percentage of

. 0.12
net operating income (%)
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Fiscal year
Item 2023
Net foreign exchange gains (losses) to net 104
income before income tax (%) '

The Company's net foreign exchange gain (loss) for fiscal year 2023 was
NT$1,992,000, representing 0.12% of revenue and 1.24% of net income
before income tax. The Company's overseas revenue accounted for 96.69% of
the total revenue in fiscal year 2023 so the exchange rate changes had a certain
impact on the Company's profitability.

The Company adopted the following measures to address the impact of
exchange rate changes on the Company's profit or loss :

A. Besides generating a natural hedge through foreign currency-denominated
imports and sales, the Company's treasury department also takes into
account relevant information and future trends in the exchange rate market
to exchange foreign currencies in a timely manner in order to reduce foreign
currency risk exposure.

B. The Company maintains close contact with its major counterparties to
monitor changes in the foreign exchange market for timely adjustment of
exchange rate fluctuations by the relevant executives and as a basis for
product price adjustments by the Company's business units.

C. The Company also engages in foreign exchange hedging operations in
accordance with the "Procedures for the Acquisition or Disposal of Assets"
when necessary, depending on the level of foreign currency positions.

3. The impact of inflation on the Company's profit and loss and future measures

The global economic growth trend is promising, but the shortage of components,
imported raw materials and technical equipment have become more expensive,
affecting production costs. The Company will adjust selling prices in response
to rising operating costs, and improve production efficiency and optimize the
supply chain to moderate inflationary pressures. The Company will continue to
seek new market opportunities and reduce its dependence on a single market,
while adopting appropriate currency risk management strategies to cope with
the risk of currency depreciation.

(2) The policy of engaging in high-risk, highly leveraged investments, lending of funds
to others, endorsement of guarantees and derivative transactions, the main reasons
for profit or loss and future measures.

The Company does not engage in high capitalization in the year of operation
and its financial operations are based on the principle of prudence and conservatism;
recent risky, highly leveraged investments and other transactions. As of the date of
the publication of the annual report, the Company's derivative transactions are for
hedging purposes, except for the endorsement and guarantee lines provided by the
Company to its investees for the purchase of materials. The Company conducts
regular audits and makes announcements and reports in accordance with the relevant
regulations.
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3)

4

)

(6)

(7)

®)
©)

Future research and development plans and estimated research and development
expense

In order to continue to improve the Company's competitiveness, the Company
has been investing in R&D. In 2023, the Company invested $86,972,000 in R&D
expenses, accounting for 5% of net operating revenues. The proportion of R&D
expenses to revenue is expected to remain at approximately 5-7%

Impact of significant changes in domestic and foreign policies and laws on the
Company's financial operations and response measures: None.

The Company operates in compliance with relevant domestic and foreign laws
and regulations and keeps an eye on domestic and foreign policy developments and
regulatory changes in order to respond to changes in domestic and foreign political
and economic conditions in a timely manner, therefore, important domestic and
foreign policy and legal changes do not have a significant impact on the Company's
financial operations.

Impact of technological changes and industry changes on the Company's financial
operations and response measures

The Company is always aware of changes in its industry and technological
development, and keeps abreast of industry dynamics and market information. The
Company's professional staff often collects information on industry-related
technology and trend changes for the management's reference in making decisions,
so as to adjust the Company's operating strategies and formulate response measures.
Therefore, there is no significant impact on the Company's financial operations due
to technological or industrial changes in the recent year.

The impact of corporate image change on corporate crisis management and
response measures

The Company's business purpose is based on the principle of stability and
integrity, with a good corporate reputation, and plans to enter the capital market in
order to attract more talented people to enter the Company's services, to build up the
strength of the business team, and then to return the results of operations to the
shareholders and fulfill the corporate social responsibility, therefore, there is no
threat to the corporate reputation. Therefore, there are no incidents that endanger the
corporate image. In the future, the Company will fulfill its corporate social
responsibility while pursuing the best interests of shareholders.

Expected benefits, possible risks and contingency measures for mergers and
acquisitions: None.

Expected benefits, possible risks and contingencies of plant expansion: None.

Risks of concentration of imports or sales and response measures: None.

(10) The impact, risk and response measures on the Company due to the substantial

transfer or change of shareholding of directors, supervisors or major shareholders
holding more than 10% of the shares: None.

(11) Impact of the change in operating right on the Company, risks and response

measures: None.

(12) Litigation or non-litigation events :
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1. The Company shall disclose the facts of the dispute, the amount of the subject
matter, the date of commencement of the litigation, the principal parties involved
in the litigation and the current status as of the date of publication of the annual
report if the outcome of the litigation or administrative dispute has been determined
or is still pending as of the latest year and as of the date of publication of the annual
report:

(1) Closed Litigation Events :
The Company had no such situation in fiscal year 2023 and as of the date
of publication of the annual report.

(2) Pending litigation, non-litigation or administrative disputes

a. Company A, a customer of ARBOR, initially signed a quotation from
ARBOR in April 2022 to purchase equipment from ARBOR (Company A
purchased 50 units of equipment from ARBOR and Company A's
subsidiary in China purchased 450 units of equipment from ARBOR), but
due to the difference in communication between the two parties during the
procurement process, Company A gave notice to ARBOR in May 2022 to
terminate the equipment purchase. In May 2022, Company A gave
ARBOR notice of termination of the Equipment Purchase. In order to
protect ARBOR's interests, ARBOR filed a lawsuit against ARBOR in July
2022 for the performance of the Purchase and Sale Agreement, which is
currently pending in the first instance. However, the outcome of the lawsuit,
whether successful or unsuccessful, is not sufficient to dissolve the
Company or change its organization, capital, business plan, financial
condition, or suspend production, or to affect the market order or harm the
public welfare.

b. Shenzhen Xin Ya Bo Technology Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as "Xin
Ya Bo"), a subsidiary of ARBOR, filed a lawsuit against Jiangsu Tianyu
Quick Source Intelligent Technology Development Co. On August 19,
2022, a lawsuit was filed with the People's Court of Xinbei District,
Changzhou City, Jiangsu Province. Tianyu was ordered by the first instance
judgment on October 17, 2022 to repay Xin Ya Bo the amount of
RMBS8,861,875 and the liquidated damages calculated on the basis of such
amount from January 31, 2021 to the date of actual payment at the quoted
market interest rate of the one-year loan published by the National
Interbank Offered Rate Center. However, Tianyu filed an appeal on
October 28, 2022 against the judgment of the first trial regarding the
starting point of the calculation of the liquidated damages, but the judgment
was confirmed in the second trial as Tianyu withdrew the appeal on April
3,2023, and after the judgment was confirmed, Shin-Appo has filed a claim
for enforcement against Tianyu and is currently waiting for the final
enforcement result before it can In addition, the Company has recorded a
full amount of impairment loss on the overdue credit in 2022 for this
payment.

2. Directors, supervisors, general managers, beneficial owners, substantial
shareholders holding more than 10% of the shares and subsidiaries of the Company,
and litigation, non-litigation or administrative disputes that have been determined
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or are currently pending as of the publication date of the annual report, the outcome
of which may have a significant impact on the Company's shareholders' equity or
securities prices. -

(1) Closed Litigation Events :
The Company had no such situation in fiscal year 2023 and as of the date
of publication of the annual report.

(2) Pending litigation, non-litigation or administrative disputes

(hereinafter referred to as "Wistron"), a director of the Company, has the
following litigation cases, in addition to the following There are no
litigation, non-litigation or administrative disputes that have been
determined or are currently pending against the remaining directors,
supervisors, presidents, major shareholders with a shareholding of more
than 10%, or subsidiaries, the outcome of which may have a significant
impact on shareholders' equity or securities prices.

Alacritech filed a lawsuit against the Company in June 2016 in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas for alleged
infringement of servers and network interface devices. The Court
ordered a stay of the case in 2017, but has reopened it in October 2022.
The Company still cannot assess the possible impact on its financial
losses.

The above case is a lawsuit by Wistron itself and has nothing to do with
ARBOR. The outcome of the litigation in the above case should not affect
ARBOR's finance and business, nor its shareholders' equity.

(13) Other important risks and response measures: None.

7. Other important matters: None.
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(2) Relationship with affiliated companies and mutual shareholdings :

As 0f 12/31/2023
R . Ownership of the Company’s
The Company’s holding holding
Name of Affiliate Relationship No.of Actual  |Holding| No.of Actual |Holding
shares | investment % shares [investment| %
ARBOR SOLUTION, INC. Subsidiary | 9,000 USD 900| 100 0 0 0
S%;DING TECHNOLOGY CO., Subsidiary 500{ USD 500[ 100 0 0 0
f{fBIED INFO INVESTMENTS Subsidiary 850|HKD | 6,600( 100 0 0 0
Excellent Top International
Development Limited (HK) | ¢ 4 igiary | 40,562/ USD | 5.236] 100 0 0 0
Holding
ARBOR FRANCE S.A.S Subsidiary 0 EUR 600| 100 0 0 0
FLOURISH TECHNOLOGY 1
CO. LTD Subsidiary | 35,195{USD | 4,531] 100 0 0 0
ARBOR KOREA Co.,Ltd Subsidiary 101| USD 495| 100 0 0 0
Acloud Intelligence Services | g qinre | 4,025\ NTD |40,250| 67.08 | 0 0 0
Corp. Ltd.
Arbor Beijing Technology Co. Second tier HKD| 6,600
e 0 100 0 0 0
subsidiary RMB| 494
ARBOR Technology (Shenzhen) Secopq tier olusp| 5,000 100 0 0 0
Co., Ltd subsidiary
Arbor China Technology Co. Secopq tier olusp| 4531 100 0 0 0
subsidiary
Best Vintage Global LTD Subsidiary 0| GBP | 1,279 100 0 0 0
Perfect Stream LTD Second tier 0/GBP| 1279 100 | 0 0 0
subsidiary
Arbor Technology UK LTD. Second tier 0| GBP | 1,279| 100 0 0 0
subsidiary
2.Basic information of affiliated companies
As 0f 12/31/2023
Name of Company Established Address Palq In Main business
date Capital scope
Sales of IPC
ARBOR SOLUTION, 46539 Fremont Blvd. Fremont, Computers and
INC. 9002 | cA 94538 USD - 900 ey
components
P.O.Box 3321,(Sealight
GUIDING House) » Road .
TECHNOLOGY LTD 90121 o wn, Tortola, British Virgin USD | 500 | Trading
Islands
ALLIED INFO Offshore Chambers,P.O.Box
INVESTMENTS LTD OL10 | 517 Apia,Samoa HKD 6,600 | Tnvestment
Excellent Top 96.01 7/F KIN ON COMM BLDG 49 | USD | 5,236 | Investment
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Name of Company Established Address Palq In Main business
date Capital scope
International JERVOIS ST SHEUNG WAN
Development
Limited(H.X) Holding
Sales of IPC
ARBOR FRANCE 2, rue Pitois 92800 PUTEAUX Computers and
S.AS 99.02 | FRANCE EUR | 600 | iper
components
FLOURISH Investment and
TECHNOLOGY CO., 96.11 Hong Kong, China USD | 4,531 .
trading
LTD
1205, 12th floor, Hoseo Venture Sales of IPC
ARBOR KOREA Tower Gasan-Dong 319, Computers and
Co.,Ltd B Kemcheun-gu,Seoul, Korea USD 495 other
153778 components
Acloud Intelligence 10F.-8, No. 700, Zhongzheng (SIE(I)lrils (1)1£elrlzcand
! g 103.09.05 | Rd., Zhonghe Dist., New Taipei | NTD | 40,250 P
Services Corp. Ltd. Cit other
Y components
Technology Co. 90.07 | Beijing, China RMB| 6,600 | therp
components
Production and
ARBOR Technology 96.02 | Shenzhen, China USD | 5,000 | sales of IPC
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd
computers
. Sales of IPC
Arbor China 94.08 | Shenzhen, China USD | 4,531 | Computers and
Technology Co.
software
Best Vintage Global 104.12 Ser.tus Chambers, P.O. Box 603, USD 1 | tnvestment
LTD Apia, Samoa
Perfect Stream LTD 104.12 Ser.tus Chambers, P.O. Box 603, USD 1 | Investment
Apia, Samoa
15 HASTINGS HOUSE, Sales of IPC
Arbor Technology UK 105.01 AUCKLAND PARK, GBP 1 Computers and
LTD. ’ BLETCHLEY, MILTON other
KEYNES, MK1 1BU components

3. The Company has no other affiliates that are presumed to have control and
subordination under Article 369 term of the Company Act: None.

4.The businesses of the Group's affiliates include the assembly, marketing and sale
of industrial computers, the sale and purchase of electronic control automation systems
and equipment, and the manufacture, sale and purchase of automation control
equipment and overseas investments in the production and service industries.
The main items of the division of labor among the affiliated companies
include :
A. Purchase of finished products (including triangular trade)
B. Buy raw materials on behalf of others.
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5. Directors, supervisors and general managers of affiliated companies

As 0f2023/12/31
No. of Shares / Paid in Capital
Name of the company Title Name/Representative Holding
shares o
President | Arbor Technology legal
ARBOR SOLUTION. INC representative : Eric Lee 9,000,000(Notel) | 100.00%
’ ' General - -
Manager | Stanley Lee
Arbor Technology legal
GUIDING TECHNOLOGY Director | representative : Eric Lee 50,000(Notel) | 100.00%
CO., LTD
Arbor Technology legal
ALLIED INFO . Ll o
INVESTMENTS LTD Director | representative : Eric Lee 850,000(Notel) | 100.00%
Excellent Top Development Director Arbor Technology. legal 40,562,000(Notel) | 100.00%
Ltd. representative : Eric Lee
President | Arbor Technology legal
ARBOR FRANCE S.A S representative : Eric Lee (Notel) (Note2) | 100.00%
o General - -
Manager | Franck Bernheim
FLOURISH . Arbor Technology legal o
TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD | DIeCtOr | o resentative : Eric Lee 11,930,000(Notel) | 100.00%
President | Arbor Technology legal
representative : Eric Lee 101,000(Notel) | 100.00%
ARBOR KOREA Co.,Ltd General . i
Manager | James Jin
General | Arbor Technol.ogy. legal 4,025,000(Notel)
Manager | representative : Eric Lee 67.08%
ACLOUD INTELLIGENCE DO
SERVICES CORP. LTD. Director | Arbor Technology legal 4,025,000(Notel) ?gggé)
representative :Feng Ling, Kuo 600.000 e
Director | Yi-Jen, Tsai ’
(Notel) (Note2)
President | Arbor Technology legal (Note3)
Arbor Beiiing Technolo representative : Clark Lien 100.00%
o Jing 8 | Director | Arbor Technology legal (Notel) (Note2) | 100.00%
” representative : Feng-Ling Kuo (Note3) 100.00%
General | Clark Lien (Notel) (Note2) -
Manager (Note3)
(Notel) (Note2)
President | Arbor Technology legal (Note4)
representative : Clark Lien 100.00%
?S%En(zﬁeg Célgoi)ﬁiy Director | Arbor Technology legal (Notel) (Note2) 100.00%
? representative : Feng-Ling Kuo (Note4) 100.00%
General | Clark Lien (Notel) (Note2) -
Manager (Note4)
President
Arbor Technology legal (Notel) (Note2)
Arbor China Technology Co., Director representative : Clark Lien (NoteS) 100.00%
Clark Lien (Notel) (Note2) -
(Note5)
Best Vintage Global LTD Director Arbor Technol.ogy. legal 1,000;(Notel) | 100.00%
representative : Eric Lee
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No. of Shares / Paid in Capital

Name of the company Title Name/Representative Holding
shares o
(]
Perfect Stream LTD Director Best V1ntage Globgl LTD legal 1,000;(Notel) 100.00%
representative : Eric Lee (Note6)
Perfect Stream LTD legal 1,000;(Notel)
Directo representative : Eric Lee (Note7) N
Arbor Technology UK LTD. Director | Perfect Stream LTD legal 1,000;(Notel) 100.00%
representative : Feng-Ling Kuo (Note7)

Note 1: Holding by Arbor Technology.

Note 2: Limited company, no shares issued.

Note 3: Holding by Allied Info Investments Ltd.
Note 4: Holding by Excellent Top Development Ltd.
Note 5: Holding by Flourish Technology Co., Ltd.
Note 6: Holding by Best Vintage Global Ltd.

Note 7: Holding by Perfect Stream Ltd.
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6. Performance of Affiliates
As of 12/31/2023;Unit: NT$; $1,000;1,000 shares

Earnings
Total . Net per
Company Name Investment Total Liabilitie Ne.t Revenu O.p crating income |share( NTD
Assets equity |e income
s after tax )
(After tax)
ARBOR usp | ooopazor0| 138.113]103.957362,475|  12.724]  0007] 10O
SOLUTION, INC. ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’
GUIDING
TECHNOLOGY USD 500 24,310 14,690 9,620 63,900 (432) 63
CO.,LTD
ALLIED INFO
INVESTMENTS HKD | 6,600[ 5,068 5,280 -212 1,723 5 5
LTD
Excellent Top
International
Development USD 5,236(559,563| 345,310|214,253|445,477 9,250 3,346
Limited(H.K)
Holding
giBSORFRANCE EUR 600 67,248 23,986 43,262(102,984 5,401 3,995
FLOURISH
TECHNOLOGY USD | 4,531|182,342| 126,352| 55,990(136,932 (13,385)| (13,835)
CO.,.LTD Not
applicable
ARBOR KOREA
CO.LTD uUsD 495| 71,538| 44,216( 27,322| 91,678 4,436 4313
Acloud Intelligence \opy | 409501 35867 12,648| 23,219] 45,655 4350 4370
Services Corp. Ltd.
Arbor Beijing
Technology Co. RMB 6,600[ 5,068 5,280 (212)] 1,723 %) %)
ARBOR Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd USD 5,000(558,627| 345,310|213,317|434,091 3,831 3,346
Arbor China USD | 4,531{175,007| 123,068| 51,939]136,932| (15,020)| (13,830)
Technology Co.
pest Vintage Global g, 1124,492|  23,805]100,687 20,659
Perfect Stream LTD |USD 11124,492| 23,805|100,687 20,659
Arbor Technology
UK LTD. GBP 1124,492| 23,805]100,687|136,196 21,883 20,659
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(2) Consolidated financial statements of affiliates: The companies which shall be
included by the Company in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of affiliates in 2023 (from January 1, to December 31, 2023) in
accordance with the Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports,
Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises are the same as the companies which shall be included in the preparation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements of parent company and subsidiaries in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards No. 10 recognized by
the Financial Supervisory Commission, and the relevant information which shall be
disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements of affiliates have been disclosed
in the said Consolidated Financial Statements of parent company and subsidiaries,
therefore Consolidated Financial Statements of affiliates are not prepared separately.

(3) Reports on Affiliations: None

2. Private Placement of Securities during the Most Recent Fiscal Year or during the
Current Fiscal Year up to the Date of Publication of the Annual Report: None

3. Holding or Disposal of Shares in the Company by the Company's Subsidiaries
during the Most Recent Fiscal Year or during the Current Fiscal Year up to the Date of
Publication of the Annual Report: None

4.  Other Supplementary Information: None.
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IX ~ Material Impacts

If any of the situations listed in Article 36, paragraph 3, sub paragraph 2 of the Securities
and Exchange Act, which might materially affect shareholders' equity or the price of the
company's securities, has occurred during the most recent fiscal year or during the current

fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report, such situations shall be listed
one by one: None.
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